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STATE COMMISSION OF INVESTIGATION 

Report on Public Hearing 
and Investigative Findings on 

Casino Credit Abuses 

The SCI concluded its public hearing on casino credit on March 4 
with the observation that four days of testimony had produced an 
"extremely harsh indictment" of the entire process. While deploring 
the damaging impact of this indictment on the integrity of the 
industry, the SCI also empasized its human cost. The hearing 
testimony demonstrated without question thaC iiresponsible and callous 
credit decisions and related enticements are luc·ing many patrons -­
including gambling addicts -- into personal degradation and financial 
self-destru~tion. The abuses identified by the public hearing 
testimony also included the revelation that criminal elements, 
including organized crime members and associates, enjoyed an access to 
the gaming tables that casino executives themselves encouraged by the 
fawning disbursement of easy credit and lavish complimentary 
services. Law enforcement and regulatory witnesses warned that, 
b~cause of the inadequacies of statutory controls, the credit system 
is so fertiie a field for crime and corruption that a markedly 
disproportionate share of their staff resources must be focused on 
credit misconduct. These expert witnesses graphically illustrated the 
built-in restraints against effective law enforcement that have 
encouraged the perpetration or credit scams based on forgery, theft, 
perjury and collusion. 

Overall, the investigative findings and public hearing disclo­
sures confirmed the logic and propriety of a recommendation by the SCI 
six years ago when the Casino Control Act was being drafted. The SCI 
said then that allowing casin0s to yrant credit would result in 
"substantial social and law enforcement problems," including improper 
credit collection practices, loansharking and gaming scams. l\s a 
result this agency strongly urged in the spring of 1977 that the 
Legislature prohibit the utilization of credit in casino gaming and, 
instead, provide for the issuance of chips to patrons only in return 
for "up-front" cash or for strictly defined and regulated cash 
equivalents. Since the initial concerns of the SCI have been ratified 
by both investigative findings and public hearing testimony, we 
reiterate our original call for a prohibition against credit at 
casinos and commend that position to the Legislature. Should that 
request be declined by the Legislature, we have prepared the attached 
reform proposals for alternative lawmaking and regulatory action. 

We remain pessimistic that even the most stringent of corrections 
will effectively reform the process. We are particularly alarmed 
about the slackened zeal and objectivity with which a segment of the 
regulatory apparatus is monitoring the industry. We regret to have to 
say here that without a more aggressive oversight effort by the Casino 
Control Commission, no attempt to bring effective law and order to the 
casino credit process can succeed. There must be an increased will­
ingness on the pprt of the Control Commission to respond more 
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effectively to enforcement problems laid at its doorstep by the 
Division of Gaming Enforcement, and conversely there must be a more 
vigorous effort by tl1e Division to press for such resolutions, in the 
state courts if necessary. As Attorney General Kimmelman declared at 
the SCI's public hearing, if an "honest effort" to eliminate the 
credit abuses fails, "we may have no choice but to ultimately do away 
with credit altoqetherc." 

The SCI',; proposed reforms should provide the tools for an 
"honest effort" to create a better credit system that can be 
implemented on a sounder and more honest basis by both the industry 
and its regulators. The citizens of New Jersey, upon whose trust the 
casino industry depends for continued economic success, deserve no 
less. 

As outlined at the conclusion of this report, the SCI submitted 
to the Governor, the Legislature and to standing legislative 
committees charged with casino credit oversight a broad range of 
statutory and regulatory revisions of the Casino Control Act 
(N.J.S.A. 5: 12-1 et. seq.) and of the Casino Control Commission 
regulations (as enumerated in N.,,.A.C. 19-:40 et seq.) These 
detailed recommendations begin at P. 288 of this report. The 
following summary illustrates the range and thrust of the SCI's 
detailed effort to reform the casino credit process. 

Recommendations in Brief (Statutory) 

A. Repeal Credit 

Repeal all statutory provisions which authorize the extension 
of credit at casionos. 

Comment 

As the SCI states in the Preface to this report, "we reiterate 
our call for a prohibition against credit at the casinos ... should that 
request be declined by the Legislature, we ha.2 prepared the attached 
reform proposals for alternative lawmaking and ,:-egu'atory action." 

B. Eliminate Tax Write-Off for Debts 

Eliminate the provision that allows a casino licensee to 
deduct a percentage of uncollectible gambling debts from gross 
revenue subject to the State gambling tax. 

-- Redefine "gross revenue" to eliminate a possibility that this 
tax base could be reduced by a violation, intentional or other­
wise, of a statutory provision governing the credit process. 

Comment 

The deduction for uncollectible credit debts, commonly known as 
the "write off" provision, reduces the tax revenues available for the 
benefit of New Jersey's disabled and elderly citizens. The 
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Commission's inquiry and public hearing disclosed that a large portion 
of such uncollectible debts resulted from careless or irresponsible 
credit decisions by the casinos and that many bad debt settlements, or 
write-offs, were based on factors other than a debtor's ability to 
pay. The Commission believes that the casino industry, rather than a 
large segment of the state's citizens, should carry the burden of 
uncollectible gaming receivables. 

c. Exclude Undesirables Immediately 

-- Require immediate exclusion or ejection by a casino of persons 
defined by the casino law as being subject to such exclusion or 
ejection. 

-- Authorize a casino to detain and questi~n a person to deter­
mine if that person should be excluded or ejected. 

-- Grant immunity from criminal or civil liability to a casino 
which detains, questions, exclu~es or ejects a person in a 
reasonable manner. 

-- Provide that, if an agent of the Division of Gaming Enforce 
mentor the Casino Control Commission observes a person who might 
reasona~ly be subject to ejection from the premises, the casino 
shall be so advised and shall report back in writing within 24 
hours on what action i~ took. 

Place on 
proof at any 
was lawful. 

the Divisio,, 
hearing that 

of 
an 

Gaming Enforcement 'she burden of 
exclusion or ejection of a person 

-- Revise regulations governing exclusion and ejection to require 
immediate placement on the exclusion list of a person deemed to 
be subject to such an action pendir,q a hearing. 

Require a casino to exclude or eject a person believed to be 
subject to the statutory exclusion or ejection criteria even if 
such a person is not on the exclusion list, and require further 
that the casino file with the State the identification of the 
person ejected together the reasons for such action. 

Comment 

The public hearing was marked by both the testimony of key 
regulatory officials and commentary by the Commission emphasizing the 
need to prohibit the presence of criminal elements, including 
organized crime members and associates, at the gaming tahles. Even 
witnesses from the casinos indicated that a more stringent exclusion 
or ,ej<;>ction process against undesirables would be welcomed by the 
industry -- although the hearing record also indicated that on too 
many occasions criminal elements were encouraged to gamble by offers 
of such "complimentaries" as free rooms, food and drink ,as well as 
generous credit privileges. The Commission believes that its recom­
mendations for substantially strengthening the exclusion system 
particularly by assuring immediate ouster action -- complies with the 
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legislative intent in enacting the Casino Control Act to safeguard the 
integrity of 1 hr industry from criminal dehan,,ment. The proposed 
reforms would E>ra,;<, content ions by the indust: "Y that it could not 
assess whether c, per.son was excludable because of vague statutory 
criteria and tnac it could not make such determinations without State 
directi'on, The reforms also would eradicate an industry fear of civil 
or criminal liability under the exclusion process. In addition, the 
recommendation,; clarify procedural guidelines for more effective 
enforcement and adjudication of exclusionary requirements. As the 
Commission has noted, although this problem has stirred increasing 
public concern the Casino Control Commission has failed to react to it 
with appropriate regulatory leadership. 

D. Chip Cashers Must Pay Markers 

-- Require that, before a patron leaves a gaming table with $200 
or more in chips and has unpaid counter checks of $200 or more, 
tne casino must in the pit area collect and apply the proceeds 
from those chips against the unpaid markers. An exemption from 
this requirement would be permitted only if granted in writing by 
a specified officer of the casino on the basis of a written 
request by the patron. The forms for applying for an exemption 
and for granting the exemption must be signed and otherwise 
authenticated and must include the reasons for both request and 
authorization. 

Require that whenever a patron leaves a gaming table with 
chips, personnel responsible for player-rating forms shall record 
the amount of chips in the patron's possession. 

Comment 

These recommendations would 
abuses of the credit process 
"rolling markers." 

curtail two 
1) "walking 

particL1larly 
with chips," 

serious 
and 2) 

A credit patron who walks with chips typical;y obtains chips in 
return for his counter check and then either leaves the gaming area to 
cash out the chips or has a confederate cash them out. In either 
case, the money the casino has loaned is taken out of the casino's 
iurisdiction. Even if a patron who walks with chips subsequently 
redeems his counter check, he is, in the meantime, free to use the 
casino's cash in any manner for 90 banking days -- the time period 
(actually about 120 calendar days) before a casino must collect on a 
marker. This means such a patron can invest the casino's interest­
free cash before paying it back, or the money can be used for criminal 
purposes, including loansharking or drug trafficking. Public hearing 
testimony confirmed that walking with chips was an unusually critical 
problem, which casino witnesses professed an inability to control, and 
which law enforcement witnesses confirmed was the basis for widespread 
and costly gambling frauds or scams. A patron who rolls his markers 
must first walk with chips. The next step is to use this cash .to pay 
off the patron's oldest markers before expiration of the 90 banking 
days' grace period, thus creating an illusion of credit worthiness. 
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Public hearing testimony demonstratec'I that an inordinate number 
of credit limit misjudgments and subsequent uncollectible credit debts 
resulted from walking with chips and rolling markers. These practices 
are not addressed by existing law. Indeed, under the statute, a 
casino must redeem a patron's chips on request even if that individual 
owes the casino money. The recommended reforms would curtail these 
practices by requiring a written record of the chips in possession of 
a credit gambler when he leaves a table and requiring that such chips 
be applied against the most recent marker (See regulatory section) 
when cashed out, subject to a possible exemption that, if granted, 
must be fully explained and authenticated in writing. The 
recommendation for the redemption of chips and repaying outstan,Hng 
credit at the pit itself is based on testimony at the public hearing 
that this would be the most effective wav to reduce abuses of the 
system. At present chips are redeemed at· cashier cages, at varying 
distances from the gaming tables. 

E. Expand Restrictions on Gratuities 

-- Prohibit the solicitation or acceptance of a tip or gratuity 
by a casino supervisory employee and prohibit any other employee 
from soliciting any tip or gratuity. 

Comment 

This recommendation would extend the prohibition against 
supervisory employees soliciting and receiving tips and other 
employees soliciting tips to 2~y casino in Atlantic City rather than 
only the casino where such employees work. As rephrased, this 
provision also would clarify the prohibition for the purpose of more 
effective enforcement. Testimony at the public hearing indicatec'I that 
gratuities in one form or another, including qift certificat2s, were 
offered by credit patrons from a casino other than that wher.e the 
tipped supervisory employee worked, 

F. 14-Day Deadline for Depositing Markers 

-- Require that casinos must deposit all counter checks in a bank 
for payment within 14 days of the date of the transaction. 

Comment 

Under present law varying deadlines are set for depositing 
markers by casinos -- seven banking days for checks of under $1,000; 
14 banking days for checks of $1,000 to $2,499, and 90 banking days 
for checks of $2,500 or more. This proposal would eliminate these 
provisions and substitute a 14-day requirement for depositing all 
markers. This revision also would reduce the time limit for holdinq 
counter checks by utilizing calendar days instead of banking days. 

The current allowance of 90 banking days for holding markers -- a 
time period that actually amounts to about 120 calendar days -- has 
been responsible for numerous abuses of the casino credit process. 
Competitive pressures among casinos have led to excessive utilization 
of this provision. Credit players are aware that casinos can hold 
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their markers for more than four months and tend to gamble where this 
privileqe . is more generously available. Testimony at the hearing 
indicated that this provision has been primarily responsible for 
promoting the practice of walking with chips by credit gamblers who 
know they can utilize interest-free casino cash for personal 
investments or for criminal purposes without fear of immediate 
detection. The long check-holding time periocJ has also promoted the 
practice of credit players' rolling over old markers to create an 
illusion of reliability in order to obtain new 90-day casino loans. 
Most tragic of the abuses attributable to the check-re tent i.on time 
lapse has been -- as evidenced by hearing testimony -- its seduction 
of addicts and other types of problem gamblers who are lulled by easy 
money and distant pay-up deadlines to literally self destruct at the 
gaming tables. 

The SCI believes that a time period of 14 days for holding checks 
not only is sufficient time for requiring a debt to be paid but also 
will enable casinos to more quickly evaluate the credit worthiness of 
a player as well as his or her actual ability to afford gaming debts. 
Of major importance, also, is the fact that, whether a credit scam is 
perpetrated by outsiders or in collusion w:th casino personnel, law 
enforcement and regulatory agencies would be more quickly alerted. 
Law en£orcement witnesses at the hearing indicated the problems 
plaguing investigations which did not begin until three or four months 
after the crime occurred. A 14-day restriction, the SCI wishes to 
emphasize, could discourage many less affluent credit gamblers from 
courting personal disastor since they would be forced to recognize 
their obligations to redeem markers within two weeks instead of four 
months after date of issuance. Finally, compulsive gamblers would 
more quickly be detected and prevented from further squandering of 
their personal resources via the credit process. 

G. Fines could Go To $1 Million 

-- Increase civil penalties to punish misconduct from $10,000 to 
$100,000 in the case of an individu~ and from $50,000 to 
$1,000,000 for a corporation - with a provis•• that higher fines 
also can be imposed if circumstances warrant. 

-- Raise the level of an offense under this Act from a disorderly 
person offense to a crime of the fourth degree, subject to fines 
of not more than $25,000 for an individual and not more than 
$100,000 for a corporation. 

CO\llfllent 

When sanctions were established by the Legislature in 1977, few 
lawmakers could envision that the casino industry would grow to its 
present multi-billion-dollar stature. The increased penalties 
proposea above are deemed by the SCI to be more realistic than 
present provisions in view of the huge cash flow and massive economic 
impact of Lhe industry. 
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Recommendations in Brief (Regulatory) 

A. Identification Requirements 

-- "Identification Credentials" in the definitions section of the 
casino control regulations must be expanded to require a creden­
tial which "bears a photo or a physical description ••• " 

Comment 

Existing regulations permit credit applicants to submit almost 
any document which contains their signature as a valid form of 
identification. The SCI hearing demonstrated a need for a more 
accurate, comprehensive and reliable means :if identifying would-be 
credit gamblers. 

B. Closer Security-Surveillance-Credit Liaison 

-- Require a continuing responsibility for communication in writ­
ing by casino security and surveillance departments to credit 
managers of information which may be useful in determining the 
credit worthiness of a patron. 

-- Requi~e a credit manager to submit a list of new credit appli­
cants at least daily to a casino's surveillance and security de­
partment directors. 

Comment 

Public hearing testimony demonstrated frequent, lapses in 
communications by casino security and surveillance personnel with 
credit managers and support staff and vice versa. As a res11lt 
applicants received credit unjustifiably or received larger credit 
limits than their personal or financial backgrounds warranted. 

C. Redeem Most Recent Marker 

Require casinos t0 redeem a credit gambler's most recent 
counter check. 

Comment 

Unlike the present regulation, which allows a credit gambler to 
pay off his oldest marker, this amendment would require counter checks 
to be deposited on a more timely basis and would effectively eliminate 
the abusive practice of rolling over markers, previously discnssed on 
pP. 4-5. This revision would provide quicker reliable feedback on a 
gambler's credit worthiness since his oldest markers would have to be 
deposited before his newer markers could be redeemed within the 
proposed new 14-day check-holding time period. 

D. Strengthen, Expand Credit File 

-- Require in the compilation of any patron's credit file, in 
addition to p*es~nt requirements, the receiving/preparing clerk's 
signature and method of receiving application; the patron's 
residence and t,;,lephone, employer, address, type of business, 
patron's position and tenure and business phone, amount and 



-8-

source of income "to be considered," amount and source of 
outstanding debts, number of patron's personal bank account for 
which his signature is authorized, a specimen check, etc. 

-- Require two photographs of a patron to be taken by the casino 
licensee, with signatures of cashier and patron authenticating 
the photographs. 

-- Require two fingerprints of 
signed by cashier and patron 
photographs, along with date of 

applicant taken by the licensee, 
as authentication, to accomrJa11y 
birth and physical description. 

Require patron's signature to a statement attesting to the 
truthfulness and accuracy of the application, authorizing 
investigation of its contents and the release of same as required 
by law, and conceding that "willingly furnishing false 
information may subject me to criminal prosecution." 

-~ Require listing of credit limit requested and names of other 
casinos where patron has or had "established credit." 

-- Require more intensive verification than now required, prior 
to approval of credit limit or increases, including reference to 
"recognized credit bureaus" that can provide gambling credit and 
non-gambling credit history. 

Require detailed data on patron's credit accounts at other 
casinos, cncluding status at time of verification, any derogatory 
information and security and surveillance information. 

-~ If no derogatory information is received, require the casino 
to verify a patron's bank account prior to credit line approval, 
and obtain bank verification in writing. 

-- Expand definition of "derogatory" to cover every relevant ad­
verse form of data. 

-- If no credit history is available or if der,gatory information 
is obtained, or if patron has had no credit gaming action for two 
years, prohibit extension of credit until bank account references 
are verified in writing according to seven catagories. 

Comment 

As indicated, the SCI has recommended almost a tot,l revision of 
this regulatory area, along with further extensive relaLed reforms to 
be described below. These recommendations are proposed in such detail 
because they apply to what is regarded as the most crucial area of the 
entire casino credit process. Public hearing testimony was replete 
with admissions and allegations of credit abuses directly attributable 
to the inadaquacies of the control system the above recommendations 
would eliminate. A key theme of these proposals would be the require­
ment for more thorough verification of background data prior to exten­
sion of: credit. The requirement for non-gaming credit histories ~ould 
be another crucial addition to the verification process. 
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E, Casino Penalty Equal to Uncollectibles 

-- Impose a penalty on casinos equal to the amount of uncollect­
ible debt that results from an extension of credit after deroga­
tory information is obtained during credit reference verification 
process. 

-- Require that each casino furnish other casinos at least the 
following information on a credit patron -- date of account, 
highest approved credit limit, current limit, and full details on 
status of account at· time of verification. 

-- Require credit reference verification to be updated every six 
months; clarify what constitutes a veci[~cation. 

-- Require that any credit limit issued or changed "be commensu­
rate" with information contained in the credit file; require 
credit approval signed by specified casino officials to include 
player rating, credit debt balances at other casinos, reason for 
approval if derogatory information was received. 

-- Reduce credit limits to zero at any casino where a patron's 
checks bounced until such checks have been paid in full. 

Comment 

The above recommendations are in tandem with thos0 that wo11lcl 
fortify the credit file process in Section D and wo,Jld reduce the 
current unfettered control by casino executives over ccedi t ext2n­
sions. The SCI' s public hearing demonstrated that not only was the 
so-called "business judgment" of certain credit managers inappropriate 
but they themselves were unable to provide the rationale that led to 
the extension of credit to patrons who utilized the credit lines for 
fraudulent purposes or wound t:') hopelessly in debt. Strict business 
guidelines and procedures to assure their implementation, as outlined 
above, will inject more common sense and logic into casino credit 
decision-making. The requirement that casinos be penalized by fines 
equal to uncollectible debts caused by inappropriate credit decisions 
should reduce the carelessness and irresponsibility that was 
illustrated at the SCI hearing. A mandated liaison among casinos on 
credit patron references, ratings, gaming history and the like will 
fill a vacuum that witnesses also confirmed at the hearing as con­
ducive to credit system abuses. 

F. New Player Rating Review Requirements. 

-- Require each licensee to establish a method for reviewing and 
monitoring player ratings to determine their accuracy and reason­
ableness. 

-- Pro~ibit any player rating review by any persons with any "in­
compatible functions" such as internal audits or surveillance. 

-- Submit review procedures to the Division of Gaming Enforcement 
and Casino Control Commission for approval. 
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Comment 

The strengthening of the player rating process, which can be of 
vital importance in reaching sound credit line judgments, is also a 
mandated reform based on evidence presented at the SCI hearing. 

G. Uncollectible Debt More Strictly Defined 

-- Mandate that a returned 
cient documentation" has 
bility. 

check is uncollectible "only if suffi­
been obtained verifying uncollecti-

-- Further define uncollectible checks for the purpose of comput­
ing any penalty to be imposed on account of inappropriately gen­
erated bad debt as all checks received by a licensee that remain 
unpaid 180 days after date of issue. 

Comment 

The SCI's investigation and testimony at its public hearing 
established that large portions of credit debt were written off as 
uncollectible for reasons other than inability of the patron to 
r,epay. The SCI believes that the above amendments, combined with 
related bad debt penalty and pay-back prov is ions, should reduce the 
likelihood that a casino will classify a debt as uncollectible when 
the debtor: ir.dicates the financial ability to repay. The docuisenta­
tion demande6 by this revision also would safeguar:d the integrity of 
casinos from allegations of favoritism or payoffs in connection with 
decisions to writ~ off debts. 
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THE TESTIMONY -- FIRST DAY 
TUESDAY, MARCH 1, 1983 

The Commission's public hearing began with an introductory 
statement by Chairman Lane. He said the testimony 

will emphasize the Commission's investiga­
tive findings that 1) casino credit has been 
disbursed in an erratic, i ~responsible 
manner; 2) enforcement and moni~uring of the 
regulatory process have been eAceedingly 
difficult, and 3) -- most important of all 

that the overall inadequacy of these 
controls threatens the integrity of the 
entire system of casino gambling regula­
tions. 

Chairman Lane's statement continued: 

Six years ago, when New Jersey's Casino 
Control Act was being drafted, the issue of 
gamhling on credit was particularly 
controversial. 'l'he SCI was not alone in 
warning at that time that casino credit 
would be among the "most sensitive" problens 
in an admittedly difficult effort to assure 
the propriety of the casino gaming industry 
and that casinos could become "a vulnerable 
target for criminal intrusion". Forthcoming 
testimony will de'!onstrate that lax credit 
controls have opened casino doors to 
large-scale frauds by criminal elements, 
including organized crime members and 
associates. The Commission's further 
warning that casino credit will generate 
"substantial social and law enforcement 
problems" also will be verified at these 
proceedings... Testimony by officials and 
employees from Atlantic City's casinos will 
confirm, reluctantly, that all casinos 
ignore their own formalized credit policies 
and guidelines and permit greed and rivalry 
rather than business acumen and common sense 
to determine who can gamble on credit. we 
will hear testimony by past and present 
credit gamblers, most of whom still owe mar,y 
thousands of dollars to various casinos 
because of irresponsible credit extensions. 
These witnesses will include high rollers 
whose huge gambling excesses w"re spurred by 
inappropriate and incompetent credit 
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decisions. They also will include less 
affluent patrons wl10 were seduced by liberal 
credit and comp! imentary rooms, food an,i 
drink until they literally self-destructed. 
And there will be testimony by the most 
tragic victims of the casino credit process 

·.he compulsive gamblers for whom the 
casil!o industry has shown little or no 
comp,ission .. 

Finally we will hear testimony on how best 
to eliminate the credit abuses that will 
have been outlined in detail from day to 
day. Such testimony on proposed reforms of 
the credit process will buttress the 
Commission's belief that a stringent credit 
control system is essential to assure public 
confidence in the integrity and stability of 
the casino industry. As the SCI saicl six 
years ago, casinos will succeed only so long 
as they gain and retain lhe public 
trust. 

Cr:edi t Procedures, Problems Explained 

Because of the complex role of credit in casino gamhlinq 
its impact or, industry finances, on managerial and personnel 
policies and on regulatory and law enforcement efforts -- the SCI 
began its firs:: public hearing session with expert testimony. Such 
testimony was provided primarily by the industry's regulators, 
including key officials of Attorney General Irwin I. Kimmelman's 
Division of Gaming Enforcement, the Casino Control Section of the 
Criminal Justice Division, and the State Police. These witnesses 
not only exposed the numerous inadequacies in the casino control 
statutes and regulations but also explained how irresponsibile 
credit practices created credit losses, optc cd gaming rooms to 
crimina]. elements, including organized crime, ~e~~~e~ tax reven11es 
to the state, encouraged many patrons to gamble far beyond their 
means. Indeed, easy crelit motivated by greed, as the testimony 
demonstrated, caused many victims of the disease of gambling 
addiction to literally self-destruct. 

The Attorney General's Views 

New Jersey's Attorney General Irwin I. Kimmelman was called as 
the first witness. Questioned by SCI Executive Director James T. 
O'Halloran, Kimmelman noted that the two most important and active 
entities in the enforcement of the Casino Control Law, the 
Divisions of Gaming Enforcement and of Criminal Justice, were under 
his direct jurisdiction. He praised the SCI's initiative in 
conducting its inquiry, declaring that "the move to reform casino 
gambling credit in this state is one whose time has come." 
Although New Jersey in 1977 enacted "a stronger system of internal 
controls over casino operations than any 0ther in the worlrl, 11 

Kimmelrnan note cl: 
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Our experience has shown, however, that in the 
area of patron credit, one of the most sensitive 
within a casino operation, these regulations are 
seriously deficient. Indeed, these very hearings 
come in the wake of findings by the Division of 
Gaming Enforcement resulting in a series of 
criminal indictments and administrative 
complaints detailing player credit scams and 
loose credit practices by casino executives. It 
is obvious to us that the industry is placing 
mounting reliance upon this practice as a ready 
source of profit. It is also obvious that 
credit, when freely available, c:an have a 
pernicious effect on compulsive and imprudent 
gamblers. Considered as a whole, we believe a 
reevaluation of the entire casino credit system 
ar.d the laws under which it operates is 
absolutely necessary to maintain the integrity of 
casino operations •.• 

Al though a cash-only practice would eliminate 
many of the problems historically associated with 
credit, I suggest that an honest effort first be 
,~.ade to explore other alternatives. Using our 
acquired casino qaminq experience as a base, 
attempts should be made to first identify 
deficiencies in the ~~~sent regulatory scheme and 
then develop responses to tighten credit controls 
uniformly in all ~tlantic City casinos. 

I caution, however, that unless this effort is 
thorough and commitment to its outcome sincere, 
the goal of eliminating abuses in the credit area 
will not be obtained. In that event, we may have 
no choice but to ultimately seek to do away with 
credit altogether. 

Kimmelman described the "staggering increase" in casino credit 
disbursement during the first five years, to the extent of S1.5 
billion in 1982 alone, 1nore than a third of total credit issuecl 
since 1978. Conversely, he described as "fantastic" the loss of 
tax dollars to the State as a result of casino credit abuses. He 
said: 

That loss is directly felt by our senior 
citizens, who are the ultimate beneficiaries ,)f 
this tax program. From January, 1979, throu,1h 
the end of 1982 approximately $64 million of b1d 
checks and unpair! markers remained uncollecte·'l 1,y 
casinos. In 1982 alone, bad debts are expectr,d 
to reach over $25 million. In terms of the gross 
amount of dollars wagered in Atlantic City, these 
are not great percentages. But in terms of the 
raw dollar amount, they are fantastic figures, 
Commissioners. 
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Under a law that permits casinos up to a four 
percent w,:ite--off of their gross revenues for bad 
debts, the 1982 figure represents a loss to the 
senior-ci1cizen fund of over $2 million. 

RegardlPs:; o E the ,;tc1tistical argument:; made, 
the doll,,r level ol bad debts tolerated by 
Atlantic City casinos is unacceptable and only 
highlight., the need for more stringent controls 
on the front end of credit issuance. I submit 
that the internal control regulations presently 
in place in this area are grossly inadequate to 
do the job. 

Opportunities for fraud ancl abuse abound. Yet 
despite the inherent risk, many casino executives 
are issuing more an:i more credit in the fierce 
competition for the gambling dollar. They 
exercise their unfettered discretion in the name 
of business judgment which they use as a cloak of 
immunity. Credit executives take comfort in the 
fact that there has been technical compliance 
with the letter of the law which offe~s no 
objective standards by which credit worthiness 
may be measured. 

Anv reform of casino credit practices to be 
effective must require two things prior to the 
issuance of credit: One, an adequate financial 
base disclosure; and, two, verification of the 
information so disclosed. There are vitally 
important tools for intelligently and objectively 
evaluating credit worthiness. They also help to 
identify the person receiving credit and the 
location of any assets in the event of default, 
as well as reduce the risk of deception fraud 
perpetrated upon the casinos and, hence, upon •he 
State of New Jersey, 

As you know, casinos are now able to reduce up 
to four percent of their gross revenue to cover 
their bad-debt losses, and the state loses tax 
revenue as a res11lt ~ As an incentive for casinos 
to better control internally their credit losses, 
I believe serious consideration should be given 
to eliminating the state tax write-off that 
casinos are now permitted to take on uncollected 
debts. By limiting the potential for tax 
write-offs for bad credit, it is reasonable to 
assume that we will raduce the extension of bad 
crecli t as well. 

The State's interest in casino credit goes well 
beyond its taxing of casino revenues. It can be 
explained in large measure by our commitment made 
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at the outset of this entire casino venture in 
New Jersey to maintaining the absolute integrity 
of the casino process. One method, 
Commissioners, of continuing to maintain that 
integrity is to thoroughly look into this entire 
business of the extension of credit, deciding 
whether it should be continued; and if it is to 
be continued, what additional controls should be 
placed. 

Division of Gaming Enforcement 

The next witness was Robert B. Sturges, acting director of the 
DGE for 10 months, until he entered privat~ practice early in 1983, 
and deputy director for two years pri0r to becoming acting 
director. He was questioned by SCI attorney Michael v. Coppola. 
Sturges at the outset was asked to discuss the casino industry's 
role in New Jersey's overall legalized gaming activity: 

Q. Can you give us an idea of how the casino 
industry ·itself compares financially with 
other forms of legalized gaming in this 
state, which would be, I guess, the lottery, 
and, also, the horse-racing industry? 

A. I guess tpe r,~st way to do it would be to 
refer to the chart.* And this chart shows 
very clearly ~i,e large percentage of 
activity which is related to casinos as 
opposed to other forms of legalized gambling 
in this state. The total drop for the year 
1982 in the casinos was $9. 8 billion which 
represents 86.7 percent of the total amount 
of gaming drop, legalize,] gaming drop, in 
the state. 

Q. All right. Perhaps you ought to give us a 
brief definition of the word "drop" at this 
point. 

A. Drop represents the amount of money or 
markers that is used to purchase chips. So 
it represents the total value of the chips 
purchased in the Atlantic City casinos. The 
equivalent, there isn't really -- it's hard 
to define an equivalent in horse racing and 
lottery where we have in those two 
industries the term "handle" which can he 
used where we actually know how much was bet 
by the public legitimately in those two 
enterprises. See, in a casino we can't do 

' th.at. 

*See Chart, next page. 
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NEW JERSEY LEGJ&.LIZED Gl\MBLililG 
TOTAL DROP FOR l 982 

LOTTERY 
$593 MILLION 

s.21 

TOTAL. DROP 
$1 l. 3 BILLION 

CASINOS 
$9.IB BILLION 

86. 71 
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COMMISSIONER PATTERSO!ii: Mr. St urqes, does 
the drop for the casinos also the amount of 
money put in the slot machine? 

THE WITNRSS: Yes. And if you would like me 
to clarify this drop-handle distinction I 
can do that. If a person comes up to a 21 
table, for instance, and purchases a hundred 
dollars worth of chips, that hundred-dollar 
bill is going to go into the drop box. He 
may stay there and gamble for an hour back 
and forth and at the end of an hour's worth 
of qambling he may have gambled r.housands of 
dollars, yet at the end o[ ,,is hour of 
gambling he may still have hi~ hundred 
dollars worth of chips. We don't really 
know what the handle was because there's no 
record made of the individual bets back and 
forth. 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Is that the same in the horse-racing 
industry and with respect to state lottery? 

No. Of coucse, in those cases we know 
the amount of money that is gambled 

purchasing lottery tickets or 
betting at the parimutual windows. 

exactly 
through 
through 

So what 
impossible 
money was 
industry? 

I'm sure 
estimates, 
estimates. 
precision 

you are saying is that it's 
to determine exactly how much 
actually bet in the casino 

the industry could give 1j s 
hut they would only be 

There's no way to determine with 
how much is gambled in the 

Atlantic City casinos. 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

Q. Now, are you 
revenue tax 
industry?* 

A. Yes, I am. 

familiar with the gross gaming 
with respect to the casino 

Q. How much money was given to the state as a 
part of that tax in 1982? 

*See Chart, next page. 
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A. The gross revenue tax provides that eight 
percent of the gross revenues of the casino 
industry go into the Casino Revenue Fund. 
Last year in calendar year 1982 the state 
received $117 million as a result of the 
gross revenue tax. 

Q. And the lottery industry, the 
indicates $250 million were received 
state as part of a direct benefit 
State of New Jersey, al though the 
significantly less than the drop 
casino inilustry. 

chart 
bv the 
to the 

drop is 
in the 

Now, can you briefly explain how credit, or 
what credit is and how it is extended in a 
casino in Atlantic City? 

A. Yes. It would be helpful, first, to 
describe what a marker or a counter check 
is. These terms are used interchangeably. 
Actually, I think that the most accurate 
term is to call it a counter check, because 
that's what it is. It is, in effect, a 
check that is made payable to the casino 
which is sign~a by the patron and drawn upon 
an existing ban;, account that that patron 
has. It's creu 1 t in the sense that the 
casino is not required to deposit this check 
until a certain period of time has elapsed. 
If it's a check for a thousand dollars or 
less, the casino has up to seven days to 
deposit the check. If it's between a 
thousand and $2500, they have up to 14 
days. l\nd if the check is over 2500, the 
casinos have up to 90 banking days in which 
to deposit this check. So, in that sense, 
this counter-check system is a credit 
system. 

Q. There's some language in small print on the 
marker. It states, "I represent that I have 
received cash for the above amount and that 
the said amount was on deposit in said bank 
or trust company in my name. It is free 
from claims and is subject to this check." 
In pr act ice, is the money or the value of 
the marker actually on deposit in the 
patron's bank at the time that the marker is 
signed and the patron receives the chips? 
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A. No. In many cases it is understood, sincP. 
markers are going to be held in many cases, 
or counter checks are going to be held for a 
period of time before they're deposited, 
many times the patron is, may have the 
intention of having the money in the account 
to cover it at the time it's deposited with 
the bank, but through circumstances and 
sometimes through direct fraud the money is 
not in the account when the check is 
presented by the casino to be paid. 

Accuracy of Casino Industry Statement Questioned 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

Q. Now, the Atl,rntic City Casino Hotel 
Association issued a press release, the 
release was dated September 20tr>, 1982, and 
it contained a statement that between 30 and 
40 percent of the industry's income is based 
on credit. Now, was that an accurate 
statement? 

A. No. I think the statement is misleading 

Q. 

because it doesn't take into account the 
tremendous slot activity in Atlantic <:ity 
where there is no credit and it represents 
the slot activity as the chart indicates, in 
1982, represented 52 percent of the drop. 
So when the total gaming activity is looked 
at, the proportion that is attributable to 
credit takes on a whole new meaning and it's 
more accurately in the 15 perce • range, 
rather than the 30 to 40 percent range cited 
by the industry. 

So credit, then, 
15 percent of, 
place within the 

does make up approximately 
well, the dr6p that takes 
entire casino industry? 

A. Right. 

Q. Now, although it's a 15 percent figure, what 
did just the question of credit, its 
issuance and its collection, represent to 
you as the acting director of the division 
in terms of problems, man-hours al located, 
resources allocated, that sort of situation? 

A. Pirst of all, there's no question that 
credit is a headache from a enforcement 
point of view. It has always been. Our 
division has, basically, investigative re­
sponsibilities and enforcement responsi-
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bilities. I think at least an area of half 
of our enforcement activity is related, 
directly or indirectly, to the credit issue. 

Q. Eow, do you have an opinion as to why credit 
is the source of so many problems and the 
Division has to spend so much time in 
reference to the question of credit? And I 
would ask you to refer to what has been 
marked C-7* for identification during the 
course of your answer to this question: 

A. Well, the amount of information that is 
required on the typical <,c~ino credit 
application is really pretty 8~~rce, and 
again from a law-enforcement perspective it 
does not give us enough of the tyoe of 
information that really is needed. 

Q. What is actually required to be on the 
credit application pursuant to state law? 

A. Okay. The regulation that we are dealing 
with is 19:45-1.27, which is a lot of 
numbers to get to a very few requirc>ments. 
The chart (irrlicates) those areas where the 
regulations re~~ire infor1nation: Name; 
address; the ba' of course, on which the 
counter check is going to be drawn; driver's 
license number; the customer's signature; 
the employee's signature who was taking this 
credit information, and then a question 
about whether they would be a disqualified 
person from recQiving cts,dit, and that is 
about it. 

And it's interesting to note that the 
regulations concerning this information are 
not in the part of the regulations that deal 
with the decision to extend creclit. It's 
merely a record-keeping requirement, and at 
no point in the regulations does it say that 
any particular piece of information shall be 
used in making a credit determination. So 
there really is no way to judge how the 
discretion was exercised and what factors 
were used or taken into accounL. So, 
really, the way it presently is established, 
this is merely record-keeping to memorialize 
some information about a decision that 
really has already been made. 

~See Chart, next. page. 
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Q. Oo you feel that 
information from 
receive credit? 

-23-

the state requires enouqh 
a person before they 

A. No, I don't. I think, for instance, that 
along with the suggestion that has already 
been made, it should be required that the 
bank actually be contacted; and maybe there 
can be some flexibility when it's not 
regular banking hours or maybe there can be 
a delay until there has been the opportunity 
to check with the bank to make sure that 
there is an account there and to make sure 
that there are sufficient fundd. Of course, 
we are still qoing to run into t~a problem 
where there's going to be collusion. But, 
at least, it will be a step in the riqht 
direction to make sure that there's actually 
a verification that a bank account exists. 
Right now the regulations say that one of 
three sources can be contacted: A bank, 
another legal casino or a recognized credit 
bureau. The regulations require that one of 
those three sources be checked. But the 
regulations don't say what happens after you 
check. Supr,.:,3e there's no record at the 
credit bureau, Well, casinos have 
interpreted thuc to mean everything is 
okay. Now, is that a verification of credit 
references or not? It's no record. These 
are things that have to be clarifie'.l and 
these are the types of scams, I think, 
presently exist and neec' to he filled by 
regulation. 

Q. Right. With respect 
additional information 
application that is not 
state. 

to C-7, 
that is 

required 

there's 
on the 
by the 

A. Well, the proble11, I think, Mr. Coppola, is 
that there's no uniformity. This is just a 
sample Tropicana form. They have certain 
information that they ask in addition to 
what's required. Other casinos ask for 
other type of information. I think more 
information should be required and ic should 
be done in a uni form way so that, when we 
are doing our investigations, we're going to 
know where to look and how quickly, and we 
will be able to more quickly determine 
whether the right steps were followed in 
granting the credit. 



-24-

"Too Much Discretion" for Credit Executives 

Sturges next was asked to describe the role of casino credit 
managers, including their responsibilities and the basis on which 
they make iniividual credit decisions. He pointed out that credit 
executives are supposed to review credit information and decide 
whether a patron "is or is not credit worthy" and that such 
executives may have "too much discretion." His testimony 
continued: 

Q. You mentioned that the casino industry has 
too much discretion. Is it fair to say that 
a credit executive is one of the people 
within the industry who has almost 
unfettered discretion? 

A. There's a great deal of discretion, yes. 

Q. 

I've had some credit executives tell me that 
they can tell by the look in a person's eyes 
whether they're a good credit risk are not. 
I think we have to do better than that. 

When you look at a credit application, if 
your agency, or the division rather, is 
reviewing it, can you tell by a review of 
the chart what the decision of the credit 
executive was based upon? 

A. No. You put your finger on precisely one of 
the problems; the lack of objective criteria 
that can be pointed to or factors that you 
require them to determine so that you can 
question the judgment and determine whether 
it really was a good-faith judgmer' or not, 
because the possibility of collusion is more 
than a possibility. There has been co:_ 1 u­
s ion in cases that have been prosecuted hy 
the Division of Criminal Justice, and you 
need objective criteria to determine and 
help build a case to see whether collusion 
is taking place or not. 

Q. Do the regulations require that 
executive set forth the reasons 
going to give somebody credit? 

a credit 
why he's 

A. Absolutely not. 

Q. within Atlantic 
can be paid 
to the pit. 

Now, 
marker 
opposed 
process a little bit? 

City, I believe, a 
off at the cage as 

Could you explain that 

A. Yes, and this is another problem, I think 
that we should be concerned with. 
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To me as a former law-enforcement official, 
the thing that's frightened me the most 
about credit is that you're giving somebody 
a blank check and you're handing them 
dollars in through chips and where does the 
money go? Where do those chips go? Are 
they going to go out the door? Is that 
money going to be used for purposes it's not 
supposed to be used for? And I'm concerned 
about the lack of control on those chips 
that are, that become chips after credit is 
extended. 

Right now if a person gets, f,,r instance, 
$100,000 worth of credit and sit~ down at a 
gaming table and gambles for a couple of 
hours and has been fortunate enough to, say, 
win $50,000 so he now has a hundred fifty 
thousand dollars, there is nothing that 
requires that before they leave the premises 
that marker, that counter check, be 
redeemed. They can walk out the door with 
that $150,000. 

The thing that is even of more concern from 
law enforcemf>nt's point of view, and there 
have been case ~bere this has happened where 
two people who "~e in collusion obtain a 
certain amom,t of credit, say, $100,000 
worth of credit; the two 'of them gamble for 
a period of time, say, at the craps table, 
but they offset one another's bet so they 
know it's going to be a, wash. In other 
words, one will bet pass, one will bet don't 
pass and this can go on several hours so it 
looks like they're gambling in good faith 
and then they head south with the money. 
There have been organized-crime-associated 
people that they have been engaged in these 
type of conspiracies. 

So I think it's important, it would 
certainly be a help to law enforcement for 
there to be the requirement and the 
opportunity for markers to be redeemed right 
at the pit before they leave the table so 
that the money doesn't go out the doer. And 
I think Tony Restuccia, the chief of the 
Audit Section, Division of Gaming 
Enforcement, has some specific technical 
details as to how this type of thinq could 
be worked. I'm satisfied in my discussions 
with our staff that there is a practical and 
effective way to do just that to make sure 
the markers are redeemed before the money 
!eaves the casino. 
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Q. Based on your experience, do the casinos 
know where the chips go once they gave them 
to the credit player? 

A. They aren't concerned in the same way that a 
law-enforcement agency is going to be 
concerned and they aren't concerned about 
the compulsive gambling problem to the 
extent they should be in terms of the social 
impact of what they' re doing. I think we 
ought to impose upon them some add it ionRl 
requirements that will help us assure that 
the money doesn't qo into the wrong hands. 

Q. In some case that marker can actually be 
held up to four months before it goes to the 
bank. Did those regulations that deal with 
the depository time period cause the 
Division of Gaming Enforcement a problem? 

A. Well, certainly from an investigative 
perspective when you have that delay between 
the marker being prepared and it actually 
being deposited in a bank, you 're playing 
catch-up ball and many times it's five or 
six months down the line because it's 90 
banking days. That's a long time. And bv 
the time the marker is returned and we are 
aware that it's been returned, follow-up 
investigation is difficult because you're 
dealing with a trail that's not fresh. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: 
free 90 banking days? 

That'E interest-

THE WITNESS: 
matter of fact 

Interest-free. And a - a 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: And this 90 days of 
the free float, or 120 days, is only 
available to those who sign markers of $2500 
or more. Is that correct? 

THE WITNESS: That's right. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: So the little guy 
doesn't get the benefit of this interest­
free loan, or the smaller credit gambler. 
Is that right? 

THE WITNESS: That's correct. 

X X X 
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Casino_ Pro_paqanda l\q_ain Quest1oned 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

Q. The press release that I referred to before 
from the Atlantic City Casino Hotel 
Association also contained this statement: 
"Atlantic City's casino operators in many 
cases apply standards which are far more 
rigid than those mandated by the state." 
Based on your experience, was that an 
accurate statement, the application of more 
rigid standards? 

A. Again, I think when it suits their bu::,'ness 
interests to be rigid, they are rigid ana 
U1<cy have been more rig ict in those cases. 
But when it comes to high rollers, the 
rigidity, the standards are soon forgotten 
for business reasons. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: What are they? 

THI, :IITNESS: The business reasons are, if 
someboay is coming to their casino saying 
that they're prep~L-eil to gamble $500,000 a 
hand in baccarat, whi~h has been the case in 
some occasions, we ;_ iiid a tendency rather 
quickly for any type of standards that may 
have existed for the five-dollar player or 
the twenty-five-dollar player at blackjack 
to be soon forgotten. Again, I'm not 
suggesting that in all cases tbey ignore the 
legal requirements, although that's 
happened, too, and w~ have had probleMs 
where the high rollers have come to town, 
and even the force of law, regulations and 
statutes have been violated for the end 
iustifyinq the means. The business judgment 
was made that: What kind of a fine are we 
going to get? And here we have a chance to 
win liter~lly millions of dollars and let's 
take a chance. Let's take a chance that the 
sanctions aren't going to be as stiff as how 
much we win. Unfort1rnately, in some cases 
that has been tl1e case. 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

Q. The press release also contained this 
statement under the heading 11 Who Receives 
Credit, 11 "In theory, any financially 
responsible individual is eligible to 
receive credit at a casino hotel. In 
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practice, however, credit is generally 
limited to individuals with substantial 
incomes and/or assets. While those with 
lower incomes are considered for and often 
receive credit, in general, casino credit is 
a phenomenon of the upper-income bracket 
individual who can repay gambling debts from 
disposable income remaining after all 
necessary living costs have been met." 
Based on your experience, was that an 
accurate statement? 

A. I don't think we have enough information to 
even make that judgment since income is not 
the type of information that is presently 
required. The credit applications don't 
require that you inciicate what your annual 
income is, what kind of job you have, ann 
the most publicized cases of credit problems 
in Atlantic City have been just the opposite 
end of the spectrum where people have 
obtained credit where they couldn't possibly 
repay if they lost. They couldn't possibly 
repay the debt. And this is, unfortunately, 
where we get into the problem of compulsive 
gambling, and this is a particular topic 
that I am very concerned about and I've had 
occasion to have numerous meetings with 
Gamblers Anonymous people and compulsive 
gambling groups to try to learn from them in 
their experience with the compulsive gambler 
what type of regulations they would like to 
see in place that would help people with the 
gamblirHJ, with the compulsive gaf'lbling 
problem, because a casino again is 11ot ooing 
to be concerned with that issue. Ti,e" 're 
business people and they weren't -- it's all 
-- it's not even part of the formula as to 
whether a person might have a gambling 
problem. 

Casino Competition Creates Credit Problems 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

Q. Did you find that competition amonq the 
casinos for the credit player i s what 
actually dictated who received credit and in 
what amounts they received credit? 

A. This is another problem .... business 
competition is so intense now with nine 
casinos in Atlantic City, some doing much 
better· than others, where a patron is able 
to play one off against the other and get 
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credit where maybe if the competition wasn't 
so intense he wouldn't be able to get credit 
and if one casino has given a person a 
thousand-dollar or two-thousand-dollar 
credit limit, it puts incredible pressure on 
the other casinos to at least match that if 
not do better. So patrons are able to run 
from casino to casino and get more and more 
credit. 

Q. Do the regulations, the state regulations, 
address that particular problem of someone 
who bounces from casino to casino? 

A. No, they don't ... one thing that has aiways 
concerned me is a person can have a returned 
m&cker, returned check for insufficient 
funds that came back at one casino, and he 
can go to another casino and obtain credit. 
Now, if somebody already bounced one check 
in town at a casino, it seems to me 
ludicrous that we should allow another 
casino to take another chance with that 
::::erson. But the problem is, right now a 
system doesn't exist for a casino t0 
necessarily know thc;t. And, of course, you 
are dealing with cor,ncetitors where there's 
some reluctance tc share information. We 
ought to be thinking about a way to 
coordinate all the information, I think, 
among the nine casinos so that that type of 
thing can't happen. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: Isn't it a fact, or 
is it a fact, Mr. Sturges, that the casinos 
don't really care whether there are bounced 
checks or returned markers or not? They're 
anxious to get that gambler in there to plav 
in their casino. The odds are with them, as 
you say, that they're going to gamble and 
lose and maybe even pay that debt. '!'hey 
want that action, that activity. Isn't that 
what they're really concerned about? 

THE WITNESS: They want the act ion, that's 
right. But I think right now what they are 
is complacent. They're perfectly willing to 
live with, as a riatter of fact, they brag 
about, the two percent bad-debt return and 
they're happy with that. 

But those of us involved in the state have 
to be concerned with that two percent 
because that two percent means a lot. It 
means a lot to compulsive gamblers. It 
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means a lot to law enforcement in terms of, 
where is the two percent going? So I think 
we've got to require more than complacency 
on their part. We've got to start making 
tougher requirements so we know where the 
two percent is going. 

Easy Credit Lures Organized Crime 

THE CHAIRMA~: It might also mean some added 
activity from organized crime in connection 
with credit, might it not? 

THE WITNESS: Most definitely. Our 
experience has been in Atlantic City, and my 
experience in organized-crime prosecutions 
before I got involved in casino gambling 
enforcement, is that wherever the pressure 
is the least is where organized crime is 
going to go. Now, we all know about the 
historic attraction that organized crime has 
had to all forms of gambling activity and, 
in particular, casino activity. When 
Atlantic City casinos first opened, eve,ry 
hood within driving distance figured he was 
going to come to Atlantic City and get a 
piece of the act ion somehow. I th ink we 
have been successful in our investigations 
of our applications for casino licenses and 
the success that the Casino Control 
Commission has had in eliminating persons 
who have been attempting to become involved 
in the management of casinos who shouldn't 
be. 

But, in the meantime, while we hav0 ~een 
focusing upon the casino opecatnrs 
themselves and the management of the 
casinos, organized crime has been 
infiltrating labor unions. And I personally 
handled the Local 54 case before the Casino 
Control Commission, very familiar with the 
problems with that union in terms of 
organized-crime involvement. Ancillary 
industries are a problem since when I was 
director we found approximately 25 
businesses where there had been some degree 
of integrity problem or organized-crime 
problem that had arisen in that business, 
and the same 1s true with credit. Where 
they see daylight, they're going to be 
running to it. There have been organized 
credit conspiracies where, as far as we 
know, low-level organized-crime associates 
have entered into a conspiracy to take 
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advantage of the gaps that exist in the 
credit system. 

THE CHAIRMAN: 
have people, 
of casinos at 

I think it's a disgrace to 
known hoods, going in and out 
wil 1. 

THE WITNESS: I couldn •t agree with you 
more. When I became director in February of 
'82, one of the first things that I did was 
recommend to the Casino Control Commission 
that we change the exclusion list 
procedures, because up until that point what 
the exclusion list procedures w2re •·•s that 
a person was entitled to a hearing l-c 0 fore 
you could put him on the list. Whcit that 
me,:nt was, in the case of Nicky Scarfo, in 
the case of Ralph Staino, it was a qood year 
and a half to two years before we could qet 
to the pnint of even getting to a hearinq 
because of the delays and the stalling 
tactics and whatnot. And this regulation 
was, in my opinion, contrary to the statute 
bec:2··.se the statute says that you put the 
person on the list and then let them come 
forward and demow·c.rate why they shouldn • t 
be on the list. 

Casino Control Section rrosecutor 

T. Barry Goas, a deputy attorney general, has been chief of 
the Criminal ,Justice: Uivisicn'.s Casino Control Section for four 
years. The function or his section is to prosecute criminal 
offenses which, as he described it, "impact on the integrity of 
casino operations. Such offense include, primarily, swindling or 
cheating by gambling patrons, commercial bribery, embezzlement and 
related crimes by casino 1 icensees, and pros ti tut ion, theft by 
deception, extortion and other crimes in which the casino or a 
casino service industry is the victim. Most of the cases 
prosecuted by Goas's Section are referrals from the DGE, althouqh 
cases also come from the State Police Casino Intelligence, Special 
Investigations and Narcotics bureaus. He was asked by SCI counsel 
Michael V. Coppola at the outset to describe the case load impact 
of theft-by-deception offenses, known otherwise in the casino 
industry as casino credit scams. His testimony follows, in part: 

Q. Can you give us an approximate percer.t of 
where your efforts are devoted with respect 
to your total caseload? 

A. Yes, I can. Of approximately 370 pending 
criminal matters within our section at the 
present time, 65 percent would involve 
credit scams. 
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Q. All right. Can you describe for us the 
various types of credit scams which your 
office has investigated and prosecuted? 

A. Yes, I can. To be a successful participant 
in a credit scam, there are two obstacles or 
hurdles which must be overcome by the 
participant. 

The first is, he must apply for credit and 
he must obtain credit or be issuecl crerlit 
from the casino. The second, as Attorney 
General Kimmelman noted, is that he's got to 
be able, after the extension of credit to 
himself, to walk from that table with the 
chips; and that's the term of art in the 
industry, walking with the chips. Be's got 
to get the chips off the gaming table, not 
lose them at the gaming tabl0. and then 
convert them to a cash form. 

Basically, there's seven to eight different 
types of credit scams which appear, in my 
opinion, to be repetitive in Atlantic City. 
These involve either real gaming patrons or 
fictitious gaming patrons. 

By "real gaming patrons," I mean the 
following scenario will occur: A real 
person will apply for credit at an Atlantic 
City casino. He can make his application by 
either a telephone, by mail, or by an 
in-person appearance at the casino. When he 
applies for credit, there are tl· ·ee basic 
requisites that be must comply wit '1: He's 
got to give his name and his residen. ial 
acldress; he's got to give a business, a 
business employment; and he's got to give a 
bank name and bank account number. Most 
casinos, in my experience, will exact a 
little bit more detail from the applicant in 
this regard in that they will get his name; 
they will get his residence; they will qet 
his employment; his title with his 
employment; maybe the number of years with 
the employment, and the address of the 
employer. That is filled out on the card. 
It is not in my experience verified, 
however. 

Simultaneous with the application for 
credit, the would-be participants in the 
credit scam will either open a checking 
account at a bank or he, if he has an exist­
ing checking account, he will infuse it with 
a subst·antial suw of rr0ney, the sum being 5 
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to 10 to $15,000 cash. When he goes now to 
apply for credit at the casino in Atlantic 
City, when a bank verification or credit 
verification procedure is accomplished, the 
casino will find out from the bank that this 
individual has possibly what they call a 
low-four-figure account, a low-five-figure 
account. That means he's got 5, 6, 7, 
$10,000 in the account. 

As has been previously indicated, there are 
two alternative credit verification proce­
dures that the casino can employ, and that 
is basically to check out his gamiD; ~istory 
at another legalized casino within or ···ith­
out this jurisdiction; they can also get a 
credit check on the individual from a recog­
nized credit bureau. It's been my 
experience though that they basically rely 
on the bank information. 

In the regulations there is no specification 
as to how much information should be 
in4;.::.red into by the casino from the bank. 
Generally, back in 1980 when the credit 
scams were most c c:mpant in Atlantic City, 
the casino would basically try to ascertain 
the last existing balu,,ce in the account so, 
of course, if the person just opened the 
checking account prior to the extension of 
credit or had one infused it with a lot of 
money, that would reflect ••ery favorably in 
the issuance of credit to the Individual. 

All right. Now, the _ndividual does that. 
He comes down to the casino and he has to 
demonstrate personal identification, which 
is either a driver's license basically, 
maybe a Social Security card, to the casino 
and he signs his casino credit application. 
At that moment in time a discretionary 
business decision is made by a casino credit 
executive as to whether this person shoul<l 
or should not be granted credit; if so, how 
much. 

That is then accomplished and let's say the 
individual gets a ten-thousand-dollar line 
of credit. He by this time, by the time 
he's found out that the bank has been 
checked, he will withdraw the money from the 
bank or close it out, so now there's no 
money in that account, although the casino 
does not know that. His next procedure, as 
I've indicated, he's got to go to the gaming 
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table and he applies for or requests a 
counter check, which is euphemistically 
called a marker in the trade, and that 
means, as has been demonstrated on other 
exhibits here, he will sign a check which is 
made payable to the casino and it's drawn on 
that bank account he specified on his credit 
application, and he signs it, and then in 
return for the issuance of that counter 
check or marker he receives gaming chips 
which are designated as representative of 
money. 

"Walking With Chips" Described 

Now, 
He's 
from 

the 
got 
that 

second 
to take 

hurdle 
those 

game. How does 

comes into play. 
gaming chips away 
he do this? 

Basically, it's done by slight of hand. He 
will inevitably go to either. a blackjack 
table or a craps table. Craps tables are 
preferable because of the high volume of 
gaming activity at the tables. There can be 
20 to 30 people playing craps. He will get 
his chips and he will usually request them 
to be in reasonably high denominations, such 
as the black chips or hundred-dollar­
denominati6n chips. He will then bet on or 
wager on, let's say, the don't pass line 
$200 and he will have a confederate at the 
other end of the gaming table wager on the 
pass line. In essence, you're wagering odd 
and even, so between the two of : ·,u you 're 
losing nothing. 

While this is accomplished, he will lean on 
the rail and a confederate will lean on the 
rail with him and he will surreptiously take 
the chips off the gaming table and put them 
in his pocket to create the illusion of a 
gambling loss. This can !Ye accomplished 
within fifteen, twenty minutes. Now he and 
his confederates will leave the gambling 
table with the illusion created he has lost 
10, 15,000 worth of gambling chips. 

They will then go to a hotel room or an 
unobserved location and hana off the chips 
to a confederate who will go up to a 
cashier's cage and cash the chips in for 
money. The only check on the person is, "Do 
you have any outstanding credit?" If it's a 
legitimate person, they will say no. Even 
if it's the person himself who owes the 
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credit, he will say no and there's no 
further check now. 

Now, as I call him, the real patron who's 
perpetrating the scam has approximately 
$10,000 in his pocket of the casino's. He 
can go home, and usually home in these cases 
have been the state of New York, and he can 
make a couple of decisions. He can decide 
to come back in a week or two and he can pay 
off that $10,000 worth of credit, and this 
is commonly done. All of a sudden now he's 
establishing a credit history or "· track 
record vis-a-vis this casino, and tuey say, 
"Not only was our initial judgment accc1rate 
in giving this individual credit, but why 
drn't we give him a little more credit?" So 
now they will pop that original $10,000 up 
to $20,000. He will do the same thing. He 
will get -- first of all, he will steal back 
his own 10,000 that he's put up to pay off 
his initial debt and work out the same 
scam. But what he also does is parlay the 
0ri~lnal credit history from Casino 1 to 
Casino 2. Now he can qo to Casino 2 and 
say, "I've done a good job at Casino 1, I 
pay off my debts. Why don't you give me 
credit, too?" H<" will work out the same 
thing there. 

That can go on until he basically in his 
mind reaches a cut-off point which, in my 
opinion, is in the neighborhood of 75 to 
$80,000 in most cases, and he will walk away 
from the whole operation. 

THE CHAIRMAN: Now, this fellow, this scam, 
you have gotten up to 35 or $70,000, then 
what happens? 

THE WITNESS: All right. What happens is, 
the casino will not even know about this 
generally for 120 calendar days or 90 bank 
days. They're not even going to know they 
have been stiffed. Law enforcement may not 
know about it for a longer period of time 
than that depending whether or not the 
casino redeposits the markers or counter 
checks for collection a second time, which 
can happen. You don't know it happens for 
at least a four-mo~th minimum. Then you are 
depending on the casinos to refer the case 
to you. 
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THE CHAIRMAN: Now it's 70,000. 
70,000 and he's gone? 

He owes 

THE WITNESS: He's gone. As I said, this is 
the category of the real patron who works 
his scam. What he will do is inevitably -­
probably 95 to 97 percent of these 
individuals are from without the state of 
New Jersey. They're from New York state; 
specifically, the boroughs of Staten Island, 
Richmond County, Brooklyn, lower Manhattan, 
and Westchester County. That's where almost 
all are from. 

They will then receive some phone calls from 
a casino in a collection effort, or letters, 
and they will respond that they are 
compulsive gamblers; that they are bankrupt; 
many instances their wives indicate there's 
marital discord and the fellow no longer 
lives there. Whether it's true or not is 
almost immaterial. You have gc.t •:o start 
making efforts to collect. Finally, they 
disconnect their phone, or if they have a 
listed phone number. t.lany of them don't 
have listed phone numbers. 

In essence, it's now going to get into a 
civil proceeding. And whether the casino in 
their wisdom chooses to go after the person 
as a litigant in a civil proceeding, that's 
a business decision they have to make. But, 
in essence, the person has disappeared with 
that money and is waiting out there to say, 
"Come get me .. " 

I might add that that type of credit scam 
situation, the advice to the person when the 
casinos come after them has been about 
threefold. One is you can't collect a debt 
because New York doesn't recognize gambling 
per se ..• Tell them when you call up you're 
bankrupt, they will not come after you for 
social reasons. Or you are a degenerate 
gambler, you're going to Gamblers Anony­
mous. Or throw them a bone, S20, and get 
them off your back. 

THE CHAIRMAN: I suppose if the casino went 
all the way through the civil suit they 
would end up with zero/zero anyway? 

THE WITNESS' They probably would. You 
can't get blood out of a stone. 
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A second type of real-gaming-patron scam, as 
I call them, is a front-money scam. That's 
where the real person, again he's saying, 
I'm here, I'm Barry Goas. I'm coming down 
to get your credit. He comes down, will 
post 10,000 at the cashier's cage called 
front money. He gets a receipt like 
depositing money in a bank. He writes 
counter checks or markers against his own 
money and gambles with it, but again does 
the illusion I have alluded to. He doesn't 
really lose the money. 

Now he's credited 'With a gambling history in 
the casino. They say this guy's a good 
hitter. He's got money, he's liquid. Why 
con't we give him credit? He will fill out 
the same three answers; biographical, bank, 
employment data. They may give credit on 
the spot without checking too well because 
he's got a gaming history or he may have a 
nominal amount of money in his bank account, 
but they don't care that much because their 
~usiness decision has been influenced by the 
depositing of that front money, the 10,000, 
at the cage. 

Again the same sc,1m will 
do it at that casino and 
line and go to Casino 
thing. 

eventuate. He will 
build up his credit 
2 and <lo the same 

~ third variation of the real-patron credit 
scam i s 'l'. T. 0 . ; that ' : 'l'h is '.!'rip On 1 y . The 
real person comes in and gets credit as we 
have indicated. He will get a very nominal 
amount. By "nominal," I mean maybe $2500 
line of credit. And he will get it, he will 
gamble, maybe lose a little bit of it. He 
will come back in a couple of days and pay 
that line of credit off, then he will go to 
a casino credit eKecutive and say, "I would 
like to really get my credit line popped up 
for this trip only," the T, T. o. So maybe 
they will increase his credit line to $5000 
for that night only. 

And now he will take the money, maybe he'll 
steal it and he'll owe the casino $5000 
although his permanent crer.lit line is only 
$2500. He will qo home, come back in a 
couple of days and pay off the T.T.O. to 
5000 and he doesn't change any of his bank 
data, he will keep the permanent line of 
credit down to $2500, but he will keep 
increasing the T.T.O., say, "I did one other 
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time, why don't you cut me a break and now 
go up to 10,000 and $20,000?" But while 
this permanent line is still at $2500, he's 
setting them up. He's paying them back 
their own money. 

Ultimately, he will just walk away from the 
whole operation and he will end up owing 
them a considerable amount of money even 
though his permanent line was $2500, and no 
further checks have been made to warrant 
maybe the extension of credit for this trip 
only up to 20, 30, or $40,000. 

Another situation is, when the initial 
people first came down to Atlantic City, I'd 
said it's reasonably organized then, what 
has transpired is they started recruiting 
volunteers like franchises for McDonald's. 
They would actively go out and solicit 
people in a barroom, social clubs. '!'hey 
would provide -- they WOL'.ld exact from such 
a person his residence, real residence we're 
talking about now, maybe an employme,it and a 
bank account, and they would furnish that 
individual money to place in his bank 
account and at the time they did so maybe 
they would exact he'd have to write checks 
payable to cash to the person who is going 
to send them down to Atlantic City. So you 
couldn't beat that person out of his own 
money, they would go down to the casino, 
they could pay a credit executive off, they 
can pay pit bosses off if they r,., desire, 
and it does happen. They would gee now the 
volunteer to get a line of credit. He 
didn't even have to know how to gamble. 
They would stand by his side and tell him 
what to do while a confederate at the other 
end of the table bet in an opposite fashion. 

The basic operation there, the volunteer 
gets one-half of the credit extended to him 
less expenses, so that would shake down to 
40 percent. Of whatever credit was extended 
to him, he would get 40 percent. Same 
procedures would ensue. He would give a 
proper excuse whe'l collection time comes. 

A more sinister situation is the person who 
is compelled to come down and obtain a line 
of credit, and that's the person who may be 
indebted to a bookmaking or loan-sharking 
operation. They say, "Look, we're tired of 
you not paying our debt. We're taking you 
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down." They will put the money in the bank 
account, take him down. 

Now, effectively the debt has has trans­
ferred from the loanshark or the bookmaking 
organization to the casino. 

THE CHAIRMAN: 
related sounds 
crime. 

This 
pretty 

last one 
close to 

you just 
organized 

THE WITNESS: Loan sharking and bookmaking 
are traditional crimes pe~petr~ted by 
organized crime. 

The "Fi.ctitious Person" Scam 

THE WITNESS: (continuing) The two other 
type of scams. One is a situation where one 
of two things happens: Maybe a person has 
an established line of credit down at a 
casino in Atlantic City, such as I have a 
11.ne of credit down there and I sav to my 
friend, you go down and impersonate me, you 
write the markerc: or counter checks on my 
credit line. When they come up to my 
account, I'll say, ·.o way, I wasn't down 
there, I will sign affidavits of forgery. 
Now they don't even know who you are, you 
walk away and we will split the money. 
That's the fictitious-patron scam. 

The second one which is in vonue today, as I 
would call it, the ",:m of Pisces," is the 
situation where you have a totally ficti­
tious person coming down, generally speak­
ing, impersonates a doctor or lawyer. The 
doctor or lawyer is a real person. They get 
information from bank employees. They come 
down, they get credit, they get credit based 
upon identification furnished to them by the 
organizers of the scam. Now they get the 
credit line in the name of a real person, 
but they're not the real person, and they do 
this in much lower amounts of money. It's 
usually 5000 to $10,000 and they try to hit 
a bunch of casinos when they do it this 
way. The problem for law enforcement in 
that situtation is you don't even know who 
you are dealing with any more. You know 
what happened 120 days after the checks 
bounced when the doctor or lawyer says what 
are you talking about to the casino and I 
never was down there, and he wasn't, and 
it's not him. Now law enforcement has to 
figure out who it was. 
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I might add, going back to the real-patron 
scam, one other problem that occurred during 
Pisces commonly was you had bad bank 
employees giving out information and in the 
desire to get credit --

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: You mean 
incompetent employees or criminal? 

THE WITNESS: No, criminal, criminal. 

A. ( Continuing) The casino in its verification 
procedures for the issuance of the credit 
would telephonically call a bank, they might 
ask for a certain person at the request of 
the customer. That could, number one, even 
be a fictitious bank employee, but he or she 
knew the call was coming in. She would then 
relate spurious information to the casino 
that they would rely on to the it detriment, 
such as the fellow may have had an account 
opened for four years when it was only 
opened two months, or the average minimum 
balance may have been low four to five 
figures when it's S25. Maybe he couldn't 
sign alone on it or whatever. But the bank 
employee would greatly enhance the track 
record of that real gaming patron to the 
detriment of the casino. Ultimately, they 
would rely upon the same and issue credit 
and again the same scam would be 
forthcoming. 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

Q. How long did Operation Pisces last? 

A. Approximately thirteen months. 

Q. How many casinos were involved in that scam? 

A. Basically -- it was Bally's Pa.rk Place and 
Caesars Boardwalk Regency Casino. Resorts 
very m.inimally. 

Q. Can you give us a figure on how much money 
was stolen from those casinos during that 
13-month period of time? 

A. I have indicated approximately $7.9 
mi 11 ion. I do not incl ucle in my figures a 
David-Zarin-type situation, who will be here 
later, who maybe got $3.4 million, because 
I don't consider it a part of a Pisces 
sjt1Jation& 
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"Flow of Credit Scams"* 

Q. Mr. Goas, I would like you to refer to C-8, 
a chart entitled "Flow Of Credit Scams," and 
perhaps explain what the chart shows.* 

A. All right. You have over the riqht-hand 
box, you have the credit gambler.· Basi­
cally, what he does is, he gets credit in 
one of the ways I told you, but he has an 
established line of credit and.he has got to 
go to a gaming table to get the credit and 
ultimately he's got to walk with th~ chips, 
the second of the hurdles. In 1nany cases 
the credit gambler will pay off a credit 
ex?cutive a sum of money or give him a very 
substantial gift to get that credit 
executive to approve credit for the credit 
gambler. The credit executive covers his 
bases because the information on its face 
looks good on the credit application even 
though it's not. He can say, "Based upon 
tris information, I made a wise business 
decision. The fact that this gambler turned 
south with the money at a later point in 
time is not my fault," and he can back that 
up by the situation ~here the credit gambler 
keeps getting hi,;her lines of credit and 
paying them off till he finally walks away, 
because now the credit executive says, "I 
didn't know about this. He looked good to 
me all along," and on paper it does look 
good. So, therefore, he'll ray, not in all 
cases, by any meanB, ln many cases he will 
pay a kickback to the credit executive to 
get the line of credit. He may pay it back 
to inflate the T.T.O., this trip only 
situation. The credit gambler, as I 
indicated, after he accomplishes the one 
hurdle in getting the credit he will go to 
the gaming table. Pit bosses are supposed 
to, if they can do it, watch the gambler's 
play. They gave him a rating on his 
activity. They rate how much money and how 
long he played, what kinds of action he 
has. That's an informal check by the 
casinos on the players. 

Obviously, if anybody has been to the 
casinos, it's totally impossible to watch 
everything. You can't do it. Nobody can do 
it. 

*See Chart, next page. 
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But the player in this situation, the credit 
gambler, will maybe pay the pit boss a 
hundred dollars to either look the other way 
or to inflate that action sheet or credit 
rating, player rating, so that the gambler 
looks like he did, in fact, lose all the 
money. The player or credit gambler in this 
case will walk away witt the chips as I have 
previously described. 

Q. Was that scenario a part of Operation 
Pisces? 

A. Yes, it was. 

Q. WJS there, in fact, collusion between credit 
yamblers and licensed casino people? 

A. We have found that, definite indications of 
that, yes. 

Q. Now, are scams ongoing today? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. Do they take the sam~ form as what you have 
spoken about with r, "•'ect to C-8? 

A. They can take that form although the more 
prevalent form today is the fictitious­
patron situation; and if you have that 
situation, you really don't necessarily need 
to pay off credi.t execc.tives or pit 
personnel. It can b ~ accomplished without 
them. 

Credit Scam Flow -- Another Version* 

Q. Mr. Goas, I would like to refer you to the 
next exhibit.* Could you explain that chart 
in terms of what you found is taking place 
in Atlantic City today? 

A. All right. You start up here with the scam 
organizer who is, basically, as I have 
indicated from New York state. We arA 
finding now that it's shifted from Staten 
Island to predominantly Queens, New York, 
and Brooklyn, New York. That's where the 
instances are occurring. 

Scam organizer does the following: Be's got 
the contacts in very big banks in New York 

*See Chart, next page. 
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City and they get valid information, as I've 
indicated, predominantly from doctors and 
lawyers which indicate where the gentleman 
lives, where he's employed, the bank account 
number. 

This background employment and biographical 
background is then parlayed into a phony 
driver's license and phony Social Security 
card. That information is now given to a 
person that they're going to have go down to 
the casino to become, in fact, a credit 
gambler. He will go down the.2, maybe the 
scam organizer will even furnish transpor­
tation down there. But he's going to take 
this fictitious person down to become, in 
fact, a credit gambler. 

The checks are now made by the casino. You 
don't necessarily have to have the credit 
executive or clerical personnel involved in 
this any more because the people at the 
casino are going to call back to the bank 
and find out the guy does have a legitimate 
bank accounl and good figures in. They 
don't notify the man usually, the actual 
doctor or lawyer. 

So now the credit gambler gets the line of 
credit in the name of a totally fictitious 
patron and he may pay off an executive to 
get it if he's on the know. My opinion, 
it's not as comrron. They don't need this 
person, or they use the pit personnel 
because they have to go to the tables to 
create the illusion of gambling and then 
they walk with the chips. They will then go 
back to New York and they wil 1 give 
approximately, in the cases I've seen, if 
the guy gets a ten-thousand-dollar line of 
credit, he will have to furnish about 7 to 
8000 to the scam organizer and he can keep 
3000 for himself. 

Now the casino is stuck with a situation you 
don't know who the person is. ·You have no 
idea who that person is right now and it's 
gone. All that happened is 90 days later 
the doctor or lawyer is going to contact the 
casino and say, "I don't know what you're 
talking about. I was never in Atlantic 
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City. I'll sign affidavits of forgery. 
It's not me." And now the casino will be 
stuck with a sum of money. And I would 
parenthetically note that the credit 
gamblers who do this now for the scam 
organizers, it's a much lower amount of 
money. It's quick one-shot deals, two-shot 
deals, and get out. They don't keep coming 
back. 

Q. Is one of the reasons they don't know who 
the credit gambler is because they don't 
check out the information he gives them when 
he comes down and fills out the card? 

A. Yeah, the only thing they check out is the 
bank information in this. That's all 
they're goinn to check out. They won't 
bother to check if his office is located on 
Avenue U in Brooklyn. They don't care. 
They don't have time to. They will give it 
to him. The bank information will come back 
valid. 

I might note that in the Operation Pisces a 
high, high incidence of the persons who made 
the application for the credit are in the 
category of self hyphen employed and that 
usually involved construction workers who 
you will find that the, the place of 
employment is the home, there's no 
difference in the or home telephone, usually 
it's unlisted, and they usually indicate 
that they' re president of th ems elves, that 
is to say they're a one-man operation, and 
they try to inflate that in terms of their 
credit application on the credit card 
itself. 

Q. Is there any evidence to support a 
conclusion on your part that credit is 
utilized by credit gamblers to finance 
illegal activities, in other words, take the 
money and use it someplace else? 

A. Yes, I have spoken with several i.nformants 
who have indicated that what they will do is 
on the 90-day float they have in the 
beginning, at least, they have indicated 
that they have investea in time deposits 
with casino money and then pay it back and 
there's certainly strong reason to believe, 
and I've been told, that it is utilized to 
push as loanshark money on the streets and 
again the loanshark will then pay the monev 
back within the proper time constraints. 



-47-

•casinos a Magnet for Organized Crime" 

The next witness, Edwin H. Stier, had been director of the 
Attorney General's Division of Criminal Justice for five years 
prior to entering to private law practice in October, 1982. Before 
joining that Division in 1970, Stier had been a prosecutor for the 
U.S. Attorney's Office for New Jersey. He noted at the 
outset that during his 17 years as a public prosecutor, most of his 
work "was in the field of organized crime law enforcement." 
Because of this experience, he said he was convinced that the 
casino industry is "uniquely attractive to organized crime" and. 
that, in an effort to penetrate new r,£-:hanisms against criminal 
intrusion of gambling casinos, organized crime elements "have 
seized upon credit as a device by which profits can be skimmed out 
of casinos." SCI Deputy Director James ,1. Morley questioned Stier: 

Q. As a result of your own knowledge and 
experience with organized crime in this 
state, were you able to form an opinion that 
you could give us as to whether any 
particular aspect of the gaming industry is 
particularly attractive to organized crime 
and if so, for what reasons? 

THE WITNESS: I am convinced based on my 
experience tha:- there have been organized 
efforts by ·.:-acketeers, by people who are 
clearly organized crime in every sense of 
that word to use our credit system in New 
Jersey to skim money out of casinos. I 
don't think it has reached the scale that it 
had reached in Nevada at the time we studied 
the situation. I think it has that 
potential in New Jersey. I think it has the 
potential for providing access directly into 
casino operations by organized crime if it 
is unchecked in this case. 

Q. You previously told us that in the absence 
of the opportunity to inject itself directly 
into the cash operations of a casino, 
organized crime has looked as an alternative 
to credit as the place where it can 
encroach. Could you suggest to us why 
credit is so susceptible and inviting to 
organized crime involvement? 

A. It's because ultimately the decision to 
extend credit and the decision on how far to 
go in collecting debts are business 
decisions in which the casino industry 
exercises great deal of discretion. Knowing 
how that discretion is exercised, and in 
some cases influencing the exercise of 
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discretion through bribery and other forms 
of corruption, provides an opportunity for 
the skimming of cash out of the casino with 
very little real potential for being caught. 

Now, we have been lucky in this state 
because of the enormous concentration of 
resources that we have devoted to casino 
industry for policing purposes and because 
of the capabilities of the law enforcement 
system in this state. we have been l11cky to 
-ve ferreted out the schemes that we have 

" und so far, but I assure you that as we 
conduct these investigations and engage in 
prosecutions, the people who are th inking 
about contin··'ng these schemes are figuring 
out ways in which to protect themselves, to 
insulate themselves more from being caught. 

Q. Earlier this morning it was brought out the 
casino industry has defended present credit 
practices by pointing out that the signifi­
cance of credit scams is small in light of 
the relatively small percentage of casino 
money that is diverted through such activi­
ties. Could you respond to that? 

A T don't think that that defense goes to the 
heart of the problem. If we were talking 
about Sears and Roebuck or a bank or any 
other business activity that society permits 
to operate, if they got into trouble with 
their cred't practices, that would simply be 
too bad. They would go out of business if 
it got too serious. I suppose that the 
casino industry if it looks upon itself as 
just another business has got to ask the 
question, why do you single us out; why are 
you so concerned about us; why are you so 
concerned about protecting us; why don't you 
let us protect ourselves from victimiza­
tion. We are doing a good job now. 

The answer is the casino industry is not 
like anything else in our judgment. The 
casino industry is unique. It's an industry 
that has come into New Jersey only after a 
tremendous amount of soul searching, a great 
deal of public controversy and barriers 
which were removed one by one, and it was 
cnly at the point where the Public became 
convinced by what government said it could 
do by way of protecting the public fro~ the 
industry and the evils that are attracted to 
the industry, it was only after the public 
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was convinced that we could contain the 
industry and the problems that are 
associated with it that the public 
accepted. We can never lose siqht of the 
fact that we have been given in ·this state 
an enormous public trust and no matter how 
strongly the industry urges that its 
economic well-being is based in part on its 
ability had to freely extend credit, seems 
to me that there are other interests that 
have to be protected. The casino innnstry 
is different because there has ~een a his­
toric association between organized crime 
and the casino industry. That cannot be 
denied. 

Q. Other.than the direct impact that organized 
crime involvement in credit will have on the 
finances of the casinos and the impact that 
organized crime involvement will have on the 
public perception in the integrity of the 
casinos and the success and the ability of 
law enforcement to operate effectively in 
the state, does organized crime involvement 
in casino credit have any impact by way of 
facilitating other kinds of organized crime 
operations even outside the casinos? 

A. We have found, where loan shark and qamblinq 
victims have been used by organized crime 
and organized crime has taken advantage of 
credit as a way of paying off organized 
crime debts. It'r very difficult -- I don't 
want to try to convince this Commission or 
the public that we fully understand all of 
the ways in which the credit system in 
Atlantic City has been or can be exploi tea 
by organized crime. We have had an 
effectiv~ ~ffort in this state for many 
years in dealing with organized crime. This 
Commission, the Federal law enforcement 
establishment and the State law enforcement 
system have done a very effective job in 
demonstrating that organized crime, even at 
its highest levels, is subject to effective 
investigation and prosecution... But if 
anyone assumes because that has been 
accomplishe<l that organized crime is no 
longer a problem in this state, that these 
people aren't sitting there waiting for the 
day when we drop our guard, when we siphon 
our resources away from the effort, if 
anybody thinks that they are not looking at 
the casino. industry and a lot of other 
places in th is state as opportunities for 
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exploitation and they are not making daily 
efforts to try to gain a hold on those 
industries, we are goinq to wake up one day 
and find we are back where we were 20 years 
ago in our efforts when organized crime 
influenced virtually every level of 
government in the state. I don't want to 
see that occur. 

Q. From both the perspective of organized crime 
in particular, as well as the general casino 
credit perspective, can you offer any 
general recommendations which might assist 
the Commission in suggesting reforms in the 
laws in the state? 

A. Anything that you can do that puts a burden 
on the casinos themselves to tighten up 
their practices, anything that you can do to 
create barriers to fraud and corruption 
within the industry, anything that you can 
do that reduces the extent to which gamblers 
can overextend themselves and be encouraged 
to do so by the casinos, I think will reduce 
the potential for the kind of harms that you 
have thus far and will continue to receive 
some very vivid testimony about. 

The suggestion that I made before which may 
or may not be a practical suggestion is one 
that I would urge very carefull considera­
tion of and that is eliminating the credit 
system as we know it and substituting a 
system where patrons can provide cash or 
other valuables on deposit in an account 
with the casino against which they can draw 
while they gamble, and that they be prohi­
bited from exceeding the amount that is o, 
deposit with the casino. 

THE CHAIRMAN: It would save an awful lot of 
people an awful lot of misery when they find 
they are very much in debt with the present 
system, wouldn't it? 

THE WITNESS: It certainly would. We have 
seen the development in this state of a 
jurisprudence of compulsive gambling. That 
is a defense which was virtually unknown in 
this state until the advent of the casino 
industry, and we have had1 and you will see 
examples of it in testimony that wi 11 be 
offered to the Commission, you will see 
examr,les of people who have defended 
themselves in prosecutions involving 
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thousands and sometimes millions 
on the ground that they were 
gamblers and, therefore, not 
for their conduct. 

THE CHAIRMAN: What do you think of the 
possibility of restricting -- of dropr.iing 
the four percent to one percent, zero 
percent or one percent and eliminating from 
the calculations the money that is spent on 
slot machines that really shouldn't be in 
there at all? 

THE WITNESS: I think that the::-,etically 
that that would provide an incentive for the 
casinos to tighten up. However, bas 0 d on 
what I have heard since the beginnings of 
our investigation the Division of Criminal 
Justice investigation of credit practices in 
the casinos, it seems to me that the casinos 
are going to great lengths to keep the bad 
debts that they report and that they 
presumably incur, keep those bad debts under 
control so they don't try to take advantage 
to too great =n extent of the deductibility 
of those baa debts from their gross 
receipts. ~akin~ them pay tax on that would 
provide some incentive, but I think there 
are greater incentives in the casirio 
industry to overexten1 credit and I think 
that that is where the problem lies. 

COMMISSI0N8R GREENBERG: One final 
question. Do y, u think the legislature 
ought to do this or do you feel it should be 
left to the Casino Control Commission to 
deal with the question of credit, whether we 
are talking about eliminating it entirely or 
modifying some of these practices? Do you 
think this is something, an important issue 
in terms of crime or otherwise that the 
legislature ought to address it rather than 
that Commission? 

THE WITNESS: If we are going to make 
fundamental changes, I think it ought t0 be 
done legislatively. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: 
started. 

That's where it 

THE CHAIRMAN: I would like to have your 
views of having known associates of 
organized crime with ready access to casino 
after casino. It seems to me that's 
disgraceful. 
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THE WITNESS: Not only is it disqraceful, 
but it creates the impression in this state 
that we are not serious about dealing with 
organized crime. When people whom I have 
prosecuted over the years and who have 
finished serving their sentences for murder, 
for extortion, for loan sharking and a 
variety of other very serious crimes, are 
permitted free access to the casinos when 
they can't go to a race track, I find that 
shocking and insulting to the l~w enforce­
ment system and I can't see any reason why 
the casinos shouldn't do precisely the same 
things the race tracks do. When somebody 
like that is found in the casino, eject them 
immediately. You don't need a two-year 
hearing in order to determine whether or not 
that kind of person belongs in the casino. 
I think beyond the credit practices and all 
the other rather sophisticated schemes that 
have been de,velope'.'l for intrusion of 
organized crime into the casinos, there is 
nothing more impressive to the public than 
to recognize the fact that when they are in 
the casino, they are rubbing el~ows with 
known racketeers. '!'hat says something and I 
don't think that what it says is what we 
want the public to believe about New Jersey. 

Organized Crime and Casino Credit 

Testimony demonstrating how insufficient credit controls have 
permitted the incursion of orq~nt•ed crime elements into New 
Jersey's casinos came next, from Lt. Col. Justin Dintino, Executive 
officer and ~ 30-year veteran of the State Police. Prio, to 
responding to questions by SCI counsel Coppoli'l, he made a brief 
statement in which he warned that the integrity of both the State 
and the casino industry "is at stake when the flagrant abuses we 
ha·.-e uncovered are permitted to continue unabate'.'l." He recalled 
that ii, 1980 the State Police harl founrl that organize,] crime 
memberc and associates were rec,,iving credit and free food, free 
rooms and other "complimentary" services at the casinos and that an 
effort was made in vain -- to exclude such el<?'llents from the 
gaming tables. Again in 1982 the State Police initiated another 
study, a random sampling of 500,000 credit reco,ds, which Dintino 
said disclosed continuing crerlit. and complimentary services going 
to organized crime. He declare~: 

We uncovererl the following data: 

Michael Taccetta, a solrlier in the Luchese 
crime family was extended $25,000 in credit 
and $4,128 in comps. Angelo Taccett~, 
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soldier in the Luchese crime family, was 
extended $40,000 in credit and $2,599.52 in 
comps. Nicholas Russo, a soldier in the 
Gambino crime family, was extended $15,000 
in credit. Robert· Bisaccia, a soldier in 
the Gambino crime family, was extended $5000 
in credit. Vincent Ponzio, a close 
associate of Nicodemo Scarfo, was extended 
credit at three casinos which was 11ltimately 
suspended with $37,500 in outstanding 
debts. In addition, he received $4,471.89 
in comps. 

Joseph Pedula, a paid contract t<dler f0r 
organized crime, deposited $504,000 in cash 
at Resorts Casino. Anthony and Peter 
Campisi, notorious killers for organized 
crime, received in excess of $27,000 in 
comps during a three-month period. Lawrence 
Merlino and Philip Leonetti, soldiers in the 
Bruno crime family, received $1,773.32 in 
comps. Rosario Gambino an international 
heroin trafficker, received $1,067.64 in 
comps. Benedetto Aloi, a soldier in the 
Columbo crime, family, received $25,000 in 
credit and $5,~':!5.99 in comps. "licodeJllO 
Scarfo, the hoss of the Bruno crime family 
and a documented contract killer, received 
$2,3q7.04 in comps. 

Dintino warned that the results of the most recent State 
Police sampling of casino· credit files represents only "the tip _of 
the iceberg" and that a mrre thorough analysis woul'l "uncover a 
significant number of other organized crime members and associates 
who have been extended credit and comps." Dintino also questioned 
the "embarrassing" contrast between the way casinos have been 
"laboriously investigated" for licensure and the way "we allow oai'l 
killers, convicted murderers, drug traffickers and known loan 
sharks to enter the casinos and receive preferential treatment." 
He added: 

I find it rather unusual, given the 
elaborate security an'l intelligence systems, 
staffed in most part by former law 
enforcement officials, that only prostitutes 
and card-counters were being eiected from 
the casinos. While I am aware of the 
concern by the casinos over potential civil 
liabilities in the event they were to eiect 
the wrong person, this was not a concern 
when the casino management collectively 
ejected card-counters •.• it's obvious that 
there are no incentives on the part of 
casino management to exclude organized crime 
members or their criminctl associates from 
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the casino. In fact, it appears that the 
opposite is the case. Conceivably, 
excluding Scarfo from the casino colll·i 
result in not only physical retaliation but 
economic sanctions imposed as a result of 
his control of several labor unions. 
Clearly, the fear that a Scarfo brings to 
the casino overrides any sanctions that the 
state may impose. This is a deplorable 
situatirrn and one which the casino manage­
ment must seek to change in cooperation with 
the state; that a paid contract killer can 
deposit 504,000 in cash at a casino, or a 
boss of a crime family can receive prefer­
ence treatment at our casinos is repulsive 
and a threat to the integrity of our exten­
sive regulatory and enforcement apparatus. 

The moral integrity of the state cannot be 
subservient to the economic well-being of 
the casino industry. While the casino 
industry has contributed additional tax 
dollars to the state, it must not be per­
mitted to undo the proqress that law en­
forcement has accomplished in the last 
decade. The exploitation of casino crer'lit 
and comp practices by members of organizer'! 
crime deserves stricter regulatory controls 
and if neecl be, adclitional legislation to 
ensure that career criminals are not per­
mittecl to enjoy the privilege of gamhlinq in 
our casinos. 

Dintino, who was questioned by SCI counsel Coopola, said that 
while much of his testimonv would reflect his organization's random 
sampling, "I am of the opinion that the exten-sion of crer!it to 
organized crime members and associates far exceeds our findings.• 
However, Dintino's own roster of organized crime fiqures who re­
ceived "pre,nium player" credit and gratuities at the casinos was 
extcensive. During the course of his recital, Dintino listed more 
than 35 casino patrons with underworl"l backgrounds ancl associa­
tions. T'he following excerpts from his testimony indicate the 
munificence with which the casinos provi"led credit and "comps" to 
such clients: 

Q. You mentioned the name Michael Tacetta in 
your statement to the Commission. What can 
you tell us about his criminal background? 

A. Tacetta is a soldier in the Luchese crime 
family. He is involved in illegal gambling, 
narcotics and loan sharking activities. 
Tacetta has been involved in several murders 
relative to his illicit activities. 
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Q. Can you· tell us what casinos extended hill\ 
credit? 

A. Hally on May 7, 1980, $25,000. 

Q. Did he also receive comps? 

A. Yes, he received comps at Ballv in the 
amount of $4,128 from May to August, 1982. 

X X X 

Q. The name Nicholas Russo, you me,itione<'l that 
name also. What can you tell us about his 
background? 

A. Russo is a solrlier in the Gambino crime 
family. He is involved in illegal era~ 
gambling activities in the City of Trenton. 
His criminal record reflects numerous 
arrests for gambling and selling and 
possessing counterfeit money. 

Q. How much credit did he receive? 

A. He received $15,000 in credit on August the 
20, 1981, from Harrah's. 

Q. When and how much? 

A. Harrah's, August 20, 1981, $15,000. 

Q. The name Robert E11'il Bisaccia, you mentione<'l 
him. What can you tell us about his 
background? 

A. Bisaccia is a solr'lier of the Gambino cri!T\e 
family. His criminal record reflects 
convictions for burglary, grand larceny, 
extortion and weapons offenses. He is 
considered the principal Gambino crime 
family representative in North Jersey. 

Q. He has received credit also; isn't that 
true? 

A. $500 from Resorts. 

X X X 

Q. The name Robert Caravaggio, are you familiar 
with that name? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What can you tell us about his background? 
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A. He is an associate of the Luchese crime 
family and an operative in the Michael 
Tacetta gambling network. Caravaqqio 
maintains a large-scale loan sharking 
network in the Morris County area and is 
also a documented bookmaker and loan shark. 
His extensive criminal record reflects 
arrests for bookmaking, conspiracy and loan 
sharking. 

Q. Where has he received credit in Atlantic 
City? 

A. Bally, March 31, 1980, $25,000. 
November 30, 1981, S30,000. 

Playboy, 

Q. Has he also received comps? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. Playboy, ,July, August, October, 
$3,554.78; July, August, October, 
Bally, August and September, 
$3,517.36, August, September, 1982. 

X X X 

You also mentioned, 
Tacetta? 

I believe, 

1982, 
1982. 
1982, 

Angelo 

A. Yes. 

Q. What can you tell us about his background? 

A. Angelo Tacetta is a soldier in the 
crime family. He is involved in an 
gambling operation in Newark, New 
His criminal record reflects 
related arrests. 

Q. What casinos gave him credit? 

A. Bally, April 
September 9, 

4, 1982, $20,000. 
1982, $20,000. 

Luchese 
illegal 
Jersey, 

gambling 

Caesars, 

Q. What was his comp situation? 
receive comps? 

Dirl he al so 

A. Yes, he received comps at 'lally, July and 
August, 1982, $2,599.52. 

X X X 

Q. The name Allen Grecco, is that name familiar 
to you? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. What can you tell us about his background? 

A. Grecco is an associate of the Genovese crime 
family and controls an illeqal lottery and 
bookmaking operation in Bergen and Passaic 
counties. He also operates a loan shark 
operation in Passaic County. Grecco' s 
criminal record reflects arrests for 
burglary, larceny, bribery, obstruction of 
police and public order violations. 

Q. Did he receive credit in the c?::i.nos or a 
casino in Atlantic City? 

A. Yes. He 
June the 
$10,000. 

received credit 
12th, 1982, in 

X X X 

at the Sands 
the amount 

on 
of 

Q. The name Joseph N. Farinella, what can you 
tell us about his background? 

A. Farinella is a prominent organized crime 
figure in the ·:centon area and is closely 
associated with members of the l'lruno crime 
family. His criminal record reflects 
arrests for homicide, kidnapping and 
obstructing justice. 

Q. Has he ever received r.redit in Atlantic 
City? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What casino and how much? 

A. Bally, April 17, 1980, $10,000. 

X X X 

Organized Crime Member Had Customer Deposit Privileges 

Q. I believe you mentioned the name Joseph R. 
Pedula before. What elso can you tell us 
about his criminal background and situation 
in Atlantic City? 

A. Pedula is a well-known paid assassin for the 
Philadelphia organized crime family. His 
criminal record reflects arrests for stolen 
vehicle, burglary, attempted murder, 
criminal conspiracy and assault. He is also 
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a loan shark and bookmaker. 

Q. Did he ever receive credit in Atlantic City? 

A. No. However, he has customer deposit 
privileges at Resorts and Caesars. On 
November 26, 1978, he deoosited $40,000 at 
Resorts. During the months of November and 
December, 1978, Pedula deposited over 
$500,000 in cash at Resorts. 

THE CHAIRMAN: ~ill you explain the customer 
deposit privileges? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, Mr. Chairman. Deposit 
privileges are where an individual would 
deposit cash with the cnsino and then he 
could play toward that amount. He could 
draw towards that amount or any other use he 
might want to make with it, such as rooms or 
beverages or shows or whatever. 

THE CHAIRMAN: Or give somebody else the use 
of that money? 

THE WITNESS: He could draw from 
himself and give it to somebody else 
with it, sure. 

it for 
to play 

Q. Is that also known as front money, customer 
deposit; is that the same thing? 

A. Yes. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: Let me ask you a 
question: What legitimate business reason 
would a casino have in accepting $504,000 in 
cash from a player when credit is regularly 
available in Atlantic City? 

THE WITNESS: I think from a casino 
standpoint it would be good business to have 
the cash up front and if he winds up losing 
that entire half million dollars, the 
casino's a half million dollars to the good 
and they don't have to worry about 
collecting credit. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: That he 
with a half million dollars 
presumably he walks out with that 
million dollars in different cash 
can't he, Colonel? 

THE WITNESS: Exactly. 

walks in 
in cash, 
same half 
later on, 
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COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: 
that is what's been 
particular case? 

Do you suspect that 
going on in this 

THE WITNESS: 
think there 
might be the 

In 
is a 

case. 

this particular case I 
strong indication that 

X X X 

Q. The name Victor DeLuca, what can you tell us 
about his background, Colonel? 

A. Victor DeLuca is an associate of ~.he Bruno 
crime family. He is a paid assassin for the 
family. His criminal activities include 
loan sharking and narcotics. DeLuca has an 
extensive arrest record that includes 
numerous charges of stolen property, 
gambling, weapons offenses and narcotics. 

Q. Was he ever extended credit? 

A. Yes. He was extended credit no, he 
wasn't extenc::d credit. He has been a cash 
player at Harr a!.' s casino. He made cash 
deposits March ;:_j, 1982, $91,000: March 31, 
1982, $7,700 and April 12, 1982, $4,700, so 
again he was depositing cash, front money. 

X X X 

Q. The name 11.nthony Campisi, Senior: are you 
familiar with that person? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. What can you tell us about his background? 

A. Anthony Campisi, Senior, was the leader of 
the notorious Campisi organized cri~e 
family, which engaged in gambling, narcotics 
trafficking, armed robbery and homicide. 
Campisi's extensive criminal record dates 
back to 19 39 and reflects convictions for 
gambling, forgery, conspiracy and complicity 
in several murders. 

Q. Did he receive comps from the casinos? 

A. Yes; Campisi and his son, Peter Anthony 
Campisi, received comps during May, June and 
July of 1981 at Resorts International in 
excess of $27,000. 
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COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: May I interrupt? 
$27,000 in three months in comps; this is 
food, beverages and the like, Colonel? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

Exclusion Process Took Almost Five Years 

Q. The next person is Peter Anthony Campisi; is 
that Anthony Campisi's son? 

A. Campisi is the son of Anthony Campisi, who 
was the leader of the notorious Campisi 
organized crime family. The Campisi 
organizations engaged in various criminal 
activities including gambling, narcotics 
trafficking, armed robbery and homicide. 
During the 197 0' s Campisi was sentenced to 
substantial prison terms for armed robbery 
and conspirary to sell stolen securities. 
His criminal record reflects arrests for 
operating an illegal lottery and homicide. 

Q. Were Peter and Anthony Campisi recently 
placed on the exclusion list? 

A. Yes. February the 22nd, 1983. 

Q. How long did the process take from when the 
state first began to attempt to exclude him 
until the order was signed preventing them 
access to the casinos? 

A. I know 
exclude 
opened. 

I personally have been trying to 
them before the first casino door 

Q. Approximately four-and-a-half years? 

A. Yes, four-and-a-half, five years. 
THF: CHAIRMAN: Have you seen disposition at 
all on the part of the casino to want to 
exclude these organized crime people that 
you have been talking about? 

THE WITNESS: I believe while I haven't seen 
tt,em eject or exclude or attempt to put 
anybody on the exclusionary list that tit 
this category, I believe they would like to 
have it out of their casinos, hut I think 
they may be apprehensive about it. 

THE CHAIRMAN: They 
may bring them to 
damage award? 

are afraid these hoods 
court and gPt a huge 
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THE WITNESS: If you look at a guy, Nicodemo 
Scarfo, who we maintain controls Local 5 4, 
which has unionized about 10,000 of the 
casino workers, he has one hell of a hammer 
over the casinos. I wouldn't want to make 
that kind of an individual too mad at me and 
you would be inclined to maybe comp him or 
allow him into the casinos, I think there 
is a dull edge as to why the casinos are not 
taking action. 

THE CHAIRMAN: That takes care of Mr. 
Scarfo. How about some of tr.'.' others who 
aren't involved in that type cf pressure 
situation who might be able to exert that 
type of pressure? Didn't these casinos come 
into this state with the full understanding 
that the criminal element was to be kept out 
of casinos in all phases of the ooeration? 
That's my understanding. 

THE WITNESS: That was my understanding too, 
sir. 

X X X 

Q. The name Lawren~~ Merlino; are you familiar 
with him? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Please 
criminal 
Atlantic 

tell us what 
background 

City •. 

you 
a:id 

know about 
situation 

his 
in 

A. Merlino is a soldier in the Bruno crime 
family, In 1979 Merlino, Scarfo and Philip 
Leonetti were indicted for the murder of 
Vincent Falcone, Merlino is involved in 
narcotics trafficking. 

Q. Did he also receive comps? 

A, Yes. Tropicana, $1,773.32, February 5, 6, 7 
and August 9, 1982. 

Q. The name Philip Leonetti, Colonel, what can 
you tell us about his background? 

A. Soldier in the Bruno crime family and the 
constant companion and enforcer for his 
uncle, Nicodemo Scarfo, the current boss of 
the Bruno family. Leonetti has been 
implicated in several violent crimes and was 
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indicated along with Scarfo and 
Merlino for the 1979 murder of 
Falcone. Leonetti's other 
activities include gambling, loan 
and narcotics distribution. 

Lawrence 
Vincent 

criminal 
sharking 

Q. Was he also comped? 

A. Yes. Tropicana, February '>, 6, 7, 1982, 
$1,757.17. This comp was obtained by 
Lawrence Merlino for his dinner party, which 
included Leonetti and Nicodemo Scarfo. 

Q. Are you familiar with the name Rosario 
Gambino? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What can you tell us about his background? 

A. Gambino is a soldier in the Gambino crime 
family. He has an extensive arrest record 
which includes resisting arrest, assault and 
battery, felonious assault and extortion. 
Moreover, he is actively involved in 
international heroin smuggling. In 1980 he 
was arrested by the United States law 
enforcement officials in connection with 
herion smuggling and has recently been 
indicted in Italy for criminal conspiracy to 
import drugs into Italy, manufacture heroin 
and export same to United States. 

Q. Did he also receive comps from the casino 
industry? 

A. Yes. l'le received comps 
the fictitious name of 
occurred on August 19 
value being $1,067.64. 

from Playboy under 
Joe Longo. This 

and 20, 1982, the 

Q. David Goorland? What can you tell us about 
his criminal background? 

A. Goorland is a criminal associate of Nicodemo 
Scarfo. His illicit activities include loan 
sharking, narcotics and stolen property. 
Goorland maintained a loan sharking 
operation and sells stolen property throuah 
his jewelry store in Atlantic City. His 
criminal history reflects arrests for 
assault and public order crimes. 

Q. What casinos extended him that credit? 
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A. Sands extended him credit on December 29, 
1981, $5000. 

Q. Was he comped by the Claridge and Caesars? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. 
July 
July, 

He was comped by Claridge for $ 3 3, 
22, 1982, and Caesars $1,836.96 in 
1982, and 497.45 September, 1982. 

X X X 
Paul Zaccaria, are you familiar with that 
person? 

Yes. 

What can you tell us about his criminal 
background? 

Zaccaria is 
family. In 
conspiracy 
defrauding 
$400,000. 
arrests for 

a member of the Gambino er ime 
June, 1974, he was indicted on 
charges for his role in 
an Essex County bank of 
His criminal record reflects 

gambling dating back to 1950. 

Q. Was he ever exle~ded credit? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What casinos extended him that credit? 

A. Caesars, May 28, 1980, $50,000; Playboy, May 
9, 1981, $50,000; Sands, July 24, 1981, 
$25,000; Claridge, August 9, 1981, $50,000. 

X X X 

Q. The name Dominick Racabaldo; what can you 
tell us about him? 

A. Racabaldo has been involved in illegal 
gambling activity in Camden County since the 
early seventies. He maintained a high 
stakes card game at his residence in 
Bellmawr. Racabaldo' s criminal record 
reflects an arrest for gambling. 

Q. Did he receive comps in Atlantic City? 

A. He received comps .from Harrah's in the 
amount of $1,199.99, June 17, 1982; at 
Harrah's on July, 1982, $412.45; Harrahs on 
October 12, 1982, in the amount of $275. 

X X X 
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Colonel, is it 
generally supposed 
the amount of play 

true that casinos are 
to extend comps based on 
a player generates? 

Yes. However, we have found that certain 
members of organized crime, such as Nicodemo 
Scarfo, Philip Leonetti, Lawrence Merlino 
and others have received these comps having 
never gambled at the casino. 
You have mentioned Nicodemo 
of times and you have 
background. Where is Scarfo 

Scarfo a number 
given us his 
currently? 

La Tuna Federal Prison, La Tuna, Texas. 

To your knowledge, did he receive comps from 
casinos in Atlantic City? 

Yes. 

What casino comped Scarfo? 

Golden Nugget, Tropicana and Clardiqe. 

Q. Can you explain the circumstances, to your 
knowledge, under which Scarfo received those 
comps? 

A. On February the 5, 6 and 7, 1982, Scarfo in 
the company of Philip Leonetti and Larry 
Merlino, both members of the Bruno crime 
family, received a $1,757.17 comp from the 
Tropicana. On February 21, 1982, he and his 
associates received a $374.95 comp at the 
Claridge Hotel Casino for dinner and 
beverages. Again, on March 5, 1982, Scarfo 
using the alias of Dave Morris received a 
$264 .92 comp at the Golden Nugget. This 
included a room and dinner. 

Q. To your knowledge, has Scarfo gambled in 
Atlantic City. 

A. No. 

Casino Credit Finances Mob Activities 

Q. Do you have any 
conclusion that 
used to finance 
ties? 

information to support a 
credit extended is being 

organized criminal activi-

A. We have developed reliable data that 
strongly indicates that the extension of 
credit to members of organized crime and/or 
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their associates has facilitated such 
illicit activities as loan sharking and 
narcotic trafficking. We have developed 
reliable sources who have advised us that 
credit extended has been used for usurious 
loans and purchasing narcotics on consign­
ment. Clearly, current credit practices 
encourage the investment of credit obtained 
from the casino into illicit endeavors. 
This is quite apparent from the types of 
individuals being extended credit, all of 
which have a history of syndicated crimes. 
Clearly, the potential for i•,vestment in 
illegitimate markets is great. 

Q. Is that a current problem in the industry, 
to the best of your knowledge? 

A. Yes. It remains a problem that must be 
addressed through stricter regulation. 

Q, With respect to people who associate with or 
are members of organized er ime, is it 
possible for you to identify how much credit 
has been given to such people? 

A. No. 

Q. Can you tell us why not? 

A. Number one, we are unable to positively 
identify those persons who have been ex­
tended credit. That is, they are able to 
use fictitious da :a and names; and associ­
ates who have no criminal records or are 
unknown to the police will often receive the 
credit or comp. Unfortunately, the requla­
tions do not mandate a thorough investiga­
tion regarding the data submitted on the 
credit application. Moreover, the ability 
of the casinos to write off a certain per­
centage of uncollectible credit, creates 
less incentive for the casinos to be selec­
tive in whom they grant credit to. Perhaps 
if the casinos were required to pay taxes on 
all credit, regardless of whether the monies 
are collected, we would see a appreciable 
decline in this activity. 

Q. Same question basically as far as comps. 
Can you tell how many comps or the value of 
the comps that have been extended to 
organized crime individuals? 
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A. No 1 and the response would be the same as 
the previous response because of fictitious 
names and aliases. 

Q. You mentioned 

THE CHAIRMAN: I take it you have no doubt 
that the figures are astronomical? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

Q. Colone 1, in your expert opinion, are those 
individuals and those people previously 
mentioned in your testimony the type of 
people that should -- that the State of New 
Jersey and casinos should even allow to set 
foot within the casino? 

A. Absolutely not. As a member of the Policy 
Task Force responsible for developing casino 
legislation, we were very concerned with the 
casino industry maintaining both legitimate 
image and a legitimate operation. lolhile I 
believe we have been able to maintain a high 
standard of licensure for casinos personnel, 
we have failed in keeping organized crime 
members from setting foot in the casinos and 
exploiting the services the casino industry 
offers to their otherwise legitimate 
customers. 

THE CHAIRMAN: In connection with that, 
Colonel, there is no question in your mind 
that the casinos' personnel and so forth, 
security people, know these hoods, these 
people they know by sight, do they not, or 
at least a great many of them? 

'rHE WITNESS: I would think . that anybody 
that would tell me that he is connected with 
security, if they did not know who Nicodemo 
Scarfo was, it would be hard to believe 
that. 

THE CHAIRMAN: How 
the vast majority, 
hold true? 

about the rest of them, 
would that same thing 

THE WITNESS: I think the point we should 
make here, they have no problem identifying 
card-counters. If they wanteil to make an 
attempt to identify these people, it's been 
read in the Congressional Record who these 
people au,. They are identifiecl. If they 
wanted to establish books or whatever and 
have them on file --
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THE CHAIRMAN: I have no doubt about it. I 
wanted your opinion of that on the recorcJ. 

How One Casino Abused Credit 

The next witness, Detecrive Sergeant Gregory Wallack, was an 
18-year veteran with the State Police, currently assigned to the 
DGE's Casino Gaming Section. At the time of his appearance he was 
the supervising investigator of the Playboy Renewal Team of his 
section's Entity Licensing Unit. Between April, 1981, and 
September, 1982, Wallack's team examined a number of corporate 
decisions and transactions by Playboy and related companies and 
also investigated the qualifications bnd background of key direc­
tors, officers and executives of the casin.J. The testimony, in 
part: 

BY COUNSEL COPPOLA 

Q, What was the focus, the primary thrust of 
your investigation? 

A. Our investigation focused 
employed by Playboy in 
credit. 

on the procedures 
the issuance of 

Q. What did you learn from your investigation? 

A. We learned that some credit was issuecJ in 
the face of derogatory information, whether 
that derogatory information came from 
central credit, bank, Playboy surveillance 
department, et cetera. Wu found that credit 
was issued to individuals who were suspected 
of being associbted with people with a 
criminal history or who themselves had a 
criminal history. There were other 
instances in which credit was issued to 
individuals where we questioned the ability 
of the player to repay the casino. 

Q, You mentioned the worn derogatory. Does 
that have a special type usage in the casino 
industry and if so, aescribe it for us? 

A. A bank account which would be too low to 
support the credit line which was requested 
by the gambler and it in some instances may 
reflect balances by the bank itself. If the 
account was opened within the past three 
months, the hank would not be able to give 
you an average balance on that account, only 
what was in the account at that time. 

Q. Does the term derogatory also refer to 
information that is learned from central 
credit? 
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A. Central credit would provide derogatory 
information in the case of a player having 
returned checks from other casinos or 
whether or not the central credit agency 
considered that player to be what is called 
a rounder. 

Q. Maybe you ought to tell us what that is. 

A. A gambler who will go to one casino this 
afternoon and establish a credit line and 
this evening to another one, and 
subsequently go to six or seven casinos in a 
relatively short period of time and 
establish some credit lines with those 
casinos. 

Q. Are you familiar with the term write-off? 

A. Yes. Write-off is when 
off on the books of 
dilligent collection 
employed to collect the 

the debt is written 
the casino after 

efforts had been 
money. 

Q. Between April, '81, and September, '82, what 
was the total amount of write-offs at 
Playboy? 

A. $4,122,640. 

Q. What is the total amount of write-offs with 
respect to the individuals who are under the 
focus of your investigation? 

A. $2,096,250. 

Probe Focused on Playboy Credit Manager 

Q. Who was the credit manager at Playboy during 
the time period between April of 19A 1 
through June of 1982. 

A. Carol White. 

Q. Did Carol White authorize any of the credit 
which was scrutinized by your staff in your 
investigation? 

A. Yes, she did. As credit manager, she not 
only made credit decisions herself, but she 
supervised and reviewed the credit decisions 
of the other credit executives. 
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Q. Did you review the credit decisions made by 
Ms. White during the course of your 
investigation? 

A. Only those decisions which pertained to the 
individuals we were investigating. 

Counterfeiter Got $75,000 Credit 

Among the Playboy patrons being investigated by Wallack's team 
were Andrew Arnplo and his close associate Vincent Bonafede, each of 
whom had a criminal record that included ~rrests for possession of 
counterfeit travel checks and currency. Both were provided with 
extensive credit privileges by Playboy cre6it manager White. SCI 
Counsel Coppola asked Wallack about these individuals: 

Q. Was one of the individuals whose credit was 
looked at Andrew M. Amplo? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What can you tell us about what your 
investigation revealed at the Playboy casino 
and Andrew Amplo? 

A. Our investigation showed that Andrew Arnplo 
has been arrested nine times for crimes 
including burglary, assault and battery, 
possession of dangerous drugs and 
counterfeiting. He was convicted on the 
counterfeiting charge and sentenced to one 
year in prison. Andrew Amplo was awarded a 
$30,000 credit line by Playboy credit 
manager Carol White, despite her knowledge 
of Andrew Amplo's criminal background in 
counterfeiting. 

The surveillance department of Playboy 
notified Carol White that Amplo and a close 
associate, Vincent Bonafede, were suspected 
by the Secret Service of dealing in 
counterfeit currency, and that both had 
prior arrests for possession of counterfeit 
American Express checks and counterfeit 
currency. 

Additionally, Carol White was notified of 
the specifics regarding an insurance fraud 
scheme reportedly employed by Arnplo and 
Bonafede. Pcior to the award of the $30,000 
credit line to Andrew Amplo, Carol White 
knew that llmplo's bank account reflected an 
average of 100 to $300, and that he had 
outstanding balances at other casinos 
totaling $95,000 in aqgreqate. In addition, 
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central credit information reflected that 
Amplo had issued a $5000 check to Las Vegas 
Sands which was returned for non-sufficient 
funds. With this information, Carol White 
authorized a $30,000 credit line for Andrew 
Amplo. Within one week of the initial 
$30,000 credit authorization, central credit 
information reflected an increase in Amplo's 
outstanding indebtedness to other casinos 
from 95,000 to $150,000. In spite of this, 
Carol White authorized a credit line 
increase up to $75,000 for Andrew Amplo. 
Amplo's present unpaid balance with Playboy 
is $75,000. 

Q. Did you look at the credit history at 
Playboy concerning Vincent Bonafede? 

A. We did. We found that Mr. Bonafede is 
listed by Andrew Amplo as a reference on 
Amplo' s credit application. we also found 
that they both shared the same bank 
account. Prior to the initial award of 
$30,000 in credit to Vincent Bonafede, Carol 
White knew Bonafede had outstanding 
indebtedness to other casinos which totaled 
$95,000. ~ecause Bonafede initially applied 
for credit on a weekend, no bank information 
was obtained prior to the initial award of 
credit. When several days later Playboy 
received the banking information for Vincent 
Bonafede, it reflected a balance of 
approximately 4 to ~600. The same dav Mr. 
Bonafede's outstanding indebtedness to other 
casinos reflected an increasP. frorn $'15,0()0 
to a hundred and ten thousand dollars. Also 
on December 21, 1981, Playboy credit managP,r 
Carol White was notified of derogatory 
information relating to Bonafede's crirninal 
background. This information, which was 
provided in writing by the Playboy 
surveillance department, reflected that 
Bonafede was the target of an ongoing 
Federal investigation concerning insurance 
fraud. It further showed that Bonafede and 
a close associate, Andrew ~~plo, was 
suspected by the Secret Service of dealing 
in counterfeit currency. This information 
reflected in Amplo's history also apolied to 
Bonafede. Eight days later Ms. White again 
approved an increase in Bonafede' s credit 
line to $75,000. Mr. Bonafede presently ows 
the Playboy Hotel Casino R75,000. 
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Got Credit After $25,000 Check Bounced 

Q. Did you look at the credit play of John 
Barbato? 

A. Yes. Our investigation of Mr. Barbato 
revealed he has been arrested seven times 
for crimes including illegal gambling, 
assault, robbery, possession of stolen 
property, and grand larceny auto theft. He 
was convicted on the robbery charge and sen­
tenced to Sing-Sing Prison. He was awarded 
a $25,000 line by Playboy creuit executive 
William Small based on bank infor .. 1ation re­
flecting both porsonal and business accounts 
with balances between 1,000 and $3,000. 
About one-and-a-half months subsequent to 
the initial credit award, Charles Cusick of 
the Playboy surveillance department, entered 
a caution notation on Barbato's credit 
application card and notified Carol White of 
his association with Benny "Eggs" Mangano, a 
reputed member of the Genovese crime 
family. It should be noted, however, that 
at some poin~ in time an unknown individual 
crossed out this notation. Cusick further 
related details of Mangano's criminal 
activities. No action was taken by Carol 
White to remove or reduce Barbato's credit 
line at this time. However, approximately 
one month later, after Playboy received 
information from central credit concerning a 
$25,000 check rrturned for non-sufficient 
funds issued by Barbato to another casino, 
Playboy decided not to extend him any 
further credit. A review of his credit card 
at Playboy shows that Barbato was, in fact, 
extended $25,000 in credit after Playboy 
learned of his returned check. Barbato' s 
unpaid balance at Playboy is $21,000. 

Credit Granted to French Connection Drug Dealer 

Q. Did you have occasion to look at the credit 
history of Peter Giamarino? 

A. We learned that Mr. Giamarino' s background 
has several arrests reported, among them 
being possession of a pistol, felony 
assault, forgery, robbery, high-jacking, 
gambling, fraud and narcotics. He was 
convicted on the robbery hijacking charges 
and narcotics charges extending from the 
French Connection drug investigation in New 
York City, which involved the possession 
with intent to distribute 160 pounds of 
heroin. 
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Giarnarino was annrove'I for a $7500 cre<'lit 
line by Playboy credit executive Dianne 
Johnston, despite ban~ information which 
reflected a bank account balance of less 
than $100 and central credit information 
which reflected no established credit lines 
at any legal casino. Two months later, 
central credit advised Playboy that they 
considered Giamarino to be a rounder. In 
spite of this, Giarnarino was subsequently 
approved for an increase of his credit line 
to $10,000. 

Mr. Giamarino's present unpair'I balance at 
the Playboy casino is $134,000. 

Got $50,000_Credit, Owes $50,000 

Q. Colonel Dintino also talked abont Paul 
Zaccaria. Was that person also the subject 
of your investigation at Playboy? What ::lid 
you learn with respect to him? 

A. That Carol White authorized a $25,000 credit 
line for Paul Zaccaria with the knowledqe 
that Zaccaria's bank account balance was 
approximately $5000, and despite central 
credit information, which reflected a 
$45,000 outstanding balance at other casinos 
and a $6,000 write-off c1t another casino, 
nine days later, without the benefit of any 
addition al information, Carol White double::l 
Zaccaria's credit line to $50,000. 

Paul Zaccaria's outstanding unp,lid balance 
with Playboy is $50,000. 

Convict Credit 

Q. Anthony Tortorello, was he also the subject 
of your investigation? 

A. Yes. 1-lr. Tortorello has been convicted on 
charges of interstate transportation of 
motor ·1ehicles. Tortorello was approved for 
a $20,000 credit line by Playboy credit 
executive Dianne Johnston based on 
information from central credit showing him 
to be clear, that :ls with no outstanding 
balances at the casinos where he had 
established credit lines. However, bank 
information showed an account considered by 
the bank to be too new to rate, but having a 
current balance of approximately $5000. 
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Additionally, the bank commented that credit 
of $20,000 was not good for Tortorello. 
About six months later, after being notified 
by Charles Cusick of the Playboy 
surveillance department that Tortorello had 
recently been convicted of interstate 
transportation of stolen motor vehicles and 
had been sentenced to ten years in prison, 
Mrs. White determined that no further credit 
should be issued, 

However, shortly thereafter, · .. i thout any 
update from central credit files and without 
any additional bank information checks, 
Carol White reinstated Tortorello' s credit 
line in an amount of $1 fl ,000. Several days 
later a bank check was performed revealing a 
balance of between $100 and $300. Shortly 
after this bank check, central credit showed 
that Tortorello had issued a check to the 
Sands in the amount of $1,000 which was 
returned marked non-sufficient funds. No 
action was taken at this time to either 
reduce or eliminate Tortorello's credit line 
&nd, in fact, with the knowledge of an 
imminent sentenc".· Tortorello's credit line 
was increasec to $15,000 a short ti~e 
thereafter. He used $7,000 in 15 gambling 
days and his residence changed from New York 
to Danbury Federal Penitentiary. 

"Too New to Rate" -- but Got $30,000 Credit 

Q. Mr. Fred ,J. Gallo; was he also a part of 
your investigation? 

A, Yes, Mr. Gallo has a criminal record on 
charges including bribery, gambling, bank 
fraud and grand larceny, Gallo was 
initially refused a $25,000 credit line 
because his bank account was six days old. 
That was considered too new to rate. Two 
days later without the benefit of any 
additional information contained on credit 
application, Carol White approved a $10,000 
credit line for Gallo, Within the next 
three months, Carol White increased Gallo's 
credit line first to $20,000 and later to 
$30,000. In attempting to verify Gallo' s 
stated telephone numbers and addresses, 
Playboy credit clerks found no listings. 
Apparently this did not deter credit manager 
Carol White from extending this patron 
urea it. Mr. Gallo' s unpaid balance with 
Playboy is $30,000. 
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To your knowledge, were any of 
individuals collection problems 
casinos? 

the same 
at other 

A. Yes, Golden Nugget, Claridge, the Sands. 

Q. Did Playboy itself 
occurred at the casino 
way? 

characterize what 
in any particular 

A. When we reviewed the patron collection work 
cards there were some notations placed there 
by collection department personnel which 
read "Player may be part of the Brooklyn 
scam." It was a term used bv the casino, 
not by us. 

Q. Did you detect any particular pattern with 
reference to the particular credit gamblers 
that came under the focus of your investi­
gation? 

A. Yes. The majority of individuals involved 
all resided in the same neighborhood in 
Brooklyn. It appears they all first came 
into the Playboy casino at approximately the 
same time period, and some of the indivi­
duals used others we considered to be 
involved as references on their credit 
applications. There were many of this group 
we considered to be high-risk people i,;ho 
should not have received credit in the first 
place. 

o. Do you have an opinion as to why all of this 
took place? 

A. Yes. Prior to opening Playboy had developed 
what they call the casino credit executive 
operating manual which was prepared by Carol 
White with the assistance of other manage­
ment personnel at Playboy. Just after the 
casino opened the manual was considered to 
be useless by Playboy cre,:'lit people. There 
was no attempt to rewrite the manual which, 
according to the former vice-president of 
casino operations, could have been rewritten 
within four or five days. 

Secondly, there were 
were no verifications 
or employment, that 
collection department 
gone bad. 

instances where there 
of either residences 
being done by the 

only after credit had 
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Third, there was too much responsibility 
either accepted or assumed by one individual 
as to the issuance of initial or subsequent 
increases of credit lines and, last, there 
was a management position taken at that time 
which reflected if credit play was 
increased, business and profits would also 
increase, This opinion seemed to be 
prevalent in most Atlantic City gambling 
houses. 

Playboy's Former Credit Manager 

Carol White, who was the Playboy credit manager from mid-1980 
to March, 1982, was scheduled to testify next, with particular 
reference to credit decisions described by State Police Detective 
Sergeant Wallack, the previous witness. Although White appeared at 
the hearing, she refused to respond to questions on the basis of a 
claim of privilege. As a result, prior testimony taken from White 
at Executive Sessions of the SCI were entered into the public 
hearing record. Portions of these transcripts were repeated at the 
hearing through SCI Special Agent Wendy Bostwick, including the 
fo,l:;_o ... ~ng excerpts: 

"Question: 
shopped at 
Regency?" 

~iss White, have 
Gucci's at Caesars 

you ever 
Boardwalk 

MS. BOSTWICK: "Answer: Yes, I ha,,e." 

X X X 

MR. COPPOLA: "Qu stion: Did you ever shop 
in a store known as Tiberius or Tiberia, 
Tiberius, I believe is the name of it?" 

MS. BOSTWICK: "Answer: I've been there." 

MR, COPPOLA: "Question: With respect to 
purchases at that store, did you ever make 
use of a gift certificate?" 

MS. BOS'fWICK: "Answer: I can It quite 
remember. I may have. I don't know. I 
know that I have purchased some things." 

MR. COPPOLA: "Question: Do you recall 
anyone ever giving you a gift certificate 
for use at Tiberius or Gucci?" 

MS. BOSTWICK: "Answer: My 1 ifetime 
received a lot of gift certificates 
friends from boyfriends, you know." 

I've 
from 
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MR. COPPOLA: "Question: With respect to 
any of the gift certificates that you did 
receive, were any of those certificates from 
any credit player?" 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: 
Playboy?" 

"Credit player at 

MR. COPPOLA: "In the casino industry?" 

MS. BOSTWICK: The answer was ''Yes.'' 

X X X 

MR. COPPOLA: "Question: Miss White, did 
you ever accept a gift from a friend who was 
also a cash or credit player in AtLrntic 
City? 11 

MS. BOSTWICK: "Answer: I would have to say 
yes~" 

MR,. COPPOLA: 0 Question: 
who they were?" 

MS. BOSTWICK: "Answer: 
on the Fifth Amendment. 
that." 

Can you tell us 

Well, then, I stand 
I will not answer 

MR. COPPOLA: "Question: One more question 
in this area. Did the gifts, did you 
receive from any friends who are credit or 
cash players in Atlantic City while you were 
employed in the casino while you were 
holding a New Jersey license with respect to 
gambling?" 

MS. BOSTWICK: "Answer: I would have to say 
yes,,u 
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THE TESTIMONY -- SECOND DAY 
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 2, 1983 

Transition Statement 

Opening the, second day of the SCI' s hearing on casino credit 
abuses, Commissioner Henry s. Patterson, II, noted that the 
previous day's testimony by high-ranking law enforcement officials 
had provided a foundation for all subsequent testimony. He stated: 

we resume the hearing today with extensive 
testimony -- from the casinos t~emselves -­
which will illustrate the incomr2':ence and 
irresponsibility with which credit has been 
disbursed. such testimony will be signifi­
cant not only because of its self-incrimin­
tory nature, but also because it will 
pinpoint, from the standpoint of actual 
practice, where casino credit controls are 
most deficient and how inappropriate 
decisions and haphazard judgments have 
increased the industry's vulnerability to 
corruption and fraud. 

Casino Executives Testify 

Golden Nugget's Credit Manager 

Norman Jacobson, the credit manager at the Golden Nugget Hotel 
and casino, was the first of a representative group of casino 
credit executives to appear fo~ questioning about various 
decisions, policies and procedures in processing credit requests 
for gamblers. SCI Deputy Director James J. Morley began the 
interrogation with a review of the Golden Nugget's credit process 
under Jacobson's supervision: 

Q. Do you personally make all credit decisions? 

A. No, I do not. 

Q. Who, typically, will make credit decisions? 

A. My four credit executive and myself. 

Q. And is there a limit to how much creJit any 
single credit executive can grant on his own 
signature --

A. There is no limit. 

Q. -- for any particular customer? 

A. Not at all. 

Q. Do you personally review all credit 
~ecisions made by your credit executives? 
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A. No, I do not. 

Q. Do you have any kind of a system for random, 
after the fact, review? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Could you describe briefly what that system 
is? 

A. Well, we have a computer printout, which 
comes out every morning, which lists all 
transactions made the previous day. When I 
look through that printout, I determine 
which ones I will review and which ones I 
will just pass up. Those for large amounts, 
I will review. 

Q. When you make a decision to make a review 0f 
an award of a larger amount of credit, do 
you then go back to the application, the 
credit card, and review the information on 
that document? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Is it the practice in the Golden Nugget to 
require that the credit executive, who is 
making a credit decision, perform a Central 
Cerdit check in all cases? 

A. It is required for our clerks to perform 
that function, yes. 

Q. And is 
review 
credit 

A. Yes. 

it required that the credit 
the information acquired 

clerk? 

executive 
by the 

Q. Could you briefly explain to the Commission 
vhat Central Credit is? 

A. Central Credit is an organization located in 
Las Vegas which is in business solely for 
the purpose of gathering and disbursing 
gambling information on all applicants at 
casinos which subscribe to their services, 
which covers almost 99 percent of all 
casinos in the United States and also in the 
Bahamas and France, et cetera~ 

Q. And Central Credit is a private enterprise? 

A. Yes, it is. 
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Q, How long does it take to get a Central 
Credit check? 

A, The major way we get the information is 
through a computer printout which indicates 
whether the customer has ever applied for 
credit and has an identification number, and 
it will list on there every casino he has 
ever applied at, and will list the latest 
information they have in their files. 

Q. How much time does this take? 

A, (A matter) of minutes to get th:.t initial 
report. 

Q. Is it the pr act ice of the Golden Nugget to 
require a confirmation of bank information 
on every credit application? 

A. Yes. 

O. How is bank information confirmed? 

A. Bank informa~ion is confirmed two different 
ways: we always send the bank a letter 
requesting this information, and we' 11 
always make a phone call. Sometimes the 
phone call will not produce the results, and 
a letter will always produce the results. 

Q, If the phone call hasn't produced results 
and you're going ~o rely on a letter, do yo11 
wait until you g~t an answer to the letter 
before you extend the credit? 

A, If the bank information is what we are going 
to rely on, yes, we'll wait for the letter. 

Q. What do you do if 
Saturday, makes an 
can't check the bank 

someone comes 
application, 

information? 

in on a 
and you 

· A. We'll get a Central Credit report, and 
within that Central Credit report possibly 
could be current bank information that the 
other casino has gotten which thev will 
share with us. 

Q, What if there is no bank information? 

A. Then, we'll make a 
information which, in 
make an affirmative 
bank information. 

decision without 
most cases ••• we'll 
decision without 

bank 
not 
the 
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COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: Can you give 
percentage of how many cases or 
percentage you extend credit without 
bank information? 

THE WITNESS: Well under one percent. 

me a 
what 
this 

Referring to exhibits which included a manual on the Golden 
Nugget's system of internal controls and a "State~ent of Manaqement 
Policy," Counsel Morley reviewed additional facets of the casino's 
credit process with Jacobson. The testimony continued: 

(). Would you nlease turn to the eleventh paqe. 
The top of the page says, "In the event that 
an a.ppl icant-customer has no credit recor<1 
with Central Credit and/or no meaningful 
customec- experience and no information is 
availahle from other casinos, the credit 
clerk shall verify the bank references~'' 

What is the meaning of the term "meaninqful 
customer experie11ce information 11 ? 

A. We always get a consumer credit report we 
have available to us through the system, 
which at the present time we are now doing 
100-percent of the time, which qives us 
information on an individual's creel it card 
experience and depart'!lent store credit 
accounts0 

(Witness and counsel confer.) 

Yes, naturally, of course, 
experience with our own casino0 

Q. One's gamblinq experience? 

A. Gambling experience, yes. 

also 

Q. What is CBA, Credit Bureau Associates? 

the 

A. Well, an organization, they are a subsidiary 
of 'I'rans-Union, I'm not really sure of the 
parent company, al thouqh, thev have an 
affiliation with them. They operate out of 
Camden, New Jersey, and they have stored in 
their files, run through a computer retai 1 
credit information on just about everybody 
who has ever had retail credit in this area. 

Q. Does it also include information such as 
judgments, liens, bankruptcies and things of 
that nature? 

.'\~ Yes, it does9 
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Q. Do you get a CBA report in every case? 

A. We now do. We used to get it in about 75 to 
80 percent. We have since changed our 
procedures. 

Q, Let me ask you this: What is the bottom 
line question that has to be answered before 
you decide whether to give someone credit? 

A. That, in our judgment, we'll get paid. 

How Nicky Scarfo Got Free Room, Food and Drink 

The Commission questioned Jacobson about 
casino credit and hotel "complimentaries" in a 
violated the Golden Nugget's own guidelines 
control manual and policy statement. 

decisions to extend 
number of cases that 
as detailed in its 

One case involved a credit patron, William Mele, on whose 
recommendation the casino "comped" Nicodemo (Little Nickv) Scarfo, 
the Atlantic City mob leader, under the alias of "Dave Morris." 
Mele initially had a Golden Nugget credit line of SS,000, which was 
doubled in January, 1981. Despite memos in March, 1982, revealing 
Mele's promotion of gr:::tuities for Scarfo under: an assumed name, 
and MPle's police record, the casino took no action to curtail or 
cancel Mele's credit pri.,~leges. Jacobson's testimony on this 
situation follows: 

Q. Would you refer in that package to a memo 
dated March 8, 1982. 

A. Yes. 

Q. And is that a memo from Sabino Carone to 
Shannon L. Bybbe, Junior? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Who is Sabino Carone? 

A. Director of surveillance. 

Q. And who is Shannon Bybbe, Junior? 

A. President of the Golden Nugget at Atlantic 
City. 

Q. Subject of that memorandum is Nick Scar:fo; 
is that correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. The memo says, in essence, that a person 
named Dave Morris was being comped RF and B 
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(room, food and beveraqe) on the recommenda­
tion of Mr. Mele, who we 're talking about 
right now, and that this Dave Morris is 
really Nick Scarfo; is that correct? 

A. That's what the memo says, yes. 

Q. At the time that you received the memo, did 
you know who Nick Scarfo was? 

A. By reputation, what I read in the 
newspaper: s M 

Q. What did you read and what did you think? 

A. I read that he was an al leqed member of 
organi.zPrl crime anrt undesiral1le. 

Q. Did you think thc1t, too? 

A. 

o. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

There's 
198 2. 

aJso a 
Again v 

·nr:'mor an'l um 
Mr G Carone 

dat,•cl '1arcch 10, 
to Mr. Bybbe. 

Subject again is Nick Scarfo. Have you ever 
seen this memo before? 

Yes. 

Again, 
copy. 
time it 

you're listPd 
Did you receive 
was written? 

as recipient of a 
a copy at about the 

A. Yes. 

Q. And is it correct that the memo says Mr. 
Mele was arrestecl for bookmaking in 1974? 

Q on the basis of these flow, 
''1arch 8 and 10, 1982, did 
ta,~ii1c: c·-1i1y action against MrM 
line? 

A. I considered it, yes. 

two memoranda, 
you consider 
Mele's credit 

Q. Did you, in fact, take any action? 

A Nor l didn't~ 

Q. Why not? 

A. I discussed it with my superior and we 
determined that our experience with Mr. Mele 
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at that time had been rather extensive and 
extremely favorable, and at that time he 
owed us a considerable amount of money. ~nd 
we felt that, at least my superior indicated 
to me, that we should take no action at that 
time. 

Q. If the decision had been your's alone, would 
the decision have been the same? 

A. If the decision had been mine alone, I would 
have probably gotten into it deeper than I 
had. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: How much deeper did 
you need to get into it, Mr. Jacobson? What 
more did you need to know before you lifted 
Mele's credit? 

THE WITNESS: When the information was 
developed that Mr. Scarfo had, in fact, been 
a recipient of the comp, Mr. Mele was 
confronted and immediately went to Mr. 
Scarfo and asked him to leave the premises. 

COMMISSIONER GRECNBERG: Didn't anybody from 
Golden Nugget asil. him to leave? 

THE WITNESS: As a request from one of our 
people at Golden Nugget, we told Mr. Mele we 
did not know Mr. Scarfo was a recipient of a 
comp, and that we would not want him in the 
casino and that since he was the one that 
had been instrume,1tal in getting the comp 
for Mr. Scarfo, we asked him to do that, and 
in a matter of minutes, Mr. Scarfo was gone. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: Why didn't the 
casino throw Scarfo out as soon as you found 
out who he was? 

THE WITNESS: I don t t kno·~. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: 
owe the casino now? 

THE WITNESS: $25,000. 

How much does Mele 

Bankruptcy Report Didn • t Prevent $2,500 "Courtesy Line" 

The next case reviewed with the Golden Nugget credit manager 
was that of Richard R. Savarese, who was granted a $2,500 "courtesy 
line" of credit despite derogatory background reports that he had 
been involved in a bankruptcy and had bad debts charged off by a 
bank and a department store. Once again Scarfo' s friend, William 
Mele, influenced the credit decision, according to Jacobson. His 
testimony on this subject follows: 
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Q. You granted him credit? 

A. I granted the credit. 

Q, How did it come about that he got credit? 

A. There was a recommendation by a shift 
manager that he was a close friend and 
associate and came into our casino quite 
often with a big player. 

Q. Who? 

A. William Mele. 

Q. Same William Mele we just talked about? 

A. Yes, that's correct. And that Mr. Savarese, 
himself, was a subsubstantial cash player 
that would like to have a courtesy line in 
the event that he happened to have a bar! 
streak and didn't have cash, and would like 
to have a courtesy line to tide him through 
the night. 

Q. Would you turn to the third 
exhibit, please, C-58. That 
two handwritten notes; is that 

A. Yes. 

page of the 
page contains 
correct? 

Q. Looking at the one, the lower one that's on 
a piece of paper bearing the Golden Nugget 
logo, it's to Norman signed Jane. Do you 
know who Jane is? 

A. Jane Haverstick, my credit executive. 

Q. Second paragraph of that handwritten memo 
dated 12-9-81 says, "Bob James really wants 
us to reconsider this customer,• that is 
Savarese, "as he was recommended and 
guaranteed (if you want to use such a word) 
by Bill Mele." rs that an accurate reading 
of that memo? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You got that note from Jane Haverstick and 
that reported to you the shift manager's 
recommendation, Bob James, the shift 
manager? 

lL Yes. 
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Q. On the basis of that recomm<2ndation, were 
you moved to grant credit to Mr. Savarese? 

A. Not at all. 

Q. Well, what occurred between your not being 
moved to grant credit and the time that you 
put your signature on the $2500 approval? 

A. Mr. James went to Mr. Wayson (vice presi­
dent-marketing) and explained the fact that 
he was a good cash player and it would be 
good for business to maintain Bi~l Mele as a 
good credit player, which he was, ~nd since 
they were traveling compani0ns, he would 
like to recommend a courtesy line for Mr. 
Savarese. 

Q. Mr. Jacobson, would you look at the fifth 
page of the exhibit? It's a copy of a 
Central Credit printout, a handwritten 
notation 4-4-82? What's the last entry on 
that Central Credit report? 

A. "VCC rndr," R· n-d-r, meaning rounder. 

Q. What is a rounde11 

A. A rounder is indicative of 
applying at numerous casinos 
short period of time, span of 

an individual 
within a very 
time. 

Q. Is it a red flag in a sense to a credit 
executive to watch out for this person? 

/\.. It's a warning flag, not necessarily a red 
flag. Something to look out for. 

Q. Would it be fair to say that . Mr. Savarese 
was given $2500 in credit to keep Mr. Mele 
in the casino? 

A. Yes, and with the intention, with the 
feeling we would be paid. 

Q. And it didn't enter your mind that it was 
really the casino making the decision that 
they were willing to risk losing the $2500 
in order to keep Mr. Mele in the casino? 

A. It was a risk, but no more than some others, 
perhaps. 

Q. Why was Mele so important? Why would the 
casino be willing to take a risk like this? 
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A. Well, he was -- he visited the casinos iust 
about every week, and had friends he brought 
in with him, and they're all good players, 
and we always got paid. Represented a lot 
of business. 

Q. The $2500 did, in 
casino, didn't it? 
in the casino? 

fact, keep him in the 
Did he continue to play 

(Witness and counsel confer.) 

A. Mr. Mele continued playing. For reasons he 
continued playing, I really don't know. 

Q. Does Mr. Savarese owe you anything? 

A. $2500. 

Q. And Mc Mele, who you were able to keep in 
the casino at least possibly because of 
giving Mr. Savarese credit, he also owes you 
some money now, too? 

A. 25,000. 

Credit Extended Without Any Background Check 

The next credit patron discussed with Jacobson was Vincent J. 
Ponsio. He received credit without a background check. When 
derogatory information was received by the Golden Nuqqet, it showed 
that $50,000 worth of Ponsio's markers had "bounced" at other 
casinos. In addition, Ponsio's creclit privilege had previously 
been put on "hold" -- or suspended -- until he paid off the debt, 
but this temporary default had not prevented an automatic 
restoration of credit. Although Jacobson did not know that Ponsio 
was a member of organized crime, the gambler was identified i'l 
earlier State Police testimony as a mobster who was arrested for 
druq trafficking. Following are excerpts from Jacobson's testimony 
on Ponsio .. 

Q. And how much credit was he al lowed when he 
was restored? 

A. $5,fJOO. 

Q. Would you look at the bottom of the back of 
the second page of the exhibit? There's a 
notation in hand initialer! "J.H.;" is that 
Miss Haverstick again? 

A. Yes, it is. 

Q. And the notation says, "Released hold and 
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gave $5,000 credit. Customer picked up his 
return marker with cash. Is a locally known 
builder and has been out of the country and 
says the bank won't pay anything when he is 
out of town. I believe he will be good for 
this credit • " 

Do you understand that notation to mean that 
Miss Haverstick was putting Mr. Ponsio back 
on credit because his bank won't clear his 
checks while he's out of town? 

A. That and the fact that he paid ~ash. 

Q. Is there anything on the card to indicate 
that Miss Haverstick attempted to confirm 
that story about checks not clearinq, 
because the writer of the check is out of 
town, with the bank? 

A. There's nothing on the file that indicates 
that. 

Q. Did Mr. Ponsio later receive a temporary 
increase in tis credit limit after February 
f 2? 

A. The following day, February 23, 1982. 

Q. '.L'o what level? 

A. $7500. 

Q. On the day that tl1at temporary increase was 
granted, was a Central Credit check done? 

A. There was a Central Credit done that day. 

Q. was there any derogatory information on that 
c;heck? 

A. N.S. P., non-sufficient fund check for 
$15,000 at a ca sin'.:> locally. $Vi,OOO 
N.S.F. in another local casino and another 
15,000 no, that was cleared. l\nother 
15,000 yes, there were variety of 
derogatory information reports on ther~; 
yes, sir. 

Q. Is it true that the ,central Credit report 
indicates that Mr. Ponsio had bounced 
$50,000 worth of checks in markers at other 
Atlantic City casinos? 

A. Yeah, they appear to add up to that fiqure. 
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Q. And they were all outstanding at that time? 

A. Yes, they were. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: 
given without any 
additional information? 

So the increase was 
information, any 

THE WITNESS: That's correct. 

COMMISSIONE'< PATTERSON: And when the 
information was gathered, the information 
indicated to you that the decision to give 
him the increase was a bad one? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

Q. Does Mr. Ponsio owe the Golden Nugget any 
money? 

A. $7500. 

THE Cf!AIRMAN: Isn't there some mechanism 
where you can withdraw such an increase or 
withdraw credit when you do get this after 
the fact derogatory information? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, Chairman. We have a. 
mechanism now that is reported daily to us 
by Central Credit that whenever any of our 
players, and only reported on our particular 
customers that we receive, that if any of 
our players have derogatory in format ion in 
any other casino wherever, we automatically 
put a hold on the account. 

We'll call the casino to find out because 
between the time the report was issued and 
the time we receive it, it mav have been 
cleared and what were the circumstances. 

"That One Got By Us" 

The application of credit patron Frank D. DeConzo was riext 
reviewed with Jacobson. The witness confir.i1ed that DeConzo was 
given $5000 in credit despite information that he had $800 at the 
most in his bank account. Subsequently his credit lb1it was 
increased to $10,000 and then $12,500 -- and he was allowe•l to 
continue gambling on credit even after his counterchecks begari to 
bounce. Excerpts from Jacobson's testimony on Frank D. DeCon,:o 
follow: 

Q. Was there a Central Credit check done that 
revealed some problems with returned markers 
at other casinos? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. Can you explain why he was 
continue to play on credit 
information was obtained? 

allowed to 
after that 

A. Using hindsight, I would say that should not 
have been done. We were very much swamped 
at the time, had a tremendous influx of 
applications, and that one got by us. 

Q. Looking on the sixth page of the exhibit, is 
there on that page another Central Credit 
check done on February 5, 1982? 

A. Yes. 

Q. It shows $10,000 in bad markers still 
outstanding at Bally's? 

A. Yes. 

Q. was he allowed to continue on credit after 
that information was obtained? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Can you explain that decision or can you 
exp'lain the failure to cut him off at that 
point? 

A. No, I can't. 

Q. Does he owe you any money? 

A. I believe it's, I 'rn not sure whether it's 
7,500 or $10,000. 

How "Junket Reps" Promote Credit for Their Customers 

Frank D. Deconzo' s cousin, Frank A., got a credit line of 
$5,000 at Golden Nugget, on the basis of a $2,500 credit line at 
Caesars and a personal checking account of no more than $400. The 
case of Frank A. explained the influence of so-called junket 
representatives in promoting credit for the patrons they bring to 
the casinos, as Jacobson noted during his testimony: 

Q. Is it correct that Frank A. 
subsequently granted a number 
again on the recommendation 
junket representatives. 

A. Yes. 

Deconzo was 
of increases 
of various 

Q. But nothing else about his financial 
information had changed as far as you know? 
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A. That's correct, yes. 

Q. Do any of these junket representatives make 
their representations to you personally? 

A. They all did. 

Q. What kind of information did they give you? 

A. Known to be good players, have always paid 
their gambling accounts despite what the 
bank information may have shown, because a 
lot of people don't carry a lot of money in 
their checking account. 

Q. And you took them at their word? 

A. I took them at their word because of their 
reputation with us. 

Q. How is a junket representative compensated? 
What's the scheme for how a junket 
representative gets paid? 

A. I heard based on the kind of activity of the 
individual player. 

Q. How much money is played by the people that 
he brings into the casino; is that correct? 

A. That's exactly what I meant by that, yes. 

Q. the advantage 
to have his 
credit? 

rsn' t it to 
representative 
high amounts of 

of the 
people 

junket 
issued 

A. To that extent it would, but also has a 
negative effect. 

Q. What's that? 

A. In that 
with us 
turn out 

a junket rep can 
if he recommends 
to be bad. 

lose credibility 
individuals who 

Got $15,000 Credit Despite Derogatory Information 

Berl Rotfeld obtained a $15,000 Golden Nugget credit line from 
Jacobson despite adverse reports on him from Las Vegas casinos, 
according to Jacobson: 

Q. You did a Central Credit check in this case 
that revealed that Mr. Rotfeld had a $5300 
write-off at Caesars, Bally's in Las Vegas 
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and a $1000 derogatory at the Puerto Rico 
Bally's Casino; is that correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did you give Mr. Rotfeld a line of credit in 
spite of that information? 

A. Yes, but prior -- just a moment. Prior to 
that, he had sent us a letter explaining 
that this was of a disputed nature. 

Q. He says to you, "You will ah,0 note that 
Many years ago there was a ~iublem at 
Caesars. However, this problem was created 
by a man signing my name to markers. Since 
that time the Las Vegas Hilton has checked 
into the matter and found that I was correct 
in my clai~ and thereby they established me 
for a line at the Las Vegas Hilton." 

Did you accept his explanation of the $5300 
problem at face value or did you check with 
Caesars in Las Vegas? 

A. 'ff/e knew what he had said was true as far as 
iilton giving hin, a credit. 

Q. 'ff/ould you look on the 
exhibii, please? In the 
is a clipping from 
information, handwritten 
see that? 

front page of the 
middle of the page 

Central Credit 
information. You 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does that indicate that somebody in your 
casino called Caesars direct to ask about 
this information? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does it say next to it, "Derog on original 
rundown correct. They have no further 
info"? 

A. Yes, that's correct. 

Q. Does that mean that Caesars does not confirm 
Mr. Rotfeld's explanation? 

A. Well, on face value it does, but there are 
many cases where you run into where an 
individual has derogatory information with a 
casino which is of a disputed nature, and 
casino will not have updated their files 
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and, therefore, we still have that old 
information. 

Q. So you didn't know whether or not the 
problem had been resolved at Caesars when 
you granted him credit; is that correct? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. How much credit did you give him? 

A. Initially $15,000. 

Q. Did you 
dollars 
Palace? 

make any 
derogatory 

check 
at 

on 
the 

the thousand 
Puerto Rico 

A. I don't believe we knew that at the time. 
I'm not sure. 

Q. Is there anythinq in this file that 
indicates that you checked with the Puerto 
Rico Palace to find out what the nature of 
that problem was? 

A. No, there isn't. 

Q. Mr. Rotfeld owe you any money today? 

A. Yes. 

Q. How much? 

A. $25,000. 

Details on Counterfeit Inquiry Withheld 

Vincent ,J. Bonafede and Andrew Amplo were known to the Golden 
Nugget as •gambling partners,• whose credit lines went as high as 
$25,000. Jacobson recalled cancelling their casino privileges: 

Q. Did there come a time when you found it 
necessary to cut off the credit of these two 
people? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When was that? 

A. October 12 of 1Q81. 

Q. Why did you cut off their credit? 
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A. There were reports that I received of abuse 
in their comp privileges and their balances 
were high, and in reflecting, I since found 
out that the comp privileges were rather 
excessive. 

They were running sales promotion programs 
in our rooms and inviting other people in 
using our facilities and whatever. 

Q. Is it correct that that memorandum (exhibit 
C-65) which is dated October 10, 1981, 
reports that Amp lo and B01,afede were 
suspected of possessing large umount of 
counterfeit s1on bills? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did this memorandum, the infor~ation 
contained in this memorandum play any role 
in cutting off their credit privileges on 
October 1 2? 

A. I did not see this memorandum. 

Q. Referring again to (exhibit) C-65, it says 
that credit executive, Bob Di Cesari, will 
act as intermediary in developing the 
information on Amp lo and Bonafede and the 
counterfeit bills. Does Bob Dicesare work 
for you? 

A. Yes, is one of the casino credit executives. 

Q. Would it be likely that Bob 
report to you that he was 
surveillance in developing 
bill case in the casino? 

A. He told me about it. 

OiCesari would 
working with 

a counterfeit 

Q. When did he tell you about it? 

A. Sometime thereafter.; 

Q. After the 13th? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So, at least three days went by before he 
reported it to you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You're his superior? 
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A. Yes. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: Did you fire him 
for not telling you the information before? 

THE WITNESS: No, I did not. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: 
thoughts on that? 

You had no second 

THE WITNESS: Under the circumstances, no. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: What circumstances? 
You think he's a good employee? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

The Commission questioned whether the Golden Nugget had 
informed other casinos of its actions against Ample and Bonafede. 
The testimony on this subject follows: 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: Isn't it true Mr. 
Ample and Mr. Bonafede, ,~ere, in fact, 
entertaining their customers, at your 
expense up in a suite that you were, not 
meaning you personally, but Golden Nugget 
was providing at no expense to them? 

THE WITNESS: That's the indication. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: l\nd they were, to 
say the least, embarrassing other customers 
in your restaurant by having somewhat of a 
large enough fight so the police had to be 
called? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, that would be true. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: Did you 
occasion to call another casino and 
questions about these two gentlemen? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

have 
ask 

COMMISSIONER PATTl'.:RSON: Was that not the 
Sands? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: Did you tell the 
Sands at that time that you cut them off 
from further credit, further comps? 

THE WITNESS: No. 
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COM/l!SSIONER PAT'l'ERSON: It Is obvious to me 
that for one reason or another important 
information is not disseminated within a 
casino and apparently is not given to other 
casinos. The attitude seems to be, oh, it's 
wonderful, our problems have gone to 
somebody else. 

Credit Practices at the Sands 

Don Wood, the next witness, testified about credit procedures 
as well as instances of misjudgment in credit disbursements at the 
Sands Hotel and Casino, where he had wrirked since March, 19B1. 
Wood, who was Director of Credit at the Sa~ns, previously had been 
a senior credit executive at Caesars and, before corning to Atlantic 
City, had worked in Las Vegas since 1963. Couns~l Coppola asked 
Wood to discuss the liaison, if any, among the casinos in 
connection with questions that might develop about individual 
credit applicants or gamblers: 

Q. Do you feel there's sufficient communication 
among the casinos in Atlantic City with 
respect to credit players? 

A. ro, sir, that is open for improvement. 

Q. find what's the problem? What is the 
specific area where there is a failure of 
9ornrnunication regarding credit players? 

A. Burn out, overextension of credit in some 
cases. 

Q. Is that a big problem in Atlantic City? 

A. Yes, sir, it it. 

THE CHAIRMAN: Let me ask you if at your 
casino your people find something derogatory 
about Mr. X, I understand you don't inform 
the other casinos in Atlantic City of that 
derogatory information on Mr. X; is that so? 

THE WITNESS: No, sir, because usually when 
we obtain that information it's via Central 
Credit and they should have that information 
as well as we have. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: Isn't it true that 
you suggested to your fellow casino people 
that they have a compatible computer system 
so that you could get instant credit infor­
mation more readily than you can now? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, that's true. 
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COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: 
off? 

Did that idea take 

THE WITNESS: No, sir, it didn't seem to go 
over real well. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: Why not? 

THE WITNESS: I th ink it had to do with the 
possibility of each casino divulging their 
players' confidentiality of records. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: Aren't you telling 
me that the casinos are reluctant to give 
information on their high rollers to other 
casinos for fear that the other casino will 
steal the high roller away from your casino 
or from another casino? 

THE WITNESS: It's not just the high roller, 
Mr. Patterson, it's just any customer, a 
$5,000 customer, a $10,000 customer. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: Isn't it parti-
cularly true with the high roll2ra? 

THE WITNESS: Sure, yes, yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: What I'm trying to 
do is paraphrase what you told me in Execu­
tive Session, which was that the problem in 
getting the casinos to work together is the 
competitive problem, the problem of not 
wanting to give away trade secrets. 

THE CHAIRMAN: Shouldn It there be a system 
where if you have derogatory information in 
any casino it ought to be reported in full 
to some central group or office and that 
central group and office have an absolute 
obligation to give that derogatory 
information instantly to all other casinos.· 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, that 
procedure now through Central 
although, it's not instantly. 

X X X 

is the 
Credit, 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSO!\J: The fact of the 
problem is that all of the information 
necessary to do the job is not being turned 
into the Central Credit Bureau. That's the 
problem. 
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THE WITNESS: We don't know what customers 
owe at other casinos is what we are getting 
at as being the problem. 

"Walking With Chips" 

Wood next reviewed the problem of "walking with 
meaning patrons who obtain chips on credit, make a show of 
and who then leave the table, cash in the chips and depart 
casino's money. 

Q. How big a problem is it in Atla~tic City? 

A. I think it's a serious problem. 

Q. Is that a method by which a credit fraud is 
carried out, the person actually leaves the 
casino with money that he received on credit 
and hasn't gambled with? 

A. Yes, sir, although some of the credit 
frauds, they did gamble, and they did lose 
the money. But for the most part, I'd say 
they try and walk out with it. 

Q. 

A. 

Can't your peopl~ on the floor 
game . stop tl1e credit player 
with chips? 

watching the 
fro,n walking 

We do, they try to notify us 
occurred, but they cannot 
individual and have him pay back 
at the table. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: Why not? 

that that 
stop the 
the marker 

THE WITNESS: Because the law doesn't allow 
it. If the law would allow that --

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: Do you favor a 
change in the law to allow patrons to pay 
off their credit debt right at the table? 

THE WITNESS: Absolutely ... Yes, sir, with 
any winnings or if they should happen to 
break even, man takes $ 1, 1)00 marker, if he 
should play for an hour, break even, he pavs 
the marker before he walks away from the 
table. 

A $40,000 Debtor 

chips," 
wagering 
with the 

Counsel Coppola next reviewed with wood a series of instances 
i.: which credit was inappropriately granted. The first case was 
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that of gambler Terry Frank, who wound up owing the Sands $40,000. 
The testimony, in part: 

Q. For your information, you may be aware of 
this, he also owes the Claridge 10,000 and 
also owes the Golden Nugget 2500. Now 
(referring to credit application) you'll 
notice some credit increases that you 
extended this man in December of 1981. On 
12-8 you bumped him from 20,000 to 30,000 on 
a T.T.O. or This Trip Only basis. On 12-9 
you moved him from 3(),000 to 35,00(). On 
12-10 up to 40,000. Can you tell us if you 
did a Central Credit check on that person 
during the course of those increases? 

A. I don't believe we did, no, sir. 

Q. Now, using your recollection of this man's 
play, would it be fair to say that this man 
was definitely burned out? 

A. In hindsight, yes, sir. 

Q. Overextended? 

A. Overextended. 

Q. One way to prevent overextension 
credit check at the time you 
increase; is that correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

is to do a 
grant the 

Q. Did you subsequently do a credit check on 
Mr. Frank? 

A. Not until a much later time. 

Q. And directing your attention to page three 
of the credit application, would that be 
February of 1982? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And at that time did you learn that he owed 
a substantial amount of money and that money 
was owing back in December when you gave him 
the increases. 

A. Yes, sir. 

Why was 
$40,000, 
activity 
keeping 

he given the increase from 20 to 
especially in light of his play 
at the sands, which showed he was 

a running balance? He was not 
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paying down his debt for a long perioj of 
time prior to December. 

A. At the time we just felt that this gentleman 
could afford it. He had played a substan­
tial amount of cash. Absolutelv, it was the 
wrong decision. But at the ti!lle we felt 
that he could handle it, afford it, and knew 
what he was doing. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: What assets does 
this man have that can lP3d you to 
reasonably expecting to recover any or let 
alone all of the $40,000? 

THE WITNESS: I don't know. 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

Q. Mr. wood, the Casino Hotel Association 
issued a press release a while ago, and in 
it stated that credit is a phenomenon of the 
upper-income people, and it goes on to say 
basically credit is extended to people we 
know who can pay back the debt based on what 
we know about their living expenses. 

Do you really ever know anything about 
someone's living expenses, what they need 
from week-to-week in order to sustain a 
certain standard of living? 

A. No, we did not qe~ into that. 

Q. Concerning your credit decision with respect 
to Mr. Frank, is it possible to look at the 
card and see what your reasoning was as of 
December 9, 1981? I mean do the regulations 
require you to put on the card why you are 
giving the man a certain amount of money? 

A. No, it does not require 
in-house policy, we're 
thought process down. 

that. However, 
now putting our 

Q. When did (it) go into effect to require you 
to put your thought process on the card? 

A. I would say four, five months ago. 

The next patron discussed with wood was Ellen Glickstein, who 
owes $31,400 to the Sands, $25,000 to Resorts, $7,500 to Playboy 
and $3,500 to the Claridge. The witness testified that this 
gambler w2s granted a credit increase to $40,000 on May 1, 1981, 
even after Central Credit reported, as noter! on her application 
card, that 9nly a week earlier her check for $6,000 had bounced at 
the Las Vegq1s Hilton. Wood was asked to explain why a large arnount 
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of credit was issued and increased under such circumstances: 

Q. Does the Sands have a policy now with re­
spect to the issuance of credit after 
receipt of derogatory information? 

A. Yes, sir, we do. 

Q. What's the policy? 

A. We generally do not give credit. 

Q. Generally, does that mean there are <"xceo­
tions? 

A. There are exceptions. 

Q. And is there a formal, written policy that 
designates under what situations the excep­
tion can take place? 

A. No, sir, there's not. 

Q. And my understanding of the regulations is 
that they don't address the problem of the 
extension of credit after derogatory infor­
mation? 

A. No, they don't. 

G~mbler Les Ickowics got a credit line at the Rands primarily 
because he was listed as having obtained credit at three Las Vegas 
casinos. Ickowics owes $50,000 to Atlantic City casinos, including 
$15,000 to the Sands which has been written off as uncollectible. 
The witness was questioned about this customer: 

Q. So, there was virtu;,lly no Central Credit 
history on this person? 

A. Doesn't appear to be; no, sir. 

Q. was a bank check done? 

A. Not at the time credit was approved. Well, 
there was a Central Credit report done, com­
pleted, which he did have credit and W'iS 

clear. 

Q. But you don't know how much; it could have 
been $100 at each one of those places? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. was credit extended basically on the fact 
that he had credit lines at three Las Vegas 
casinos? 
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A. It appears from what this photocopy shows 
that, yes, that was the reason. 

Gambler Tom LaGoumis got $2,500 credit despite judgments and 
liens against him of almost $20,000. However, Wood testified that 
at the time, in late 1981, the Sands never supplemented its Central 
Credit service by a further check with a retail credit bureau which 
could provide a non-casino credit history on a player. Wood's 
testimony: 

Q. 2400 is that how much he owes? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. You also have in front of you a copy of a 
Credit Bureau check marked C-110 for 
identification. Now, it shows that the man 
had a substantial amount of judgments 
against him prior to the ti~e that the Sands 
extended credit, and it also shows that 
there was a federal tax lien in an amount of 
$4400. The judgments total approximately 
$15,000. 

A. 

Now, this intormation, is that available to 
the Sands credi.t people before they extend 
credit to somebody? 

Yes, sir. 

Q. Now, was this information known to the 
credit executive at the time that he gave 
this person, LaGc•Jmis, credit? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. What would he have had to do in order to get 
the information? 

A. Run a Credit Bureau report. 

Q. How long does that take? 

A. It can take from a couple of minutes to 
whatever. Generally, they' re quite fast if 
we do it during normal business hours. 

Q. What was the Sands' policy back then with 
respect to doing Credit Bureau checks at the 
time or prior to the issuance of credit? 

A. we didn't use them. 

Q. was there a reason why they weren't used 
back then since they were available? 
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A. I think we just felt we didn't need it. 
Erroneously felt that way. 

Q, Doesn't the Credit Bureau show you or help 
you find out exactly what debts a person 
would owe outside of the casino industry? 

A, Yes, sir, they did. 

Q, Is it a policy now at the Sands? 

A. Absolutely, yes, sir. 

Q, And how long has that policy been in effect? 

THE CHAIRMAN: This new policy? 

THE WITNBSS: Yes, sir. It officially went 
into effect on January 24, 1983. "le had 
used it prior to that, but not necessarily 
on every card. Previous to that date we 
were using it when we felt it was needed. 

THE CHAIRMAN: Why in January of 
this new policy effected? What 
occasion for it? 

'83 
was 

was 
the 

THE WITNESS: Part of it is because of this 
investigation. Part of it is because our 
own learning process, and hindsight, we 
should have been using it from day one. 

Gambler Rick Toca, who owes $25,000 to the Sands, had a recorj 
that showed he got $25,000 credit at the Las Vegas Hilton -- but it 
didn't indicate what his gambling activity, if any, was after 
receiving the credit. He also had obtainerl a $15,000 credit line 
at Caesars in Las Vegas, in ,June, 1981, only a few months before 
the Sands gave him credit. Wood's testimony on Toca: 

Q. So there was 
generated by 
Vegas play? 

A. No. 

really 
looking 

no good 
at his 

play history 
Caesars, Las 

Q, So nothing good to rely on so far to extend 
this man credit? 

A. I wouldn't use the words it's "nothinq good" 
to extend him credit. I think the fact that 
the Hilton and Caesars choose to give him 
that kind of money shows it shouldn't be a 
totally erroneous decision. 
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Q. Why was this man given $25,000? 

A. Mr, Coppola, I can't answer that question. 
I don't know. I think I testified last time 
that a lot of times credit decisions are 
made because people do lose substantial 
amounts of cash which makes us think they 
can afford it. 

I don't 
or not. 
to me. 

know if that happened in this case 
It looks like a ridiculous decision 

What elso can I tell you? 

Matthew Wax, who was in his mid-20s, •::rs given credit by Wood 
largely because one of the Sand's vice presidents knew him as a 
lawyer and an entertainers' representative and as a gambler at Las 
Vegas. Wax owes the Sands $50,000, having been given credit by 
Wood despite an adverse credit-report. The witness's testimony on 
Wax: 

Q. Why wasn't his line taken away from him when 
your casino became aware of that derogatory 
information? 

A. I believe th~t we verified that was paid at 
Harrah's. 

Q. Is there anything on the card to show that? 

A. No, sir, no, sir. 

Q. There's a sticker on the 
"Owes 20,000 Playboy. 
collecting. Must see Don 

card and 
Having 

Wood." 

it says, 
trouble 

A. Right, and I had suspended his credit. 

Q. Did you reinstate his credit a few days 
after that? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. How much credit did you give him when you 
reinstated him? 

A. 30,000. 

Q. Why did you give him 30,000? 
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A; Why did I? I had called Playboy to see what 
the problem was, and Playboy stated that he 
had made a payment on one level, was told to 
go to another level to pick up his markers, 
and when he got there, they were not return­
ing to him the amount that he had paid, so 
he had a dispute with them going on. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: 
reason to reinstate his 
casino? 

How is that a 
credit at your 

THE WITNESS: Because I consulted with him, 
Mr. Greenberg, and those things do happen. 
Disputes do occur. 

Andrew Amplo and Vincent Bonafede, the same gamblers who 
received extensive credit privileges at Playboy despite their 
criminal records and otherwise unsavorv reputations, ~ere granted 
credit lines that ranged up to $100,000 each by Wooi. They wound 
up owing the Sands $110,000 each. Wood's testimony on these 
patrons: 

Q. Were these people allowed to gamble on 
credit after the bank account was closei or 
overdrawn? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q, Why was that? 

A. Mr. Coppola, I can't 
recall having seen the 
you the truth, but it 
know. 

tell you. 
bank report, 
was there. 

I don• t 
to tell 
I don't 

Q. Did you become -- these people qambled on 
credit for quite a long period of time at 
the Sands; correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Now, you have a surveillance department at 
the Sands; correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Did they ever make you aware of any deroga­
tory information with respect to these 
people? 

A. No, sir. 
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Q. Did you get any information from any other 
casino, let's say, the Golden Nugget, that 
these people were involved in counterfeiting 
or insurance frauds or scams or whatever? 

THE WITNESS, No, sir, I never heard those 
rumors regarding counterfeiting and 
insurance scams. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: Do you remember a 
telephone call from Mr. Norman Jacobson, the 
credit manager (at) the Golden Nugget on the 
subject of these two gentlemen,? You don't 
remember that he called you ar,d told you 
that they had been removed from credit­
standing at the Golden Nugget? 

THE WITNESS: I don't recall the conversa­
tion, sir. I very well may have spoken to 
him. If he says he did, I'm sure he did. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: I'm not really 
trying to find that out. I have a f eelinq 
that the information in the telephone call 
that was mad~ to you, and I am -- I think it 
was made to you, was not sufficient for you 
to have made ,,::y real judgment as to the 
background c.,f these two individuals. My 
point is and would be that there's very 
little interchange between casinos on 
derogatory information. 

THE WITNESS: 
yes. 

That I agree with you, sir, 

THE CHAIRMAN: Do you agree that reputed and 
known associates of organized crime should 
not have access to the casinos in Atlantic 
City? Seems to me absolutely imperative 
they not have it. 

THE WITNESS: Well, I think that no, they 
shouldn't. They certainly shouldn't qet 
credit. I don't think that if the state did 
not want them in there, give us their name, 
yes, sir, I agree with that, yes, sir. 

THE CHAIRMAN: Well, whatever the 
mechanisms, it seems to me that the casinos, 
the state, in it's various forms and 
agencies and so forth all should get 
together and exclude these people and do it 
very, very promptly. 

THE WITNESS: I agree with you, sir. 
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Examples of Credit Grants at Harrah's 

SCI counsel James A. Hart, III, questioned the next witness. 
He was David s. Krause, credit manager at Harrah's Marina Casino, 
with a staff of four credit executives and about a dozen clerical 
employees. Employed at Harrah's since November, 1980, Krause ha<l 
been a credit executive and a collection manager. Prior to 1980, 
he served eight years as a loan officer at a bank. Despite this 
experience, Krause was involved in a number of inappropriate credit 
decisions at Harrah's. Some of these misjudgments resulted from 
failure to verify credit application data and others reflected a 
tendency to ignore derogatory information and other danger signals 
about a gambler's credit worthiness. Indeed, little more than a 
recommendation by a "quality of work life" executive employed to 
promote morale among Harrah's workers led to the issuance of a 
$50,000 credit line to gambler Ibrahim Awailallah and 
subsequently a $50,000 debt. Counsel Hart questioned Krause about 
this patron: 

Q. That's Harrah's credit file of Mr. 
Awadallah? 

A. Yes, it is. 

Q. Did you extend ere/lit to Mr. Awadallah on 
September 8, 1981? 

A. 25,000. 

Q. Now, in front of that card, I direct your 
attention to an entry dated September 12, 
i 981. On that date did you increase his 
credit line by way of T.T.O. to the amount 
of $50,000? 

A. Yes, we did. 

Q. Coulil you tell us what a T.T.O. is, please? 

A. It's a This Trip Only increase. 

Q. How much does Mr. Awadallah presently owe to 
Harrah's? 

A. 50,000. 

Q. Was a 
issuing 
1981? 

Central Credit 
him credit on 

A. Yes, it was. 

check done 
September 

prior to 
the 8th, 

Q. And did that Central Credit check show any 
derogatory information? 

A. Yes, it dill. 
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Q. Did you do a bank check before you gave Mr. 
Awadallah credit? 

A. Yeah, we started on 9-8 of '81 doing bank 
check on him. 

Q. What did the bank information show? 

A. Said the date that it opened was 11-74, 
special checking, and anything else we had 
to obtain would be in writing. 

Q, So, in other words, the bank wouldn't rate 
the account over the phone? 

A, They would not go into any detail over the 
phone. 

Q. Which, in essence, I take it means the bank 
gave you very little information about his 
account? 

rt. Right. 

Q. You were in the banking business I think you 
said for some ei~ht years, Mr. Krause. What 
does a banker discern when he sees the words 
"special checking account"? 

A. Just an account with no high balances, 
nominal balances. 

Q. Normally such a1 account would have a 
nominal balance? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did you get any banking information by way 
of Central Credit in Mr. Awadallah's case? 

A. Yes, we did. 

Q. What was that information? 

A. That number one was a personal account with 
a high, I believe it to be a high five, 
seven-year account •.• Riqh five numbers from 
75,000 to $99,999, 

Q. That bank information which was obtained by 
way of Central Credit came out of Resorts 
International; isn't that correct? 

A. Yes, it did. 
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Q. And Resorts International, notwithstanding 
the fact that they knew he had such an 
account, denied him credit? 

A. Yes, they did. 

Q. Was a CBA (Credit Bureau Associates) check 
done on Mr. Awadallah prior to extending him 
credit? 

A. Yes, it was. 

Q. And what did the CBA check show concerning 
Mr. Awadallah's credit history? 

A. We put it in the system and it came back 
with the same address as we had, and I think 
he had a couple accounts with Equitable 
Trust Company, TWA, United and had 
judgments in the Supreme Court -- judgment 
which was satisfied. 

Q. The two accounts that you mentioned with the 
Equitable Trust Company, these were loan 
accounts, were they not, wherebv Mr. 
Awadallah was indebted to that bank or that 
trust company for $25,000 on each loan? 

A. Yes, that's the information we have. 

Q. And the outstanding balances on those loans 
were shown as what on your CBA report? 

A. 23,384 and 23,784. 

Q. So, at the time 
Harrah's he had 
debt owing to the 

A. Yes. 

he applied for credit at 
approxi~ately $47,000 in 
Equitable Trust Company? 

X X X 

Q. Are there any substantive reasons upon which 
credit was extended to Mr. Awadallah? 

A. Well, he was in -- one of the executives of 
Harrah's knew the individual as a player 
and, you know, said that he was a good 
player so forth and so on, that he knew him 
from London, from Atlantic City as a good 
player. 

Q. Who was this executive from Harrah's? 

A. Martin Dryer. 
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Q. What was his position with Harrah's? 

A. At that time I don't remember. I think he 
was, I think he was what we call the quality 
of work life program for credit executives 
at that time. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: What's a quality of 
life executive do at Harrah's? 

THE WITNESS: It's basically a position for 
the morale of the employees, the interfaces 
between different departmen~s to get 
communications established. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: And he's the one 
that recommended Mr. Awadallah to you as a 
credit manager, sir? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: Isn't it a fact, 
Mr. Krause, that your casino and all the 
other casinos in Atlantic City are anxious 
to attract t-he high rolling Arabs t:::, the 
casinos to gamble in their enterprises down 
there? 

THE WITNESS: Well, we would like to. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: That's right. And 
Mr. Awadallah was in that category, at that 
time, is that right, Mr. Krause? 

THE WITNESS: I believe so. 

BY MR. HART: 

Q. If I can summarize then what you're saying, 
if I'm correct, is you extended this credit 
to Mr. Awadallah in the amount of $50,000 
based upon the fact that he was introduced 
to you by Martin Dryer, based upon the fact 
that he had at least had bank accounts, 
notwithstanding that the banks wouldn't tell 
you the status of those accounts and the 
fact that he had a credit history at 
Bally's; is that correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And that credit was extended notwithstanding 
the facts that Mr. Awadallah had a $15,000 
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debt written off by Caesars, Bally's in 
January of 1981; he had $3400 in markers 
returned for insufficient funds at a second 
casino; he had been denied credit at Resorts 
in February of 1981 due to returned markers 
at other clubs; he had been denied credit at 
the MGM due to returned markers in London; 
he had a $250 write-off at the Sands Casino 
which he eventually paid as you testified 
to. 

He currently owed Bally's $25,000, which 
debt was incurred within one week prior to 
coming to Harrah's. The high five figure 
bank account information he received from 
Resorts wasn't sufficient for that house to 
extend credit to him and you also knew that 
Mr. Awadallah presently owed some $47,000 to 
the Equitable Trust Company. 

1\.11 those facts notwithstandinq you issuen 
him credit; is that correct? 

A.. Yes .. 

MR. HART: Commissioner Greenberg, in 
response to your inquiry before, I have some 
information on Mr. Awadallah' s present 
status, and that information is that he is 
currently under indictment in Federal 
District Court in Washington, D.C. for some 
33 counts of aiding and abetting bank 
embezzlement to the tune of some $3.2 
million. 

An "in-transit" in casino parlance is a report obtained from 
Central Credit showing the current status of a gambler at every 
casino at which he or she has a credit account. When gambler 
Vincent Regina was extended $5,000 in July 29, 1981, it was basc>d 
largely on an "in-transit" report of a 1200 credit limit at the Las 
Vegas Hilton in 1977 that Krause said "was paid and was clear." By 
the end of 1981, Regina owed Harrah's more than $36,000. On March 
6, 198?., another "in transit" was requested and this report 
showed that Regina was in debt to the extent of more t~an $52,000 
at other casinos and that he also used the name of Vincent Cheur. 
Indeed, the name Cheur was written on Regina's credit application 
and then crossed out. Despite these warnings of potential credit 
problems, Harrah's continued to issue markers to Regina. Krause 
testified, in part: 

Q. What about on March the 6th of 1982, was an 
intransit conducted on that date? 

A. Yes, it was. 
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to which other .l\tlantic 
Mr. Regina owe on that 

A. He owed the Sands, he had a line of 2500; 
Claridge was 35,000; Playboy was 15,000. 

Q. So that's approximately $50,000, $52,000;' 
is that correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did you learn anything derog~t0~y about Mr. 
Regina on March the 30, 1982? ')oes your 
card show a $15,000 N.S.F. non-sufficient 
funds at Playboy, check returner'! for 
non-sufficient funds? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Mr. Regina was permitted to 
from Harrah's after you knew 
$15,000 check returned to 
N.S.F., isn't that correct? 

draw markers 
he had that 
Playboy for 

A. Yes. 

Q. In fact, he drew on 
second $2500, $3,000 
$11,500 on March the 
you had the derogatory 

A. 2500, 2500, 3000, 3500. 

March 31, $2500, a 
and $3,500 totalling 
31st which was after 
information; riqht? 

Q. Why was he permitted to extend his credit by 
another $11,500 when you knew he had written 
a $15,000 N.S.F. to Playboy in Atlantic 
City? 

A. We don't know what the circumstances were 
r'lown at Playboy, why it was N.S.F. or what 
the problems were with them, whether he was 
trying to work it out, and he had alwavs 
paid us and we had no problem with hi~. 

Q. Did you make any efforts to check with 
Playboy to see what the situation was, why 
he had that returned marker? 

A. I didn't. 

Q. And as of today, Mr. Regina still owes 
Harrah's $36,500; isn't that correct? 

A. Yeah. 
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Albert Tumbiolo, a reputed organized crime figure, was granted 
credit extensions to as high as $75,000 by Harrah's despite rep6rts 
from Central Credit that a $10,000 marker bounced at r,as Vegas' 
MGM, and a $20,000 marker bounced at Las Vegas' Dunes, which also 
wrote off a $2,000 debt. And, according to Harrah's credit manager 
Krause, credit privileges were continued for Tumbiolo even after a 
newspaper story described him as an "alleged mobster" with a 
criminal record. Only two weeks before Krause raised Tumbiolo' s 
credit line to $.50,000, in August, 1981, an "in-transit" report 
showed that he was in debt to the Playboy casino for $110,000. 
Krause's testimony on this customer follows: 

Q. In view of the information you received from 
Central Credit, why did you give this man 
credit at your casino? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Well, we did a bank check, did the 
intransit. Central had found out he had 
medium five figures in his accounts... He 
had the ability to pay the debt back. 
Basically, that was it. 

He obviously didn't use the money in that 
account to pay his $30,000 in debts to MGM 
and Dunes, did he? 

Right. 

Do you recall testifying in Executive 
Session before this Commission and stating 
that an additional reason that he was 
extended credit was because all the 
derogatory information was from the Nevada 
casinos as opposed to Atlantic City casinos? 

Yes. 

Could you tell me what difference does that 
make? 

A. Well, Nevada gaming laws are not as strict 
or they're not regulated as much as the 
State of New Jersey. Our policies and 
procedures and regulations here in the State 
of New Jersey are much more --

Q. Notwithstanding the difference in 
regulations, if an individual 

l,. We don't know what all the circumstances 
were in Nevada, why they were written off. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: The question you 
were asked, in view of that derogatory 
information from Nevada, was why extend him 
credit in New Jersey? What's the answer to 
that? 
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THE WI'T'NESS: We don't know why he harl the 
write-offs in Nevada, and what I tried to 
explain earlier, Mr. Commissioner, was 
Nevada has different gaming regulations than 
we do in the State of New Jersey. Now, 
there may have been reasons why they were 
written off. I don't know what his play was 
in Nevada. I don't know what kind of action 
he gave the casinos out there. I don't 
know. 

BY MR. HART: 

Q. But if an individual doesn't pay his casino 
debts, whether they be Nevada, New Jersey, 
Bahamas or England, I don't understand what 
difference that makes. If the guy is a 
deadbeat he's a deadbeat, is he not? 

A. I can't answer that question, if the guy is 
a deadbeat. 

Q. Mr. Krause, would you look at what's been 
marked as Commission Exhibit C-68 which is a 
news article dated December 16, 1981 out of 
the Atlantic City Press? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you familiar with that article? 

A. Yes, I seen it before. 

Q. Amongst other things, that article deals 
with Mr. Tul'lbiolo having a 1 uncheon or a 
luncheon meeting with a Bally's casino 
executive. The article is entitled, "State 
Probes Bally Exec's Lunch .with Alleged 
Mobster". 

A. Yeah. 

Q. And the contents of the article set forth 
Mr. Tumbiolo's arrest record for such crimes 
as armed robbery, resisting arrest, 
disorderly conduct and violation of parole 
is that a fair and accurate representation 
of the contents of that article, sir? 

A. That's what is said. 

Q. Did the contents of that article have any 
bearing on whether or not Mr. Tumbiolo 
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continued to receive credit at Harrah's 
Casino? 

A. Well, that wasn't my decision to make, that 
would have to come from someone higher than 
me if his credit line was to be closed. 

Q. After the the appearance of that article in 
the newspaper, did someone higher than you, 
that is one of your superiors tell you to 
close Mr. Tumbiolo's credit line? 

A. No, they did not. 

Q. Was Mr. Tumbiolo extended credit after the 
appearance of that article in the Atlantic 
City Press? 

A. Yes, it appears to me that he was. 

Q. Mr. Rrause, would you look. at Exhibit No. 
C-69, the second page of that exhibit which 
is taken from Harrah's collection file on 
this particular patron? Now, the second 
page I'm referring to is a letter, is it 
not? And the letter is dated October the B, 
1 982? 

A. Yes, it is. 

Q. Addressed to Mr. Albert Tumhiolo from Jack 
Coyle, casino collection manager; is that 
correct? 

A. Yes, it is. 

Q. He's in charge of collecting bad debts that 
the casino has incurred; is that correct? 

A.. Yes, he is .. 

Can 
the 

you sLUnmarize for the Commission 
con•:ents of that letter are, sir? 

what 

A. Looks 1 ike, the content looks 1 ike repayment 
schedule to pay back the debt to Harrah's. 

Q. would you read, please, into the record, the 
fourth paragraph of that record? 

A. "We value you as a customer and we hope that 
in the not too distant future the situation 
works itself out and we can welcome you down 
as our guest again.'' 
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Q, Mr. Krause, at the present time, Mr. 
Tumbiolo still owes Harrah's $71,500; right? 

A. I don't know. 

Q. You don't have that information? 

A. I don't have that information. 

The credit record of gambler Stephen Vermiglio at Harrah's was 
a graphic example of how the carelessness with which credit 
privileges are extended throughout the casino industry in Atlantic 
City can lead to scams and other fri:ud;::. Between February and 
July, 1982, Vermiglio was granted a credit line that ultimately 
reached the $50,000 mark, which is what he wound up owing 
Harrah's. Krause conceded that this incident would not have 
occured had statements on Vermiglio's credit application been 
verified. Krause's testimony continued: 

Q. Did Mr. Vermiglio use a driver's license for 
identification purposes when he applied for 
credit? 

A. Yes, he did. 

Q. I would like you to look please at Exhibit 
C-71 which is Rarrah's collection file to 
Mr. Vermiglio? The next to the last page of 
that exhibit is a document with the heading 
"Stephen vermig lio locate for credit 
collection," do you see that document? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Would you read the first full paragraph into 
the record, please? 

A. "A check on an above driver's license 
reveals that the license is a· bad number. 
All Connecticut driver's licenses have a 
letter of the alphahet before the number," 
before they give a number. 

Q. That's a Connecticut driver's license? 

A. Connecticut driver's license. 

Q. There is no letter preceeding that number, 
is there? 

A. I don't see one. 

Q. You earlier testified todav that you have a 
book in the cage which would enable the 
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cashier or the credit executive to determine 
whether or not a license has been submitted 
is valid because of the characteristic of 
the numbers contained in the driver's 
license number; isn't that correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. That check with that book obviously wasn't 
done in this case, was it? 

A. I don't believe it was. You know, I don't 
know who did the check or what the situation 
was .. 

Q. Well, if it had been done, the cashier or 
the credit executive would have realized 
that something was wrong with the number, it 
had no letter preceeding it, and if it had 
been done, Harrah's wouldn't be out some 
$50,000 today; isn't that correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Mr. Krause, on March the 3, 1982 a bullet 
hole was found on the inside window of this 
patron's room at Harrah's. In addition to 
that, the bullet itself was found between 
the outside window and the inside window; 
and thirdly, a spent casing, a shell was 
found inside his room. Were you aware of 
that information? 

A. I heard something about it. 

Q. Didn't it occur to you that perhaps Mr. 

A. 

Vermiglio might be the kind of a person 
whose credit transaction with your casino 
should be very carefully scrutinized? 

I don't know what all 
around the incident 
decision to make, 
management. 

the circumstances were 
and it is not my 
that'b from hiqher 

Q. But the incident occurred in your hotel? 

A. Yes, it did. 

Q. Mr. Vermiglio continued to play at the 
casino after that incident, didn't he? 

A. March 3, yes, he did. 
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"Walking With Chips• and ·Rolling Markers" 

The case of credit gambler Thomas w. Reid illustrated other 
misjudgments by casinos that increased the potential for gaming 
frauds, Counsel Hart discussed this case with the next witness, 
Charles R. Judick, a credit executive at Harrah's. Judick's 
testimony described how a gambler can build up a credit record by 
"rolling markers," a practice that first requires a player to leave 
the gaming table with chips he obtained on credit, i.e., walking 
with chips. Reid's qaming record was such, initially, that he 
eventually received a credit line of $50,000 -- but he wound up 
leaving behind at Harrah's a debt of $80,000. At the outset, 
according to Judick, the casino failed tc question a vital omission 
on Reid's credit application: 

Q. Is that Harrah's credit file on Mr. Reid? 

A. It appears to be. 

Q. When did he apply to Harrah's for credit, 
Mr. ,,udick? 

A. Appears to be February 1981. 

Q. Can you tell me whether or not he gambled 
alone or did ne gamble in conjunction with 
other persons? 

A. He was always a loner. He came in alone. 

Q. What did he do for a living? 

A. This is speculation. I do not know. 

Q. Well, what is your speculation as to what he 
did for a living? 

A. There was talk that he was a stoc1<broker, 
that he was a land investor in Florida, that 
he owned a liner, that he was buil1ing a 
gambling ship to travel to the islands. 
That's all I know. 

Q. Let me ask you this, sir: What employment 
did he list on his credit application? 

A. None. 

Q. When you say "none," do you mean he wrote in 
the word "none" or do you mean that the 
section of the application for employment 
was left blank? 

A. It was blank. 

Q. What does the phrase rolling markers mean? 
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A. Rolling markers means if you have a marker 
due today you'll come in either today or 
yesterday or very close to the due date, 
take out a new marker and pay off the old 
one~ 

Q. Did you ever determine that Thomas Reid was 
rolling markers in your casino? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. 'rhat would have been the summer of '82? 

A. Correct.. 

Q. How did you determine he was rollin1 
markers? 

A. As a creilit executive, we go through the 
screenings, through the computer screens and 
check on our major players' play and follow 
them, and when you see something such as 
this, we see high action and so forth, then, 
you act accordingly, and this was how it 
was. 

Q. What is it you saw concerning Mr. Reid? 

A. Taking in markers and paying off markers. 

Q. What did you do upon making this observation 
to the computer screen that led you to 
believe that Mr. Reid was rolling markers? 

A. Phoned it in to a superior. 

Q. And what did your superior tell you to do? 

A. Cut i1r. Reid off. 

Q. Did you do so? 

But, as Judick's testimony indicated, no for~al mechanism 
existed so that one casino could benefit from another: casino's 
adverse cre0it experiences. l\E a result, f-larrah 1 s didn't know 
until too late, that Reid had "walked" with $30,000 in chips from 
Playbc)y andr conve:cs1.:,ly, it would have been unlikely that 0ther 
casino:~ wou1(1 get timEc:J.y not.ice of Reidts conduct at Harrah's~ 
J11dick tt1 .1tified= 

() What do you know about Mr. J:l.e id other than 
that which ap:)ears on his credit 
application, Mr. Judick? 
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A. Not very much to be perfectly honest. 

Q. Do you recall giving a description of Mr. 

A. 

Reid to this Commission in Executive 
Session, you characterized him in a certain 
manner? 

I characterized him, 
picked it up, and I 
man. 

because Mr. Greenberg 
called him a mystery 

Q. What about him led you to call him a mystery 
man? 

A. That's a personal phrase that I have of my 
own. It's someone that you don't know 
anything about, you only hear rumors about, 
they come in alone, they stay alone and so 
forth. To me, that's a mystery person. 

Q. Was he treated as any hiqh roller would be? 

"·. Oh, certainly. 

Q. He was comped in various fashions; is that 
correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. would you look at Exhibit C-75, Mr. Judick, 
please which is Harrah's collection file on 
Mr. Reid. On the first page under the date 
of September the 3, 1982, would you state 
for this Commission what's reported there? 

A. "Called Playboy and spoke to Dan Watson. 
Customer has home in Texas. Customer walke~ 
with $80,000 in chips. Told them to sue 
him. He has no money." 

Q. That information from Playboy's came to 
Harrah's after Mr. Reid went bad on his 
markers at Harrah's; isn't that correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Now, at or about the time that Mr. Reid 
walked with $80,000 in chips from Playboy, 
whenever that was, did Playboy notify 
Harrah's of that fact? 

A. I'm not aware that they did. 

Q. There's nothing contained in the file that 
that was done; is there? 
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A. No. 

Q. Would your knowledge that a patron had 
walked with $80,000 in chips from a sister 
Atlantic City casino have any bearing upon 
your decision whether or not to grant credit 
to that person when he came to Barrah's? 

A. Certainly. 

Q. What type of bearing would it have? 

A. Negative. 

Q. Wouldn't your job as a credit executive be 
easier if all the casinos were required to 
notify either Central Credit or their sister 
casinos of such information as a patron 
walking chips or rolling markers; wouldn't 
that make your Job easier? 

A. Yes~ 

Q. Wouldn't it al:30 help to avoid 
problems such ac· •' you have with Mr. 

A. It would he a big help, yeah. 

Clifford Nordquist, another credit 
Harrah's by Judick, owes the casino $10,000, 
been avoided had he been checked properly. 
Nordquist: 

Q. What is a bucket? 

bad debt 
Reid? 

gambler processed at 
a debt that might have 
Judick's testimony on 

A bucket is an envelope that holds 
and on the outside is a record 
transaction.s. 

markers 
of the 

Q. In Mr. Nordquist's case the 
that he gambled on crerlit on 
1981; J.s that correct? 

A. Un-l1ui1, yes, sir. 

bucket shows 
May the 1 9, 

Q. What was his balance? What was the balance 
owed to Harrah's as of May the 19, 1981? 

Ad Looks as though it was zero~ 

o. When did Mr. Nordquist next draw a marker at 
Harrah's after May the 19, 1981? 
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A. It was Pebruary 21, '82, sir. 

Q. That was some ten months after his last 
credit transaction 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. when Mr. Nordquist returned to Harrah's 
in February of 1982 and was extended $10,000 
in credit on that date; right? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Was a Central Credit check or a ~ank check 
done at that time? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Well, prudent credit practice would dictate 
that such checks be done, wouldn't it, after 
a ten month delay? 

A. Normally. 

Q. Why was it n0t done in this case? 

A. I don't know. 

Credit Misjudgments at the Claridge 

The next witness, Elizabeth Ann Empson, wh0 had work">d in 
various Las Vegas casinos since 1966, became credit manager at the 
Claridge casino in Atlantic City in 1980. SCI counsel Paul 
Amitrani reviewed with Mrs. Bmpson a series of credit decisions she 
was involved in that created collection problems foe the Claridge, 
as follows: 

Gambler Paul Zaccaria, Owes $25,000 

Q. In spite of the fact that the patron had 
only $500 in his bank account, in spite of 
the fact that he had $135,000 in debts 
outstanding to other casinos, he was issued 
$25,000 in credit at the Claridge? 

A. He was, in fact, issued the money. 

Q. And how much does he currently owe the 
Claridge? 

A. $25,000. 

THE CHAIRMAN: Lieutenant Colonel Dintino 
yesterday testified that Zaccaria is a 
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member of the Gambino crime family and in 
June, '74, he was indicted, not convicted in 
this record, but indicted of conspiracy 
charges for his role in defrauding an Essex 
County bank of $400,000. His criminal 
record reflects arrests for gambling dating 
back to 1951). Did you have any of this 
information at: the time that you extended 
credit to this man? 

THE WITNBSS: 
knowledge. 

Nor sir 1 I had no such 

THE CHAIRMAN: And your security force did 
not provlrle you with such information? 

THE WITNESS: It is not their responsibility 
to seek out any sucti connections on an 
individual withotJt cause, sir. 

THE CHAIRMAN: Whose responsibility miqht it 
be, if you know? 

THE WITNESS: I cannot answer that, sir. 

THE: CHAIRMAN: You should bave that type of 
information, 3nybody in your position, don't 
you a-3ree? 

THE WITNESS: I would cert2inly appreciate 
iL 

THE CHAPU1A'J: The ,1uestion is, h•'.)W do we 
get there? I'm not asking you. It's a 
rhetorical quest ion. It seems to me it 
ought to get the1e pretty soon, however it's 
done, that everybody ought to be in agree­
ment on that and put it in effect, not three 
years from now or ten years from now, but 
maybe even next month would be great. Don't 
you agree? 

It would be most helpful. 

X X X 

GambJ.er Louis Cohen Owes 35 oon 

Q. Bven though Mr. 
judgments and a 
'.1e was issued 
credit line, of 

Cohen ha11 S8700 
hank account of 
a credit line, 
$2'>,000? 

in liens and 
only $5000, 
an initial 

A. That is correct, sir. My primary criteria 
1s looking at othE,r casino action and his-
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tory. He had qone to 211,noo before at 
Caesars Boardwalk Regency, which he had in 
fact paid back. I had indication from our 
casino personnel that he had played the 
money. This criteria comes into my decision 
because I must maximize revenue via issuing 
credit when I have a basis for doing so. 

Q. How about the fact that he had $8700 out­
standing to county and Federal governments? 

A. That criteria, when you are looking at a 
casino credit patron, must he taken in 
perspective. The casino player is a unique 
individual in that a ga~ing debt has a 
degree of honor. In most cases that will be 
taken care of before, say, another obl iga­
tion because he desires to continue to play 
and remain in play. 

Q. You mean he'd rather pay off a casino and 
keep current with the casino then to pay off 
governments? 

A. That is corr<>ct, that is what I'm saying, 
sir. 

Q. He was then extended credit up to $35,000. 
Correct? 

A. That is correct, sir. 

Q. And what does Mr. Cohen currently owe the 
Claridge? 

A. He is delinquent for the amount of the 
35,000. 

X X X 

Gambler Gerry Felberbaum of Canada 

Q. Mr. Pelberbaum was given a credit line of 
$3500 on November 14th of 1981? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And Mr. Felberbaum is a Canadian resident? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. To your knowledge, is there any increased 
length of time that it takes for Canadian 
checks to clear as opposed to American 
checks? 
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A. Tt can. It can do so. 

Q. Significantly more, if you know? 

A. It can vary, of course, depending on the 
Canadian bank, but it does take longer. 

Q. All right. Now, Mr. Felberbaum had a credit 
line of $3500. Correct? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. But he ended up owing th<? Cl,irirlcie $6500. 
Correct? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. Could you explain 
man with a cre,'·lit 
owinc1 $6SOO? 

to the 
linr:-

Comn1is.si.on how 
of S3SOO ended 

a 
up 

A. This was initially ,ifter oµeninq, a few 
months afterward::-:~ Our proce,-=1.ures at that 
time, we deposited Canadian checks 
directly. We rlid not send them on a 
collect.ton hctsi:;Q Becau:;e we deposited 
directly, our 1.~omput<?r system treats a 
deposit, it's held against a patron's 
account for 14 bankin9 days in the 
computer. Mr. Felberbaum's 3500 had cleared 
the computer making another amount of credit 
available to him, which he drew. It so 
happenerl both items were returned to us 
because of the delay time in clearing the 
Canadian bank. 

We have since changed to make sure all 
Canadian checks are sent on a collection 
basis, and with this procedure a collection 
check cannot be reavailable to a patron till 
we've been notified of payment of our bank. 

X X X 

Application Questioned, Still Got Credit 

A gambler who identified himself as Nicholas Aiello was given 
$5,000 credit by Mrs. Empson on October 19, 1981. A subsequent 
verification effort resulted in the letters "UNK" -- for "unknown" 
-- being written next to his purported name and address. Counsel 
A.'llitrani dlso questioned the witness about the applicant's listing 
of his birth date as his wedding date. The testimony: 
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Q. woul<i you not havE' consider,ed the confusion 
in dates along with the oUier unconfirmed 
information some type of a flag or warning 
that this should be checked out a little 
further? 

A. Yes. Th is was a card that, once I became 
aware of it, I cut the credit off, I 
believe, two days later on Mr. Aiello. It 
was a poor decision. There's no question 
about this. There was information qiven to 
us as noted on the card r igh c after the 
issuance. 

Q. All right. The issuance of credit was on 
October 19th of 1981? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. And you had gotten a 
Associates) report as 
1981. Correct? 

CBA (Cre<iit Bureau 
of October 17th of 

A. 17th, that is correct. 

Q. Now, there are ss~e handwritten notations on 
that presumably by a Claridge employee 
pointing out the fact that there is a dis­
crepancy in the home address and business 
address. Correct? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. All right. So even before credit was issue,d 
you had information that there were problems 
concerning addresses here. Correct? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. All right. Is there 
individual was ev~r 
these discrepancies 
credit? 

any notation that the 
questioned concerning 
before he qot the 

A. I find nothing on the card to that effect, 
sir. 

COMMISSIONER PAT'rERSON: And he still owes 
you $5000. Is that right? 

THE WITNESS: That is correct, .5000. Once I 
became familiar with this card and reviewed 
it, this was a pc,or decision. The executive 
who made the decision is no lonqer in my 
department and it was cut off, as a matter 
of fact, the next day. 
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BY MR. AMITRANI: 

Q. All right. Mrs. Empson, did you subse­
quently come to learn even after the patron 
was cut off, and this is from your collec­
tion file portion of the exhibit, that this 
defendant was, in fact, arrested at the 
Tropicana Hotel? I believe the elate would 
be January 12th of 1982. 

A. I believe Loretta t'/alker, the collection 
manager, shared this information with me on 
an after-the-f~ct basis, yes~ 

Q. And he was anested at the Tropic,ana for 
theft-by-deception charges? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. Was there any indication of what name he was 
usiny ~t thP Tr~·>picana when he was arrested? 

A. No, sir ... I'm ncJt aware of it, sir. 

X X X 

Credit Patron's Co1111sion With a Bank F:mployee 

Leonard Lipschutz was given S15,000 credit at the 
based, in part, "on a favorable bank statement received 
various banks'' that he listed on his credit application. 
debt resulted. Mrs. Empson's testimony: 

Q. Can I direct your attention to a notation 
dated December 10th of 1982 under credit 
comments and could you read that in to the 
record for us? 

A. Yes, I will. This was, again, information 
received after the fact. The man was 
delinquent with us at this time. The credit 
was closed. Th is information was receiver! 
later. 

"Received phone call fro~ Central Credit 
regarding Dr. Lipschutz. F. B. I. called 
Central Credit and gave them information 
that Dr. Lipschutz is working with a person 
at Fidelity Bank and Industrial Valley Bank 
to give inaccurate information regarding his 
credit at banks." 

As I said, if I had this before, he would 
not have received the credit •.. 

Claridge 
from the 

A 515,000 
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He did, in fact, durinq the course of his 
credit with us draw $91,500 and paid it back 
prior to the delinquent 15,000, 

X X X 

Gambler John Bertino Walked With Chips? 

Q, Do you consider walkinq with chips a 
problem? 

A, Yes, sir. 

Q. Now, we have had some testimony about that 
and I'm not going to get into that right now 
with you, but it's an abuse of the credit 
system. Right? 

A, That is correct. 

Q. All right. In view of the fact that Mr. 
Bertino had a nominal bank balance, he had 
debts outstanding of $70,000 and he had this 
information that he had possibly abused the 
credit system by walking with chips, he was 
still given $25,000 in credit. Correct? 

A. That is correct. As I said, I looked at the 
high action that he had paid back before, 
and that 5000 walking, I couldn't confirm 
that it's necessarily a derogatorv. There's 
enough question to go ahead and not make a 
business judgment. 

X X X 

Albert Tumbiolo, "High Roller" 

Q. He was considered a high roller? 

A. He was, sir. 

Q. The Claridge wanted his business? 

A. That was my indication, sir, yes. 

Q, Now, his final credit extension, I believe, 
was on October 14th of 1981? 

A, Correct, November 14th, '81. 

Q, And at that time the Claridge did an 
in transit check with the other casinos. 
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Correct? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. And that showed at Bally he owed $100,000? 

A. I know it was a substantial sum. I 
found that piece of information yet. 
must agree that that is correct. 

haven't 
Rut I 

Q. All right. 
$100,000? 

And at the Sands he owed 

A. That is correct. 

Q. And at Harrah's he owed how much? 

A. Okay. 50,000. 

Q. And at Playboy? 

A. 125,000. 

Q. So he owed 375,000 at the other casinos in 
Atlantic City? 

A. That is correct, sir. 

Q. And there had been no further upnate on his 
bank information wherein you learned that he 
had $1500 in his bank account? 

A. That is correct. He came in on a regular 
basis and paid markers with cash. 

Q. And the Claridge extenden him s100,ooo 
credit? 

A. That is correct, sir. 

Q. How much does he finally owe the Claridge? 

A. 100,000. 

Statement by Claridge Witness 

Mrs. Empson read a statement into the hearing record which she 
said expressed her feelings "and that of the company I represent." 

She declared that because the "basic thrust" of casino regula­
tions is directed at casino operators, "New Jersey presents oppor­
tunities for the gaming patron to take advantage of the casino 
operator." The industry, she said, consists primarily of publicly 
traded corporations with substantial investments and enough matur­
ity to be allowed "greater flexibility in how it can manage and 
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He did, in fact, durinq the course of his 
credit with us draw $91,500 and paid it back 
prior to the delinquent 15,000. 

X X X 

Gambler John Bertino Walked With Chips? 

Q. Do you consider walkinq with chips a 
problem? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Now, we have had some testimony about that 
and I'm not going to get into that right now 
with you; but it's an abuse of the credit 
system. Right? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. All right. In view of the fact that Mr. 
Bertino had a nominal bank balance, he had 
debts outstanding of $70,000 and he had this 
information that he had possibly abused the 
credit system by walking with chips, he was 
still given $25,000 in credit. Correct? 

A. That is correct. As I said, I looked at the 
high action that he had paid back before, 
and that 5000 walking, I couldn't confirm 
that it's necessarily a derogatorv. There's 
enough question to go ahead and not make a 
business judgment. 

X X X 

Albert Tumbiolo, "High Roller" 

Q. He was considered a high roller? 

A. He was, sir. 

Q. The Claridge wanted his business? 

A. That was my indication, sir, yes. 

Q. Now, his final credit extension, I believe, 
was on October 14th of 1981? 

A. Correct, November 14th, '81. 

Q. And 
in 

at that time the 
transit check with 

Claridge 
the other 

<'lid an 
casinos. 
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Correct? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. And that showed at Bally he owed $100,000? 

A. I know it was a substantial sum. I 
found that piece of information yet. 
must agree that that is correct. 

haven't 
Aut I 

Q. All right. 
$100,000? 

And at the Sands he owed 

A. That is correct. 

Q. And at Harrah's he owed how much? 

A. Okay. 50,000. 

Q. And at Playboy? 

A. 125,000. 

Q. So he owed 375,000 at the other casinos in 
Atlantic City? 

A. That is correct, sir. 

Q. And there had been no further update on his 
bank information wherein you learned that he 
had $1500 in his bank account? 

A. That is correct. He came in on a reqular 
basis and paid markers with cash. 

Q. And the Claridge extended him s100,ooo 
credit? 

A. That is correct, sir. 

Q. How much does he finally owe the Claridge? 

A. 100,000. 

Statement by Claridge Witness 

Mrs. Empson read a statement into the hearing record which she 
said expressed her feelings "and that of the company I represent." 

She declared that because the "basic thrust" of casino regula­
tions is directed at casino operators, "New Jersey presents oppor­
tunities for the gaming patron to take advantaqe of the casino 
operator.• The industry, she said, consists primarily of publicly 
traded corporations with substantial investments and enough matur­
ity to be allowed "greater flexibility in how it can manage and 
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internally control its own credit function." She continued: 

These companies, of which the Claridge is a 
part, have a fiduciary responsibility to 
their stockholders to provide the best 
possible return on their investment. No 
management team would last long if its 
business judgments were such that signifi­
cant or substantial losses were incurred as 
a result. Decisions made on how, when and 
how much credit should be issued are subject 
to that same touchstone. 

Mrs. Empson contended that "credit is simply a tool used by 
management to increase revenue," similar to "any other service 
industr7." She recalled the Claridge's start-up difficulties were 
compounded by the need to import experienced key employees from 
Nevada. She cited differences in both procedures and clientele 
between New Jersey and Nevada casino operations. Unlike Nevada, 
for example, New Jersey requires a separation of the credit func­
tion from casino pit and cage functions, she said, thus curtailing 
management's ability to coordinate operational components. This 
de fee':, she continued, has led to such credit abuses as "walking 
wfth chips" and "rolling over markers." The Nevada experience, 
Mrs. Empson said, "had not prepared us for these problems" which 
the Claridge nonetheless is "aggressively addressing." 

Mrs. Empson urged that certain state restrictions be "modified 
or eliminated," which would "enhance" reforms already instituted by 
the Claridge. She particularly cited a need for permitting a more 
effective debt collection process by casinos. As for the pr~sence 
of organized crime elements at casinos, she said anv exclusion 
procedure would have to impnse an identification responsibility·on 
state regulators which is not provided under existing law. She 
emphasized: 

Mrs. 
industry 11 

a promise 
nity code 
observed: 

Certainly the Claridge Hotel and Casino does 
not posses the needed resources or informa­
tion needed to make such determinations. 
The claim that the casino industry must make 
such determinations and expose its indivi­
duals to the very real civil liability of 
defamation of character an<l libel suits is 
grossly unfair. No such responsibility is 
placed upon the New Jersey race tracks, the 
operators of bingo games, or other legalized 
games of chance. 

Empson also stressed that "credit within the gaming 
is different than in other industries, particularly since 
to pay is traditionally bolstered by a gambling frater­
"of honor, respect and status." On this point, she 

Indeed, thens are those who take advantage 
of the existence of such an arrangement, but 



-130-

that is true in any human relationship. 
Therefore, experience has shown that those 
who take markers credit and oay it back are 
most likely to continue to do so. In 
addition, those who have shown a propensity 
to participate in gambling on a regular 
basis are more likely to subscribe to the 
code ,lluded to earlier, Thus, experience 
has shown that the customer who has either 
played and paid his credit or has been an 
established cash player is generally a qood 
credit risk in terms of the extension of 
gaming credit. 

She praised the Claridge's credit collection exoerience, 
noting that bad debt write-offs in 1982 were less than 1 percent of 
total credit issued and that 40 percent of the write-offs were 
necesitated by bankruptcies. She said: 

In conclusion, a good business executive 
will only issue credit if it will ultimately 
increase the profitability of the company. 
This is especially true when that business 
is a publicly-traded company whose stock­
holders are a constant reminder to the 
executive to make sound and good judgments. 

The statement generated the following commentary by the 
Commission: 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: It misses a point 
that bothers mei, two points, I guess. The 
Claridge and every other casino has an 
obligation to stockholders. It also has an 
obligation to the State of New Jersey, 
citizens of New Jersey, and the people who 
go to casinos, and you must not forget the 
obligation. 

The second point is that I don't think you 
can compare giving credit in the casino 
sense exactly to giving credit in the 
refrigerator-manufacturing sense. There's a 
limit to the number of refrigerators someone 
can buy. In some cases there apparently is 
hardly a limit to the amount of credit 
people can get who shouldn't get credit, and 
I'm not talking about organized crime. I'm 
talking about housewives, who are sick and 
who still get comped, get encouraged, get 
almost coerced into coming to Atlantic City 
to go to the casinos. And I'm not accusing 
Claridge of doing that ••• I'm j11st saying 
that you must not forget that part, and very 
important part, of the credit process •.• 
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Caesars Boardwalk Regency and High Roller Rosenblum* 

Samuel Rosenblum, a weal thy, retired business man from 
Philadelphia, was a high roller whose credit gambling was so 
extensive that he ultimately wound up owing almost $1.3 million to 
three Atlantic City casinos between October, 1978, and November, 
1980. On various dates in 1981 the three casinos settled these 
debts by writing off $873,000 and settling with Rosenblum for the 
remaining $425,000. As the chart shows, Rosenblum ran up his 
largest debt at Caesars, where Maxwell Goldberg, the next witness, 
was chairman of the board. Goldberg, in addition, was on the 
casino's credit committee. During his ':estimony Goldberg noted 
that any credit extensions above $100,000 required four signatures, 
including his. Since Rosenblum's credit play was so large, 
Goldberg's signature was required in connection with 28 credit 
decisi~ns affecting this patron. During one 24-hour period in May, 
1980, Goldberg joined in raising Rosenblum's credit limit from 
$364,000 to $686,000. These large credit line advances were made 
despite derogatory reports, including an $86,000 unpaid debt at a 
Monte Carlo casino. The Rosenblum case illustrates the 
peculiarities of the casino industry's debt "settlements," which 
have no rationale or logical pattern, as well as the industry's 
l<1ck ot concern about a patron becoming "overextended" 
financially. SCI counsel Coppola questioned Goldberg: 

Q. And based on C-94, it seems as if Mr. 
Rosenblum st"lrted gambling on credit on 
August 16th, 1979, and he completed his 
credit gambling sometime in September of 
198 0. Were you familiar with his gaming 
activity as he progressed through your 
casino on the various days he was there? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What was his game? 

A. He was a crap shooter. 

Q. How would you describe his style of play? 

A. Very flamboyant, a big crap shooter. 

Q. Was Mr. Rosenblum considered a high roller? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A very high roller? 

A. He was what we consider a "one" player, 
which is one of our better players. 

*See Chart, next page. 
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Q. Give us an example of a high table limit 
that a one player would have to bet in order 
to be classified a one player. Maybe we can 
talk about Mr. Rosenblum, if you know. 

A. I would say that he would play for at least 
a minimum of a thousand-dollar bet for two, 
three hours at one sitting. 

THE CHAIRMAN: Could you give us an idea of 
what that might amount to in anybody playing 
at that thousand-dollar rate for three 
hours? 

THE WI't'NESS: 
$200,000 with 
$200,000 .•• 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

He could lose in one evening 
no problems at all, or win 

Q. A review of the credit application shows 
that you were involved personally in 
approximately 28 credit decisions concerning 
Mr. Rosenblum. On May 23rd and May 24th, 
1980, his lireit was increased from $364,000 
to $686,000. Those were four separate 
decisions and I would like to know what it 
was about his play or whatever that would 
allow you to give him that sort of credit 
increase in a one day period of time. 

A. On many occasions he would go home winning 
2-$300,000, so on this occasion he lost 
2-$300,000, which was not uncommon. 

X X X 

Q. Now, what did you base your decision on that 
day to give him that kind of money? 

A. 9e had been paying us on a very timely basis 
and we never had a problem with him. If you 
look all through the card, he's paid us 
$200,000. On 5/24/80, which is the same 
date that we raised his line, he made a cash 
payment of $200,000 that time. 

Q. Are you familiar with the term "over­
extended"? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Could you tell us what that term means? 
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A. When a man bets more than he can handle. 

Q. Al 1 right. Now, do you feel the casino has 
a responsibility to prevent that? 

A. If they can, yes. 

Q. Do you know of any way a casino can prevent 
that from happening to a player? 

A. If you look through this card you will find 
on a few occasions they wouldn't give him 
any more credit on certain evenings, and 
it's signed by one of the casino executives. 

Q. How can a casino prevent someone from being 
overextended? And in this case, let's tal~ 
about Mr. Rosenblum, he did owe your casino 
at one point $673,000? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. He owed another casino 500,000; he owed 
Resorts 125,000, and that's only in New 
Jersey. Now, that's a lot of money to owe 
three casinos in this state. And the 
question is: W".lat coulri Caesars have done 
during the course of his play to prevent 
that man from being in that position? 

A. We were very careful and we did ta~e a 
couple of credit reports near the end of his 
play and we did stop him from taking 
additional credit right about that tim<,. 

Q. When was that? 

A. On 9/16/80. 

Q. How much did he owe you on that day? 

A. 673,000. 

Q. How much did he owe you when he finished 
gambling, if you look at September 10th? 

A. 673,000. But he w<lis stopped that day. 

Q. All right. Was he extended credit after 
July 30th, 1980? Was he allowed to gaMble 
on credit after July 30th? 

A. 1980? Yes. 
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Q. But would it surprise you to learn that on 
July 29th, 1980, the Loews Casino in Monte 
Carlo wrote off Mr. Rosenblum for $86,000? 

A. They don't have the collection rights that 
we have. 

Q. The point is: What difference does it make 
whether that debt is collectible? The point 
is: At a particular point in time, July 
30th, 1980, Mr. Rosenblum owed a casino 
$86,000 that he couldn't pay. Now, the 
question is, why does Caesars evtend him 
credit after that date? 

A. On July 30th July 20th he brought in 
$200,000 to our hotel and paid us off. 

Q. And if you follow his card through, is his 
balance increasing that he owes your casino? 

A. His balance went up and down like a yo-yo. 

Q. Did you inquire as to his other dehts to 
find out what was going on with this person 
to see if he can ultimately afford $673,000 
in credit? 

A. He was paying us. If you look all through 
July, every week he came in with fifty, a 
hundred thousand dollars, so we were always 
being paid. 

Q. Did Mr. Rosenblum tell you that he had a 
derog in Monte Carlo? 

A. When 
when 
Carlo 

we negotiated the 
I found out that 
$80,000. 

settlement, 
he had owed 

that's 
Monte 

Q. When did you find out that Mr. Rosenblum's 
account was going to be a collection problem 
for your casino? 

A. When his attorney called me on the 
telephone. 

Q. And when was that? 

A. Sometime at the end of 1980. 

Q. What did the lawyer tell you during the 
initial telephone call? 
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That he, Mr. Rosenblum, was in ill 
his wife had had a heart attack, 
couldn't afford to pay the markers. 

health, 
that he 

Q. Now, did there come a time when a meeting 
took place to discuss the settlement? 

A. Yes, they did. 

THE CHAIRMAN: What about Bally; do we skip 
that? 

THE WITNESS: I can come back to Bally. I 
spoke to Billy Weinberger also and Bally was 
willing to accept 25 percent of his debt. I 
wasn't, so I went to Philadelphia and 
negotiated further and arrived at a higher 
number. 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

Q. What was your position when you first went 
to Philadelphia? 

A. 

Q. 

I really 
I wanted 
myself. 

don't think that we had to settle. 
to see what the conditions were 

What conditions were 
sort of information 
gather? 

you looking for? What 
were you looking to 

A. I wanted to talk to Mr. Rosenblum eye to 
eye. 

Q. Were you representing --

A. I don't usually make settlements. This is 
the first and only settlement I ever made. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: You did not assure 
yourself, and even to this day you do not 
know, whether in April, 1981, Rosenblum 
actually had the ability to pay you back if 
he chose to, do you? 

THE WITNESS: His lawyer assured he a idn' t 
and so did he. I believed him. 

THE CHAIRMAN: Did you know what securities 
he had at that point? 

THE WITNESS: He told us in order to make 
the settlement with us he had to sel 1 an 
apartment house and borrow the b1lance of 
the money from a friend of his and he told 
me who the friend was that he borrowed it 
from. 
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X X X 

The "Gamblers Anonymous" Cocktail 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

Q. 

A. 

There was a drink that you had in your 
hotel, you called it Gamblers Anonymous. 
How did that drink come into being at your 
casino? 

By mistake. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: Can you explain the 
mistake? You have been accused o.E bein9 
insensitive to compulsive gamblers when you 
named your drink Gamblers Anonymous. 

THE WITNESS: It was there for six 
nobody said a word. All of a sudden 
out and we changed it the next day. 
definitely a mistake. 

months, 
it came 
It was 

Excluding Organized Crime 

THE CHAIRMAN: '')"' have had testimony from 
Lieutenant Colonel Dintino of the State 
Police to the effect that reputed members of 
organized-crime families have received 
credit from the casinos in Atlantic City in 
the last several years. And he says it's 
highly probable the number of persons 
represented by hi, testimony were the tip of 
the iceberg, These men not only received 
credit but, at least a great many of them, 
also received gratuities. Do you approve of 
associates of organi ZF!d crime having free 
access to your casino premise? 

THE WITNESS: Absolutely not, and I think 
it's not really our job to police that. I 
think it's really the state's job to keep 
the people out. 

THE CHAIRMAN: Everybody seems to blame it 
on the other fellow. 

THE WITNESS: It's not our job. If they qo 
through credit. If they play for cash, we 
never see them. 

THE CHAIRMAN: You want them excluded? 
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THE CHAIRMAlil: 
thing. 
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The state says the same 

THE WITNESS: 
thing. 

We have been saying the same 

THE CH/URMAN: Why don I t you get together, 
the state and the casinos, and see that it's 
done in a few weeks? 

THE WITNESS: Absolutely. 

THE CHAIRMAN: It would be a healthy thinq 
for the industry. 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

Resorts International's Credit Reverses 

Gary Grant, credit manager at Resorts International, was the 
n.ext witness. As with Goldberg of the Caesars, Grant was asked to 
describe his experiences with Samuel Rosenblum as they reflected on 
his casino's credit policies and procedures. As the Commission's 
chart demonstrates, (on Page ) , Rosenblum ran up a $125,000 debt 
at Resorts between October, f9'78, and November, 1980, and wound up 
settling it for $75,000. SCI counsel Coppola asked Grant about his 
reaction to derogatory information obtained from credit checks and 
about cooperation -- if any -- among the Atlantic City casinos in 
connection with the exchange of credit information about their 
patrons: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

What is Resorts' 
extension of credit 
information? 

pol icy regarding the 
in light of derogatory 

The general policy on derogatory information 
would be that if somebody had deroq in 
someplace else and that he had never -- if 
we've never dealt with the individual 
before, in all probability we would not 
issue him any credit. But there's different 
situations with derog and there's different 
kinds of derog. 

Let's say a write-off in an amount, well, in 
Rosenblum's case, the Loews Monte Carlo 
Casino wrote off him for $'86,000 on July 
29th, 1980. 

You 're not going to find it in that card 
because Resorts dion' t do a Central Credit 
check at the time. But if you bad known it, 
would you have given Mr. Rosenblum credit? 
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A. Well, with the fact -- I can't say whether I 
would or whether I wouldn't. The fact that 
he had had established credit in two other 
casinos in Atlantic City and was playing 
with large sums of money, I can't say 
whether that particular case would say -- I 
couldn't say I wouldn't and I couldn't say I 
would. I believe we did run a Central check 
on him when he opened the card and I don't 
believe we got that information. 

Q. Now, I would like to ask yot: a question 
about actually the last page of this card. 
There's a note, the note is a typed note, at 
the top. It says, "Release no information 
about this card or customer to anyone. This 
includes Central or any other casino per 
G.G. Transfer this page with every page that 
is added," and then there are your initials, 
I believe. 

A. That's correct. 

Q. Now, we were under the impression, at least 
we have been told, that, when there is 
derogatory information or information such 
as that about a patron, that there is 
communication between the casinos. This 
piece of paper seems to indicate that there 
was going to be a cut-off of information 
with respect to Rosenblum's gaming activity 
from Resorts to other casinos. What does 
this piece of pap=r mean? 

A. Okay. There are certain incidents where a 
particular player will come up to you and 
request that you do not release any 
information pertaining him to anybody else. 
It's a confidential thing between ourselves 
and him. This was put on the card for the 
sole purpose of that any clerk or anybody 
that's working in the office or anybody who 
picked up the card would automaticallv 
contact me, would give no information but 
would contact me and let me know that 
somebody wanted, wanted, made an inquiry 
concerning this particular card. 

Ninety-nine times out of a hundred, if, if 
he was at another casino and one of the 
casino executives from another casino phoned 
me up on a one-to-one basis, I would give 
him the information. But the main thing 
with this thing was, was an answer to his 
request and, also, that the information just 
wouldn't 



-140-

flow freely. If I wanted to give the 
information to somebody, I would and I do. 
And we do it on a continuous basis. 

X X X 

Q. Did you keep his gaming activity, then, out 
of the main flow of casino information which 
would be Central Credit information? And is 
the level of communication that you're 
talking about some unofficial level of 
communication; it's not recorded, not 
written down, just executive to executive? 

A. No. 

Q. From casino to casino? 

A. we have a policy, almost a general policy, 
that any card concerning anybody that has a 
twenty-five-thousand-dollar credit line or 
more, that they con tact a credit executive 
before they give the information out. That 
is our policy. 

Q. What is the basis of that policy, if you 
know? 

A. Well, number one, I want a credit executive, 
myself, or the people that work with me, 
would like to be informed of this, of these 
type of people that are in other -- when 
they're in other casinos and when they're 
requesting information from us. If a clerk 
picks it up, qives Central the information 
without notifying a credit executive, it can 
go back in the file and we won't know it 
until the next time we go to their card 
where it's stated a particular casino had 
called on them. 

Q. Is information withheld on occasion from 
Central Credit for these twenty-five­
thousand-dollar-or-over players based on the 
discretion of someone like yourself? 

A. I very -- on a very rare basis, and if it's 
withheld from Central Credit, if I make -­
if the casino that the person is in, if a 
credit executive in that particular casino 
makes direct, direct contact with me, he'll 
get the information. 

'I'HE CHAIRMAN 
dollar cred t 
another cas no 

If one has a half-a-million-
in your 

that he 
casino, wouldn't 

approaches for 
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$100,000 credit regard his indebtedness to 
you as derogatory? 

THE WITNESS: No, sir, it wouldn't be 
derogatory until it wasn't paid. I mean, if 
he owed on a particular -- if what you 're 
saying is on a particular night he was in my 
casino, or our casino, and he owed X amount 
of dollars and he went to another casino, 
that information, I mean that money that he 
owed us would not be derog. It wouldn't be 
held against him. 

THE CHAIRMAN: Wouldn't the secona casino be 
running somewhat of a risk if he owed you 
$500,000 and they gave him, knowing that, 
$100,000 credit? 

THE WITNESS: It's all according to the 
individual and the other information that 
they could find out about him; his history 
of playing, how long he's played, his 
ability to pay, how much money he's paid 
back over long periods of time. It involves 
many, many things. 

COMMISSIONER GR8ENBERG: What did you know 
about Rosenblum's ability to repay? 

THE CHAIRMAN: Or his inability to repay. 

THE WITNESS: I don't, I don't have anythng 
to do with it. Once the debt goes bact or 
once the checks come back, I'm not involved 
in the collection process. We have, we 
have, we have a group of people at Resorts 
who deal with the write-offs. I sit on the 
committee. I give input to the proceedings, 
but I don't -- I'm not a signer and I don't 
have any input on collecting bad debts or 
writing off bad debts. I don't have any 
decisions to make on that. 

X X X 

Gambler Sumet Jantha and the $400,000 Bangkok Bank Check* 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

Q. I would like you to look at the credit 
application of Sumet Jantha. Mr. Grant, how 
much does Mr. Jantha owe Resorts? 

A. 820,000. 

*See Exhibit, next page. 
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Q. All right. How long did it take for him to 
go from zero to 820,000? 

A. From 4/3 to 4/11, I believe. From 4/3 to 
4/ 1 1. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: Is that eight days? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

Q. All right. Did you have anythiny to do with 
the extension of credit to Mr. Jantna? 

A. I believe it was 4/3 of '82. 

Q. How much did you give him? 

A. $200,000. 

Q. All right. What kind of Central Credit 
record did this person have at that time? 

A. He had no recur<l at Central Credit. 

Q. No record. 
that you 
document? 

A. True. 

Be had no prior gaming activity 
were aware of that you could 

Q. All right. What <lid his bank check -- did 
he list a bank on his credit card? What was 
the name of the bank? 

A. Erawan Trust Bank in ..• Bangkok. 

Q. Thailand? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Have you ever since your experiences with 
Jan th a taken a check drawn on a Thai land 
bank? 

A. No. 

Q. Is one of the reasons because you can't get 
currency out of that country? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. So even -- well, with respect to the bank, 
was a bank check done? 

A. Yes. 

Q. was it later determined that Mr. Jantha, if 
there was such a person, certainly didn't 
have an account at that bank? 

A. I believe so, yes. 

Q. Well, did all the markers that were issued 
or drawn on that bank return? 

A. Yes. 

THE CHAI'<MAN: Did you find any evidence 
that he did have an account in that hank, 
aside from the had checks? 

TH8 WI'I'NESS: No, 

MR. COPPOLA: Referring t0 C-100, a letter 
from the l':rawan Trust Company, to the 
manager of the Provident National qank with 
respect to Sumet Jan th a. The letter says: 
"Regarding the two checks that you sent to 
us for collection, we are regret to inform 
you t~at the person Sumet Jantha whom 
indicated as a payee in the chec><: is no 
concern with our company at all." 

Q. There is personal information on the credit 
application; is that correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And, now, was any of 
verified by Resorts prior 
of your $200,000? 

that information 
to the extension 

A. No. 

Q. 

A. 

All right. 
would al low 
$200,000? 

Wel 1, what 
hindsight, I 
get the bank 
strong bank 
had personal 

Now, 
yo,1 

what 
to 

did you know that 
give this person 

I knew then ann, I mean, 
didn't know now. When we did 
report, we got a very, very 

report. It iwHcateil that he 
checking account there for over 

three years and six to seven figures, TJ. S. 
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200,000 at present, also he had 
deposits, certificates of deposits. 

time 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: Wait a minute. 
Before you get too far. Is this the same 
bank that wrote back to you saying they 
never hear::! of Mr. ,Jan th a with his four­
hundred-thousand-dollar counter check or a 
different bank? 

THE WITNESS: Sarne bank. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: Sarne b~nk. You got 
this good credit reported back fr0~ the bank 
in Thailand that after you deposited his 
check said they never heard of him? 

THE WITNESS: It Is quite obvious that we got 
taken. There's no two ways about that. We 
could look at this the rest of the day and 
discuss it. What happened with us was we 
got taken. That's al 1. we did our checks, 
we did what we were supposed to do. We 
issued the man the credit and the man 
defrauded us. 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

Q. What was checked out other than a call to a 
bank in Thailand? 

A. He had, he had a valid passport. He pre­
sented what we thought was a valid pass­
port. He had all the credentials that any­
body would normally have that is traveling 
in that type of thing and that's why we 
issued him the credit. 

Q. Now, you had those markers. Th is man owecl 
you $820,000 at a point. Correct? 

A. When he left. 

Q. Okay. You explain what happened then when 
he has an eight-hundred-twenty-thousand­
dollar outstanding balance. 

A. Okay. His credit, the credit that we 
extended him was 500,000. The wind up was 
we extended him 200,000 to begin with. He 
went and played and he lost that money. We 
had conversation with him. We raised his 
credit line to 500,000. Then we he 
presented what we considered a cashier's 
check, which is considered as a cash eguiva-
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lent and then he played more. In actuality, 
when he left the casino he owed us 420,000 
in markers or counter checks which we ex­
tended him as credit, and he owed us for 
this check here which represented 400,000, 
which we took as a cashier's check to be as 
cash equivalent; as the same thing as he 
paid us cash. 

Q. Now, the gambler's name is Jantha? 

A. Right. 

Q. Why accept a check made out to C.R. and Mr. 
S. Wong to he applied to Jantha's money or 
whatever that he owes Resorts? How did that 
come about? 

THE WITNESS: It's an amazing thing but a 
common practice that most of the Orientals 
that came into our casino, it is nothing, in 
fact, it's orrlinary, for them to have at 
least two names and sometimes three names. 
And they not only have names on their 
passport, they have one name on their 
passport, they have another name on 
something else they have another name on 
something else, and it's a way of life. 
It's not illegal, it's not wrong. It's a 
way that they exist. And I think that we 
have, we have checked that out thoroughly 
enough to be quite truthful. I mean, that 
is a way of existence over there in those 
countries. 

Alamahoud Aklhawaja Got Crerlit Because He Owed Another Casino 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

Q. Do you have Mr. Alkhawaja's card? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Did you extend him credit on February 28th, 
1982? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. And did you give him $25,000 on that <'late? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. All right. Bad you checkerl out his bank 
account prior to? 
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A. No, I didn't. 

Q. All right. What did you do before you gave 
him $25,000? 

A. we ran a Central check on it. 

Q. And what did you find that he owed? 

A. That he owed Playboy $225,000. 

Q. Now, why did you give him credit with that 
information? 

A. Well, he asked for $25,000 and he was with, 
he was with a good customer of ours at the 
time, which did not -- that really didn't 
inf 1 uence it, and he wanted to take us -­
supposedly he wanted to play for the 
25,000. I thought in my mind if Playboy had 
given, extended him $225,000, I, I was 
hoping that they would probably know 
something about him and I believe I did 
phone up down there. I can't remember 
exactly who I t,,lked to. I did talk to a 
credit executive and they indicated that 
this man had, had paid them money and they 
felt comfortable with the money that he owed 
them. So I took a shot and gave him, 
extended him $25,000. He subsequently lost 
the $25,000 at the tables that evening and 
he did not pay us. 

Q. Anything else that led you to extend this 
man 25,000 other than the fact that Playboy 
had given him 225,000? 

A. No, 

X X X 

Gambler Norman Dell, Owes $10,000 

Q. Now, you know what a CBA (Credit Bureau 
Associates} check is, do you not? 

A. I believe so, yes. 

Q. All right. 
of doing a 
of credit? 

Does Resorts have the capability 
CBA check prior to the issuance 

A. Yeah, we could. 
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Q. Well, CBA report on this person shows that 
he had approximately $50,000 in judgments 
outstanding against him prior to the time 
Resorts gave him credit; in addition, there 
was a Federal tax lien in an amount of 
$3500. You didn't have that information at 
the time you gave Mr. Dell 10,000 did you? 

A. No, I sure didn't. 

Q. Is it Resorts' policy now to do CBA checks? 

A~ No, it's not~ 

Q. l)on't vou think that that would be a 
valuable tool to find out where people stand 
out in, perhaps we will call it, the real 
world; the debts that people say are owed, 
judgments, liens, foreclosures, credit 
cards, things like that? 

A. It would help. It couldn't hurt. 

Q. wouldn't you want to know that as a credit 
manager when you have to make a business 
decision on whether or not someone is going 
to repay you $10,000 in credit? 

A. It would be involved in the decision, 
but ... it wouldn't be the only thing that 
would make the decision for me. 

THE CHAIRMAN: 'Jf course it wouldn't be the 
only thing. Everything should De 
considered. He's asking whether it wouldn't 
be helpful. 

THE WITNESS: 
would be. 

It could be, yes, sir. It 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

A. 

i1B 

In th i.s 
10,000 
reportr 

case you wouldn't 
if you were aware 
would you? 

have given Dell 
of this C.B.A. 

I can't say if I would or I wouldn't. 
all probability, I woL11dn't. 

In 

r I've Ever Seen 11 

That's how Credit Manager Grant recalled David Zarin, a credit 
gambler who wound up owing Resorts more than $3 million in 1gso. 
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Zarin subsequently joined Gamblers Anonymous as a gaming addict. 
Grant's abridged testimony about Zarin follows, beginning with the 
gambler's custom of appearing at the casino with a business 
associate, Martha Nemtin: 

Q. How long did he gamble at Resorts on credit? 

A. I believe he started, well, he filled out 
the card in 6 of '78, and it ended in 4 of 
I 8 Q • 

Q. Are you familiar with a person k;1own as 
Martha Nemtin? 

A. I am. 

Q. Did you associate Martha Nemtin and David 
Zarin as one for purposes of gambling? 

A. No. 

Q. Did Martha Ne--ntin have a credit line at 
Resorts? 

A. She did. 

Q. Did David Zarin make use of her credit 1 ine 
in addition to his own? 

A. In what regard? 

Q. Well, when Martha Nemtin drew a marker, 
wasn't it common for her to take the chips 
and give them to Mr. Zarin so that he could 
gamble with them? 

A. Not all the chips, no. She played herself. 
Martha Nemtin was definitely a player. 

Q. All I'm trying to establish is whether or 
not he made use of her credit line. I'm not 
saying all of it. Over a period of: time did 
he gamble using chips that were issued to 
her? 

A. No. 

Q. Do you know that for a fact? 

A. Well, I mean, I never saw him do it, let me 
put it that way. I never, I never saw her 
sign a marker and qive him the chips. They, 
they played together, they played out of -­
you know, they had chips in front of them. 
They both were betting the chips. But I 
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didn't have it in my mind that she exactly 
took the credit to give to him, no. 

X X X 

Q. All right. Would you agree that, when 
everything was totaled up, there was a bad 
debt or there was an outstanding ilebt of 
about four and a half, $4.6 million, 
somewhere along those lines between him and 
Nemtin? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And Zarin's portion of the 4.6 million was 
3.4 million? 

A. Right. 

Q. How did it come about that he w,;s able to 
get in that po.sition with the credit line 
that he had at Resorts? 

l\. Well, you got to go through the whole 
process of Mr. Zarin. Mr. Zarin was 
probably the, we11, let me say, the biggest 
player I've ever seen. Be wasn't 
necessarily not in necessarily the 
amounts that he bet individually, but the 
time that he spent in the casino, the amount 
of time he spent there over a period of 
time, and continuously consistenly played. 
We -- Mr. Zarin gave us checks in excess of, 
I believe, $13 million that we cleared that 
were made through his bank. 

Q. Do you know where the money came from to 
back up those checks that he paid you? 

A. At the time, no. 

Q. Did you know whether or not. any of that 
money came from borrowed sources? 

A. No, I didn't. 

Q. Did you know whether or not that money was 
the result of him or someone walking with 
chips on his behalf and, in effect, using 
Resorts I money to pay Resorts? 

A. Oh, I didn't know that. 
that. 

I still don't know 

Q. All right. You can continue. 
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A. Okay. And we just progressed. Mr. Zarin 
was very prominent in Atlantic City at the 
time: He was a housing developer; he had 
buildings and he was purchasing property 
around town; he had buildings that you could 
drive around town and see the buildings 
going up; he was in, continuously in 
meetings with the city officials; he dealt 
with people from the federal government in 
his housing developments. And I had a long 
talk with Mr. Zar in and I spent a lot of 
time with him. I continuously t~ied to hold 
him down on his gambling. It w::.~ my idea 
that, you know, it was -- it always entered 
my mind that just where he was goin;i and 
just, you know, how far this could continue 
to go on. But he continued to play. He 
never was abusive. He conducted himself in 
the proper manner at all times. He was a 
perfect gentleman at all times and it 
progressed. And he kept giving us checks, 
we kept cashing the checks and he kept 
playing, and the end result is what you see. 

Q. All right. Let's just talk about until, 
let's say, the end of 197'l. Is there any 
regulation that would require a casino to 
inquire of the gambler what his financial 
situation is? Let's say his outstanding 
debt. 

A. Not that I know of. 

Q. Is it a part of 
where a person 
situation? 

A. No, 

Resorts' policy to find out 
stands with his financial 

Q. Is it simply a matter of play and pay, play 
and pay, credit? 

A. Basically, that's it, right. 

Q. Do you ever actually make the effort to find 
out what a person's expenses are to see if 
he can afford to pay back the credit that 
you're going to give him? 

A. No, I don't get -- we don't -- I don't aet 
involved with those people. I mean, 
somebody comes in, they fill out a card, we 
do the checks that we have to do, we issue 
him the credit. we -- all the credit that 
we issue in any way, shape or form we hope 
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that we're going to get paid. We issue the 
credit with the intent of getting paid. 
We're not looking to overextend people -- or 
for people to lose more than they can 
afford. And we just go like that. You 
start, some people start off small and they 
build up and they continue to play. They 
enjoy it. A lot of people enjoy playing 
and you just can't we don't go any 
further. If a man keeps giving you checks 
and the checks continue to be good, and 
you've cashed millions and millions and 
millions of dollars worth of checks, it's 
awf~l hard for me to look, you know, to 
start making inquiries. I mean, the man has 
done nothing wrong. He's played and he• s 
paid, and I think that's the overriding 
thing. 

Did you see any change in his 
towards gambling throughout, let's 
first year and a half of him being 
player? 

attitude 
say, the 
a credit 

A. No. Mr. Zarin's attitude basically remained 
the same throughout the whole thing. Like I 
say, I spent a lot of hours talking. I 
probably spent more time with Mr. Zarin than 
any other customer that I've ever dealt with 
in my life. If he wasn't at the table, 
which was the majority of the time, I'd go 
i .. n the coffee shop with him or I'd go sit 
down while he was eating dinner, talk to 
him. This man was a solid man. I mean, he 
presented himself as a very, very solid 
individual and he had enough going around 
Atlantic City alone that it led me to 
believe that there was no reason to doubt 
that he was a very solid person. I think 
today he's probably a very solid person. 

X X X 

Q. All right. You seem to be giving the 
impres,;ion here regarding Mr. Zarin that he 
just had no trouble to continually pump 
money into Resorts throughout the course of 
his credit play. Is that your real 
impression of what took place with respect 
to him? 

A. I have no reason. I mean, in hindsight it's 
great. ,t the time that it was happening I 
had no reason to think he was doing apythinq 
eise but that. 
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Q. Weren't there occasions when, and many 
occasions, and for substantial amounts of 
chips, where Mr. Zarin would cash out at the 
Resorts' cage and take that money and put it 
in a safe-deposit box within that casino and 
he would have outstanding markers that he 
owed the casino at the time he did that? 
Weren't you aware of that happening? 

A. Yes, I was. Now, you're saying on numerous 
and numerous occasions. It happened on some 
occasions and I spoke to Mr. Zarin about it 
an<'! on more than on occasion after he had 
cashed in a fairly sizable sum on money he 
went out to the safe-deposit box and brought 
it back into the casino and did pick up his 
markers with it. 

Q. What about the occasions that he didn't <'lo 
that? 

A. Well --

Q. Did he give you reasons why he wouldn't take 
the chips and apply them against the money 
that he owed the casino? 

A. That he needed some cash for some particular 
thing that he was going to do. 

Q. 

Now, here again I'd like to get involved 
with a point that I dealt with Zarin on a 
daily and continucus basis, but there again 
I do have a boss and I talked to my boss 
concerning Mr. Zarin on a daily basis. We 
have sheets in the cashier's cage that 
indicate any counter check that's signed for 
more than S2500 goes to the finan~ial 
section of the casino every day. So there 
were many, many people knowledgeable to the 
fact what kind of credit that David had, 
that Mr. Zarin had, and what kind of credit 
we were extending him and what kind of money 
we were dealing with. 

Now, I talked to David on a <'laily, daily 
basis and my idea was to try to hold him 
down, and I conveyed that information to my 
boss on a daily basis and we continue to go. 

~11 right. But the point is, he was leaving 
the casino with the casino's money. 
Correct? 
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A. That happened on occasion. 

Q. Did you also cash non-gaming checks for him? 

A. We did. 

Q. Substantial amounts of money? 

A. We did. 

Q. Do you know how would that work? 

A. Well, at that particular time there were no 
restrictions on us cashing a non-gaming 
check for a cus tamer. The non-gaming check 
was supposedly to be used not for gamine, 
purposes. 

Q. All right. Go ahead. 

A. Any non-gaming check that we ever cashed for 
Mr. Zarin, that I was ever present when he 
cashed non-gaming checks, he took the money 
and walked directly out of the casino with 
it. 

Q. Did he walk out 0f the casin0 to the hotel 
safe-deposit area and put the money in there 
and the next day did he take the money and 
put it in a bank and the next day use that 
money to pay off markers that he had written 
previously? Wa,sn' t he using Resorts' money 
to fl0at the markers through the system? 

A. I know that now, but I didn't know it then. 

Q. What did you think he was doing with all the 
money you were giving him? 

A. He told me he needed it for his various 
businesses, whatever he was doing, or to 
meet, to do something that he needed some 
money for a particular job that he was doing 
or particular construction 

Q. 

A. 

When he was 
April, 1980, 
perhaps solely 
markers on? 

X X X 

gaming up until, let's say, 
was he using primarily or 
l~w Jersey banks to draw his 

The best of my knowledge, yes. 

Q. Did there come a time when he switcherl his 
bank account? 
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A. Yes, yes. 

Q. And was that bank account in Canada? 

A. Yes, it was. 

Q. Do you recognize the xerox copies of the 
checks that appear on C-105? 

A. Yes. 

Q. They're dated April 17th, 1980? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And they are drawn on the Royal Bank of 
Canada, made out to Resorts? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Signed by David Zarin? 

A. Yes. 

Q. All right. Now, were these checks accepted 
by Resorts? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did this strike you a little strange? The 
man has been gamblinq at your casino on 
credit for a long period of time; you have 
been cashing many personal checks for him 
over a period of three months; the figure of 
non-gaming checks is close to $2 million; 
you know that he's leaving the casino 
sometimes, according to your testimony, with 
chips while he has outstanding markers, and 
now he's opened up a Canadian · bank account 
and is paying Resorts off with checks drawn 
on the Canadian bank account. Did you check 
this bank account before you accepted the 
checks? 

A. No, with I did not. We gave it -- I 
believe it waa in the evening when he came 
in with the check. Within fifteen minutes 
of us -- of him giving us the first Canadian 
check I contacted the, I believe at that 
time his position was the chief auditor for 
the corportion, who happenea to be on the 
casino floor that particular night. 
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Q. Just stop for a second. We'll get to the 
conversation with him. But what is your 
feeling, what's going through your mind when 
Zarin, the man that you know very well, 
hands you the checks depicted on C-105? 

A. Well, it was a change, but, also -- many 
things entered my mind. One thing entered 
my mind that Martha Nemtin was from Canada 
and she'd been using, I believe, the Royal 
Bank of Canada for a long time and they were 
very closely associated. It also gave me 
some reason to believe that he might, he 
might have needed some time. By writing a 
check on a Canadian bank, it conceivably, 
with my experience with Canadian banks, it 
could have taken us a 1 i ttle bit more time 
possibly to clear the check. 

X X X 

Q. Okay. Now, did you talk to Zarin about your 
concern? 

A. I, I really can't remember if I said 
anything to him or not if I mentioned 
something about where <'lid you come up with 
the Canadian bank account, or I honestly 
can't remember if I said anything to him or 
not. 

Q. One of 
thought 
time for 

the concerns was, you say, 
he may possibly have needed 
it to clear? 

A. It entered my mind, yes. 

you 
more 

Q. Okay. It entered your mind. 
to him about your suspicion 
possibly in trouble now? 

Did you talk 
·that he was 

A. No. 

Q. What did you do? 

A. I went, I took the check, a copy of the 
check, and, like I say, the head, the 
auditor, the chief auditor or whatever his 
position was for the corporation, happenei 
to be on the casino floor at that particular 
time. I went over to him, gave him a copy 
of the check, indicating to him that David 
had, Mr. Zarin had given us a check on a 
Canadian bank, it was not the normal 
procedure that he used and it was something 
out of the ordinary and I thought we should 
check into it. 
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A, Yes, yes. 

Q, And was that bank account in Canada? 

A. Yes, it was. 

Q. Do you recognize the Xerox copies of the 
checks that appear on C-105? 

A. Yes. 

Q, They're dated April 17th, 1980? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And they are drawn on the Royal Bank of 
Canada, made out to Resorts? 

A. Yes. 

Q, Signed by David Zarin? 

A, Yes. 

Q, All right. Now, were these checks accepted 
by Resorts? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did this strike you a little strange? The 
man has been gambl inq at your casino on 
credit for a long period of time; you have 
been cashing many personal checks for him 
over a period of three months; the figure of 
non-gaming checks is close to $2 million; 
you know that he's leaving the casino 
sometimes, according to your testimony, with 
chips while he has outstanding markers, and 
now he's opened up a Canadian "bank account 
and is paying Resorts off with checks drawn 
on the Canadian bank account. Did you check 
this bank account before you accepted the 
checks? 

A. No, with I did not. We gave it -- I 
believe it was in the evening when he came 
in with the check. Within fifteen minutes 
of us -- of him giving us the first Canadian 
check I contacted the, I believe at that 
time his position was the chief auditor for 
the corportion, who happenea to be on the 
casino floor that particular night. 
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Q. Just stop for a second. We'll get to the 
conversation with him. But what is your 
feeling, what's going through your mind when 
Zarin, the man that you know very well, 
hands you the checks depicted on C-105? 

A. Well, it was a change, but, also -- many 
things entered my mind. One thing entered 
my mind that Martha Nemtin was from Canada 
and she'd been using, I believe, the Royal 
Bank of Canada for a long time and they were 
very closely associated. It also gave me 
some reason to believe that he might, he 
might have needed some time. By writing a 
check on a Canadian bank, it conceivably, 
with my experience with Canadian banks, it 
could have taken us a little bit more time 
possibly to clear the check. 

X X X 

Q. Okay. Now, did you talk to Zarin about your 
concern? 

A. I, I really can't remember if I said 
anything to him or not if I mentioned 
something about where <lid you come up with 
the Canadian bank account, or I honestly 
can't remember if I said anything to him or 
not. 

Q. One of 
thought 
time for 

the concerns was, you say, 
he may possibly have needed 
it to clear? 

A. It entered my mind, yes. 

you 
more 

Q. Okay. It entered your mind. 
to him about your suspicion 
possibly in trouble now? 

Did you talk 
·that he was 

A. No. 

Q. What did you do? 

A. I went, I took the check, a copy of the 
check, and, like I say, the head, the 
auditor, the chief auditor or whatever his 
position was for the corporation, happene'.'! 
to be on the casino floor at that particular 
time. I went over to him, gave him a copy 
of the check, indicating to him that David 
had, Mr. Zarin had given us a check on a 
Canadian bank, it was not the normal 
procedure that he used and it was something 
out of the ordinary and I thought we should 
check into it. 
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Q. Did you ever call the bank? 

A, I did not. 

Q, Do the regulations that are in effect today 
require a casino to verify the bank account 
on which a marker is drawn or a check 
accepted in payment of a marker? 

A. We have to verify a bank account on the 
card. But a man can pay us with another, 
with a different bank account tb~n what's on 
his card. We have to ver1ry the bank 
account to issue him credit, but he can give 
us a check on another bank. 

Q, There is no regulation -­

A. No, 

Q, that requires casinos to verify bank 
accounts past the first bank account that's 
given by the patron. Correct? 

A. Right. 

SCI Chairman Lane briefly questioned the witness about two 
areas of particular concern to the Commission. One was the 
possibility of utilizing "front money" cash in the form of 
letters of credit, cashiers checks or other financial instruments 
whose stated value has been verified by appropriate casino 
authorities -- as an alternative to the customary credit process. 
The second concern was the apparent inability of the industry to 
keep criminal elements out of casinos. 

EXAMINATION BY THE CHAIRMAN: 

Q. 

A. 

I notice that this Banokok check is dated, I 
think, February 22, and he came, I th ink 
your testimony is, he came into the casino 
in April. We have had perhaps a naive 
suggestion while we have been here the last 
couple of days that front money might help 
in a credit situation and it occurred to me 
that this gentleman you're dealing with, 
this Bangkok situation, if he sent these two 
checks he had in his pocket in February, if 
he sent them to you and you had a chance to 
clear them before he came on in, that you 
wouldn't have had the problem that you have 
had with him. Isn't that correct? 

You're a hundred percent right. 

Q. Did you ever consider, anybody in the 
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industry ever consider, front money for 
credit? 

A. Well, we've asked, on most of the people 
that we've brought in from, from the Far 
East, we, we 1 ike them very much to bring 
front money. We much rather that thev 
brought front money than issue them credit~ 
But there are some very, very substantial 
people that are coming in and there's some 
very large credit lines and there's some 
people that have paid us a lot of money. 
But you're right, front money is great. 
There's nothing better than front money. 

Q. But 
it. 

you couldn't put in a requirement 
Is that what you're telling me? 

for 

A. I think over, for the whole idea of bringing 
in this type of business or any tyoe of 
business from either various parts of this 
country or various parts of the world, I 
think it would curtail it a little hit 
because a lot of these people are used to 
playing on credit in Europe and so on and so 
forth. 

X X X 

Q. We have had testimony here about the extent 
that some reputed members associated with 
organized-crime families have received 
credit from th casinos in the last several 
years, and this is apparently just a small 
number of such people. Does the industry or 
your casino want associates of organized 
crime in on your premises --

A. No. 

Q. -- gambling? 

A. No. 

Q. You don't want them? 

A. No. 

Q. Do you know of any casino that does want 
them? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Well, why don't you do something about it? 
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A. How? If a man walks in, I don't know these 
people. I don't deal with them. 

Q. You have security people. Some of these 
fellows had reputations for being associates 
of organized crime for the last 88 years, 
That sticks right out on them and your 
security people know that very well, 

A. If the security people would filter that 
information down --

Q. They don't tell you about it? 

A. It's never been brought to my attention to 
any degree, no, sir. 

Q, You're one of management. But all the 
management of your casino certainlv has the 
ability to know and must know that hoods are 
participating in gambling in your premises. 

A. But I don't you know, it's very, very 
difficult foi: me to -- a man's a hooa. I 
mean, there's people that come into our 
casino that conduct themselves in a very 
proper manner. They play with their money, 
they -- they don't want credit, they play, 
they do whatever they' re going to do, they 
conduct themselves properly and I don't -- I 
can't, I just can't -- I mean I don't know 
these people. 

Q, I'm suggesting the industry in coming into 
this state on the full understan<'ling that 
organized crime will be kept out of the 
casinos has an obligation to work with the 
state, and actively work with the state, to 
see that organized crime doesn't blatantly 
walk through your casinos day after day. 

A. I think you're a hundred percent right. 

Q. Wel 1, do something about it. 
I'm suggesting. 

That's what 
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THE TESTIMONY -- THIRD DAY 
THURSDAY, MARCH 3, 19113 

Commissioner William S. Greenberg, opening the third day of 
the SCI's hearing, recalled the previous session's testimony by 
casino officials who, he said, described "how shocking liberal 
credit decisions affected casino revenues, produced millions of 
dollars in bad debts and promoted criminal intrusion and 
corruption." He said additional exemplars of irresponsible credit 
practices had to be transcribed before the hearing's focus couli! 
shift later in the day to the impact of crei!it misuse ani! abuse on 
certain types of patrons, "including compulsive gamblers". Before 
turning to that subject, he said the Commission would first hear 
testimony "on the credit activities of Albert J. Tumbiolo, who 
wound up owing the casinos a half-million dollars in the wake of 
numerous, highly inexplicable credit extensions." 

Problem Gamblers 

Tumhiolo Investigator Testifies 

SCI Special Agent Dennis McGuigan, who investigated Tumbiolo's 
gaming activities as part of the Commission's credit probe, was 
questioned by SCI Counsel Michael V. Coppola about certain facets 
of his inquiry. The testimony follows: 

Q. Directing your attention to (Exhibit) 
for identification, does it accurately 
forth Mr. Tumbiolo's credit debt in 
Atlantic City casionos?* 

A. Yes. 

C-10 
set 
the 

Q. And does that chart reflect his debt as of 
Februarv 22, 1983? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. During the course of this 
credit investigation, did you 
Mr. Tumbiolo's background? 

Commission's 
learn about 

A. Yes, I did. Our initial investigation 
revealed that Mr. Tumbiolo is 56-years of 
age and resides in the West Babylon section 
of Long Island, New York State. He lists 
himself as the president and owner of the 
Sunset Taxi Company also located i.n the West 
Babylon section. 

*SeeChart;· next page. 
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ALBERT 'l'UMBIOLO 

CREDIT GAMBLER 

DEBT OWED AS OF 

2/22/83 

$100,000 

$100,000 

$ 71,500 

$125,000 

$ 96,500 

$493,000 



-162-

We have contacted New York State authorities 
and they have indicated that Mr. Tumbiolo 
has a rather serious criminal history. In 
1950 he was arrested and subsequently 
convicted on charges of armed robbery and 
carrying a concealed weapon. For that 
conviction he received a prison sentence of 
15-to 20-years. In 1959, he was again 
arrested and charged with the violation of 
patrol. I would add that in addition to 
that information, we have received 
intelligence inform"ltion indicating that 
Mr. Tumbiolo runs one of the largest 
floating crap games in the Long Island area. 

Q. Did you also have the opportunity to review 
various casino records relating to Tumbiolo 
and his associates? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. Specifically, did you have occasion to 
review Sands' records? 

A. Yes, I did. In reviewing the Sands' records 
on the application of Nicholas Joseph Russo 
of Trenton, New Jersey, the name Albert 
Tumbiolo is listed as a reference. 

Q. Who is Nicholas Russo and what. do you know 
about. him? 

A. As Lieutenant Colonel J)intino of the New 
Jersey State Police pointed out in his 
testimony, Russo is a member of the New 
York-based Gambino crime family. In 
addition, Mr. Russo was incarcerated from 
June of 1971 until October of 1973, on a 
charge of civil contempt for his refusal to 
testify before this Commission, which at 
that time was investigating organized crime. 

Caesar's Gave ~umbiolo Credit Despite Loan Shark Background 

Agent McGuigan said his review of surveillance records 
subpoenaed from Caesar's casino included a September, 19g1, memo 
that indicated Tumbiolo was a loan shark connected with the 
Genovese organized crime family. McGuigan quoted the memo as 
saying, "it is possible that Tumbiolo is using credit from various 
casinos to finance loan sharking operations which he conducts on 
the casino floor." Mc Gu igan also quoted from another memo which 
said that Tumbiolo used a confederate to cash in his chips, 
enabling him to take thousands of dollars out of the casinos. 
McGuigan was asked about Caesar's reaction to Tumbi0lo as a patron 
in the face of these derogatory reports: 
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Q. Did Caesars extend credit to Tumbiolo after 
their own surveillance department described 
him as a loan shark and an organized crime 
associate? 

A. Yes, they did. They extended a total of 
$150,000 in credit to Mr. Tumbiolo following 
the initial surveillance report. 

Playboy Had Derogatory Data But Gave Credit Anyway 

Agent McGuigan next described records on Tumbiolo' s gaming 
action at Playboy, including a 1981 memo saying that the gambler 
was "reported to be close to organized crime figures" and was being 
investigated by the FBI. McGuigan also recalled a 1982 memo in 
which Tumbiolo was characterized by New York law enforcement 
authorities as a loan shark. McGuigan testified further: 

Q, Did Tumbiolo receive credit at the Playboy 
after the memo of December 16, '81, where he 
was identified as subject of a federal 
investigation? 

A. Yes, he did. As a matter of fact, on 
January 3, 1982, and again on January 6, 
1982, he received a total of $125,000 in 
credit markers, which I might add were 
returned and marked "account closed" 
following his 90-day disposition on May 28, 
1982. 

Claridge Also Ignored Its Surveillance Reports 

The Claridge survei ll;mce reports 1 inked Tumbiolo with two 
former credit executives in schemes to cash in chips and leave the 
hotel with large sums of money obtained on credit. According to 
surveillance memos, TU!nbi.olo between September and November, 1981, 
used these and other associates to convert more than $64,500 in 
chips to his own use. McGuigan's testimony; 

Q. During the entire period of time 
surveillance reports from the 
covered, did the Claridge continue 
credit to Mr. Tumbiolo? 

that the 
Claridge 

to extend 

A. Yes, they did. They extended extensive 
amounts of credit to Mr. Tumbiolo while they 
were conducting the surveillance. As a 
matter of fact, they issued him a total of 
$100,000 in credit markers which were 
eventually returned marked "account closed." 

Bally's President Himself Okayed Tumbiolo Credit 

On Jaunary 23, 1983, Agent McGuigan interviewed William 
Weinberger, president of Bally's Park Place, about his role in that 
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casino's extension of credit to Tumbiolo. Others present at the 
interview included Special Agent Kurt Schmid of the SCI and lawyers 
representing Weinberger and the casino. Testimony on this 
interview and excerpts from Weinberger's previous executive session 
testimony at the SCI were put into the hearing record because 
illness prevented Weinberger from attending the hearing. The SCI 
agents' interview with Weinberger, according to Mc Gu igan, centered 
on the casino executive's association with Tumbiolo and his 
promotion of credit for a patron of such questionable repute. 
McGuigan's testimony continued: 

Q, Specifically on August 31, 1981, did 
Weinberger approve a credit increase in an 
amount that raised Tumbiolo's line to 
$100,000? 

A. Yes, he did. 

Q. Did Tumbiolo's credit 
derogatory information 
past gaming history? 

file set forth any 
concerning Tumbiolo' s 

A. Yes, it did. My review of the credit file 
revealed that on August 31, 1981, Bally 
conducted a Central Credit check on Mr. 
'I'umbiolo. That check revealed he had a 
total of $12,000 in outstanding derogatory 
write-offs from two Las Vegas casinos. In 
addition to that, he had a total of $285,000 
in outstanding credit balances in the other 
Atlantic City casinos. 

Q. Did you ask him why he gave Tumbiolo the 
credit increase in light of the information 
that was in the credit application of Mr. 
Tumbiolo? 

A. Yes, I did. Mr. Weinberger's explanation 
was that he considered Mr. Tumbiolo' s 
history of play and pay with Bally to be 
more significant than the information 
obtained from outside sources, referring to 
the Central Credit report. 

Q. According to Mr. Weinberger, 
competition among the casinos 
City for Tumbiolo's business? 

was there 
in Atlantic 

A. Yes, he related to myself and Agent Schmid 
that the Atlantic City casinos where 
Tumbiolo was a credit player were very 
actively vying for his business. As a 
matter of fact, on New Year's Eve of 1982, 
according to Mr. Weinberger, each of these 
casinos comped Mr. Tumbiolo for suite or 
penthouse accommodations. 
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Q. Did Mr. Weinberger present any gifts to 
Tumbiolo? 

A. Yes, he did. He stated during the interview 
that on Tumbiolo's birthday he presented him 
with a clown portrait in which Tumbiolo ,was 
a character. I estimated the value of this 
particular gift to be between 250 and $300. 

Q. Did Weinberger socialize with 
outside of the casino? 

Tumbiolo 

A. Yes, he did, on one specific occr.Fion. Mr. 
Weinberger indicated, and our review of 
other records also revealed, on July 8, 
1981, Mr. Weinberger attended a luncheon 
engagement with two other Bally's Park Place 
Casino executives in the Montville section 
of Long Island. The luncheon, according to 
Mr. Weinberger, was an effort to promote 
favorable customer relations. He described 
it as a strictly social event. 

THE CHAIRMAN: 
person other 
luncheon? 

was Tumbiolo the only outside 
than casino persons at the 

THE WITNESS: Tumbiolo' s attorney was also 
present. I would also add that following 
the luncheon, at Tumbiolo's insistence, the 
party went to the home of an individual 
identified as Jerome Weisner. 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

Q. Did your investigation reveal anything about 
Mr. Weisner? 

A. Yes, it did. Our investigation revealed 
that Mr. Weisner has a rather extensive 
criminal record. It includes arrests dating 
back to 1937 for burglary, rape, assault, 
abduction, possession of burglary tools and 
most recently, in December of 1981, Mr. 
Weisner was arrested by the Secret Service 
and charged with possession of counterfeit 
currency. Those charges are still pending 
and there is currently a fugitive warrant 
outstanding for Mr. Weisner. His 
whereabouts are presently unknown. 

Easy Credit Led to Scam 

Counsel Coppola next questioned Agent McGuigan about 
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Weinberger' s role in extending a big credit line to a suspected 
credit scam perpetrator. The testimony: 

Q. During the interview, did you also discuss 
Mr. Norman Dell's credit activity at Bally's 
Casino? 

A. Yes, we did. The credit file revealed that 
Mr. Dell owed Bally Park Place a total of 
$117,500. I might add that Mr. Dell is also 
indebted to Caesars for $61,897 and to 
Resorts International for $10,000. 

Q. Did your review also include an 
investigation of the information that Mr. 
Dell presented on the face of the 
application and what Bally's did with 
respect to it? 

A. Yes, it did. According to that review, Mr. 
Dell applied for a $40,000 credit line on 
March 11, 1980. Indicated on the employment 
section of the card was the fact that he was 
the vice president of a New York City-based 
corporation. 

Q. Is there anything in the Bally' s card, 
itself to indicate that or show that Bally's 
verified that particular piece of 
information? 

A. There is absolutely nothing indicating that 
employment was verified. 

There was confusing bank information on Del 1' s credit 
application. At one point, McGuigan testified, the casino obtained 
in format ion by telephone that Del 1 had a bank balance of S 1 O, 000 
and that the account was opened in February, 197g. However Bally's 
on March 25, 1980, received written verification from the bank that 
indicated the information was spurious. The written notice stated 
that Dell's bank account was opened on March 11, the same day Rally 
extended him a $40,000 credit line. McGuigan was asked about this 
incident: 

Q. Is that particular fact significant in light 
of what you've learned during the course of 
this investigation? 

A. Yes, it is very significant. One of the 
primary methods of carrying off a credit 
scam is to inflate your bank account 
immediately prior to applying for credit and 
then when the markers are eventually sent to 
your bank for collection, you withdraw that 
money, and there's absolutely no money to 
draw against~ 
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Q. Did that happen in this case? 

A. 

Q. 

According 
collection 
and marked 

to my review of Mr. Dell's 
file, his markers were returned 
non-sufficient funds. 

Did your review of the 
Dell reveal anything 
significant? 

credit application of 
else that was very 

A. Yes, it did. On the second page of the 
application there is a notation and it 
states quoting discussed with Regency 
customer fraud. Bank in west Indies is a 
phony. Many suits in judgments against a 
player -- end of quote. 

Q. Had Bally's accepted any cherks from Mr. 
Dell drawn at the bank in the West Indies? 

A. Yes, they did. They accepted a $40,000 
cashier's check dated March 20, 1980, and 
also a $50,000 cashier's check dated April 
4, 1980. I would add that both of those 
checks were returned and marked 
uncollectible. 

Q. Was Mr. Weinberger involved in any cre<'li t 
decisions after May 16? 

A. Yes, he was. On May 18, two days later, 
Mr. Weinberger co-approved a continuation of 
Dell's credit limit at $95,000. 

Q. Did you ask him why he di<'! that? 

A. I di<'! ask him. His only response was that 
it must have been an oversight on his part, 
and had he seen that particular notation, 
he would have suspended Mr. Del 1' s credit 
privileges at that point. 

Q. Prior to Hally's extending any credit to 
Dell, was Dell in debt? 

A. Yes, he was. He owed a total of $64,600 in 
various judgments, and he also had a $3,500 
federal tax lien against him. 

How Bally Wrote Off $350 Million Debt 

As previously noted, Weinberger's executive session testimony 
was read into the record by Agent McGuigan since the Hally's 
casino's president had been excused from the hearing because of 
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illness. The testimony highlighted the manner in which Bally's 
through Weinberger, wrote off $350,000 of the $500,000 debt that 
the casino had permitted credit gambler Samuel Rosenblum to run up 
during a period of eight months ending in August, 1980. Counsel 
Coppola read the questions from the executive session transcript 
and witness McGuigan repeated Weinberger's answers, as follows: 

Q. "Question: Over what period of time are we 
talking about before you became, as you put 
it, very good friends?" 

Ag II Answer: In the casino business, excuse me, 
you become very good friends when someone 
needs something and you give it to them, so 
to speak, and that may sound crazy. Sam 
Rosenblum was a fellow that played high and 
heavy and he always met the people in 
authority and made it his business to meet 
the people in authority, and who could 
overrule who; and as time went on we became 
friends and had dinner once in a while, had 
mutual friends, had dinner with them. I 
never visited him in Philadelphia prior to 
my coming here, but I had dinner with him 
many times in Las Vegas and his wife and my 
wife~" 

Q. "Question: When he showed up at your casino 
in December of t79 were you expecting him?'' 

A. "Answer: I invited him. In fact, before we 
opened I went to Philadelphia ana 
entertainecl him at a Variety Club dinner 
along with some other people, and then we 
went to a nightclub to see some kincl of an 
act and then he came to the opening of 
Bally's Park Place, he insisted on throwing 
out the first dice and we said, Sam, it 
would be our pleasure.• 

Q. "Question, He gambled on credit at your 
casino for quite a long period of time?" 

A9 uAnswer~ Yes, sire" 

Q. "Question: And I 
was something like 
on credit?" 

believe the final tally 
.500,000 owed to Bally's 

A~ 11 .A.nswer: Y.es 1 sir,, 11 

Q. "Question: 
settlement 
amounted to, 

And eventually there was a 
r<eached and that s<ettlement 
I believe $150,000?" 
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A. "Answer: I think I better tell the story 
how it came out. 

Q. "Question: Go right ahead." 

A. "Answer: Fine. Sam, he came down to see 
me. He said, Bill, I'm in trouble and, as I 
say, we were close friends ••. He said that he 
owed a great deal of money to gaming casinos 
and he wanted to settle. I said, well, Sam, 
New Jersey is not like Nevada and you have 
an enforceable obligation in New Jersey. 
However, the only thing, if yo'-1 want to sit 
down and write a letter with a i:easonable 
settlement and be ready to lay down the 
money, I will be glad to take it to our 
credit committee which requires three of 
us. We talked back and forth. At first I 
recommended 50-percent. He recommended 
25. Things went back and forth. I said, 
look, Sam, write the letter and we'll see 
what happens. 

"When I talked to the people on the credit 
committee, I thought it was a good idea at 
any price, to be honest with you, because if 
we could make a cash player out of Sam and 
not give him credit, it would be much better 
for us as businessmen. It would be a good 
business decision. 

"I might add, Sam Rosenblum was not 
delinquent in any New Jersey c3sino; and in 
foreign casinos and Nevada casinos they are 
unenforceable obligations, so you couldn't 
call them delinquent either ... I recommended 
this. 

11 Anyway, we 
be to our 
decision to 

came to the conclusion 
advantage and a good 
do this ••. 

it would 
business 

Q. "Question: Mr. Weinberger, will you tell me 
the reason that you are satisfied that 
making Mr. Rosenblum into a cash customer 
and writing, off $350,000 out of a $500,000 
debt was a prudent business decision on your 
part?" 

A. "Answer: Sam has become closer to me as a 
friend. He is closer to Sally's Park 
Place. If he is going to play, and Sam will 
be playing on the way to the cemetery, and I 
don't mean to be facetious, but that's the 
kind of guy he is. But I know that feeling, 
and I've been married 45-years. On my 
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honeymoon I went broke 
Havana and every now and 
of it. 

shooting 
then I'm 

crap in 
reminded 

Q. "Question: That's one debt that hasn't been 
forgiven?" 

A. "Answer: And it never will be because I 
wouldn't let my wife buy a suit for $35 
because we were short of money. 

"But Sam thinks we befriended him and he 
gives us credit. I don't know if anyone 
else in the state has talked to him, but we 
are his friends. I am his friend. Sam is 
going to play and if he plays at Atlantic 
City, r think he will give Bally's Park 
Place a great deal of his business. He 
knows it's cash. He will not become 
offenderl. The proof of the pudding is, he 
didn't like our suites in the hotel because 
they were too far from the elevator for his 
wife to walk, so they used to stay at 
another hotel and come to our place to 
play." 

Q. "Question: In New Jersey you have to make a 
reasonable collection effort before you 
write somebody off, is that true, according 
to the regulations?" 

A. "According to the regulations and according 
to our corporate policieso" 

Q. "Question: In your mind doesn't a reason­
able collection effort mean accumulating as 
much information as you can about an indivi­
dual? In other words, his financial situa­
tion to aid you in making the determination 
whether or not to write him off or not?" 

A. 

Q. 

"Answer: The answer is yes. 11 

"Question: 
you utilize 
garding this 

What source of information did 
to accumulate information re­
Samuel Rosenblum indebtedness?" 

A. "Answer, None. I knew Sam for many years. 
I knew him as an affluent man. I knew him 
as a man who paid his bills. r knew him as 
a man who kept his word. I knew him as a 
man when he used to come to Las Vegas and 
there would be eight or ten couples with 
potential of half-a-million dollars to draw 
against. 
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Q. "Question: Were you aware that Mr. 
Rosenblum had funds, lee's even say 
sufficient funds to payoff the whole balance 
of the indebtedness at the time that you 
were proposing a 30-percent settlement to 
the committee?" 

A. "P.nswer: No, I did not know, but I did know 
that if it ever had to go to a lawsuit or 
one thing or another that he probably had 
enough assets. I know he must have owned 
some real estate. Sam is an e.ffluent man 
and $500,000 or a million dollars is not a 
lot of money to Sam, in my opinon.• 

Q. "Question: Would you tell the other casino 
that he owed us 500,000 and we accepted 150 
and we wrote off 350?" 

A. "Answer: 
you." 

All depends on how well I knew 

Q. "What about Central Credit?" 

A. "Answer: No. I would tell them it was a 
settlement." 

Q. "Question: You would not give them the 
particular amounts?" 

A. 11 Answer: 
mane II 

I would not want to hurt that 

Q. "Question: The 350,000 that was written off 
by your casino, was that also written off 
for tax purposes in New Jersey?" 

A. 11 Answer: 
was . 11 

I don't know, but I'm sure it 

CPA Audits High Roller Zarin 

In preparation for the subsequent appearance of David Zarin, 
the one-time high roller who won and lost millions of dollars at 
the New Jersey casinos before joining Gamblers Anonymous as an 
addict, the SCI called for testimony by Anthony n. ~estuccia, 
supervising agent of the Division of Gaming Enforcement's Auclit 
Section. Restuccia, who was scheduled to discuss credit control 
reforms on the final day of the hearing, appeared at this juncture 
in order to give a synopsis of an investigation he was assigned to 
conduct into the gambling activities at Resorts International by 
Zarin and his then-constant gaming companion, Martha Nemtin. 
Questioned by SCI Counsel Coppola, Restuccia said Zarin began 
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gambling at Resorts in June, 19713, and Mrs. Nemtin in October, 
1978, and that, until they ceased gaming at Resorts in April, 1980, 
they were treated, in effect, as a single patron because of the 
manner in which they shared chips and paid each other's debts. By 
May of 1980 they had become critically over-extended as credit 
players and checks totalling $4.8 million had bounced. 'lestuccia 
was asked to describe Zarin' s gambling activity by means of a 
chart* that was introduced as an exhibit. This testimony ensued: 

Q. Mr. Restuccia, would you please explain what 
this exhibit is? Perhaps you could come 
down here and walk your explanation through 
this chart.* 

A. Well, this diagram deals with Resorts 
International. We found that David Zarin 
and "lartha Nemtin, combined, cashed 
approximately $2 million in non-qaming 
checks at the casino cage. In effect, they 
gave Resorts their checks and Resorts gave 
them cash. The remainder of the S16. 7 
million involves $14.2 million in markers 
which were issued at the casino cage for 
which they received chips in exchange. 

Q. Did you examine those particular 
transactions, the marker activity and the 
non-gaming check activity? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. And what did you find? 

A. Well, as the investigation continued, the 
next item we wanted to identify was how that 
money was utilized. What we found was the 
checks that were written in the casino, a 
number of things happened to them. First of 
all, there was a portion of the money which 
we could not determine how it was utilized. 
That's included in this $4.8 million and is 
$2.6 million which is undetermined. 

The next step was to review player ratings. 
Player ratings are the measure of the amount 
of money that a patron wins or loses or 
maybe doesn't gamble in the casino. And we 
found that approximately $2 million or $2.2 
million was lost in the casino by David 
Zarin and Martha Nemtin during that time. 

•see chart, next page. 
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In addition, we saw through records in the 
casino cage that $2 million in markers were 
paid in cash. And we were able to 
determine, through other recor'.ls, that 
approximately $9. 9 million ended up being 
deposited in the account in the name of 
David Zarin in the Atlantic City bank 
account. 

Q. What conclusions can you draw about that 
S9.9 million fiqure? 

A. It appears that the patrons did not return 
to the cage for the purposes of repaying the 
markers. They returned to the cage for the 
purpose of transferring those chips into 
cash awl leaving the casino and depositing 
the money into this bank accout. In effect, 
they walked with the chips. 

Q. Th is a 11 occurred between the time per ion 
February 1, 1980 an11 April 17, 1980? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. What happened next? 

A. Next we traced the flow of funds in this 
Atlantic City bank account, the funns left 
that account. There were a portion of the 
funds which we coulnn't determine, 
approximately $300,000. There was a million 
dollars that was deposited into a domestic 
U.S. bank account; and in addition, there's 
approximately $8.6 million which was 
transferred into some Canadian banks. Many 
of these accounts were opened just shortly 
before this time period. 

Q. What does that pattern of activity suggest 
to you from Resorts to New Jersev banks to 
the Canadian banks? 

A. It constitutes elements of check kiting 
scheme. 

Q. Did the pattern of activity, in effect, give 
them a float period of time to conduct their 
activities? 

A. Yes, they had use of the money from the time 
they left the casino with it until those 
checks were ultimately presented to the bank 
and then clearing. So, depending on where 
the bank was, they could have anywhere from 
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two weeks -- if the bank accounts were in 
Canada, there was a six-week clearing time. 

Did you look 
transactions? 

at the Canadian bank 

A. Yes, we did. 

Q. What did you find from your review of those 
documents? 

A. Well, first the Canadian bank accounts show 
a lot of activity. We didn't look at all 
the activity. What we did £ind was 
approximately $14.7 million was written to 
Resorts International to pay off gambling 
debts. The next step we found was that of 
approximately a half-a-million dollars was 
non-gaming checks. So $4. 2 million had 
bounced which had been used to pay markers. 
These figures indicate there were more 
checks written than there was in the hank 
accounts the total amount of checks 
exceeded the funds in the bank. 

Q. Now, does this pattern of activity 
demonstrate the inadequacy of certain credit 
regulations or inadaquacies within the 
casino control account? 

A. Well, there are several areas which could be 
improved, I would think that, number one, 
when these two patrons left the gaming 
tables and they had chips in their 
possession, it would have been helpful if 
there was a method to gain payment at the, 
gaming table. 

Next, when they went to the cashier's cage 
and they attempted, not attempted, when they 
did exchange these chips for cash, it was 
done, in spite of the fact they owe 
substantial sums to the casino, there was no 
requirement since they had an outstanding 
balance they had to apply the chips in their 
possession to those outstanding markers. 

Next, when David Zarin opened up a number of 
Canadian bank accounts, had the casino been 
required to verify any of the bank accounts 
which he had been writing checks on to pay 
markers, they found the accounts had been 
opened for just a short period of time with 
nominal moneys and they never would have 
accepted those checks. With respect to 
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non-gaming checks; since that time, 
regulations have been changed to allow only 
an amount of $200 per patron, per day to be 
cashed in the casino to prevent this type of 
activity. 

Former Pit Boss Recalls Crap Shooter Zarin 

Roger Deaton, who was an assistant shift boss at Resorts at 
the time of the hearing, was a pit boss at the time of Zarin' s 
multi-million dollar gambling splurge with Mrs. Nemtin at the 
casino. Indeed, Zarin gambled only in the area that Deaton 
supervised and, according to the witness, would bet as much as 
$7,000 on a roll of the dice. Counsel Coppola discussed the 
Zarin-Nemtin gaming activity with the witness, as follows: 

Q. What kind of player was he? 

A. Basically what we- r-ate as one of our top 
players. A one-rated player. 

Q. What is a one player? 

A. Anyone that gambles .•. in the dice pit for 
anywhere from $300 to $500 per decision on 
the game. 

Q. How much could one player have down at the 
game on one particular roll of the dice? 

A. When Mr. Zarin was playing it could be 
around six to $7,000. 

Q. Did you know a person by the name of Martha 
Nemtin? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Did she and Zarin gamble together? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did Mr. Zarin pass off chips to Nemtin on 
occasion? 

A. Yes, he did. 

Q. And after she received the chips from Zarin, 
did she leave the gaming area? 

A. At times, yes. 

Q. Were ther-e occasions when Mr. Zarin coulr'! 
leave the table with substantial por-tions of 
chips in his possession? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. Do you know where he went? 

A. No, I don't, but all players will leave the 
table at times with chips, all players, not 
just Mr. Zarin. 

Q. Based on your observations of his activity 
at the table, did he leave the table with 
substantial chips in his possession? 

A. At times Mr. Zarin won a lot of QOney, yes. 
At times he lost a lot of money :..nd, you 
know, if you win a lot of money, yes, you're 
going to leave with a lot of chips. 

Zarin Tells How He Lost Millions at Dice* 

David Zarin, by his own admission, lost $2.5 million dollars 
and wound up owing· almost $5 million additional at casino gaming 
tables -- primarily at Resorts International during 1978 and 
1979. He recalled that he began gambling at the rate of four or 
five hours a day, three or four days a week, but that by 1979 he 
"got progressively worse and, toward the end of 1 979, I was there 
seven days a week, 12 to 16 hours a day." Zarin was president of 
the DRZ Corporation which, with another of his companies, Sencit, 
was a low-income housing developer in Atlantic City. Zarin 
indicated he borrowed huge sums, including more than a million 
dollars from the DRZ company, to finance his gambling spree. Zarin 
also recalled how he and his gambling partner, Martha Nemtin, 
shared credit, chips and debts during their gaming activity. Zarin 
ultimately succeeded in convincing himself that he was a compulsive 
gambler and, having with that self-admission met the most stringent 
membership requirment, joined Gamblers Anonymous. As a recovered 
gambling addict, he has become one of that organization's strongest 
advocates. Zarin was questioned by counsel Coppola. His condensed 
testimony follows: 

Q. What, in fact, brought you to Atlantic City 
in 1978? 

A. I came to Atlantic City because I felt that 
housing would be needed with the advent of 
gambling. We had been doing housing in New 
Jersey, Pennsylvania, and Florida. so, I 
came because I felt housing would be 
absolutely vital in Atlantic City. 

Q. Now, how would you describe your gaming 
activity at Resorts throughout the year 
1978? In other words, was the situation 
under control for you? 

*See Chart (repeated), next page. 
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Yes, it was under control in '78. 
losses, but nothing of the magnitude 
occurrea later. 

I had 
that 

Q. And basically, did you gamble on credit 
between June of 1978 and April of 1980? 

A. I did. 

Q. And can you give us an estimate of the money 
that Resorts claimed you owed them at the 
end of this time period? 

A. They claimed I owed them something like 
three-and-a+half million dollars. 

Q. And was there also an additional 1.2 million 
approximately, that concerned itself with 
the gaming debt related to Martha Nemtin's 
activity at the casino? 

A. Yes, sir, there was. 

Q. Now, in fact, were you and Martha 
sued for total of approximately 
million? 

"lemtin 
$4.6 

A. Approximately, yes. 

Q. We show you what's been marked Exhibit C-125 
for identification. It includes a Personal 
Statement, dated January 31, 1979, and it 
concerns your financial situation as of 
9-30-1978. It shows a note payable to DRZ 
Corporation in the amount of $915,000 and, 
well, $952,301. Did you borrow from DRZ 
Corporation in 1978? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And what did you do with the borrowed money? 

A. Well, some of it was used to sustain my 
gambling losses, others was for my personal 
use, other items. 

Q. I would like to direct your attention to the 
page of the exhibit entitled David R. Zarin, 
statements of assets and liabilities, June 
30, 1979 unaudited, and there's a section on 
the page entitled liabilities. Now, that 
shows a note payable to a person in an a­
amount of $300,000. Do you know that 
person? 
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A. Yeah, he was one of my partners. 

Q. There is also a note payable to a bank 
indicated on this page in an amount of 
$201,080. Was that money borrowed from that 
bank in order to assist you in maintaining 
your current situation at Resorts? 

A. Yes, sir, it was. 

Q. Did you borrow that money specifically to 
keep gambling at Resorts and pay Resorts 
money during the course of 1979? 

A. I did. 

Q. Was the $300,000 that you borrowed from your 
business partner as a note payable also used 
to continue gambling at Resorts? 

A. Most of it, yes. 

Q. There's also a note payable to 
Corporation in an amount of $1,086,646. 
that money borrowed by you from 
corporation? 

A. It was, Counselor. 

DRZ 
Was 
the 

Q. Did you use that money to finance your 
gaming activities at Resorts in 1979? 

A. I did, yes, sir. 

Q. Did you ever tell Resorts that you were, in 
effect, having a cash flow problem where 
you, yourself would have to go get money 
from an outside source to pay them the 
gaming debt? 

A. No, sir, I didn't. 

Resorts' Housing Shelter Proposal 

Zarin recalled a proposal by executives of Resorts that they 
would buy an interest in his Atlantic City housing c'levelopment as a 
"tax shelter." According to Zarin, who had at the time just 
completed a $ 50 mill ion low cost housing development, he 
subsequently rejected the deal after Resorts proposed making a 
public announcement which, he said, suggested that the housing 
proposition would demonstrate to the Casino Control Commission that 
the casino was responding to pressures for a larger industry 
commitment to housing development in Atlantic City. Zarin said 
·Jack Dav is, president of Resorts, first suggested that the 
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comoany's executives would be interesti,n in purchasinq "an interest 
in some housing tax shelters I was building" and that Steve Norton, 
a vice president, later reiterated that interest in the tax shelter 
plan. Zarin testified about the outcome of the proposal, as 
follows: 

Q. Based on your understaniling of that 
conversation with Jack Davis, did you feel 
that the proposed tax shelter was for Mr. 
Davis as an individual, or Mr. Davis on 
behalf of Resorts, the tax shelter for 
Resorts Corporation? 

A. No, the tax shelter for Resort executives 
were certainly of an individual character. 

Q. So, 
had 
the 

the fact that they workect for Resorts 
nothing to do with your understanding of 
situation? 

A. Nothing to do with Resorts. ~hat's correct. 

Q. Dirt you have the 
itself was going to 
involved in the tax 

impression that Resorts 
hold itself out as beinq 
shelter? 

A. Not at that time, Counselor. 

Q. Did there co'l\e a time when you qot that 
feeling? 

A. Yes, when we were approaching the climax of 
negotiations. The offering oaper was being 
prescribed by their attorneys. It was at 
that time that they were goin<J to issue a 
press release on the purchase of the tax 
shelter. 

Q. What was the nature of the press release 
that Resorts wanted to issue? 

A. Well, Resorts at that time wanted to issue a 
press release saying that Resorts would 
participate in housing in Atlantic City. 

Q. 

A. 

Were you told why 
that particular 
information in it? 

They were beinq 
Control Commission 
Atlantic City. 

they wanted 
release 

pressed by 
to provicle 

to put 
with 

out 
that 

the Casino 
housing for 

Q. What was your response to that suggestion? 

A. Well, I told them that couldn't be, that 
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these were individual tax shelters, and t~at 
we could not and would not put out a press 
release sustaining Resorts as the purchaser 
of the tax shelter. 

Q. Were there any further negotiations with 
respect to this issue of tax shelters? 

A. Just that I issued a statement to the press 
that there would be no deal with Resorts. 

Easy Credit Fed Zarin's Gambling Addiction 

Q. Mr. Zarin, a review of your credit 
application showed that in 1979 you drew 
markers on 139 days. The total amount that 
you paid Resorts in 1979 was anprox imately 
$1. 8 million, that payment was in checks anil 
cash, and at the end of the year you had a 
balance at Resorts of $443,000. Would it be 
fair to say or to characterize your qaminq 
activity in 1979 as a loss? 

A. Yes, sir, indeea it would. 

Q. During that period of time were you losing 
everything that you had worked for? 

A. During that period of time I certainly was. 
Without realizing it, Counselor, and in 
retrospect, I now begin to understana what 
was happening. But in that period of time, 
yes, I lost a great deal of what I had spent 
a lifetime working for, yes. 

Q. Would it also be fair to say that you were 
gambling beyond your means in 1979? 

A. Yes, it would. 

Q. I want to ask you about credit increases and 
how they took place at Resorts, let's say 
for 1979. You received, according to your 
credit application, 26 credit increases 
during that time period, and Gary Grant was 
involved in most of those credit increases. 

Can you tell us how it comes about that one 
gets or you received a ccedit increase at 
Resorts? How does the transaction take 
place? 

A. In '79 towards the latter part, October, 
November, December, I was losing excessively 
and reaching my credit limit very quickly, 
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and I was always pushing the casino to 
increase my credit limit so I can continue 
gambling. And I would ask Mr. Grant for an 
increase in my credit limit. 

Q. Were you asked any questions by Mr. Grant 
such as what are your living expenses? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Were you asked how much money do you owe 
outside of, let's say, Resorts Casino? 

A. No, sir. 

Free Rooms, Food, Drink Spurred Credit Gaming 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

What was your own feeling about what was 
happening during that period of time in your 
life, 1979? 

Well, in 1979, I was gambling most of the 
time. There was an estrange"\ent from my 
family and my business. That was the later 
part of '79. It was devastating. 

Did you have a s:.ii.te at Resorts? 

Yes, s'i.r. 

Q. Describe it for us. 

A. It was a large room, it was a large living 
room including tel~vision set and a bar and, 
then, there was a large bedroom and two 
baths. 

Q. Who paid for that? 

A. Resorts. 

Q. Did you have the benefit of any other comps 
at Resorts or from Resorts during 1979? 

A. Yeah, the beginning of '79 I was comped for 
my room. The end of '79, I was comped for 
everything. 

Q. What does everything include? 

A. Well, entertainment, food, living, travel­
ing, that kind of thing. 

Q. When you say "traveling" did they provide a 
limousine to be at your disposal basically? 
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A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Where would you go with the limousine? 

A. I had an office in Elizabeth and an office 
in Harrisburg, and I would go to my offices. 

Caesars "Competed" For Zarin's Patronage 

Q. Did there come a time when you attempted to 
or, in fact, did establish a credit line at 
Caesars in Atlantic City? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. I refer you to an exhibit marked C-127 for 
identification, a copy of your credit 
application at Caesars. It also sets forth 
your credit gaming activity. Do you recall 
when you applied to Caesars for credit? 

A. August 10, '79. 

Q. Now, can you tell us why did 
Caesars, and by the way, what 
were you given at Caesars? 

you go to 
credit line 

A. I think $50,000. 

Q. Did you eventually, at least according to 
Caesars, owe them, I believe, over $200,000? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Why dirl you go to Caesars to establish a 
credit line in view of the fact that Resorts 
was giving you everything you wanted as far 
as your gaming activity in 1979? Why the 
need for an additional credit line? 

A. It wasn't a need for funds or even credit, 
Counselor. It was as a gambler does when 
he's running bad in one place, you try to go 
to another place to gamble as such, and you 
can• t. It wasn't propitious to carry cash 
from one casino to another. 

Q. Now, did there come 
I'll characterize it 
Caesars and Resorts 
gaming activity? 

A. Yes, sir. 

a time in 1979 when, 
as competition between 
took place for your 
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Q. How did the competition show itself, if vou 
can tell us that? 

A. Well, Martha (Nemtin) was suggesting, was 
telling me that Caesars was asking her to 
bring me over there so that we could play, 
that we would be comped and that's the first 
I had inkling I had of it. 

Q. What did Caesars do for you, 
remember? 

A. Just comped us for meals, that's all. 

if you 

Q. Did there come a time when they presented 
you and Martha Nemtin with gifts? 

A. Received a large screen television set that 
came to my home one iay in Elizabet'!. 

Q. Did Martha Nemtin also receive a similar 
T.V. set? 

~. A T.V. set came to her home in Canada. 

Q. Did Resorts give you 
during that period 
recall? 

anythin<J 
of time 

in particula"." 
that you can 

A. Gave me a wristwatch around Christmas time. 

Q. Did Martha Nemtin receive anything from 
Resorts? 

A. Yeah, she received a watch also. 

Q. Did there come a time in 1980 when you went 
on a boat trip? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Who paid for the boat trip? 

A. Caesars. 

Q. Where did you go? 

A. We went to the Bahamas to Nassau. 

Q. And how long did you stay there? 

A. About two days. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: 
wasn't an ordinary boat, 
yacht, wasn't it. 

Mr. Zarin, this 
this was a private 
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THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, it was. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: And you were the 
only people on the yacht, your party? 

THE WITNESS: My party only, yes, sir. 

"My Only Desire Was To Gamble" 

Q. Now, at the end of 1979 you owed, according 
to Caesars card, 200,000; according to 
Resorts card 433,000. were you in control 
of the situation? 

A. No, sir, I wasn't. 

Q. Can you give us an idea of what it was like 
to be in that position? 

A. Well, very traumatic for me. At that time 
my only desire was to continue gambling. 
Again, my attention to my family was 
depleted and my attention to my business was 
curtailed a great deal and my only desire 
was to continue gambling. 

Q. What kind of bets were you making? 

A. The end of 
could have 
number. 

'79 
had 

I 
a 

suppose 
thousand 

I suppose 
dollars on 

I 
a 

Q. How many numbers would you have bet on one 
roll of the dice? 

A. Mostly all of them. 
since I played dice, 
still six numbers. 

It's been three years 
but I think there are 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: That means $6,000 
on every roll of the dice? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, Commissioner. 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

Q. When you were getting credit increases, how 
would these increases come? What would you 
have to do in order to get them? 

A. Well, all I'd have to do is ask for the 
increase and now with becoming more frequent 
and there wasn't any time lapse, my checks 
did not have to clear. This was the latter 
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'79 .• , No bank information 
It was almost automatic. 

was 

Q. Now, in 1980 did the situation change at 
Resorts insofar as how they looked at your 
checks that you were giving them? 

A, Yes, sir it did. When I came back from the 
Christmas holidays I had an apartment in 
Florida and I spent Christmas and New Year's 
with my family. When I came back I wanted 
to know from Gary whether all my checks had 
cleared so I could gamble, and ~e said you 
don't have to worry about that anymore. He 
says you have unlimited credit. 

Q. He actually used those words? 

A. No, I don't think he used those words, bnt 
that was the significance to me. He said 
that they would consider the checks good as 
soon as I had written them. 

Q. In January, a review of your card, January 
'80 shows that you were in the casino 
drawing markers on 19 days, and you drew 
approximately $1.6 million in markers. In 
February of 19130 you were in the casino 17 
days drawing markers, and you drew over $2 
mill ion in markers, In March you were in 
the casino 25 days, you drew approxirnatelv 
$3.3 million in markers. In April you were 
in the casino 28 days and you drew 
approximately six-and-a-half million dollars 
in markers. 

What was going on during this period of your 
life that you could possibly draw that much 
money during that short a period of time? 
How did you gamble all that money? 

A. I wish I knew, Counselor. I was completely 
out of it, and to try to, in all the times 
I've been before committees, to try to 
recapitulate is incrediblely impossible. I 
had no idea of the checks I was writing. 
The only thing I wanted to do was to keep 
gambling. I was completely, absurdly, 
devastatingly out of it. 

Q. oid you have a cash flow problem during that 
time period? 

A. Yes, sir. 
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q. Were you able to borrow any more money from 
outside sources during that time period? 

A. Yes, sir, I think I was. 

Q. Do you remember, you don't have to tell us 
who, but can you tell us the amount of money 
that you borrowed and what you did with the 
money when you received it? 

A. I borrowed approximately six, $700,000 in 
that period and I gambled it. 

Q. Did you use that money to pay off markers 
that were previously written? 

A. I used that money to continue gambling. 

Cashed "Non-Gaming" Checks To Pay Resorts Markers 

Q. Now, as to your cash flow problem, do you 
know that Resorts in a way helped you get 
over the cash flow problem during the early 
parts of 1980? 

A. Well, I don't know how Resorts helped. I 
presume by that you' re meaning I was using 
the casino money to cover the checks that I 
had been writing. 

Q. That's it. Tell us how that happened. 

A. It's hard to reconstruct it, Counselor, it 
really is. But whenever I would be short in 
the bank, 1 would simply cover it with 
whatever moneys I had available, borrowed, 
or moneys from Resorts or whatever. 

Q. The money 
money that 
into cash? 

from Resorts, did ·that include 
you received by converting chips 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Was Resorts also 
non-gaming checks 
period of time? 

cashing, quote-unquote, 
during this particular 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Do you remember tl1e first time you presented 
a non-gaming check to Resorts for them to 
cash? 

A. Yes, I asked Mr. Grant to cash 
non-gaming checks and he agreed. 

the 
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Q. How much was the first check for, if you 
recall? 

A. It was $50,000, I think. 

Q. And over a period of time did Resorts cash 
non-gaming checks worth over $2 million? 

A. I think so, Counselor, yes. 

Q. Did Mr. Grant ask you when you presented 
this $50,000 check to him what you needed 
the money for? 

A. The first time he asked me and I told him I 
needed it for salaries, which was not true. 

Q. That was 
approval 
What did 

it. 
to 

you 

What did you do? 
cash the check 

do with the cash? 

You got the 
for $50,000. 

A. I simply used it to cover any deficiencies 
that I had in the accounts due to gambling. 

Cash-Short Zarin Opened Canadian Bank Accounts 

Q. Now during this 
short of cash in 
debts at Resorts, 

A. Correct. 

period of time you were 
order to cover your gaming 
is that correct? 

Q. Now, did there cowe a time when you opened a 
Canadian bank account? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Why did you open a Canadian bank account? 

A. Well, Martha was using her bank account to 
sustain my gambling in that terrible period, 
and then what had happened was that she said 
she couldn't sustain my gambling losses any 
longer and all I did, what I did was simply 
open up the Canadian account to replace 
Martha's account, which had been in use for 
three, four months. Which was also in 
Canada. Both accounts. 

Q. Did the use of that account give you and 
Nemtin additional time to cover your gaming 
activity at Resorts? 
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A. Well, yes. 

Q. You recall the date April 17, 1980? Did you 
go to Canada on that date? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Did you open bank accounts at two banks in 
Canada? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Did you deposit any money? 

A. Some ten or $20,000. 

Q. Did you come back to New Jersey that same 
day? 

A. Yes, sir. I came back to gamble. Went 
right to the crap game. 

Q. I show you Exhibit C-105, a Xerox copy that 
I believe shows three checks, the second 
page shows two checks. The total amount is 
some $180,00Q. What bank were those checks 
drawn on? 

A. Royal Bank. 

Q. Did you make those in Canada -­

A. Yes. 

Q. Did you make those checks out pavable· to a 
certain corporation? 

A. Resorts, yes. 

Q. Did you present those checks to Resorts on 
l\pril 17, 1980? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. Now, why did you give them that amount of 
money in that form on that day? 

A. That's the amount of money I lost. 

Q. Did you have money in the Canadian account 
at the time? To cover the checks? 

A. No. 
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Q, Who accepted those checks ft:om you on that 
date? 

A. Gary Grant. 

Q, What did you say and what did he say? 

A, Well, Gary looked at it and he says what's 
this. And I said I had opened up an account 
in Canada, Gary, because I need the 
additional time to clear my checks. 

Q. Did he respond to that? 
Just took the checks? 

What did he do? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Resorts Cuts Zarin Off After $3M Checks Bounced 

Q. Now, what brought an end to your gaming 
activity at Resorts on credit? 

A. At the end of April, April 30, I was told by 
one of the people in the casino that they 
had found a way to expedite the clearance of 
these checks. 

Q, Shortly thereafter did over $3 mil lion in 
checks drawn on that account bounce? 

A. Oh, yes, surely. When he told me that, I 
told him I couldn't clear those checks in 
that short period of time. 

Q. Did they give you anv reason why they were 
now, at this point, cutting off the whole 
situation? I mean, there was nothinq 
different going on now than was going on for 
the last five or six months· with you at 
Resorts; correct? 

A. I don't know, but they gave me no reason, 
Counselor. 

Q, I show you a copy of a complaint filed by 
Resorts naming yourself and Martha Nemtin as 
defendants. Does that document basically 
set forth that you were sued for $3.4 milion 
and Martha Nemtin was sued for aoproximately 
$1.2 million? 

A. Yes. 

Q. We also show you 
documents ... The document 

two additional 
I w0uld like t0 



-192-

refer to is a copy of the complaint 
yourself against Resorts •.• And can 
us what the basis was of your 
against Resorts? 

filed by 
you tell 

lawsuit 

A. At that time, Counselor, my attorney was 
Gol<lstein. After spending many, many, manv 
days with Goldstein describing what had 
happened, Goldstein was utterly convi~ced 
that I was the victim, and Resorts was a 
culprit, and he structured this complaint in 
legalistic fashion just as he saw the case. 

Q. Did there come a time when both of those 
lawsuits were withdrawn? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And were they drawn as a 
settlement agreement entered 
you and Resorts? 

result 
into 

of a 
between 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Now, what amount of money di<l you agree to 
pay Resorts in settlement of the obligation 
that's reflected in your gaming card of over 
$3.2 million? 

A. Half-a-million dollars. 

Q. And was there 
payment schedule 
the $500,000? 

a settlement or rather a 
worked out for payment of 

A. Yes, sir. 

'J. I hand you what's been marked C-130 for 
identification and ask you to ·tell us what 
the payment schedule is between David Zarin 
and Resorts International? 

A. The payment schedules shows first payment of 
$5fJ,000 on signing the agreement, and that 
was signed, I believe, in September of '81. 

A second payment of 50,000 on November 15, 
'81. A third payment of 100,000 on November 
15, '82. A fourth payment of 100,000 on 
'83. Fifth on '84 and sixth on '85. 

Q. Is there any interest that attaches to these 
payments throuqhout that schedule? 

A. No, sir. 
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Q. Did you also reach an agreement between 
yourse 1 f and Boardwalk Regency Corporation, 
also known as Caesars, in settlement of a 
debt? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Gaming debt? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Did that settlement take into account the 
credit obligation of not only yourself but 
also Martha Nemtin? 

A. Yes, sir, yes, sir. 

Q. Did you agree to pay the debt to Caesars in 
full? 

A. I agreed to pay the debt to Caesars in full, 
dollar-for-dollar ••• ! owed Caesars, I think, 
200,000 and Martha owed Caesars 250, or may 
have been vice versa. So it was a total of 
4 50. I took Martha's debt and agree1 that 
that would be paid. Martha's debt would be 
paid first, according to the payment 
schedule, and that also was approximately 
$100,000 a year. 

Q. Can you tell us why you agreed to pay Martha 
Nemtin's debt? 

A. Because I used her money for my gambling 
purposes. 

COMMISSI0NER GREENBERG: What do you think 
they did wrong and why do you think you are 
the victim of Resorts for what they did to 
you or what they failed to do for you during 
1980, sir? 

THE WITNESS: Com'llissioner, it is hard to 
admit that one is a compulsive gambler. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: I understand. 

THE WITNESS: But in the '78 and '79 period, 
I did not know I was compulsive. I 1980, I 
didn't know I was compulsive. I didn't know 
I was a comp•1lsive gambler until I ioined 
Gamblers Anonymous December 9, 1980 ..• I felt 
that in the period from January 1, 1980 to 
April 30, 1980, I was gambling absolutely 
compulsively. My family knew it. My 
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friends knew it. I'm sure the casino knew 
it. And I don't believe that credit should 
be extended to compulsive gamblers ••. 

Zarin Urges Help For Compulsive Gamblers 

Zarin concluded his testimony by putting a personal statement 
into the hearing record. While he conceded that a "major 
responsibility for regulating gambling behavior must rest with the 
gambler himself," he contended that until recently neither 
government nor the gamblinq industry has acknowledged gaming 
addiction as a problem. He stated that "there is now conclusive 
evidence that such gamblers are readily identificable." He added: 

There must be concurrent attempts to 
identify the potential or active compulsive 
gambler and a concerted effort to treat 
these individuals. Regulations, identifica­
tions and treatment are all needed. These 
hearings focus on only regulations. Al­
though this is important, it will not re­
solve the problem of the compulsive gambler 
.•. There are groups such as the National 
Foundation for Study and Treatment of 
Pa tho logical Gambling, located in Wash­
ington, D.C., which can assist in identifi­
cation of compulsive gamblers and can treat 
them when requested. Unfortunately, the 
compulsive gambler, himself, does not 
always want to be identified and even tries 
to hide his identify. He also is reluctant 
to seek out treatment. But more 
importantly, he should not be permitted to 
continue gambling. 

Zarin urged that the problem of compulsive gambling should be 
addressed by a number of steps 1) establish educational 
programs, 2) assist the gaming industry in recognizing the problem 
and developing "methods of intervention," 3) set up treatment and 
referral systems, and 4) support legislation to provide funds to 
help control the problem. Zarin concluded: 

I am one of the fortunate few compulsive 
gamblers who has been able to face up to my 
gambling problem and overcome it with the 
help of my family and the professionals who 
have worked with me. As a recovered 
compulsive gambler, I hope that my 
experience as outlined to you today will 
encourage this Commission to make the 
recommendations I have suggested to support 
the treatment and rehabilitation of 
compulsive gamblers. 
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Gambling Addiction Shackles Prison Guard 

When Michael E. Campanaro was a prison guard for Essex County, 
at a salary of $16,000 a year, he took a side job at the 
Meadowlands race track in Secaucus -- and from that point embarked 
on a prolonged gambling spree that ultimately cost him two heart 
attacks, his job and a combined personal indebtedness from casino 
losses and forged bank checks of $750,000. Campanaro, the next 
witness, was yet another example, perhaps more tragic than the 
apparently still affluent Zarin, of the personal debasement and 
financial destruction the disease of gambling addiction can cause. 
SCI counsel Gerard P. Lynch guided Campanaro through his recital, 
as follows: 

Q. During the time that you were a correction 
officer did you hold any other side jobs? 

A. Yes. I worked at the Meadowlands Race 
Track. 

Q. Was there a period of time when you worked 
at the Meadowlands Race Track when you were 
considered a very heavy gambler? 

A. Yes, a while after I started, was employed, 
I started gambling very much. 

Q. Would you tell us how that occurred? 

A. I was given information on a trifecta, 
6-3-1- were the numbers. I wagered $50 on 
it, won $20,500 in one race. 

Q. Do you still 
Campanaro? 

,~amble at present, Mr. 

A. No, but I have gone back on occasion. 

Q. 

A. 

Have you been 
specializing in 
gamblers? 

examined by. any doctors 
the treatment of compulsive 

Yes, I was examined by Dr. Custer in 
Washington, o.c., and by Dr. Sanger in New 
York City. 

Q. Have you been diagnosed by these doctors as 
a compulsive gambler? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Prior to your gambling in Atlantic City 
casinos, had you incurred any other gambling 
debts? 

A. While employed 
gambling at the 

at the Meadowlands 
Meadowlands, I took 

and 
out 
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loans in excess of $70,000 to support the 
gambl inq. I had a mortgage on my home and 
then a second mortgage. 

Q. Were these bank loans that you took out the 
means by which you paid off your gambling 
debts at the Meadowlands? 

A. It was means by which I gambled. 

Counsel Lynch next reviewed Campanaro's application for 
credit at the Caesars casino on March 7, 1980. On this 
application, Campanaro listen his $16,000 ann11al salary as a prison 
guard and his personal checking account, which he said had a 
balance during the prior six months of "anywhere from zero to $260 
actual cash money." He requested a credit line of $5,000, and was 
granted a $2,500 line the very next day. The casino didn't verifv 
his credit application data -- apparently having been convinced 
that Campanaro was a high roller, based on his heavy cash play the 
day he arrived. Campanaro told about how he started gambling at 
Caesars: 

Q. Did you make a cash deposit with Caesars on 
March the 7th, 1980? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. How much was that for? 

A. $12,500. 

Q. What was the source from which you obtained 
this $12,500? 

A. From cashing a bad check at a bank: ... to 
obtain the cash to go to the casino with. 

Q. Did you subsequently request a credit lin"! 
at Caesars? 

A. When I originally opened the account, yes. 
$5000. 

Q. Could you tell us how much was granted to 
you? 

A. $2500. 

Q. When was this granted? 

A. The 8th, whic~ was the day after I made the 
application. 

Q. Prior to the approval of the credit line was 
your employment verified? 
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A. No. 

Q. Prior to the approval of the credit line, 
was your bank information verified? 

A. No. 

Q. Prior to the approval of 
to your knowledge, was 
bureau check? 

A. No. 

your credit line, 
there any credit 

Even after Caesars received written notice from the bank 
listed on Campanaro's credit application that it had "no record" of 
his account, the casino not only continued to allow Campanaro to 
bet on credit, but even raised his credit line to $20,000. 
Campanaro told how he managed to continue as a credit gambler: 

Q. In that time period I'm referring to, March 
8th, 1980, and March 24th, 1980, were you 
bringing in large sums of cash into 
Caesars? And by "cash," I mean either cash 
or cash equivalent such as treasurer's 
checks or cashier's checks. 

A. Yes, I was. 

Q. Were you also winning big at the casino 
during this period? 

A. Yes, I was. 

Q. Were you able to 11ay off any of your debts 
with checks that you were depositing with 
the casinos as well as with the winnings 
that you were making? 

A. Yes. 

Q. On March 22nd, 1980, did you issue a 
personal check to Caesars in the amount of 
$4500 which reduced your indebtedness to 
Caesars to zero? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. Did you have sufficient monies in that bank 
to cover that forty-five-hundred-dollar 
check? 

A. No, I did not. 

Q. On March 22nd, that same date, did you have 
a permanent credit line increase to $10,000? 
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Yes. It was increased 
original permanent credit 
on the 22nd. 

from 
1 ine, 

$2500, the 
to $10,000 

Q. Coulcl you also check that same date ancl 
could you tell us whether or not you hacl a 
further increase in your credit line? 

A. Yeah, on 3/22/80 I was increaser'l fro"' the 
10,000 to 1S,OOO. 

Q. Again looking at that applicatio"1, did you 
also make a five-thousancl-five-hunclred­
dollar payment, 5000 of which was a personal 
check, which reducecl your outstanding 
balance to zero? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. Was there sufficient monies in your bank 
account to cover the five-thousand-dollar 
check that you just issued? 

A. No, there wasn't. 

Q. Does the crea it card indicate in May 9th 
that these checks at that time came back as 
not sufficient funds? 

A. Yeah, they were given on approximately March 
22nd and it did not come back till May. 

How He Tricked a of 29 00 

Q. On March ·10th, 1990, yon made a thirty-one­
thousand-five-hundred-dollar payment, thus 
reducing your outstanding balance again to 
zero. Is that correct? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. The application also inclicates that $29,500 
of this was in the form of a cashier's 
check? 

A. Thac's correct. 

Q. Would you tell us how you obtainecJ that 
cashier's check? 

A. Yeah, I hacl cal led the bank and maclP. a 
deposit in the bank with a bad check for 
$35,000 and I had more or less set the bank 
up to believe that the check that I hacl 
deposited was a Merrill Lynch check, a 
stock-sale check. I had asked them to 
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override the account. ( I said) I was in the 
middle of negotiation of buying some land in 
Atlantic County and would they made the 
cashier's check out to Caesars Boardwalk 
Corporation. My idea was to turn it over to 
Caesars Boardwalk Casino at the time and I 
made it to the corporation so the bank would 
believe that it was for a land deal. 

Q. Were you, in fact, involved in such a land 
deal? 

A. No. 

Q. Was the twenty-nine-thousand-five-hundred­
dollar cashier's check accepted immediately 
by the casinos without any verification of 
its authenticity? 

A. It was accepted as cash, as another cash 
deposit ih the account. 

Q. On that same date, March 30th, 19qo, did you 
receive a temporary credit extension? 

A. Yes. I was increased from 10,000 to 20,000 
this time. 

Q. This credit application also shows that on 
April the 5th, 1980, you received a 
temporary credit increase again. Is that 
correct? 

A. Yes, from 10,000 to 20,000 again. 

Q. When you received 
$20,000, what was 
owed to Caesars? 

the second increase to 
your outstanding balance 

.1\. $24,000. 

Q. Could you tell us, when you finally stopped 
gambling at Caesars, what was your 
outstanding balance with them? 

A. $99,500. 

Q. Was that your total indebtedness at that 
time? 

A. To Caesars only. 

Q. Right. What 
indebtedness to 
other casinos and 

was your outstanding 
Caesars, Sally's or any 
the banks? 
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A. $750,000. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: Well, was any of 
the money that you borrowed or defrauded 
from the banks used for any other purpose 
except gambling at the casinos in Atlantic 
City? 

THE WITNESS: All that time I gambled I was 
behind months in my mortgage payment, never 
paid my electric and gas. It was strictly 
100 percent used for gambling. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: You chose 
your gambling debts, or try to pay 
least, ahead of your other debts? 

That's correct. 

to pay 
them at 

EXAMINA'I'ION BY MR. LYNCH: 

Q. was the balance you owed Caesars, the 
99,500, was that subsequently reduced when 
one of the banks you got a cashier 1 s check 
from honored that cashier's check? 

A. Yes. That was Chase in New York, $25,000. 
•.rhey had stopped payment on the original 
cashier's check and they they had notified 
the State Pol ice that would pay the 
cashier's check and they subsequently paid 
Caesars the $2S,OOn, whicl, lowered it to 
$74,500. 

The State Police Investi ab.on 

Q. Mr. Campanaro, cl id you ever have any 
discussions with casino credit executives 
concerning an investigation whic~ was being 
conducted of you by the law-enforcement 
agencies in this state? 

A. Yes, upon entering Caesars one weekend to 
gamble, after registering at the hotel, I 
was told that I was under investigation for 
various banks that had been in touch with 
the .State Police (about) bad checks that I 
had written. 

Q. Who informed you about this? 

A. chrnmy Orr • 
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Q. Ir/as ,Jimmy Orr a credit executive at Caesars 
at the time? 

A. Yes, he was. 

Q. Were you subsequently arrested for any of 
this, any of these bad checks? 

A. Yes, I was arrested the following week by 
the State Police in Atlantic City. 

Q. After your arrest, could you indicate to us 
whether or not you had any aiscussions with 
any of the credit executives at Ca~sars? 

A. Yeah, I was locked up in the Atlantic County 
Jail and I made a call to Caesars and I 
asked for Bernie Resnick and I had told 
Bernie that I had been arrested for the 
things I had done with the banks and with 
the casino. fcle was aware of the 
investigation. He had told me that he would 
get in touch with corporate counsel to se,ce 
if there was anything they could do for me. 

Q. Was he a casino credit manager? 

A. He was beyond the credit manager. 
manager of all the credit managers. 

He's 

Q. Did you subsequently have an additional 
conversation with Mr. Resnick? 

A. Yes. After being let out on bail about two 
weeks passed and I went back to Caesars 
after cashing another check and I had toln 
Bernie that I had about $35,000 on me; that 
I wanted to put it in the account. He han 
told me if I put it in the account it would 
go against my indebtedness and they can no 
lonqer qive me any credit because• of the 
investigation. I told him I was 
uncomfortable holding that money for a 
two-day period maybe in my room. He han 
suggested a box at the registration desk, to 
put it in there for safekeeping. 

He then suggested we go see Larry Wolf, the 
vice-president of Caesars, in reference to 
opening another account unner the name of 
Michael Campo and depositing that money in 
that account. 

Q. This was Mr. Resnick's suggestion? 

A. Yes, it was. 
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THE CHAIR"!AN: Excuse me. 1'his $35,000 you 
said you had on your person, where did that 
come from? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. F'rom another bank. I 
had used the influence of the Senate and the 
Congress and impersonated myself as both a 
Senator and a Congressman to get my way into 
banks and obtain that kind of money. I 
called various banks impersonating myself as 
a member of the Senate and a member of the 
Congress telling thec,e bank presi,ients that 
I was the Senatclc or the Congr~Llsman, ana I 
had a friend of mine by the name of Michael 
Campanaro who had a serious proble,11 at the 
time \.vi th a brother and needed to c:.-ash a 
check and would they do me, the Senator, a 
favor and cash it for him~ 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: Now, when you get 
to 1\tlantic City and you tell Mr. Resnick 
and Mr. Wolf that you have got $35,000 in 
cash that you want to play with but you 
don't want to keep it in your room, who was 
it who suggested that you open up an account 
in the fictitio11s name of Campo? 

THE WITNESS: Bernie Resnick. That is 
correct. The suggestion was originally made 
downstairs by the registration desk and then 
when we went up to meet Larry Wal f, he had 
given that idea to Larry Wolf and Larry Wolf 
had turnerl it down. 

COMMISSIONSR GRFSNBCRG: Then what happened? 

THE WI Tmrns: \,je went back downstai cs. I 
was told by Bernie 'lesnick I was entitled to 
full comp, RFB, room/food/beverages, but I 
would only play for cash and I put the money 
in the safe-deposit box and I gambled for 
cash. 

BY MR. i,YNCf!: 

Q. Were the Caesars credit executives aware 
that you were still qambli..ng with cash at 
Caesars at Lhis time? 

A~ Yes, they were. 

Q~ While yoL1 were gambling at Caesars with this 
cash during the State Police investigation 
of you, did you have any 011tstanding balance 
still with CaesRrs? 
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A. Yes, I did. $99,500. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: They knew you had 
$35,000 in cash to play with and they didn't 
ask you to pay back the $99,000 that you 
owed them? 

THE WITNESS: That's correct. As a matter 
of fact, 1 had won about $20,000 that 
Saturday and I went to the casino cage to 
cash the chips in and the girl, who 
recognized me from this investigation, that 
cashes the chips went to the phone with this 
Ted Abbey, who's a credit manager, was 
called over by me and he told to the girl 
not to take the money against the account, 
to cash me out and let me have the cash. 

Q. This is after your arrest? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. So they allowed you to take it out and 
leave the casino or do whatever? 

A. That's correct. 

Got Credit At Sally's Despite Debts 

Q. I show you the credit application from 
Sally's Park Place in the name of Michael 
Campanaro. Do you recognize this 
application? 

A. Yes, my application. 

Q. Could you te 11 us under what c i rcnms tances 
you were able to establish a credit line at 
Sally's on April the 4th? 

A. Yeah, I could no longer get credit at 
Caesars and I had run out of money and I had 
talked to ,Jimmy Orr and he had suggested I 
go over to Bally where I had an application 
in; that he had a friend of his who was a 
credit manager there and he would see what 
he can do, and I rlid do that on April 4th 
and I was given a five-thousand-dollar 
credit line. 
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Q. Now, on April 4th, 1980, they approved the 
credit line for $5000. Does the Central 
Credit check on that application indicate 
that you owed Caesars $13,000 at that time? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. Does this also indicate whether or not any 
bank information was obtained by Hally's 
when you applied for credit there on April 
4th? 

A. On April 4th, no. 

Q. Does the card indicate that on April 14th a 
bank check was performed on you? 

A. Yes, it does. 

Q. Would you read for the record what that bank 
information indicated? 

A. It's dated 4/14/80. "Bank called." Bank 
No. 1. "This account was opened only four 
days ago. Is now closed. Any checks th is 
customer writes are not good. Customer is 
also wanted in New York by Chase Manhattan 
for a very substantial amount of money." 
It's signed per Mr~ ,Johnson, who was the 
vice-president and bank manager of that 
particular branch at that time. 

Q. When did you stop gamblinu at Bally's? 

A. 4/13. 

Q. So they did this bank check after you 
stopped gambling there. Is that correct? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. What was the total amount you owed Bally' s 
as a result of your credit play there? 

A. A total of $15,000. 

Q. Could you tell us how you 
increase your credit line at 
$5000 to $15,000 in ten days? 

were able to 
Bally's from 

A. When I lost the original $5000, I harl 
approached Bob Pelligrino and, I believe it 
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was, Carol White, the girl behind the 
counter, and I had given them a five­
thousand-dollar check which dropped my 
indebtedness to zero, and they increased me 
an additional $10,000 in credit for that 
stay. 

Was any 
before 
$10,000? 

financial background 
they increased your 

check done 
credit to 

A. No, it wasn't. 

THE CHAIRMAN: was the five-thousand-dollar 
check a good check? 

THE WITNESS: No, it wasn't. 

VIP Treatment Spurred Gaming Addition 

BY MR. LYNCH: 

Q. Did you ever receive any complimentary 
services from Atlantic City casinos? And 
what were these complimentary services that 
you received? 

A. Well, it was RFB; room, food and beveraqe. 

Q. 

It was the room at Caesars; it ws a gold 
card which entitled me to call for room 
service day and niqht, everything would be 
paid by the casino; it was tickets to shows 
at Resorts or in Ca~sars itself; it was one 
particular time my mother my father and my 
brothers were taken by limousine to the Sand 
Castle Restaurant, which is, I think, in 
Brigantine, and they were taken care of 
there. 

Were these comps 
the members of 
friends? 

not only for you but for 
your family and close 

A. If I requested it, yes. 

Q. How would the complimentary benefits have 
affected you as a gambler? 

A. It made me at that time feel great. Even 
though I was losing large amounts of money, 
I said before I felt like I was president of 
I.B.M. Anything I wanted I coulcl have had. 
I was actually treated that way. 
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Casino Approved False Registration 

Q. Well, you indicated that Caesars would not 
grant you any more credit after the police 
investigation of you came to light. Did the 
complimentary benefits that they were qiving 
you, did thev cease also as well as the 
credits? 

A. No, for a short period of time I continued 
getting complimeritary benefits under the 
name of Mike Campanaro. What had happened 
was one of the State Police officers had 
spotted me in the casino and had gone to the 
credit executives and wanted to know why I 
was still a complimentary guest to the 
casino. So the following stay I was told 
that they would register me under the name, 
any name I wanted, and I told them to 
register me under Mike Campo instead of Mike 
Campanaro. 

I continued to come under the name Mike 
Campo as a full complimentary guest, and on 
certain occasions my ex-wife Grace was put 
down under her name. Another friend of 
ours, Diane, it was put under her name. 

Q. So the comps were just for you and they were 
avoiding contact with the State Police in 
giving you these complimentary services. Is 
that what you're stating? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. Did the State Police at any time notice you 
gambling in Atlantic City and check out 
whether or not you were receiving 
complimentaries under any other name? 

A. Yes. Detective Sergeant Glen Reynolds 
spotted me one day, asked me to come up to 
this office with him. He was the original 
arresting officer. 

He said he looked on the reqistry and did 
not find me registered, was I staying at the 
casino. I said yes. He asked under what 
name and I told him Mike Campo, and I told 
him, you know, I've been under Mike Campo 
awhile and sometimes under Diane 1 s name or 
Grace 1 s nameM 
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Jury: Gaminq Addiction Was Insanity 

Q. Were you ever 
writing of the 
your gambling? 

indicted and tried for the 
bad checks as a res11lt of 

A. Yes, I was indicted in five different 
counties and I stood trial in two counties. 

Q. What county did you stand trial in, first of 
all? 

A. I stood trial May 5th, 1981, in lln ion County 
on eight-count indictment of defrauding five 
banks out of, I think it was $94,000. I 
stood trial in Atlantic County March of '82 
for theft by deception with the casinos. 

Q. With regard to the Union County trial, was 
there a disposition at that time? 

A. Yes, there was a five-day trial. 'l'he 
defense was not guilty by reason of 
insanity, compulsive gambling, and the jury 
found me not guilty by reason of insanity, 
compulsive gambling. 

Q. In preparing for your trial in the Atlantic 
City case, did you have any discussions with 
any of Caesars credit executives? 

A. Myself and my attorney went to Caesars prior 
to the Union County trial. My lawyer wanted 
to talk to Bernie Resnick, who was the head 
manager on the floor at that time, as to 
exactly what the facts were, and Bernie 
Resnick after giving us a complimentary 
dinner that day told us that when we were 
ready to go to trial in Atlantic County he 
would put both me and my attorney up as a 
complimentary guest for the full length of 
the trial. 

Q. Did you ever take Mr. Resnick up on this 
offer to give yourself and your attorney 
complimentary services while your trial; is 
being prepared? 

A. Well, we were going to do it, but when we 
went to trial in Atlantic County the 
Attorney General's office went with the 
recommendation from the Union County trial, 
that jury acquittal, and they went with 
aquittal, so we never stood trial. 

Q. Were the charges dismissed 
insanity by means of 
gambling? 

on the grounds of 
your compulsive 
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A. Yes. 

Casino Keet Inviting Ad~ict to Gamble 

Q. Mr. Campanaro, since your acquittal in March 
of 1982 in Union County, have you received 
any correspondence from any of the Atlantic 
City casinos? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. I show you exhibit marked C-144. Was this 
an example of some of the correspondence 
that you had received from the Atlantic City 
casinos? 

A. Yes, this is a picture that was taken for a 
command performance in Caesars Grand 
Ballroom for 200 invited guests. It's dated 
Saturday, May 24th, 1980, and it was a 
carnival is what it was. 

Q. And this date that this command performance 
was put on, was that after you were arrested 
for passing bad checks to Caesars? 

A. 

Q. 

Yesv it was~ 
19 8 0. 

And was Caesars 
an outstancling 
Caesars? 

It was May 24th, Saturday, 

-- then did you still 
balance of $99,000 

have 
with 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. Mr. Campanaro, I'm now going to show you 
four items of correspondence to you from 
Playboy Casino Hotel. They're dated 
December 1st, 1982, December· 24th, 1'l82, 
January 3rd, 1983, and January 15th, 1983. 
Could you look at that and read what one of 
those invitations says? 

A. The one from January 3rd is for a weeJcend 
with Natalie Cole and Eleanor Boosler. It 
says, "Natalie Cole is one of the top fem"lle 
vocalists oE our time ... She'll be cominq to 
Playboy over the weekend of January 14th, 
and two complirnent.,ory tickets are avail.cible 
for t}1e show of your choice." 

Q. I show you a letter from 
International Casino. Could you 
what that provides? 

Resorts 
tell us 
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A. Yeah. It says: 

"Dear Superstar Gambler. 

"You are one of an exclusive group of 
qualified players Resorts International 
Casino Hotel is inviting to fly free to 
Atlantic City. 

"The enclosed complimentary boarrling pass 
entitles yol.l to: 

"One complimentary round \:rip 
Atlantic City on Resorts Fiight 
flight leaves each night from 
Marine Air Terminal.) 

flight to 
7-11, (A 

LaGuardia 

"Complimentary split of chamragne on board. 

"VIP treatment reserved 
Superstar Gamblers. 

for Resorts 

"Enjoy a quick 35 minute flight down, 5 
hours of non-stop action in Atlantic City's 
largest casino, and a convenient 35 minutP. 
return trip. 

"Confirm your seat for an action-packed 
night now. 

"We look forward to seeing you," it gives 
the name who sent it. 

Q, That was after your aquittal on compulsive 
gambling, is that correct, in Unio~ Co11nty? 
You were acquitted already in March 22nd of 
that year? On the grounds of insanity by 
means of compulsive gambling? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. You received 
September? 

A, That's correct. 

this that same year in 

Q, Now, the e11amples that I have introduced 
into evidence here, Mr. Campanaro, are they 
merely examples of what you have been 
receiving over the past several years? 

A. Since my charges in Atlantic Countv in March 
c1nrl my stopping to go to casinos in 
September, Labor Day weekend, I received 
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approximately 200 invitations from Caesars, 
Sally's, Playboy, Resorts. 

Q. Do all these enticements or correspondence 
you received from the casinos, do they in 
any way affect your desire to gamble even 
today? 

A. Well, the desire is still in me, there's no 
doubt about that. But, yes, when I receive 
it, it brings back not the losses in 
Atlantic City, not the misery, but really 
the good times while I was there. And, you 
know, could be Frank Sinatra, I find myself 
saying we won't gamble, let's take a ride, I 
can get the tickets, we can stay for nothing 
overnight. Fortunately, I have someone with 
me now that's helping me .•. 

State Police Probed Playboy Credit Inticement 

Q. Could you tell us whether or not after you 
were arrested in Caesars any other casino 
offered to establish a credit line for you? 

A. Yes, Playboy sent me a letter and a form to 
be filled out which indicated the kind of 
liquor I drink, the kind of cigaretes I 
smoke, my wife's birthday, my mother's 
birthday, questions of that nature, what 
kind of food I liked, and I had to fill it 
in with an application, send it back with an 
application for credit at Playboy, which I 
did do. 

Q. How mnch did you request? 

A. I don't think I put a figure down at the 
time. I just asked for credit, never 
believing that I would get it. I was in 
touch with a cre~it manaqer who was formerly 
with Caesars who now was with Playboy and 
who signed the original letter I received 
and I informed her that I did have a problem 
at Caesars, you know, I still owe money. 
She says, "Fill ont the application, mail it 
in, anyway. We'll see what we can do." 

Q. What was the name of this individual? 

A. Ceil Ferrara. Approximately ten days later 
I got a denial from Playboy that I would not 
get credit at the casino. I again called 
Ceil Ferrara. I told her I was denied. She 
said, "Don't worry about that. When do you 
want to come down?" I told her I wanted to 
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come down that weekend. She said, 
you up for complimentary RFB and 
credit." I said, "Okay." 

"I'll set 
10,000 in 

That same Friday we had a meeting, a 
Gamblers Anonymous meeting which Mr. Carl 
Zeitz attended from the Casino Control 
Commission. I had spoken to another member 
of Gamblers Anonymous about the credit. He 
didn't believe it at the time, but we 
approached Carl Zeitz with him. I informed 
him. Carl Zeitz said, "That's impossible." 
I said, "No 1 it's not." Ang he had a State 
Police investigation run intg it. 

Did the State Police investj.gation 
credit of fer by Playboy ever come 
fruition? 

of this 
to any 

A, Yes, when my attorney received the 
disclosure from the State Police prior to my 
trial in Atlantic County, there was a State 
Police memorandum and it was termed 
inducement to gamble. When they looked in 
the computer for Playboy, they found me 
registered as a complimentary guest for that 
weekend for which I did not show up and it 
also listed me on the computer as a 
ten-thousand-dollar credit player approved. 

What Credit Did to a Gambling Addict 

Q. Just one 
how the 
Atlantic 
life? 

last question. Could you tell us 
effect of credit, easy credit in 
City, has affecteq your personal 

A. Well, throllgh all the pressure of the 
gambling anq getting the money and finagling 
with banks and still gambling and going 
every weekend, sleeping a total of six hours 
a weekend, because that's all I would sleep, 
in the end it took its toll. In fact, I had 
two heart at tacks, I lost my job as a 
correction officer, on suspension, and after 
the determtnation of the court I was 
reinstated. But because of the heart 
attacks I couldn't perform my job, so I 
receive a pension from that. Me and my wife 
split ukp, It affected the kids somewhat 
because I was never there any more, and 
that's basically it. 
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Top Casino Officers Must Accept Blame for Problems 

COMMISSIONER DELTUFO: We have heard both 
yesterday and today evidence that suggests 
lax credit practices and some credit abuses 
and I think we've seen very demonstrably 
today the effect, the plight of the 
compulsive gambler. 

Yesterday we spent a considerable amount of 
time talldng to cre,Ht managers and credit 
executives. Credit executives do not act on 
their own, though I think we have seen they 
must bear some of the responsibility for the 
consequences of their actions. But the 
fundamental responsibility for easy credit 
and for its ramifications must be borne by 
those in high corporate echelons. That's 
where the policies originate and if we're 
going to get relief, that is where the 
policies have to be changed. 

Extended Credit Without Checking 

Jimmy Orr, group operations director at the Sands casino and 
former credit executive at the Sands and Caesars, was questioned by 
SCI counsel Lynch about house policies requiring a second signature 
on all applications for a credit line of $10,000 or more. However, 
this requirement apparently had little or no meaning, according to 
certain incidents that were reviewed with Orr. The testimony, in 
part: 

Q. When you signed as a second signature, did 
you examine the reasons for the credit being 
extended by the initial individual? 

A. If I was there ilt the time, I did. If I was 
not there, in certain instances it was left 
there from the night before when someone was 
working alone. '!'hey would sign 10,000 or 
better and leave it for someone to sign the 
next day because they were by themselves. 

THE CHAIRMAN: 
matter of form? 

THE WITNESS: 
policy. 

BY MR. LYNCH: 

'!'hen you would sign as a 

Yes, a matter of in-house 

Q. But the credit would have already been 
extended or given? 

A. The credit would have already been given. 
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Q,. Are you ~Z:arniliar with e.n indi"'riduai known as 
Ted Abbey? 

.n,,.. Yes, I am .. 

Q. What position did Ted Abbey hold at Caesars? 

A.. He was a senior credit ~xecutive~ 

Q. Did you evei:· Nork 
shift at Cae~ars? 

the sam~ 

A.. I never wo~kec1 thA S('::Ti\2 stift with Ted 
Abbey. 

Q.. Did you ever co-siqn or gi\re signatures to 
any credit that was. exterv:i·~d py Mr~ Abbey? 

A.., 011 SOii1e situations he t-f0:'.:'1q~;fl at night, I 
worked ai.J.;::ing the d2y ~ HA would he there 
late at niqht and leave th2m for me to sign 
the n~xt rno~ning ,~h~n X got there~ 

Q~ I shO\•r you ~ credit application for an 
individual by the name of Salvatore DeSaro .. 
I \t1ould like you t:o look ~t the date .... DO 
you see a credit ext~nsio~ cigen by Mr. 
Abbey from $10,000 t.o $15,000? 

A. I have l\;;rch ~th, '00, and it's from 15 to 
25,000. 

Q. All right. Do you see yonr initial as a 
second signature there? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When you granted 
check the ci;lrd to 
increase was at all 

that incr.eas~, 
see whethe~ or. 
justifieQ? 

rlid yo•1 
not that 

A. This was done the night before and I siqned 
it the next morning. 

Q. So you didn't check the card? 

A. No. 

Q. Well, on the third page there's a notation 
from Central Credit thi;lt he had a 
five-hundred-dollar not~sufficient-fund 
check retl.lrned and it was still owed. Do 
you see that notation on the third page? 

A. Yeah. That's $500. 
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Q. Doesn't this application also indicate that 
Mr. DeSaro owed as of November of 1988 
$48,000 to Caesars on the second page after 
his checks had b!'!en returned N.S.F. 's, the 
top, 11/24/80? 

A. Yes, that's true. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: Who told you to 
extend this man S25,000 in credit? 

THE WITNESS: I din not extend it. I 
co-signed it because it was left there from 
the night before. 

THE CHAIRMAN: 'I'llese things that were 1eft 
the night before for your signature in the 
morning, all you did with them is just affix 
your signature bi'!cause the house rule was 
they had to have two signatures? 

THE WITNESS: That is correct. 

THE CHAIRMAN: You didn't look at it, didh't 
do a blessed thing except affix your 
signature? 

THE WITNESS: 
need to. 

That's correct. There was no 

Got Credit Granted Despite Gaming Debt 

Q. Mr. Orr, I show you now a credit application 
of one Frank Miano. You were the individual 
who extended credit to Mr. Miano in the 
amount of $10,000 on March 22nd, 1980? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. Do you see the ho~e that you yourself signed 
in the top right=hand corner whete, or you 
initialed, where it says, "No creilit until a 
bank check is made"? 

A. Right. 

Q. Was that bank check made? 

A. Apparently so, yeah. 
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Q. Did you also see a notation on that same 
application on March the 7th, 1980, 
concerning a notation by Lou DiGreg where it 
says, "Refused at this time until Bally is 
paid off"? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. When you extended credit to Mr. Miano on 
March 22nd, 1980, had Bally been paid off? 

A. I don't see that, no. 

Q, Would you look on the left-hand side top 
under the date 3/22/80 where it indicates 
that Mr. Miano still owes BallY $3500? 

A. Right. He paid some of it off, yes. 

Q. But he still owed $3500 whep you extended 
him credit on March 22nd. Is that correct? 

A, That is correct, yeah. 

Q, Is it not a fact that he gambled on March 
30th to April 1st and that )1e gamble:'l the 
full 10,000 that you gave nim ann that to 
date he sti 11 owes that $10,000 to your 
casino? 

A. It looks as if he didn't pay it back, yes. 

Easy Credit Led to $75,000 Bad Debt 

Q. Exhibit 140 is an application for an 
individual known as Michael Campanaro. Do 
you know an individual by the name of 
Michael Campanaro? 

A, I do, 

Q, Did you ever have any dealings with Mr. 
Campanaro while you were credit executive at 
Caesars? 

A. I did. I extended Mr. Campanaro credit. 

Q. You gave him credit for $2500, 
correct? 

A. That's correct. 

Is that 

Q. When you gave him that crenit line on that 
date, was a bank check performed? 

A, I don't think so. 
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Q. Was a Central Credit check performed? 

A. I don't think so. 

Q. Does the card not indicate that Central 
Credit came back, "No record"? 

A. On March 8th, that's March 24th, no record. 

Q. Now, you indicate that March 24th there was 
a bank check, did you not? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. Could you 
indicates? 

read what that bank chec1< 

A. Zero balance. 

Q. Well, on March 22hd did not you increase his 
credit to s10,ooo? 

A. I did. 

Q. And when you increased 
there any bank checks 
checks done then? 

it to $10,000, were 
or Central Credit 

A. 'T'here were not. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Could you tell 
found out that 
zero, why did 
$10,000 on March 

Us on March 24th, when you 
he had the bank account of 
you extend him credit to 
29th, 1980? 

Because he had a Qood record of plying up to 
this point. Ahd all these returhed checks 
hadn't come back It that particular point. 

So, it would appear from the last entry on 
that credit card that Mr. Campanaro now owes 
your casino $75,000. Is that not correct? 
74,500 to be exact. 

That's what this Says. 

In retrospect, don't 
reasons for granting 
without obtaining 

you think that your 
Mr. Campanaro credit 

satisfactory bank 
information or Central 
were deficient? 

Credit information 

Well, I 'rl 
this card. 

say it doesn' t 1 ook too good on 
I'd certainly say that. 
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Hooded Witness Describes Credit Plunge 

The next witness insisted on wearing a hood to guarantee his 
anonymity. A compulsive gambler, he described how easy credit at 
Atlantic City casinos led to his personal and financial downfall. 
He was identified only as John Doe. SCI counsel Lynch led him 
through the following testimony: 

Q. Have you been treated for yoL1r compulsive 
gambling? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Mr. Doe, COL1ld you tell us whether or not 
you were a compulsive gambler prior to your. 
going down to any of the casiros in Atlantic 
City? 

A. No. 

Q. You began your gambling career at Caesars in 
Atlantic City. Is that correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Could you tell us how that came about? 

A. They invited me in. 

Q. And did you take advantage of the 
complimentary benefits that were offered to 
you on that very first trip to Atlantic 
City? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did you see a show and did you get food? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did you at any time get introduced to the 
credit practices at Caesars on that initial 
date? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. Could you tell us whether or not you did, in 
fact, obtain credit from Caesars on that 
very first weekend? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. How much? 
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A. A thousand dollars. 

Q. Did that credit li11e increase during that 
first weekend? If you recall. 

A. My next trip. 

Q. Why did you go down ther,;, on the second 
weekend? 

A. Try and get back the thousand dollars I 
lost. 

Q. When you went down the second weekend, did 
you have to request an increase in your 
credit line? 

A. Yes, I did. I didn't have any money, so I 
used their money. 

Q. Would you tell us what the credit line was 
that you obtained from Caesars when you went 
down the second weekend? 

A. $10,000. 

Q. What was your annual income when you went 
down to Atlantic City on this second trip? 

A. About $25,000. 

Q. When you filled out your application, aid 
you list any bank accOlmts at all? 

A. Just checkinq. 

Q. Was that a persohal checking account or a 
business checkihg account? 

A. Both. 

Q. On the personal checking account, did you 
have any running balance in there? 

A. 500. 

Q. On the business .,1ccount, ,lid you have anv 
running balance? 

A. Less than 500. 
sometimes. 

Maybe a little more 

Q. When you appli<ed -- when you receiverl the 
ten-thousand-dollar credit line on the 
second weekend, did you use it up? 
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A. Most of it, but I don• t recall exactly how 
much, 

Q. When you filled out your application, did 
you have any prior experience in any of the 
casinos in Atlantic City? 

A. No. 

Got Credit Despite $200,000 Debts 

Q. would you tell us whether or not you owed 
any obligations prior to your going down to 
Atlantic City? 

A. Just funds on real estate, my house and 
business. 2QO,OOO. 

Q. If a TRW or q 
name, wou:j.d 
indebted to c1 

A. Yes, it would. 

CBA check was 
that reveal 
sum in excess 

rµn against your 
that you were 

Qj: $200,000? 

Q. Do you know whether or not such a check was 
run on you? 

A. They definitely did not because I was in the 
credit bureau and looked up my credit and no 
one like that ever checked on me. 

Q, Besides Caesars, what other casinos did you 
receive credit in? 

A. Anyone that would open for business would 
give me credit. 

Q. Did you receive credit at Playboy? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did you receive credit at Golden Nuqget? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did you receive credit at the Claridge? 

A, Yes. 

Q. Did you receive credit at Brighton, -- which 
is now the sands? 

A, Yes. 

Q. Did you receive credit at Bally's? 
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A. Yes. 

"Whatever I Requested They Gave Me" 

Q. When you applied for credit in these various 
casinos, what credit limit would you have 
requesten? 

A. Whatever I requested, they gave me. 

Q. What was 
received 
request? 

the highest amount of credit you 
from any casino on the initial 

A. 25,000 or more. 

Q. When you receive~ the credit from the other 
casinos, were you still under any obligation 
to pay Caesars money that was nue ann owing 
them? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Could you tell us why you went to a second 
casino while you were still qamblinq at 
Caesars? 

A. Because I didn't have any money to pay off 
my markers. I had to go borrow from another 
to pay them off. 

Q. So you are indicating that you owed Caesars 
money as a result of your gambling and you 
went to a second casino to obtain credit so 
that you could pay off your indebtedness to 
Caesars? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. 

A. 

Now, as far as going back to the first 
c~sino, which would be Caesars, did you take 
the chips that you received from cashing any 
marker and did you cash those chips in? 

Yes. 

Q. And what rlid you do after you casherl the 
chips in at the second casino? 

A. Took the cash to the other casino. 

Q. And what would you do at the other casino? 

A. Pay the markers. 
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Q. Now, why would you have to pay the marker at 
the second casino at that, at any given 
time? 

A. Because it was maybe due at that time and I 
had to pay it, otherwise they would send it 
to the bank and the bank would send it back 
no good. 

Q. When you say markers are due, what kind of 
period is it that you were able to use a 
marker for before it was cashed? 

A. Well, they said 90 days they were allowed 
to, but it's a hundrea and twenty calendar 
days, but 90 banking days. so I had a long 
time. 

Q. Now, when 
casino and 
would the 
markers at 

you took 
paid off 

effect of 
the second 

the markers from one 
another casino, what 
that payment of the 

casino be? 

A. They would be happy to see me and introduce 
me to all the executives there and tell him 
what a great guy I was and a high roller. 

Q. Well, when you paid off the marker, were you 
able to get additional credit at that other 
casino? 

A. Oh, yeah. 

Casinos Told Him How to Roll Markers 

Q. So every time you would pay off a marker you 
would be able to gamble that much longer at 
another casino? 

A. Yes. 

Q. This process you're talking about, would 
this be known as rolling over markers? 

A. Yes, rolling markers. 

Q. How did you learn that this process of 
rolling markers could be accomplished in 
order to increase your gambling days? 

A. I was taught. 

Q. How were you taught? 
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A. Casino credit hosts and credit executives 
tell you how to do things and what to do to 
cover yourself. 

Q. Did any of the casino hosts tell you that 
high rollers would be treated differently 
than an average gambler of, say, five- or 
ten-dollar chips? 

A. Yes. If I bet a twenty-five-dollar chip, I 
could have food and beverage; and if I bet a 
hundred-dollar chip, I would have rooms and 
everything else that I wanted and then they 
would give me gifts and things and they 
would give a suite of rooms for people to 
come there; friends, relatives, anybody I 
wanted to invite. 

Q. Were you considered a high roller? 

A. They kept calling me a high roller all the 
time. 

He Had to Share Comps With Casino Personnel 

Q. You mentioned the first weekend you were 
comped food and a show. What other 
complimentry benefits were you given besides 
the first week when you got comps? 

A. Suites of rooms. 

Q. What would be the value of the complimentary 
benefits? What would a typical dinner cost 
you? 

A. 300, 400. I was allowed to spend up to $700 
or so per dinner or I would just ask and 
they would give me more if I wanted it. 

Q. Did you at any 
granted to you 
casino personnel? 

A. Yes, always. 

time 
that 

have 
were 

complimentaries 
used by other 

Q. Could you explain how this would occur? 

A. They would always invite themselves for 
dinner and bring friends, their wives, their 
friends, and had other people put through on 
your complimentary ticket. 

Q. When the casino personnel would come and 
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join you for 
initially make 
started having 
for dinner? 

dinner, how would that 
you feel when you first 

casino executives join you 

I was really a big shot at that 
would have the president of 
shake my hand and tell me what 
he heard I was, and I felt like 

point. They 
the casinos 
a great guy 

a real king. 

Q. Did you ever win while you were down at the 
casinos? 

A. Yes, many times I won, but I gave it back to 
them immediately. 

Q. How did the wins make you feel when you were 
winning big? 

A. I was a big shot. Just ask any casino 
executive and he would tell you who Mr. Doe 
was. They a 11 knew Mr. Doe. They used to 
call me, invite me there all the time. 

Nothing to Show for Millions of Markers 

Q. What was the percentage of your wins as 
opposed to your losses? Which was greater? 

A. Well, I have lots of markers that I lost and 
I don't -- I know I got millions of dollars 
in markers right here with me. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: Now, what does that 
pile of markers represent, Mr. Doe? 

THE WITNESS: Millions of dollars in markers 
at the various casinos that I gamblea at. 
And I could have had more, too; if I wanted 
to, but I had enough of that stuff down 
there what they did to me. 

Q. On the m,irkers that you have before you, 
were you worth 2 or $3 million worth of 
markers during that two-year period? 

A. No, not at all. They were just markers that 
were kept getting rolled. I would give one 
a check, take it back with another check, 
and kept renewing the dates on it. That's 
all I aia is renew the dates. You could do 
it, too. It's easy. Just go there. 

Q. Besides the casino executives taking part in 
the meals and the complimentaries, "lithout 
giving any names, din any of. the casino 
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personnel request any monies of you for 
extending credit to them? 

A. Yes. Yes, they did. 

Q. How did this gambling in Atlantic City 
affect your personally? 

A. Ruined my life. I lost my family, my wife 
and my children, my things that I had, any 
assets that I had, and now they're still 
hounding me. I lost everything there. 

COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: Mr. Witness, what's 
the reason that you requested to be hooded 
to give your testimony in public today? 
THE WITNESS: I'm scared to death, I fear 
for my life. 

Credit Fraud by Forgery Described 

Laying groundwork for testimony by a following witness, 
captain Richard Jankowski took the witness chair next to describe 
wh'at constitutes fraud by forgery at casinos. A 21-year veteran of 
the State Police, assigned for 18 months to the Division of Gaming 
Enforcement, Jankowski was questioned by SCI Counsel James~. ijart, 
III: 

Q. Can you describe for this Commission, 
please, the various types of credit frauds 
that you have investigated? 

A. Two of the most frequent types would include 
one where an individual would come to a 
casino and establish a credit line by using 
fictitious information and when the markers 
are forwarded to the bank they are returned 
insufficient funds, account closed, no 
account. 

Another type would be where an individual 
learns of another person's credit at a 
casino and would then impersonate the person 
who has a legitimate credit line and he 
would go to the casino impersonating the 
other person, obtain the chips, which are 
converted into money through using a marker, 
signing the other person's name. Of course, 
when these markers are forwarded to the bank 
they are honored by the bank, and when the 
individual receives his monthly banking 
statement he then sees that markers have 
been paid to the casino and he makes a 
complaint to his bank or to the casino or to 
the Commission or directly to us, and at 
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this time an investigation is conducted and 
reveals that someone else had used his 
credit line. 

Q. In these impersonation cases, do they entail 
the use of false or forged identification 
presented to the casino credit department? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What types of identification have you seen 
in your experience? 

A. Fraudulent driver's 
Security cards. 

1 icenses or Social 

Q. Can you tell us, please, which of the 
Atlantic City casinos have been the victims 
of this type of fraud, the impersonation or 
forgery type of fraud? 

A. Both types of crimes have been perpetrated 
at all nine casinos. 

Q. And can you give us an idea, an estimation 
or approximation, if you can, of the number 
of credit fraud cases you have investigated 
since 1980? 

A. Yes, sir. Since 1980 through June of 19'32 
we had 550 cases. 

Q. Can you give 
and some odd 
how many of 
frauds? 

me an estimation of that 500 
cases that you just indicated 
those entailed forgery type 

A. I don't have those figures right in front of 
me, but I would probably say 30 to 40 
percent. 

Q, The credit frauds that have been investi­
gated by your unit, can you tell us have 
they been perpetrated by persons who can be 
classified or associated with members of 
organized crime or have these credit frauds 
been conducted by other individuals? 

A. There's evidence to indicate where there's 
no question the perpetrator was an organized 
criminal conspiracy that came to Atlantic 
City to perpetrate those crimes, and on the 
other hand we have evidence to indicate it 
was a lone individual, 
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Q. Captain, based upon your training, education 
and experience are you in a position to make 
recommendations to this Commission as to how 
casino credit practices, procedures and the 
regulations themselves perhaps can be 
improved to make the types of credit frauds 
that you described today more difficult to 
accomplish? 

A. Well, one of the suggestions would he to 
have the casino photograph the applicant for 
the credit. That would prevent the type of 
forgery where if I have a cr<ed it line ann 
you went down to 11se my credit line and they 
had a photograph available they would merely 
look at the photograph and say you're not 
Mr. Jankowski. 

Another recommendation I feel to improve the 
situation would be where when the applicant 
applies for the credit perhaps a thumbprint 
could be taken, because in many cases we'll 
have a suspect; and, of course, he's not 
admitting to the crime, but yet when he 
applied for that application, if he used 
fictitious information and had to give that 
thumbprint, at least we could go through the 
ju<'licial system, get the thumbprint of thA 
suspect, compare it with the thumbprint 
taken at the time of the application, which 
woul<'l certainly improve our investigation 
methods. 

Another I think would be the sanctions that 
would be imposed upon the entity for failing 
to follow the rules and regulations 
promulgated by the Com'!lission. I think if 
the sanctions were severe certainly the 
upper management in the entity would see 
that they're adhered to. 

A Credit Fraud Forgery Attempt 

Raymond P. Broccoli, the next witness, who said he earned 
about $15,000 to $17,000 a year from a limousine franchiae 
operation in New York, once at tempted a credit forgery at f'!arrah 's, 
but was caught. He gave his version of the story under questioning 
by Counsel Hart: 

Q. Mr. Broccoli, I'd likes you to look at this 
Commission Exhibit, a two-page document 
containing credit information from Harrah's 
casino in the naMe of Dr. Joseph Sidoti. It 
also contains a driver's license in the name 
of Joseph Sidoti and a Social Security card 
in the same name. l'\re vou familiar with 
those docuMents~ 
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A. Yes. 

Q. Where have you seen those documents or where 
did you first see those documents? 

A. I used them in Harrah's to try to obtain 
credit. 

Q. I direct your attention to the 
February in 198~. Did you have 
be in Harrah's on that date 
City? 

12th day of 
occasion to 
in Atlantic 

A. Yes. 

Q. What time did you stop gambling at Harrah's 
that day? 

A. It was about seven o'clock. I want into the 
lounge. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Did something unusual happen in that lounge? 

Yes. I met this fellow, Sal, who was 
sitting at the table next to me. We 
started talking, invited me over for drink, 
and he explained this situation to me how to 
get money. He says they got it down in Las 
Vegas under the same name. 

What did he tell you exactly? 

He told me about this deal that somebody qot 
money down in Las Vegas the week before 
under the same name with the driver's 
license and I think the credit line was 
7,500, and he says to apply under the same 
name. He had the application filled out. 

He had the application? 

Yeah, I signed the name and something else 
on there. I don't remember. 

Who had the driver's license? 

A. He had. He had the driver's license, Social 
Security card. 

Q. Which portions of that carrl, 
application card did you fill out? 

of the 
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A. I signed the name, I signed the brother:'s 
name, you know, the reference, and I put the 
address down here because it was close to my 
address. 

Q. What about in the top right-hand corner, 
requested limit, $7,500, who put that down 
there? 

A. I put that there. 

Q. What about the bank information, City Bank, 
you put that information there? 

A. Right. 

Q. Where did you get that information from? 

A. I must have got it from him. 

Q. You di:'ln' t make that bank information np, 
did you? 

A. No, I don't think so. 

Q. Where did you work before working for F11qazv 
Limousine? 

A. Manufacturers Hanover. 

Q. That's a bank, is it not? 

A. Right. 

Q. You signed the name Joseoh Si clot i. on the 
bottom of that credit application? 

A. Yes, I signed it. 

Q. After you filled out the application and Sal 
gave you the driver's license, what did you 
do? 

A. I brought it to the credit cage. 

Q. And what happened at the cage? 

A. He took it, says come back in a half hour. 

Q. Did you go back to the cage after the 
half-hour period? 

A~ Yes .. 
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Q. And what happened there? 

A. Two of the security guar:ls from the casino 
came over and topk me inside. 

Q. And they arrested you? 

A. Just told me to be quiet, and that was it, 
and the next thing I was with the detective, 
and the next thing I was in jail. 

Q. What did the security guards tell you about 
the driver's license that they had submitted 
to the credit cage? 

A. They didn't tell me anything. The detective 
told me it was a phony license. 

Q. When you s'-lbmitted the credit 
did you know whether or not 
Sidoti was a real person? 

application 
Dr. Joseph 

A. No, I had no idea. 

Q. At the time you submitted the driver's 
license and the application and the Social 
Sec11rity card, did you realize you had 
spelled the name Sidoti differently on each 
of those documents, or on two of the three 
documents. 

Q. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: You didn't copy the 
name very well. 

THE WITNESS: He explained to me I had to 
sign the application because if I did qet 
the credit I would have to sign for credit, 
because the signature would have to be 
similar, the same. 

On one document the name was 
S-i-d-o-t-i and another one it was 
s-o-d-i-t-o? 

spellea 
spelled 

A. Maybe. I don't remember. 

Q. Did you realize that the color of the 
driver's license was different from that of 
an authentic driver's license? 

A. No. 

Q. Isn't it true you brought that 
license with you from New York 
Atlantic City with you that day? 

driver's 
City to 
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A. No. 

Q. Didn't you buy that driver's license for 
$100 in New York City? 

A. NO, sir. 

Q. Isn't that what you told the officer the 
night you were arrested? 

A. Yes, I told them. 

Q. Didn't you tell them, 
this type of scheme in 
was to get credit in 
supposedly a foolproof 

sir, you heard about 
New York, how easy it 
this manner, it was 

method? 

A. They told me, I just agreed with them. 

Jane Doe's Gambling Addiction 

Another witness was so afraid to reveal her identity -- and 
her addiction to gambling -- that she resisted appearing at the 
public hearing. The Commission respected her desire for anon~nity, 
SCI Deputy Director ,James J. Morley pointed out, and ruled "that 
the value of her live testimony would be outweighed bv the 
potential for damage to her psychological well-being." 

For that reason, SCI Special Agent Wendy Bostwick was called 
to testify about the absent witness's history, and downfall, as a 
credit gambler and to read excerpts from her prior Executive 
Session testimony. Although certain credit files as well as hP.r 
private session testimony were put into the hearing record, they 
were sealed to protect her identify and throughout the public 
proceeding she was referred to only as ",Jane Doe." 

Agent Bostwick recalled that when Jane ooe first applied for 
credit at Resorts on January, 1979, she was a supermarket clerk 
earning S 18, O 00 a year and that her husband's salary was about 
$15,500. However, there was no indication on her Resorts credit 
application that either her salary or her husband's was listed. A 
bank account verification in February, 1979, showed a balance of 
$500. No savings account was noted on the credit application but 
Jane DOe had told the SCI that she had had a savings account of 
about $100,000. Counsel Morley reviewed throuqh Agent Bostwick a 
chart showing Jane Doe's gambling pattern at Resorts in 1979 and at 
Resorts and Bally's in 1980.* 

Q. Referring to the chart marked C-14, could 
you tell us what was the total a,nount of 
markers drawn by Mrs. DOe at Resorts during 
1979? 

*See Chart, next page. 
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A. In eight days of play at Resorts Interna­
tional Mrs. Doe drew $8,000 in markers. 

Q. And what payments did she make against those 
markers? 

A. She made payments of $4,000 in chips and 
$4,000 in cash and checks. 

Q. And is it correct then, as 
indicates, that she had satisfied 
credit obligations to Resorts at 
1979? 

the 
all 
the 

chart 
of her 
end of 

A. That's correct. 

o. If you would refer again, please, to the 
transcript of Mrs. Doe's executive session 
testimony on page 1 2 at line 14, she was 
asked: "What was your attitude toward 
gambling at the encl of 1979?" 

What was her answer? 

A. "Answer: I think I was controlled. rt was 
more than I normally ever did, but it seemed 
to be I was capable of gambling and winning 
or paying the situation." 

Jane Doe At Resorts, Bally's in 1980 

Q. Referring again to the executive session 
transcript, on page 13 at line 2 Mrs. T)oe 
was asked: "Can you tell us why it was 
necessary for you to establish another 
credit line in early 1980 when you did have 
access to a credit line at Resorts?" 

What was her answer? 

A. "Answer: I don't know. It was the first 
time I visited Bally's and the money I had 
brought down and gambled with, I lost. 
There was a fellow there who knew me from 
Resorts and asked me did J want to get a 
line of credit." 

Q. She was also asked to describe the events 
which led to her being granted credit at 
Bally's. would you please read her answer 
which begins on line 1 9 of the same page? 

A. 11 Answer: What had happened was I went to 
the credit cage on the information of this 
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guv in the casino, floor walker or pit-boss, 
something to that respect, and he didn't 
think I'd have a problem getting credit. ~s 
a matter of fact, they invited me to go to 
dinner. 

"I was with my husband and a friend and the 
three of us went up to Isle of the Sea, 
which is a very plush restaurant. l>uld when 
we came down after dinner he did say the 
credit executive wanted to meet me, but I 
was issued $2,000 worth of credit just like 
that." 

Q. When was Mrs. Doe first granted credit at 
Bally's? 

A. The same day she completed her application, 
,January 15, 1980. 

Q. Was what her initial credit limit? 

A. $1,000. 

Q. Was Mrs. Doe's credit limit at Rally's 
increased during 1980? 

A. Yes, it was. On February 16, 1980 her line 
was permanently increased to $3,000. 0ne 
day later her line was again permanently 
increased to $4,000. 

Q. If you refer again to the chart, what was 
the total value of markers drawn by Mrs. Doe 
at Resorts and Bally's, respectively, during 
1980? 

A. In 13 days of play at Resorts during 1980 
Mrs. Doe rlrew $30,000 in markers. In 12 
days of play at Bally's Mrs. Doe drew 
$27,000 worth of markers. 

Q. ~ow, were the 12 days at Resorts and Rallv's 
mutually exclusive? 

A. No, they were not. She gambled at both 
casinos occasionally on the same day. 

Q. Now, what payments were made against those 
markers? 

A. At Resorts she made payments of $1 3, 00 O 
worth in chips and 17,000 in cash and 
checks. At Bally's she made $16,000 chip 
payment and 11,000 in cash and checks. 
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Q. And was it correct that during 1980, as was 
the case in 1979, Mrs. Doe regularly brought 
her credit balance down to zero within a few 
days after having visited the casinos? 

A. Yes, that's correct. 

Q. Referring once again to the executive 
session transcript on page 20 at line 3 she 
was asked: "The payments that you made in 
1980 at Resorts and Bally' s, how much of 
that came out of your cash flow or your 
savings account?'1 

A. 

Q. 

What was her answer? 

"Answer: 
$16,000 or 
around and 
that." 

I was at a loss at one time for 
better and, then, I made a turn 
I won it back and I paid with 

"Question: Could you tell 
attitude towar"l gambling was 
1980 when you had credit 
casinos?" 

us what your 
at the end of 
lines at two 

A. "Answer: My attitude was quite a different 
attitude than I previously ever had. I came 
into a world there, kind of like a gl3mo11r 
world, and something started to come over me 
which I liked. I was a hard workinq 
person. 'rhey use a little psychology down 
there, not only as far as the gaming goes, 
and coming around with "Mrs. D" and what can 
I do for you, and I know it shouldn't have 
brought me out of context, but it did. 

"I don't know how to tell you. It was 
different. It's different for a lot of 
people. And the employees an:] the workers 
just bring you alonq. I found myself in a 
regular betting and gambling situation and 
with inducements and enticements and the 
atmosphere, the bets began to go a little 
bit bigger and carelessness came into it." 

Q. On page 2.3, line 2: "0uestion: You 
mentioned enticements. Did 'lesorts qive you 
comps during this period?" 

A. "Answer: I th ink as soon as the gambling 
increased the comps came arou11d. 1

' 

Q. "Question: 
comps?" 

Did you have to request the 
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A. "Answer: If you want to go to dinner you 
just ask and somebody writes you out a 
comp! imentary ticket or okays you and your 
party to go to dinner or what have you. 
That's the way it started." 

Her Gambling Fever Heats Up in 1981 

Q. Referring again to the Resorts file, what 
was the first day that Mrs. Doe gambled in 
1981? 

A. January 15. 

Q. What was her credit limit on that day? 

A. $5,000. 

Q. When was her first permanent limit increase, 
in 1980? 

A. On February 14 she was increased to $10,000. 

Q. How soon thereafter was her limit again 
increased? 

A. Nine days later on February 23 she was given 
a temporary increase of $5,000, again taking 
her total to 15,000. 

Q. From February 21 through 24 of 1980 what was 
the total value of markers drawn by Mrs. 
Doe at Resorts? 

A. $36,000. 

Q. Had she paid off all of those markers by the 
end of the four-day period? 

A. Yes, she had. 

Q. When did she next play on credit at Resorts? 

A. May 24 of 1981. 

Q. Was there any change in her credit limit on 
that day? 

A. Yes, she 
increases 
$20,000. 

received 
bringing 

two temporary 
her total line 

Q. Did she use all the credit? 

A. Yes, she did. 

cn,dit 
now to 



-236-

Q. And did she pay it all off on the same day? 

A. Yes, she did. 

Q. When did she next play on credit at Resorts? 

A. July 4th, 1981. 

Q. What was her permanent credit limit on that 
day? 

A. $20,000. 

Q. For how many consecutive days from July 4 
did she gamble? 

A. Three consecutive days, Julv 4th through 
July 6th. 

Q. Did she receive any temporary increases in 
her credit limit during that period? 

A. Yes, she did. 
increases for 
total limit now 

She received 
$10,000 each 
to $40,000. 

two tempor;,ry 
bringing her 

Q. How much rnoney did she owe Resorts at the 
end of this three-day period? 

A. The full $40,000. 

Q. Did she, consistent with her past history, 
satisfy her debt within a few days and 
before she drew any more credit? 

A. No, she did not. This time she made only a 
$10,000 payment on July 14, which left her 
with a $30,000 balance. 

Q. During her testimony at Executive Session 
Mrs. Doe nescribed the events surrounding 
her credit increases from July 4th through 
6th of 1981 beginning on page 26, line 17. 
would you please read her rtescription. 

A. "Answer: Well, it was the July 4th weekend 
and I had gone down there, and to think 
about it now, my attitude was a little 
different. It was a hig shot image. As a 
matter of fact, I called up for 
accommodations and somebody told me they 
were going to give me a suite, and when I 
went down there there was a problem and this 
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kind of upset me. But I went to dinner and 
proceeded to come downstairs and they told 
me they definitely had a suite for me now. 
As a matter of fact, they put somebody out 
of it. I didn't really appreciate the fact 
they had to put somebody out of it. I felt 
a little funny and kind of bad. I went to 
the show and was comped and everything. I 
did some gambling. I hail losses anrJ I 
really only wanted my line to $10,000 at 
this time, but you have to unrJerstand, 
credit was very easy for me to get down 
there. 

"I waited until the next day and I gambled 
and I had losses and all this night I went 
to the credit man and all I said was let me 
have another 10, which made it 20, and I 
proceeded to lose that in a ridiculous 
amount of time, and the casino man could see 
me and watch me. I believe I lost this 
$10,000, I know it for a fact on baccarat, 
which I never played. I was in a frenzy and 
then I went to this fellow again and I said, 
let me have another 20. I said it's okay. 
That was the word, just those brief words 
and I was put to $40,000." 

Q. Diil she ever bring her balance down to zero 
again. 

A. No, she did not. 

Q. Did she, nonetheless, continue to receive 
temporary credit limit increases? 

A. Yes, she did. She received 10 additional 
temporary credit increases. 

Q. And what was the highest credit limit she 
had reached at Ref'lorts? 

A. $55,000. 

Q. On page 30 at line 9 she was aske"l: "Did 
the credit execuive come to you and say 
what's the matter, you're no longer brinqinq 
your balance down, you're keeping your 
balance around $30,000, is there a problem?" 

A.. "Answer: No .. " 

Q. 0n page 31 at 
ever tell the 
from Resorts 

line 22: 
credit 
that 

"Question: 
executive or 

this whole 

Did you 
anybody 

gambling 
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problems?" 

was 
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causing you a lot of 

A. "Answer: I said to him, don't be so liberal 
with me with this credit. You give me 
credit like it's nothing." 

Q. "Question: Did he give you credit after you 
had that conversation with him?" 

A. 

Q. 

n Answer: Yes e II 

"Question: 
or did he 
should just 

Did he ever try to convince you 
ever suggest to you that you 
stop? 11 

A. "Answer: No. The only thing he said to me 

Q. 

A. 

.was toward the end, the very end. One time 
I walked up and I asked for more time on the 
markers .and it was granted immediately. 
They said 90 days was the time allowed on 
the markers. So I had that. 

"There in the end, the very end, the cre<li t 
executive said to me, if you're having a 
problem, we can talk about it. By that time 
it was too late." 

"Question: 
then?" 

Did you talk about it with him 

"Answer: No, 
about it. I 
unbelievable." 

I couldn't. 
was into a 

I couldn't talk 
chase. It was 

Q. "Question: The chase that you're talking 
about is the chase to win to payoff, is that 
what you're saying? Is that why you were 
drawing these additional markeis?" 

A. "Answer: 
back~" 

Right, trying to win my money 

Q. Mrs. Doe also described the atmosphere 
wherein the credit decisions were made. The 
description beg ins on page 34 at 1 ine 1 9. 
Would you please begin reading there. 

A. "Answer: There's all kinds of money being 
negotiated or what have you, and it's done 
on the floor. It's unbelievable. It's 
ridiculous. I never went into an office. 

Q. "Question: When you say it's r!one on 
floor, does this thing take place i:1 
middle of the gaming activity or off to 
side or how does that work?" 

the 
the 
the 
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A. "Answer: 
was done 
floor. 

When I requeste<l the $40,000 it 
right on the middle of the casino 

I had come from the baccarat room 
I couldn't believe the things I had where 

done." 

Q. "Question: In other words, how much time 
passed from the time you got beat really bad 
playing baccarat until the credit executive 
gave you the $40,000?" 

A. "Answer: I couldn't believe it. I don't 
believe it was more than a half hour." 

Q. Does the Bally's file in<licate that Mrs. Doe 
was also gambling on credit there during 
1981? 

A. Yes, it does. 

Q. How high did her credit limit 1et at Bally's 
in 1981? 

A. $5,500. 

Q, Referring to the Caesars Boardwalk Regency 
file, does it indicate that she established 
credit there in 1981? 

A. Yes, it does, on July 5. 

Q. Did Caesars have any 
about Mrs. Doe that 
Resorts or Bally's? 

financial information 
was not available to 

A. Caesars was aware of the savings account 
with a balance of aporoximately 15,000. 

Q. And was Caesars also privy 
credit history at the other 
existed up to July, 1981? 

A. Yes. 

to Mrs. 
casinos 

Doe's 
as it 

Q. What was her 
Caesars? 

initial credit limit at 

A. $5,000, 

Q. What was her final limit there? 

A. $10,000, 

Q. Refer now to the chart that's being put up 
on the easel.* What was the total value of 

*See Chart, next page. 



R
E

SO
R

T
S 

(2
7

 
D

A
Y

S) 
I 

0 
B

A
I.L

Y
'S

 
"' "' I 

(1
0

 
D

A
Y

S) 

C
A

E
SA

R
S 

(7
 

D
A

Y
S) 

T
O

T
A

L
 

JA
N

E
 

O
O

E 

C
R

E
D

IT
 G

A
M

B
LER

 

1
9

8
1

 

M
A

R
K

ER
S 

D
RA

W
N

 
PA

Y
1'11EN

TS 

$
2

4
3

,0
0

0
 

$
1

3
0

,0
0

0
 

(C
H

IP
S

) 
7

0
,0

0
0

 
(C

A
S

H
/C

H
E

C
K

S
) 

$ 
2

9
,5

0
0

 
$

1
5

,0
0

0
 

(C
H

IP
S

) 
9

,0
0

0
 

(C
A

S
H

/C
H

E
C

K
S

) 

$ 
3

1
,5

0
0

 
$ 

7
,0

0
0

 
{

C
H

IP
S

) 
1

4
,5

0
0

 
(C

A
S

H
/C

H
E

C
K

S
) 

$
3

0
4

,0
0

0
 

$
2

4
5

,5
0

0
 

M
A

R
K

E
R

S/C
H

E
C

K
S 

R
E

T
U

R
N

E
D

 

$
4

3
,0

0
0

 

$ 
5

,5
0

0
 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

 

$
5

8
,5

0
0

 



markers 
Bally's 
1981? 

-241-

drawn by Mrs. Doe at Resorts, 
and Caesars respectively during 

A. Mrs. Doe drew $243,000 worth of markers from 
Resorts, $29,500 markers from Bally's. And 
$31,000 worth of markers, $31,500 worth of 
markers from Caesars. 

Q. What payments were made against her markers 
at each casino? 

A. At Resorts 
chips and 
payments. 

Mrs. Doe made $130,000 worth in 
$70,000 in cash an<l check 

At Bally's Mrs. Doe pai<l $15,000 in chips 
and $9,000 in cash and check. 

At Caesars Mrs. Doe paid $7,000 in chips and 
$14,500 in cash and checks. 

Q. How much money did she owe to each casino at 
the end of 1981? 

A. She owed Resorts International $43,000, 
~ally's $5,500, an<l Caesars $10,000. 

Q. Referring to C-16,* another chart, does this 
chart reflect Mrs. Doe's total credit 
gambling activity at all three casinos for 
the three years, 1979 through 1981? 

A. Yes , it does • 

Q. And does she still owe the amount indicated 
in the right-hand column to each of the 
casinos? 

A. Yes, she does. 

Q. And according to the latest information 
provided to us are all three casinos still 
attempting to collect on Mrs. Doe's debt? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. On page 47 of Mrs. 
testimony at line 
gather that as of 
savings balance was 

*See Chart, next page. 

Doe's Executive Session 
20 she was asked: "I 
sometime in 1981 your 
at zero or near zero or 
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wiped out, or virtually wiped out; is that 
correct?" 

What was her answer? 

A. "Answer: Pretty much." 

Q. "Question: That's the savings you said of 
yourself and your husband?" 

A. "Answer: Pretty much 20 years or better of 
savings. 0 

Q. On page 16 she described the intended use of 
funds in her savings account, would you 
please read her answer beginning on line 9. 

A. "Answer: It was savings there for children, 
children's education. It was there for a 
purpose. It took a lot of hard work to put 
it there.•· 

Q, Lastly, Miss Bostwick, at the end of the 
Executive Session testimony Mrs. Doe was 
asked to summarize her feelings about casino 
credit. Would you please read her answer 
which begins on page 46 at line 25. 

A. "Answer: Well, my experience with this 
situation has been horrendous. I don't 
know. Maybe now I've come a long way back. 
Wendy has spoken to me on the telephone 
where I've been out of my head. I pretty 
much could go in a corner and sit down. 
That's how horrendous the business has heen 
to me. 

"As far as casino credit goes, I think it's 
ridiculous. I think it's ridiculous that 
the State doesn't care, nobody cares. 
People are just going down there and killing 
themselves. We' re in a very bad economic 
situation and this whole casino industry is 
a marketing of a hope to gain money. 

"I think the marketing of the industry can 
be dealt with, definitely the casino 
credit. I would never have destroyed myself 
without this easy situation. And I'm not 
alone. I'm not alone." 
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THE TESTIMONY -- FOURTH DAY 
FRIDAY, MARCH 4, 1983 

Opening the final public hearing session, Commissioner Robert 
J. Del Tufo said "we come now to the most important day of these 
proceedings, a day when we will take testimony on how to recon­
struct the casino industry's credit system." He added: 

That the credit process is in need of major 
overhaul can hardly be questioned on the 
basis of the frightening revelations that 
have been put into the public hearing record 
during the past three days. The reforms 
that will be proposed will focus on the 
particular aspects of the casino credit 
process that have been h ighl igh ted here 
the law enforcement and regulatory obstacles 
caused by lax credit controls, the, invita­
tion to criminal incursion, fraud and 
employee misconduct that current credit 
practices offer, the rising tide of uncol­
lectible debts that irresponsible and 
excessive credit decisions have caused, the 
ever enlarging casualty list of patrons who 
become disastrously overextended -- burned­
out, if you will -- and most tragic of all 
the gambling addicts, actual and potential, 
for whom easy credit spells personal shame 
and financial ruin. 

TestillilOny On Casino Credit Reforms 

What Is Gambling Addiction? 

Before questioning expert witnesses on procedural and regula­
tory reforms, the Commission put into the hearing record an ill11s­
tration of the degrading, self-destructive personal impact of 
gambling addiction. This testimony came from a witness who himself 
is a recovered compulsive gambler, Arnold Wexler, an advisory board 
member of the National Foundation for the Study and Treatment of 
Pathological Gambling, a privately funded organization; a vice 
president of the National Council on Compulsive Gambling and of its 
New Jersey af f i 1 iate, and a member of the New .Jersey State Heal th 
Department's Task Force on Compulsive Gambling. He appeared as a 
witness only one day following the inauguration of the New Jersey 
council's 24-hour hotline for aid to ga~ing addicts 800-
GAMBLER. Wexler, who vividly remembered the last day he made a het 
-- April 1 o, 1968 -- was questioned by SCI counsel Gerard P. Lynch 
with the aid of a chart demonstrating the various stages of 
gambling addiction*. 

*See Chart, next page. 
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Q. Could you briefly take us through the 
various stages of that chart and explain how 
gambling affects a compulsive gambler? 

A. We' re going up to the top to the winning 
phase, when the compulsive gambler actually 
starts. Almost all compulsive gamblers 
started gambling before the age of 1 4. So 
we're talking about occasional gambling. 
We're talking about small gambling. We're 
talking about frequent wins. 

usually the compulsive gambler will win the 
first time out, or win the first couple of 
times out. The excitement before and during 
gambling is very high when you 're calling 
the bookmaker or you're gambling at a casino 
or you're at a racetrack. It's just like 
the drug addict putting a needle in his 
arm. 

Q. During this excitement, before and during 
gambling, does the glitter and the glamour 
of the casino and betting thousand-dollar 
chips have anything to do with increasing 
the chances of an individual becoming a 
compulsive gambler? 

A. Well, there's no question about that. I 
remember the first time I placed a bet at 
Roosevelt Raceway, and the lights were shin­
ing and the board was flickering and I was 
very excited about it. lmd, absolutelv, 
that kind of glitter and excitement in - a 
casino will do it to you. 

Q. Mr. Wexler, with regard to fantasy about 
winning and being a big shot, does the 
complimentary service that the casinos offer 
to gamblers such as room, food, beverages, 
limousine service, does that affect the big 
shot stage of the winning? 

A. It affects the big shot. It affects the ego 
feeling, as a compulsive gambler cleaning 
up, you' re here (indicating) and everyone 
else is up here, and when you're in that 
kind of situation, you feel up here like 
everybody else or maybe up a little higher, 
so that absolutely has a lot to do with it. 

You have unreasonable optimism. l\Jo matter 
when you place a bet, if you're betting 
a one thousand dollar chip or you're betting 
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40 ballgames, you still have the feeling 
that I'm going to win. 

In the winning phase, the compulsive gambler 
is having a good time. When we go into the 
losing phase, you start to gamble alone. 
You're thinking only about gambling, and 
that consists of eating, sleeping, drinking, 
gambling. There's nothing else in your life 
except gambling. The only thing you think 
about day and night is gambling, and it 
happens 100 percent of the time. 

The compulsive gambler is constantly lying. 
He's lying to people about he needs money 
because the kid is sick. He can go to his 
mother and take money from the mother and 
say, don't tell dad, and take money from the 
father and say, don't tell mom, and end up 
with money from everybody in the family and 
anybody he comes in contact with. 

You say to yourself, I'm never going to 
borrow from a bank because of gambling, and 
you find yourself borrowing from a bank. 

The next thing, you're never going to borrow 
from the finance company, and you find 
yourself borrowing from the finance 
company. You're never going to borrow from 
your boss, and you end up borrowing from 
your boss. And the cycle goes on and on and 
on, and you borrow from anybody, even though 
you've said you' re never going to do that, 
you end up doing it. 

You don't care about yourself, so you aren't 
going to care about your spouse or family. 
You're losing time from work. You delay 
paying debts because you' re borrowing from 
Peter to pay Paul. Your personality 
changes. You' re unable to pay debts, and 
it's near the bottom of the losing phase, 
and you'll do anything at that point to get 
money. Bailouts bring you back to the 
fantasy and the unreal optimism. Once you 
get a bailout, it's just a big win, because 
once you have a big win, then you say to 
yourself no matter what's going on, you 
still believe you can bring back that big 
win because it happened once before. 

Now we're getting into the desperation 
phase, and that's where the compulsive 
gambler is really destroying himself. Your 
reputation is affected. And you 're 
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borrowing money from people who, you know, 
really look at you kind of ridiculously. 
There are marked increases in the time spent 
gamblng. Again, in the desperation phase, 
it's total gambling, not only where we 
talked about eating, sleeping and drinking, 
gambling in the losing phase, in the 
desperation phase there is nothing else 
going on. Then there's alienation from 
friends and family; by that point you have 
no friends. 

In the remorse phase, every day you're 
driving home from the track or casino or 
wherever you're gambling and thinking to 
yourself you want to die. You really don't 
want to face the next day. And you wish and 
hope somehow God will make you die and 
somehow you have enough guts to just take 
your car and run it over the highway and 
smash into another car. 

You blame others. Everybody seems to be 
bothering you and you 're blaming everybody 
else for what you're doing because you can't 
really face the fact that it is you that has 
caused that. 

Now you' re coming to the panic area, and 
when you're in for the panic thing you will 
do anything. Now we're at the bottom of 
the stage where we're talking about 
hopelessness. You really feel like it's all 
over. You th ink you' re never going to be 
able to stop gambling. You don't know what 
you're going to do. Arrests. Divorce. 
Emotional breakdowns. 

Q. Would the easy availability of crenit that 
we have heard over the past three days and 
testimony here in the Atlantic City casinos 
have any affect on the compulsive gambler? 

A. Well, there's no question that would have an 
affect on a compulsive gambler. If you had 
time to pay back a debt, that gives you time 
to continue gambling, and have the 
unreasonable optimism that no matter how 
much you owe, you still can pay it back; and 
you do anything to continue that thing 
because until that last day that you have to 
pay it back the ball game is not over. 

Q. Are you familiar with the 90-day period 
among casinos where a gambler has 90 banking 
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days or 120 calendar days to payoff markers 
that are issued to him at casinos? 

A. When you're dealing with compulsive gambler, 
the drug is money, and when he can get money 
and money can lay over for a period of time 
until he has to pay it, that's the greatest 
bailout you can get. If you've got 120-days 
to come up with the money, you're in fantasy 
land because you can go to nine casinos, get 
more money, because legally you haven't got 
a bounced check or you haven't got a 
situation where there's a problem. 

Q. Would you recommend that that period be 
eliminated or shortened? 

A. Absolutely. 

Q. Do you feel that a TRW or CBA credit inquiry 
of a credit gambler's history would be 
beneficial prior to extension of credit? 

A. I think credit should be given in a casino 
just like they give credit when you go to 
buy a house. I think it should be fully 
checked at a reputible credit bureau and I 
think no casino should give credit to 
somebody just after checking somebody's 
checking account. 

Q. 

COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: Why do you think 
they should give credit at all? 

THE WITNESS: That's a good question. Maybe 
they shouldn't give credit at all. 

Mr. Wexler, do you have any 
how the credit practices at 
City casinos could be changed 
help the compulsive gambler 
individuals from becoming 
gamblers? 

suggest ion on 
the Atlantic 
in order to 
and prevent 

compulsive 

A. Yeah, I have a list of them. I believe that 
all applications should be sent directly to 
the home, not to your business. I think the 
wife would get an idea of what's going on 
and she would be shocked. 

I think that there should be a full credit 
check, like I said before, just 1 ike when 
you buy a house, that kind of credit check 
and not through Central Credit in Nevada. I 
think you would find a compulsive gambler 
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has some legal loans that would show up on 
there. There's no question about it. 

Q. Mr. Wexler, in your opinion, since the 
advent of casino gambling in the state, has 
there been an increase in the number of 
compulsive gamblers enrolled in orograms 
throughout the state or become known to you 
who might not yet have enrolled in these 
programs? 

A. Well, from the people at Gamblers Anonymous, 
I hear that their membership has tripled in 
the last three-and-a-half years. There were 
18 meetings of Gamblers Anonymous in the 
State of New Jersey three·-and-a-half years 
ago; there are 35 meetings today. 

THE CHAIRMAN: Let me ask you about up-front 
money. Wouldn't up-front money, to some 
degree, alleviate these credit problems? 

THE WITNESS: Wel 1, Mr. Lane, the business 
I'm in, we sell dresses all over the country 
and all over the world. In fact, we just 
had an incident yesterday where a man came 
in and left us a $12,000 check. We packed 
the merchandise and didn't ship it. Check 
bounced. we don't send anything out of our 
business until that check clears even if we 
had to wait 7-, 10- or 20-days. Absolutely, 
100 percent, I agree with you. 

COMMISSIONER DELTUFO: Mr. Wexler, I was 
interested in your description of the 
profile of the compulsive gambler as you 
went through it. Do you think that there 
are compulsive gamblers with profiles that 
are a little less dramatic than the one you 
posture? rn other words, I'm talking about 
someone who is compulsive but, perhaps, does 
not take those deep troughs and highs, but 
who is still doing damage to themselves 
day-by-day. 

THE WITNESS: I' 11 tell you a story I once 
heard. A man came to the National Council 
for help. It was Christmas week about seven 
years ago. Man walked in, and he wore a 
jacket, and it was frayed on his sleeve. 
And he sait, I never gambled more than $6 in 
any given race. I'm usually a 2 and $4 
bettor. There were no casinos at that 
time. He said that he had never been on a 
vacation, he never owned a car, he doesn't 
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have too much furniture in his house. He 
never made more than $150 a week and the man 
owed $3,000 and it was the most pitiful case 
I ever saw. 

COMMISSIONER DELTUFO: If there's easy 
access to credit and borrowing to people 
like that, it can obviously also have some 
very bad affects. 

THE WITNESS: When I stopped gambling, I was 
making 175 a week. I owed $14,000. I 
didn't owe a million. I didn't owe 
$100,000. It was devastating to me. It was 
two years annual salary. I had $f3 in the 
bank. My wife was living with a destruction 
in her house, and I didn't know the kinds of 
money that those people that you saw 
yesterday were talking about. 

CPA Suggests Credit Reforms 

Anthony Restuccia, the supervising agent of the Division of 
Gaming Enforcement's Audit Section, returned to the hearing for two 
purposes -- to describe briefly the fiscal operations of casinos 
with the aid of charts, and to suggest reforms to curtail abuses in 
the industry's credit system. 

Restuccia was questioned by SCI counsel Michael v. Coppola: 

Q. Mr. Restuccia, you've previously told us 
that you've been with the Division of Gaming 
Enforcement for the past five years and that 
your responsibilities relate to the casinos, 
their accounting controls. and, more 
specifically, on a day-to-day basis you deal 
with the credit regulations and internal 
procedures of the casinos relating to the 
issuance of credit. Can you describe for us 
how a casino operates in general terms? 

A. Well, in very general terms, a casino is 
divided into two separate and distinct 
departments: primarily the table games 
department and slot department. Both of 
those departments usually report to a vice 
president of casino operations. On the slot 
department side, you'd have a number of 
different types of slot machines and for 
different denominations nickels, 
quarters, dollars. You'd have progressive 
slot machines with very large jackpots, 
which have been becoming increasingly 
familiar and popular and on the table side, 
you have five types of table games 
blackjacks, craps, roulette, big six and 
baccarat. 
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Chart on Casino Win For 1982* 

Q. May we please have charts 19 and 6A? * Can 
you indicate for us the extent to which each 
of these departments, the slot department 
and the table game department, contributes 
to casino win, and before you do that, I 
think it would be best if you would explain 
for us what casino win means? 

A. Casino win is essentially the amount 
chips that's lost by a gaming patron in 
cas 1no, or, another way to put that, 
amount of chips won by the casino. 

of 
the 
the 

In looking at the chart on • Industry Total 
Win for 1982," one thing becomes very 
evident: in 1982, the slot department side 
of the casino operation, which is 
essentially all the different denominations 
of slot machines and progressive slots, 
accounts for 46-percent or $694 million in 
1982 for gross revenue. 

Now, the gross revenue is divided into two 
distinct areas; slot win and table game 
win. On the table game side, we have the 
operation of all the five types of table 
games, and that accounts for 54-percent of 
all the income in the casino. Very 
distinctly here, slots is all cash and table 
games is part cash. 

Q. Are there any differences between the income 
received from the slot department and the 
income that is generated out of the table 
games department, the source of the income? 

A. As I indicated with respect to the 
revenues. If we could just look at the 
table game side, the chart shows that 70 
percent of what's taken in, or revenue, is 
all cash. This chart shows the entire 
casino operation. 17-percent of the income 
of the casino operation is from credit. 

Chart On Industry Total Win, Slot Win, Table Win** 

Q. The chart on the right** shows the trend for 
the last five years and how table games and 
slots make up similar percentages to this 
last year, so this is not an isolated 

*See Chart 6A, next page. 
**See Chart C19, page 254. 
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CASINO INDUSTRY 
TOTAL WIN FOR 1982 
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CASINO INDUSTRY 
TOTAL WIN, SLOT WIN, TABLE WIN 
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instance. Could you run through the diagram 
and explain what the figures actually mean? 

A. This chart C19 depicts, in a bar-graph 
format, the amount of income or revenue from 
table games and the amount of income or 
revenue from the slot machines. It depicts 
each year working backward from 1982. Table 
games contributed $799 million in 1982, and 
that was 54-percent of the operation. 
Conversely, 4 6-percent came from slots or 
$694 million. As we can see, the amount of 
income is increasing in the casino industry, 
and this has to do primarily with the 
increased number of casinos that are 
opening, and this relationship -- 46-percent 
this year which happens to be the highest 
year so far. This may due to the fact that 
the progressive slot machines, which give 
out very large jackpots, are increasingly 
popular in Atlantic City. 

The percentage that slots 
increased from 42 percent, 
year it was 46-percent. 

contributes has 
and this last 

Q. Now, does credit make up any percentage of 
the win that is generated from slots? 

A. Essentially slot machines are an all cash 
operation. People bring that money down 
with them in advance. They obtain rolls of 
coins and they gamble it in the casino. 

As I indicated before, only a small portion 
of the revenue in the casino comes from 
credit play. We must keep in mind that the 
operation at a table game involves a number 
of wagers among thousands of patrons and 
each specific wager in the amount that each 
person wins in the casino cannot be 
identified. 

However, there are certain relationships 
that do exist in the casino between the 
amount of chips purchased. There's a 
certain amount of chips purchased on cash 
and a certain amount purchased on credit. 
Keeping that relationship in mind, we've 
estimated the amount of casinos' win from 
cash at the tables and from credit at the 
tables. 
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Q.. What \itas the totaJ win in 1982~? 

A. 'I'otaI win in 1982 was $1.49 billion. 

Q. Of that total figure, how much did the slot 
departrneut contribute to the win? 

A. Slots contributed c$694 million. The table 
games contribi..ltt:~d 553 million of cash, and 
~246 million of credit play. 

Casinos' Statement On Credit Is Misleadi 

Q. Now, when 
40-percenc 
attributed 

the industry states that 30- to 
of the industry income is 

to the credit operation, is that 
an accurate statement? 

A. 'I'hat statement alone would be very mis­
leading in t.hat it totally eliminates and 
does not address the arnount of income from 
slot machines. Actually, credit play is 
approximately 30-percent to 40-percenc of 
the table ga1ne operacion, buc this does not 
address at all, as I indicated, the cash 
that comes in on the cash machines~ 

1.'HE CHAIRMAN: You've already said only 17 
percent was derived. 

COMMISSIONER DEL'I'UFO: If you take into 
account the slot revenues; is that correct? 

Tlrn WITNESS: 'l'ha t ~ s correct~ 

COMMISSIONER DEL'I'UFO: Which they did not in 
making the 30-percent estimate? 

'rHE CHAIRMAN: And you have testified 17-
percent is a true figure, have you not? 

THE WITNESS: That's correct. 17-percent is 
the best estimate from figures available. I 
should indicate, I've asked a numh~r of 
casino executives how much they actually win 
or take into gross revenue from credit, and 
no one has really identified that figure 
specifically, but in 1982, our estimate is, 
and the figures I have that are supplied by 
the casino industry, show 17-percent came 
from crc-?dit~ In 1981, it was 16-percent and 
in 1980 it was 15-perce11t. 
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If you take al 1 of 

THE WITNESS: The entire casino operation, 
that's correct. 

How Credit Has Increased 

BY MR. COPPOLA: 

Q. Can you give us 
credit issued 
increased? 

an idea of how the amount of 
in Atlantic City has 

A. Well, back in 1980, there was $515 million 
issued in casino credit. In 1'l81, that 
amount doubled to $1 billion, and in 1982, 
that number increased by SO-percent up to 
one-and-a-half billion dollars. 

Q. May we please have Chart C-21?* 
you please explain or define 
11 drop 11 ? 

And would 
the term 

A. Drop is essentially the total amount of 
chips purchased in a casino by patrons. 
This is essentially nothing more than a 
cashiering transaction, where an equal 
amount of chips is exchanged for an equal 
amount of dollars. There's no income 
derived from the drop transaction, just an 
exchange. A patron would arrive at a gaming 
table, supply the dealer with $100, the 
dealer would push back to him $100 in chips, 
and if he did not gamble he could get up 
with those chips, go back to the cashier's 
cage and receive $100. 

Table Drop vs. Table Win 

Q. Now, would you explain the relationship 
between table drop and table win? 

A. Table drop is amount of chips that are 
purchased in the casino. When a patron 
gambles in the casino over a period of time, 
on the average, the patron doesn't lose all 
his money. He leaves with a portion of his 
money. The amount he leaves at the table or 
loses is the casino win, and this 
relationship between table win and table 
drop sometimes is referred to as the hold 

*See Chart, next page. 
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CASINO INDUSTRY 
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percentage. So on the average, in the 
entire industry, from Atlantic City, in 
1982, considering all the casinos and all 
different types of table games, 17-percent 
of the chips purchased in the casino were 
won'by the casinos. The remaining amount of 
chips the patrons had in their possession 
when they left the table. 

Q. Does the relationship between drop and win 
also hold true for chips purchased on cash 
as well as for chips purchased on credit? 

A. Yes, it does. As a matter of fact, once you 
sit at a gaming table and you've borrowed 
this money from the casino and you have 
chips, you've exchanged a marker for some 
chips, once you have those chips, the cards 
and the dice can't tell the difference 
between those chips. The relationships hold 
the same. · The same cards are dealt from the 
same deck, whether you're gambling on chips 
purchased on credit or on cash. 

As a matter of fact·, this percentage may 
even be lower for credit gamblers in that 
the casino may win less from credit drop 
than it does from cash drop because of 
several factors; but the two most important 
would be that number one, usually a credit 
gambler is more intelligent and makes more 
intelligent betting decisions and makes a 
wiser bet. 

In addition, the credit gambler, since he 
has a lot more money at his disposal, can 
ride out a bad streak of luck in the casino, 
utilize the casino's money until the streak 
turns around and may, in effect, end up 
winning money. So this whole percentage may 
be less for credit gamblers. And as a 
matter of fact, we isolated some table games 
in the casino that are predominantly credit. 

For example, blackjack tables with very high 
denominations, or SO-percent or 90-percent 
of the action is credit, and there are some 
craps tables which fall into the same 
category. Now, we compared the blackjack 
and the craps tables that were predominantly 
credit to those that were predominantly 
cash. We saw consistently the tables where 
most credit is played win a lower percenta~e 
of the money. 
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Chart on Credit Issued and * 
Q. Could we now please review Chart C-22?* 

A. If you noticed in the last diagram, in 1982, 
the amount of chips purchased was 4.9 
billion. That included all the chips 
purchased on cash and all the chips 
purchased on credit. This chart, for the 
years 1980, '81 and '82, isolates the amount 
of chips purchased on credit. In applying 
that same percentage, we find that chips 
purchased on credit was 1.453 billion or 
approximately a billion-and-a-half dollars 
in 1982. And the amount that we estimate 
was won or revenue received from that credit 
activity was $246 million. Likewise, in 
1981, the same percentage existed when we 
calculatea it, ana in 1980, the percentage 
was 16-percent, somewhat less. 

Q. Are there any conclusions that you can draw 
from the relationship between credit issued 
and credit win? 

A. I woula indicate that this relationship 
would show that credit patrons who gamble in 
the casino would lose approximately 
17-percent of this figure, the remaining 
83-percent would be in their possession when 
they left the table available to pay off 
markers immediately,. 

Chart On Provision For Bad Debts** 

Q. May we please have Chart C-23?** 
please explain this? 

Could you 

A. This diagram compares that credit drop 
figure for total chips purchased on credit, 
which is indicated by a hundred percent with 
the amount of bad debts, with the bad debt 
experience in the casino industry for the 
last three years. We see total chips 
purchased on credit in 1980 was 
approximately $600 million, and of that 
amount $19 million was uncollected. 

In 1981 it wa,; 
dollars purchased 
was uncollected. 

*See Chart C22, next page. 
**See Chart C23, page 262. 
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CASINO INDUSTRY 

CR1:D1~ ISSUED (CHIPS PURCHASED ON CREDIT) AND CREDIT WIN 
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approximately a billion-and-a-half 
in chips were purchased on credit, 
that amount it's expected that $ 25 
would not be collected. 

dollars 
and of 

million 

Q. noes the chart actually tell the whole 
story? 

A. I think there's a factor that's missing in 
th is diagram. Nowhere does this indicate 
the amount of revenue that is received from 
the credit operation and how these bad debts 
compare to that revenue figure. 

Chart On Credit Win, Credit Issued* 

Q. May we please have Chart C-24? Now, does 
this Chart C-24, include the missing 
element, credit income?* 

A. Exactly. · That last diagram contained total 
amount of chips purchased on credit and also 
contained the amount that's expcted to go 
bad. What we've done here is inserted the 
amount that we believe is credit win in the 
casino from chips purchased on credit, and 
as the diagram indicates, for example, in 
1982, it was billion-and-a-half dollars 
purchased on credit. 

Of that amount, a certain portion is won by 
the casino which relates in revenue which is 
$246 million or 17-percent of all the chips 
purchased on credit. As we come down to the 
figure which they expect will go bad, $25 
million--

Q. Could you explain that figure, the provision 
figure? 

A. This may be a little confusing. Since they 
really don't know if they're going to 
collect the money, the casinos estimate from 
their experience what they expect to go bad, 
and in essence, for every dollar that's 
issued in credit, they estimate two percent 
is going to be uncollected. 

That is, in effect, the money they loan to 
the patrons. But when you isolate the 
amount they win from credit and compare that 
to the amount they expect to go bad, we find 

*See Chart C24, next page. 
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that in 1982, 10-percent of the revenue 
they' re going to take in is expected to go 
bad. 

In other words, for every $10 that's taken 
in on credit, $1 will not be collected. 
Similarly 1n 1981, the same relationship 
exists. 10-percent of the amount of credit 
win, $176 million, was uncollectible. And 
moving back to 1980, we find that our 
estimate of credit win is $96 million, and 
approximately $19 million was not collected, 
and that's a staggering 20-percent. 

This is the case, because in 1980, we've had 
previous testimony from Mr. Zarin, this was 
the year in which he was issued his credit 
and went bad. In addition, we've had 
representives from Criminal Justice and 
other people in Gaming Enforcement talking 
about credit scams, and this was when that 
took place, in 1980. 

Those figures indicate that in 1980 the 
amount for every S10 the casino industry 
took in credit revenue, $2 was not 
collected, 20-percent was not collected. 

Q. Now, how does the industry's provision for 
credit issued compare with other industries? 

A, To be perfectly honest, there is no other 
industry that's totally like the casino 
industry. It's unique unto itself, in that 
what happens is that the casino industry is 
different, and it's very difficult to find 
another industry that has similar 
circumstances. I would, myself, not wish to 
compare that to another industry. 

Casino Credit Comparison Also Misleading 

Q, Have you heard or are you aware that the 
casino industry has made claims that their 
credit debt history is as good as retail 
establishments such as Sears? 

A. That comparison is usually made. 

Q. Is it an accurate comparison? 
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A. I believe it's very misleading comparison. 

Q. Are you familiar with any of 
that were generated from 
establishment such as Sears? 

the figures 
a retail 

A. Well, I have the Sears' figures for 1981, 
and in 1981, Sears-Roebuck had credit income 
of $9.7 billion. Of that amount, a mere 
$124 million was not collected and that's 
1.3 percent of their income. 

Now, if you want to compare casino income 
figures, we can look at 1982, and we see 
1 a-percent. They are ten times worse than 
Sears. In 19a1, they're also ten times 
worse than Sears, and in 1980, they're much 
more than that. 

"Credit Controls Are Inadequate" 

Q. Based on your five years of experience, do 
you have an opinion as to whether or not the 
current regulations and statutes with 
respect to casino credit are adequate? 

A. My opinion is that they're inadequate, and 
things I've heard in the testimony before 
this Commission from other law enforcement 
officials, from the gamblers and credit 
executives, confirm that. 

Q. Would you be able at this point to address 
those those specific problems? 

A. Yes, I have a list of recommendations I 
would like to make at this time. 

I believe many of these problems can he 
addressed by stronger regulation in the 
casino credit procedures. But we must take 
notice that none of those problems can be 
entirely eliminated. Regulatory amendments 
must give the responsible credit executive 
and the credit worthy patron the flexibility 
they deserve, but at the same time, we must 
hope to frustrate the irresponsible credit 
executive and credit cheats. 

Patrons Should be Photographed 

The applications for casino credit must be 
expanded to require that the patron supply 
more information about himself and the 
casino must supplement this information with 
facts obtained from verifiable credit 
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sources. Patrons should be 
present a 
identification 
for credit. 

more reliable 
credential when 

required 
form 

they 

to 
of 

apply 

Presently, anything with a signature is 
acceptable. Casinos should be required to 
take and to keep a photograph of the patron 
in their credit file. Photographs should 
deter criminal activity, as well as aid 
casino personnel in monitoring gamblers in 
the casino, and as Captain Jankowski with 
the Division of Gaming Enforcement, and 
Barry Goas from Criminal Justice indicated, 
these pictures should help law enforcement 
in the investigation and prosecution of any 
crimes which occur. 

There's a need for more background 
information on credit applications. 
Gamblers should be required to request each 
credit limit in writinq. There is a need 
for more references to be verified. 
Presently the regulations require that 
credit references be obtained from only one 
source, either a bank, a casino or a credit 
bureau. This level of verification is 
inadequate. 

Cas}nos Should Exchange Data 

Contact with other legal casinos, a credit 
bureau and any bank the patron intends to 
write checks from, is a minimum standard. 
When credit references are requested casinos 
should be required by law to release 
information about credit balances 
outstanding to other New Jersey casinos. 
The ability now for casinos to withhold 
derogatory information about casino patrons 
should be discontinued. 

Credit patrons with certain classes of 
derogatory information should be denied 
credit by regulatory mandate. There's a 
need for the credit manager to have access 
to information contained in the security and 
surveillance department's files regarding a 
patron's credit worthiness. Derogatory 
information obtained by these departments 
many times can be as important when making a 
credit decision as the information obtained 
from the financial institutions and other 
legal casinos. 
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If the gambler is a criminal, and 
surveillance is aware of it, the credit 
department should also have this information 
and be required to take responsive 
measures. The name of each credit 
application should be scrutinized by 
security personnel. The casino industry 
needs the tools to combat gamblers who walk 
with chips. Any chips purchased on credit, 
remaining with the patron after gambling, 
should be repaid before he leaves the 
premises. Casino credit is issued to 
facilitate gambling, not to supplement 
personal finances. 

Player Rating Process Needs Improvement 

Accurate player ratings must be obtained and 
be utilized in determining a patron's credit 
worthiness. The sole purpose for issuing 
credit is to facilitate gambling. Accord­
ingly, we recommend that the player rating 
be entered on the credit file each time a 
credit 1 im it is established or increased, 
thereby requiring that a patron's method of 
play along with his credit references, 
including the history of repaying casino 
credit be considered when making this 
decision. 

We believe that player ratings require an 
independent review. since this rating 
determines a patron's ability to maintain 
and increase his credit limit, as well as 
his level of complimentaries, we believe 
that steps need to be taken which will 
enhance the reliability of this informa­
tion. We believe the same type of "people 
watching people" control which is exercised 
in other areas of the casino should be 
present with player ratings. 

Another recommendation would be to allow 
casinos to obtain payment on counter checks 
from gaming patrons in an area near the 
pits. The transaction would be conducted 
under the direction of the casino cage. 
However, markers must be kept in a cage. 
These transactions must have adequate 
internal controls. 

Clear Checks icker 

The ability for casino patrons to roll over 
markers and obtain interest-free loans must 
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be interrupted. Counterchecks should be 
held by the casino no more than 14 calendar 
days. This gives sufficient time for the 
debt to be honored and will provide for. a 
quick way to determine a patron's true 
ability to afford his gambling debts. 

This lapse of time for patrons to utilize 
the casino's money over a four month period 
is unacceptable. Further, problem gamblers 
who receive credit have essentially four 
months to complicate their gambling 
problems. 

Reforms Also Address Addiction Problem 

COMMISSIONER DELTUFO: We've heard, and 
again I don't want to get you into a policy 
area that you don't feel comfortable with, 
but we've heard a lot of testimony about 
compulsive gamblers on a large scale and 
about compulsive gamblers on a smaller 
scale, but it seems there are a lot of them 
out there, and certainly, the types of 
reforms you've suggested would tighten up 
credit practices, but it would not be of 
much assistance to this, to the miseries of 
the compulsive gambler who can't stop and 
just gets in deeper and deeper over his head 
assuming that he had a credit reference. 

THE WITNESS: I think some of the recom­
mendations in here, in fact, many of them 
address two problem areas; they do address 
the issue of compulsive gambling in that if 
credit is restricted and more information on 
the credit card and there's more information 
about a person's personal finances, the 
credit executive is going to be in better 
position to be able to make a decision and 
defer a credit increase. 

In addition, suggestions such as only 
allowing a casino to hold checks for 14-days 
is not going to give a person four months to 
ride out the problem. 

THE CHAIRMAN: I have another policy ques­
tion for you. Wouldn't it be healthy for 
everybody, including casinos themselves, if 
there were a regulation of some sort that 
would enable the casinos, the state police, 
the casino commission, so forth, to keep 
anybody associated with organized crime away 
from casino premises? 
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THE WITNESS: That 
worthwhile suggestion. 
help. 

seems like a very 
I think it would 

Law Enforcement View On Credit Reforms 

T. Barry Goas, chief of the Casino Control Section of the 
Attorney General's Criminal Justice Division, testified at the 
opening of the hearing on law enforcement problems generated by 
casino credit abuses. He returned on the final day of the 
proceedings to suggest corrections of the process from the law 
enforcement point of view. Goas was questioned about his 
proposals by SCI Executive Director James T. O'Halloran: 

Q. Mr. Goas, based upon your own experience and 
your expertise as a prosecutor, would you 
give this Commission your views on 
recommendations that would assist in the 
prosecution of casino credit crimes? 

A. Yes. My views are perceived from a law 
enforcement perspective and, accordingly, 
they will be more mundane and less 
statistically oriented than those propounded 
by Mr. Restuccia. 

If you will recall, in my testimony on 
Tuesday I indicated that there's two basic 
obstacles for the would-be credit scammer to 
overcome. It's 1 ike talking and walking; 
he's got to talk his way into getting a line 
of credit issued to him and he's got to walk 
with thos 0 gambling chips. So if we can, 
through more stringent or strict 
regulations, make those hurdles or obstacles 
harder or higher for him to scale or climb, 
r think you' re going to deter crime and I 
think you're going to solve the crimes that 
do occur. I'm not naive enough or 
idealistic enough to believe you can stop 
crimes occurring with the existence of 
credit, but I think we can do a lot to 
tighten it up. 

Strengthen Biographical Requirements 

r think at a bare minimum and a bare 
inconvenience to the casino industry, the 
following should be done: In terms of the 
biographical portion of the credit 
application, I think that the name obviously 
has got to be required, and the address. 
You want to request a date of birth, or 
mandate these now is what I'm saying, a date 
of birth, a home telephone number. In the 
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employment section of a credit application I 
think you want to mandate, which that isn't 
even called for as of the present time, 
although I do believe most casinos call for 
employment, I think you want to know the 
name of the business, the address of that 
business, how long the person's been 
employed in that business, his position or 
title if any, and the phone number for that 
business. 

In terms of credit verification, currently 
regulations call for either the verification 
of a person's bank account, a check with a 
recognized credit bureau or the check with 
another legalized casino. I would submit 
that you might want both of these things. 

Now, in terms of the information that the 
casino should be required to obtain from the 
bank, number one, it's got to be in 
writing. One of the big problems we have 
had in these credit scams is the bank 
employee who is bad. 

That leads me into the second prong of the 
bank information proposal. It should be in 
writing and it should include, at a minimu~, 
the following: It should indicate how long 
the account's been opened; it should 
indicate the average minimum balance of that 
account over the period or the length of 
time it's been opened; it should indicate 
whether the person can sign alone on that 
account; it should further indicate the 
present balance in the account and, also, a 
present rating of that accouont by a bank 
official. 

Color Photographs Would Aid Crime Probes 

I might add, going back to the biographical 
data, the most important thing to me is, I 
would require and recommend that a photo­
graph be taken of the applicant who applies 
for credit, and it should be a color photo­
graph and there should be a person within 
that cage, whoever is going to take this 
information, who signs off her name and can 
testify that the person depicted in that 
photograph is the person who signed that 
credit application. Too many times in 
proving the identity of the person who 
committed the crime we have to backtrack and 
do it by handwriting exemplars, which is a 
very cumbersome process because most of the 
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people, as I indicated, have come from the 
state of New York, not from New Jersey. 

I put up for consideration -- I'm not wedded 
to it -- the concept of having a thumbprint 
placed upon the credit-card application. 

Moving along, if in the credit verification 
procedures after the bank account is 
checked, if we check another credit history 
or another casino history and either of 
those two items prove derogatory, then there 
should be a written explanation in that file 
by the credit executive issuing the credit 
why he is still giving credit in the 
presence of such derogatory information. 

Redeem Chips In Pit Areas 

In the area of walking with chips, you have 
got to prevent these chips from leaving that 
table somehow. Perhaps the idea would be -­
I have not thought it out in detail -- to 
redeem those chips in proximity to the pit 
in where the credit is issued. How that is 
structured and set up I leave that to the 
wisdom of the Division of Gaming Enforcement 
officials and perhaps the industry. But 
that is the only way I see that you can 
totally stop people walking with the chips. 

One or two f ina1 notes on the credit card 
application. I think that there might be 
something said for, number one, uniformity 
of the information to be required on that. 
There might even be reason to have 
uniformity of the credit card itself. That 
would facilitate, I'm sure, the Division of 
Gaming Enforcement. I know it would 
facilitate the prosecutors working for me. 

BY MR. O'HALLORAN: 

Q. I think you made some reference in your 
earlier testimony, and I think you may want 
to comment again, do you feel that the time 
should be reduced for the presentation of 
the marker? 

A. Yes. I strongly believe the time for the 
redemption of the checks as it exists now 
should be reduced considerably. The reason 
I say this is that we don't know of the 
commission of the crime for a minimum of 
four months after it's done now. 
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EXAMINATION BY COMMISSIONER PATTERSON: 

Q. On "This Trip Only" credit, assuminq we are 
going to continue credit, I can't quite in 
my own mind figure out why there should be 
T.T.O. 's. I think if a player has a credit 
line, whatever the credit line might be, and 
if the casino wants to, if he wants to 
increase his credit line and the casino then 
should look at the increase request the same 
way they gave the original credit; that too 
often T.T.O. means nothing but more 
permanent financing to the individual. 

A. I would agree with that, Commissioner. What 
I have found happen repeatedly is that 
person will then pay off the T.T.O. to show 
he's liquid, then the next T.T.O. will be a 
lot bigger than the first one while the 
permanent line is still the same. 

Q. In many cases the T.T.O.'s haven't been paid 
off. And that gets them ultimately in 
trouble. We have heard the person ask for 
$5000 and we know, speaking as a casino 
credit person, we believe they're good for 
10. Fine. If they're good for 10, give 
them 10. Don't say it's a T.T.O. It's a 
permanent increase, in my mind, and they 
ought to make the decision not on what the 
person wants that particular evening for a 
weekend or whatever, but what the person 
can, what the person's credit file indicates 
that they can stand. 

A. I would have no difficulty concurring with 
that. 

EXAMINATION BY COMMISSIONER GREENBERG: 

Q. Well, assuming that we are not going to have 
credit in the cas ions any more, would that 
make your job as law-enforcement officer 
easier, Mr, Goas? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. It would eliminate 
number of these 
described? 

A. Absolutely. 

the possibility 
scams that you 

of a 
have 
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Q. It will eliminate the lure for organized 
crime, at least, in terms of the use of 
credit for some of these scams, won't it, 
Mr. Goas? 

A. Absolutely. 

Casino Lawyer's Outlook On Credit 

The next witness was Joel A. Sterns of the law firm of Sterns, 
Herbert and Weinroth, who was retained as counsel by Resorts 
International soon after the voters ratified casino gambling in 
1976. He conceded that his comments would reflect "an industry 
point of view" although not authorized by any particular segment of 
the industry. He noted that the hearing had focused on "two 
central issues," organized crime and credit. He added: 

The organized-crime issue is perhaps the 
most difficult, not because there's any 
disagreement but because of the ability of 
the casinos or for anyone to do anything 
about it ... There's nothing that a casino can 
do no matter how remote in Atlantic City 
that isn't going to get full scrutiny from a 
number of public agencies and from the 
press, and that is as it should be. Now, 
under those circumstances there isn't any 
casino or casino executive in his right 
mind that wants to have any remote 
association with organized crime. 

Now, what can they do about it? To the 
extent that a casino knows of the reputation 
of a person, and I'm now dealing first with 
reputation, and to the extent that that 
casino then knowingly goes ahead and offers 
comp, free meals, liquor, et cetera, et 
cetera, they're making a drastic mistake and 
they shouldn't do it. But you have got to 
be sure they know about these people .•• I 
heard a lot of names this week and maybe you 
did, too, that would not have meant anything 
to me and if someone had called me and said 
what do we do about this person, I would not 
have known that name. 

What I'm suggesting is that it is not within 
the capability of the casinos to, first of 
all, make the judgment as to who or what is 
organized crime or representative of 
organized crime. The second thing I'm 
suggesting is that if they did know, they 
certainly should cut out anything that's 
within their discretion ... In summary, number 
one, a casino is crazy where it knows, or 
has reason to know, of a notorious 
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individual to offer comps, that is, free 
elements of any kind, whether it be food, 
travel, transportation or drink. But as to 
rejection, as to keeping these people out, I 
think the casino under the present situation 
and the law must rely on the state entity to 
provide it. 

X X X 

Sterns next addressed the 
business tool of the industry, as 
to gaming addiction. Sterns said: 

issue of casino credit, as a 
a basis for fraud and as a spur 

The easiest thing for me to address is the 
issue of credit scams, people taking 
advantage, bilking casinos and, therefore, 
possibly losing, losing revenues for the 
state, et cetera. In that particular 
instance, I, first of all, would say that I 
think you would find the record of the 
casino industry with regard to collection of 
credit an enviable record. I don't believe 
anybody in the credit business in the United 
States banks, financing companies, et 
cetera - collects back as much credit as 
they do: and in the case of Resorts with 
which I'm most familiar, with 50,000 active 
credit files and over $369 million extended 
in credit, only seven-tenths of one percent 
was lost ..• In perspective, it's a very 
minuscule loss to the state. I think if 
given the time, and I know that I have 
impinged on your time so I don't want to do 
it, but given the time I think I could 
demonstrate to you that there's no loss to 
the state out of this and that, in fact, the 
tax revenue is enhanced. 

We all would like to see the casinos and the 
state not bilked, and to the extent we are 
loose in our credit practices, there are 
certain things that have been testified that 
can be done. 

I think the significant issue is the one 
that you reached yesterday. I think the 
casino industry, as you have pointed out, 
has an obligation to look at its credit 
limits that it extends to people and not get 
them in over their head; and I'm far more 
concerned with that aspect of what you have 
heard than I am with the scam aspect. The 
scam aspects can be taken care of and are 
taken care of, are insignificant as a 
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percentage of the thousands and thousands of 
credit transactions. But it doesn't answer 
the question of what is the obligation of 
the state or the casinos to stop a person 
from getting in over his head. 

Now, this is not an easy question and it's 
not one that the casinos alone can deal 
with. But I think there are some things 
that they can do. 

First of all, I don't think there's any 
reason why Central Credit Bureau in Atlantic 
City should not let each casino know what 
exactly the credit balance of any customer 
is at all of the casinos as a total. I'm 
speaking again personally, now. Th is is 
where I have, I cannot say to speak for the 
association or, really, only impliedly for 
Resorts. But I definitely believe that in 
that circumstance the casino should know 
what the limits are, and I think they should 
be much more rigid in judging what the 
casino limits or the credit limits to be 
extended are ..• 

I must say, and will try to say in con cl u­
s ion, that to me the answer is not to cut 
out all credit in Atlantic City, and I don't 
put it only on the fact that casinos have 
come in with a certain understanding of the 
law and made massive investments and I don't 
put it only on the fact that people -- that 
it will cut down the tax revenues of the 
State of New Jersey, although both of those 
cases I believe are true. I put it on the 
fact that, when you take casino gambling and 
when you say this is the entity that the 
people of New Jersey are going to adopt by 
referendum, you know, in effect, what you're 
getting and what you want to do is get the 
cleanest and best example of that. But the 
fact of the matter is that those people who 
are most able to gamble are not people who 
want to feel that they're going to travel to 
various places with large amounts of money 
in their pocket and they are people who are 
credit worthy. 

The fact of the matter is that, again, 99.3 
percent in our casino of credit is repaid. 
There are excesses that must be dealt with, 
but I think that you are not understanding 
the nature of the casino gambling experience 
as entertainment to the person who can 
afford it when you are saying you have got 
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to carry this money with you to the conven­
tion that we hope we'll get in Atlantic City 
or whatever else. 

What I'm suggesting is your hearings have 
proven even beyond a shadow of a doubt that 
there are problems that have to be dealt 
with. To my mind, the problems are most 
unfortunate in the case of the compulsive 
gambler. Casinos have to stop competing 
with each other and step back in perspective 
and say we cannot, because of what it will 
do to our reputation and standing in New 
Jersey, let certain people get over their 
heads, and they have to take steps to deal 
it with. I don't think the answer is the 
ultimate penalty. I will stop there. 

DGE Director Urges Credit Reforms 

Thomas O'Brien, who was appointed Director of the Division of 
Gaming Enforcement in December, 1982, testified next. He observed 
that the hearing testimony had emphasized the credit issue as "the 
Achilles heel of the State's regulatory system" and that "reform in 
this area is of paramount importance." The statutory controls over 
credit, said O'Brien, are "intolerably lax," a problem compounded 
by the inability or inwillingness of the casinos "to set up 
effective and stringent guidelines to prevent the abuses" disclosed 
at the public hearing. O'Brien stated: 

It is evident, therefore, that controls in 
the casino credit area must be superimposed 
upon the industry and backed up by the full 
force and ef feet of the law. With 
strengthened and uniform regulations in 
place throughout the industry, all casinos 
would be governed by the same rules and no 
casino would have an advantage over another. 

By the same token, tougher standards would 
limit the risks and potential abuses 
inherent in the present system as well as 
enhance the integrity and viability of the 
entire industry. 

Now, in the course of this hearing you have 
heard testimony from representatives of the 
Division of Gaming Enforcement who suggested 
areas where credit regulations must be 
strengthened. These suggestions are not 
based on speculation or assumptions but on 
facts developed in hundreds of credit scam 
investigations. I firmly believe that the 
recommendations that we have detailed in the 
area of information and verification 
procedures, accountability, and expeditious 
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payment of debt are .all vital components of 
any responsible and acceptable credit 
system •.. we believe that these measures will 
remedy the serious deficiencies and fill in 
the wide information gaps created by present 
practices ..• As we are well aware by now, the 
most disturbing aspect of present credit 
practices is the potential for the illegal 
and fraudulent diversion of money. The 
so-called walking-with-chips scenario has 
been fully described and documented in the 
course of these hearings. we know that the 
perpetrator of this scam has 120 days at a 
minimum to go undetected and can invest 
monies obtained from this interest-free loan 
for non-gaming purposes, either legitimate 
or illegitimate, all at the casino's 
expense. And by rollling his markers, so to 
speak, this period can be extended. 

The recommendations we offer in this area 
would greatly undercut the ability of a 
gaming patron to manipulate the system for 
his own benefit. Specifically, we suggest 
this can be accomplished in two ways: One, 
by drastically curtailing the length of time 
a patron's counter check may be held for 
deposit; and, two, by requiring any patron 
winnings or remaining chips secured on 
credit to be applied to existing debt prior 
to the patron's departing the casino. 

O'Brien also called for strong efforts to bar organized crime 
elements from casinos. He said: 

In the exclusion list we have a very 
effective weapon for eliminating the corrup­
tive influence these undesirable elements 
exert over casinos and their employees. In 
my position as director, I have already 
implemented a plan to use this tool for all 
it's worth and to the fullest extent 
possible. I have discussed the matter 
personally with some casino executives and 
security people. A unit has already been 
established in our trial section to work 
ful I time on this effort. In the weeks 
ahead we will be giving this matter our 
immediate attention and I assure it will 
remain a priority throughout my tenure in 
off.ice. Th is is one area, I feel, where we 
cannot afford to be less than total in our 
commitment and our vigilance. 

Although traditionally limited to members of 
organized crime, their associates and other 
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criminal offenders, I believe the exclusion­
list concept can be expanded to include 
those who, because of the level of their bad 
debt and their high-risk status, have proven 
themselves unworthy to participate in casino 
gaming in Atlantic City. In my view, this 
category of individuals is inimical to the 
interest of gambling in this state, and as 
such, their access to casino games and 
credit should be denied, either through 
outright placement on the exclusion list or 
an absolute prohibition on extending them 
any additional credit. 

Suffice it to say that the recommendations 
we have suggested throughout the course of 
this hearing will strengthen the govern­
ment's ability to monitor and regulate the 
most sensitive aspect of casino operations 
and insure that credit, properly controlled 
and responsibly managed, remains a viable 
marketing tool for the industry. And, 
gentlemen,, if we can't do this, it appears 
to me that the next step is obvious. 

The Casino Control Commission's Views 

Walter N. Reed, chairman of the Casino Control Commission 
since December, 1982, and a former president of the New Jersey 
State Bar Association, was the final witness. He prefaced his 
observations on the public hearing disclosures with what he 
described as an "overview of the economics of casino credit in New 
Jersey." He cited statistics demonstrating that "credit is 
responsible for one-third of the win from table games." He also 
pointed out that when casinos were legalized, no one could predict 
that revenues would amount to $1.5 billion in one year or that the 
cost of launching a casino hotel would require an average 
investment of $150 million. He continued: 

But, indeed, that is what happened and what 
is happening today. And thus it is apparent 
from these numbers that credit has become an 
integral part of the economics of an indus­
try that on the plus side has generated 
30,000 jobs, a huge payroll, and substantial 
direct and indirect tax benefits for the 
state. I believe, therefore, it would be 
unrealistic and economically untenable to 
suggest now that credit gambling be elimin­
ated as a legal practice in Atlantic City 
casinos. 

But I believe your hearings have exposed 
certain problems in the way credit gambling 
is employed. It is incumbent on us to 



-280-

examine those problems and adjust the law to 
eliminate those deficiencies. It is also 
entirely reasonable to expect the industry 
to abide by the law and regulations and to 
exercise its business judgments in this area 
with prudence. 

Read next discussed 
to casinos by persons 
organized crime:" 

what he described as "the issue of access 
alleged to be members or associates of 

As you know, Section 71 of the Casino 
Control Act provi<'les for the establishment 
by the commission of a list of persons whose 
presence in casinos is deemed undesirable 
and inimical to the interests of the state 
and the policies of the Casino Control Act. 

Pursuant to this provision, the commission 
established and maintains such a list and to 
date 75 persons have been placed on it. The 
list now operates under revised rules 
adopted by the commission last October. I 
believe, and I th ink experience with these 
new regulations demonstrates, that the 
revised procedure provides a swift and 
viable means of determining whether certain 
individuals should be barred from the 
casinos. The new procedures preserve 
essential due process requirements without 
hinr'lering the ability of the government to 
identify and exclude individuals whose 
presence woula be inimical to the stated 
public policy of maintaining public 
confidence in the integrity of casino 
gambling. 

Since the new regulations took effect in 
October, twelve persons have been subject to 
preliminary orders of exclusion which 
maintain their ability to seek a full fact 
hearing pending final commission 
determination. 

I know there's a feeling the casinos should 
not merely rely on the state-sanctioned 
exclusion list, but should anticipate it and 
attempt to identify and on their own action 
exclude individuals who may be members or 
associates of organized crime. I know, too, 
that at least one industry witness testified 
that such action by the casinos could expose 
them to unacceptable legal risks. I think 
that concern is a legitimate one, but I must 
point out that by casino regulation, and I 
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refer to N.J.A.C. 19:48-1. 7(e), an 
obligation exists and has existed on the 
casinos far five years that, and I quote: 
"It shall be the continuing duty of a casino 
licensee to inform the Commission and the 
Division in writing of the names of persons 
it believes are appropriate for placement on 
the exclusion list." That duty is clear and 
it always has been. 

Read said that the problem of compulsive gambling existed in 
New Jersey prior to the influx of casinos but added that their pre­
sence has to some degree "exacerbated it." On this subject, Read 
said: 

The exclusion list, of course, is in our law 
to deal with individuals who, when shown to 
meet its objective criteria, must be barred 
from the casinos. It does not deal with 
another group, much harder to identify, who 
arguably could be kept out of casinos in 
their own interest, the compulsive or 
addicted gamblers. 

We know enough about their problem to 
recognize that it existed before casinos 
were legally established in New Jersey and 
that it would exist if the casinos were not 
here. No one can quantify the relationship 
between casinos and the probable increase in 
this unfortunate problem, but it seems a 
reasonable guess that to some degree the 
presence of legal casinos in Atlantic City 
has exacerbated it. The Casino Control 
Commission, has almost from its inception, 
supported the notion that the government of 
our state must recognize and make an effort 
to deal with the issue of addictive gambling 
because on the other side it has made legal 
gambling one of its policies. The 
commission supported legislative initiatives 
in 1980 and 1981 to establish state fundinq 
for programs to identify and assist 
compulsive gamblers. Last year the 
commission also lent support to this idea 
and was pleased that it was adopted by the 
governor in his budget. However, no matter 
how often or how extensively this issue is 
examined it is important to draw a 
distinction between the presence of casinos 
and the prevelance of compulsive gambling. 

Indeed, one of the distinctions between 
compulsive gambling and other addictions 
like alcohol or narcotic abuse is that the 
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outward behavior of the afflicted 
individuals does not necessarily manifest an 
addict ion. If anything, we know that 
addicted gamblers attempt to hide their 
problem. In fact, they have to in order to 
maintain the habit. This was verified by 
the testimony of the witness who told you 
about a gambling problem that led him to the 
casinos and $90,000 worth of credit from 
them. But he also had managed to get 
substantial bank loans to feed his 
compulsion to gamble also at race tracks as 
well as to make illicit wagers. Those 
banks, depending on the interpretation, were 
no less gullible or careless than the 
casinos. 

The Casino Control Commission thus continues 
to support illumination of this serious 
problem, efforts by the state to increase 
awareness of it and to redress the negative 
ramifications of a public policy that makes 
various forms of gambling legal. 

Read also offered recommendations with respect to issues 
raised at the SCI hearing: 

The first is in the negative and concerns 
suggestions that either the law or the 
casino regulations be revised to allow the 
redemption of counter checks at the tables 
and the gambling pits. 

The Casino Control Commission has had 
serious reservations about this proposal and 
continues to have them. An essential 
ingredient in the commission's internal 
control regulations is the segregation of 
functions in the casino, placing different 
responsibilities on the gaming, cage, 
credit, accounting, security, and 
surveillance departments of the casinos. 
But if counter checks are to be allowed to 
be paid down at the tables, this must remain 
a cage function and would probably require a 
costly increase in staff because additional 
cage employees would be needed in the gaming 
pits. 

However, there is a deserved concern about 
possible collusion between casino employees 
and patrons. The temptation would exist for 
corrupt individuals to arrange private 
transactions to discount counter checks 
costing the casinos loss of revenue with a 
concomitant loss of tax revenues. 
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Second, the commission is aware of proposals 
to require photo identification for credit 
patrons. We endorse this idea and believe 
it would provide a further appropriate check 
in the verification of credit issuance. 

Third is the question whether the present 
statutory allowance for a write-off of four 
percent of bad credit should be maintained, 
reduced or eliminated. Recalling the 
figures I discussed at the outset, it is 
apparent that this allowance, although 
permitted against total gross gaming 
revenue, effectively applies only to the 
table game revenue. Historically, the 
industry has utilized less than half the 
allowance or about 1. 7 percent against all 
credit issued, representing somewhat less 
than $60 million which has been written off 
and consequently escaped the eight percent 
gross revenue tax. 

So much as this write-off allowance is a 
refuge from the kinds of imprudent credit 
decisions about which you have heard 
testimony this week, it warrants tightening, 
and I would have no problem with that. I 
think we need to look at the matter more 
closely before saying whether the allowance 
should be cut or eliminated, and if cut by 
how much. But I believe there is a 
legitimate basis to contemplate such a 
reduction without the risk of any real 
financial harm to the industry. 

Fourth. I recommend further study and 
serious consideration of proposals to reduce 
the present 90-day allowance for the 
collection of counter checks in excess of 
$2500. Again, exactly by how much this 
should be shortened deserves further review 
and I don't have a specific suggestion 
today. But I believe we have sufficient 
experience to date to demonstrate that the 
casinos would have better control over their 
credit issuance if there were a shorter 
maximum period in which they could hold 
counter checks and that such a change could 
be expected to encourage a beneficially 
tighter control over otherwise liberal 
credit extensions which should not be made. 
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Finally, let me close with the observation 
that credit in casinos is not analogous to 
the credit extended by tradition al lenders 
such as banks. It is not backed by 
collateral and when it goes. bad represents 
lost opportunity rather than lost assets. 
It is legally enforcible in New Jersey and 
should remain so to encourage the perception 
that it should not lightly be asked for nor 
received, but also to assure that there is 
prescribed legal means of collecting it. 
This protects that portion of the public 
which will seek casino credit from the kind 
of extortionate methods purportedly used at 
other times in other jurisdictions to assure 
that gambling credit is repaid, and to 
prevent credit payment from being siphoned 
off illegally at the expense of the industry 
which has legitimate claim to it with a 
consequent loss of tax revenues. 

THE CHAIRMAN: I have a quest ion, Commi s­
s ioner, if I may. As I listened to your 
statement on exclusion of associates of 
organized crime, I understood you to say 
there is swift and viable means of estab-
1 ishing the type of person who should be 
eliminated, but I didn't hear anything about 
the actual elimination, and I think we con­
sider that of very vital importance and we 
are mindful, or, at least, I am mindful of 
the fact that sometimes government moves 
terribly, terribly slowly. We have been 
stressing in the last four days that this 
should be done as of yesterday or as of 
tomorrow, not as of sometime in the vague 
future. I understand that the Racing 
Commission has by regulation excluded these 
people from the race track. They're 
promptly taken out if they dare to come in. 
And I also understand that the State Police 
have a list of some 3500 associates of 
general -- of organized crime in and around 
this area and I would suggest the possi­
bility that that might be a good starting 
point to take that 3500 and tell them they 
may not come into the casino. And, again, 
as of next week or maybe tomorrow. 

THE WI1'NESS: r said we act promptly. I'm 
not sure we could handle that volume in that 
time frame. 

THE CHAIRMAN: You would get some help from 
the State Police and they would be anxious 
to help you. 
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THE WITNESS: If they submit those names to 
us, we will handle them properly. 

Closing Statement 

SCI Chairman Arthur S. Lane brought the four-day hearing to a 
close with a statement which emphasized the Commission's continuing 
obligations "with respect to the serious problem of credit abuses 
at New Jersey's casinos." He pointed out that hearing testimony 
must be studied "for the purpose of proposing a reconstruction of 
the credit process so it can better serve the industry, the 
regulators, the patrons and the public." He pointed out that 
investigative findings and public hearing revelations "mean nothing 
unless they can be translated into effective remedial laws and 
regulations." Chairman Lane said certain credit abuses were 
highlighted during the public hearing, particularly "the scandalous 
invasion of casinos by criminal elements, including some of the 
most notorious members and associates of organized crime." He 
continued: 

Casino fraud, corruption and other miscon­
duct will become far more extensive, we 
believe, unless we force the casinos to 
close their doors to the mob. Superfi­
cially, at least, the casinos indicate that 
they also want to keep unsavory patrons off 
the premises. But, as one of our knowledge­
able State Police witnesses has told us 
here, the casinos find it much easier to 
eject card counters than gangsters. The 
S.C.I. believes that no greater threat to 
the honesty and integrity of the casino 
industry exists than a constant organized 
crime presence at the gambling tables. Not 
only should the granting of credit and the 
dispensation of expensive complimentaries to 
individuals of questionable repute be 
prohibited, but no person who can be linked 
to any criminal activity, mob controlled or 
otherwise, should be permitted to remain in 
a casino. 

If there is one recommendation that the 
s.c.r. can make here and now it is this: 
that an absolute, and instant, ban be 
imposed against the presence of anyone with 
a known criminal background in any New 
Jersey casino. 

The SCI chairman called attention to the disclosures that "a 
markedly disporportionate share of casino law enforcement and 
regulatory oversight is concentrated on credit misconduct." Even 
casino executives themselves have been forced to admit under oath, 
Lane said, "that millions of dollars in credit have been disbursed 



in a shockingly irresponsible manner. 11 Chairman I,ane added: 

Probably the mosr damag testimony heard 
in this chamber carne ft"Om the casinos~ We 
heard one credit executive after another 
testify about credit decisions that were in 
our judgrnent i.cresponsib1e 1 unjustified, 
erratic, unwarranted, all at a cost of 
millions of dollars in revenue losses to the 
casinos and tax losses to the state. 

Chairman Lane said the Cornroission was deeply concerned about 
the impact of easy credit and lavish VI 0 attention on compulsive 
gamblers. Said Lane: 

HowevE-~r t this Commission .1.s more concerned 
about the human cost tl1a11 tl1e dollar cost or 
any other aspect of crerlit mishandling and 
misconduct at casino~~:. We recorded 
testimony at length representative 
victims of the process; i,,1ho were lured by 
excessive credit and comps into personal. and 
f inancia] deg<"adat:ion and self=·,destruction~ 
1I11'1e lack of concE:Y·n on the part of casino 
management -- in the top echelons as well as 
in the credit cages for gamblj.ng addicts 
was made cl.ea.:cly evident in this chamber .. 
We urge the c2sino industry to adopt a more 
compassionate attitude toward the poor and 
the sick 1,,,1bo ar·e att.ract.ed t.o gambling 
tables, and to e~tablish guideJ.ines that 
wilJ help c .\.t n\;::i,;,,:; i .. 1':h·:>n.t.ify potential 
and actuaJ cr)mpu.C:;:dve qamblers among 
applicants for non-cash wagering. 

In sum, we intend to propose a wide-ranging 
overhaul of t..he casino credit system that 
will take into account. every proposal 
suggested at this pub1i.c hearing" l\Jo 
industry is more in need of public faith in 
its hones than t.t-Je casino industry and 
nowhere is tl1is industry more vulnerable 
than in l.t.s c".\:::edit .P'cocess~ We intend to 
recommend exceedingly stringent reforms 
because we fil-mlv believe that without such 
refor1ns the caRi.no i.nd11stry itself will 
evs::"~nt.ua11 se'./ ·~·(:Jer:;t.ritcL :just a.£:: have ff1any 
of the un o:r'ct:P')<>tl huma.n v).ctims of casino 
credit a.IJ1.1se- ~ 

B1::=fore concJ.tJdiniJ,. 
the Co1nmis:::d.o:n I r: 
Attorney Genej·al 
Enforcement tht' 
aui.;;;ticef the· ::a.ar 

we vxou1d 1 i ke 
Lt.pp:t::f;ciat:.ion 

1:he Div·Csion 
Divit::\io:n of 

'co ex tend 
to the 

of Gaming 
Criminal 

r,1):'ti(."t:: a.11d others 1r1ith 
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whom we maintained productive liaison during 
the course of this inquiry. We also want to 
compliment those members of our staff who 
worked so long and hard to make this hearing 
successful, and I am referring in particular 
to Michael Coppola, our chief counsel in 
this endeavor, the members of his team, 
Wendy Bostwick, Kurt Schmid, Dennis 
McGuigan, Di ck Hutchinson, Honey Gardiner, 
and to our secretaries, particularly Carol 
Nixon and Diana Vanderhoff, and to many 
others who contributed, including Sheilah 
Duignan, Rob Lagay, Chris Klagholz, George 
Sahl in, Mike Goch, Joe Corrigan, 'Bob 
Diszler, and Cy Jordan. 
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RECOMMENDATIONS IN DETAIL 

Transmittal Notice 

The SCI' s recommendations on casino credit practices 
were transmitted on May 3, 1983, to Governor Thomas H. Kean 
and to the Legislature via Senate President Carmen A. 
Orechio and Assembly Alan cL Karcher. These 
transmittal letters, signed by Chairman Arthur s. Lane, 
stated: 

u'This Commission :r:·espt~ctful submits the enclosed 
draft of recommendations based on ts public hearings March 
1-4, inclusive, on the r3 r::ct of casino credit practices 
and procedures. This transmittal is in accordance with the 
statute governing the Commission's operations, N.J.S.A. 
52:9M-·1 et ~q, which stat.cos in Section 9M-4: 

The Commission shall r within 60 days 
of holding a public hearing, advise 
the Governor and the islature of 
any recommendations of administra­
tive or legislative action which 
they may have devel as a result 
of the public hearing. 

nunder that p:covi.sic;n the deadline for transmittin<J 
these recommendaticlns is May 3. This tJ.me frame prevents us 
from including our fu11 on the public hearing with 
this enclosure. Although that report may contain more 
details, the enclosed draft sent.s the Commission's 
essential proposal.s for s substantially the 
statutory and ulator and controls with 
regard tot.he cas no er t process.'' 

"The Commissi.on is to cooperate fully in any 
discussions of these recommendations and in connection with 
any subsequent decisions to ement them.'' 

X X X 

{NOTE: With respr::ct to thf: fol lowing cecommenda tions, 
unless requi1.-ed for c1ari r vffrious sections and 
subsections of the C,01.s.:Lr10 Control A.ct (t'LJ .. S~A .. 5:12 et 
seq.,) and the Casino Co:n.t1·0.l Commission regulations 
{N .. J .. A~C~ 19~40 f;t :::::eq~) vJiJJ not be> restated here if no 
changes are involvc);d ~ fi'u, thef:· r vJhe1:E,: statutory language has 
been excised. 1 certain omir~sions i;qJJl be suggested to the 
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reader by the use of .•• before and after such excisions and by 
asterisks*** between omitted provisions. Also, since there will 
be references to the Casino Control Commission, to prevent 
confusion the State Commission of Investigation will be referred 
to as the S.C.I. Finally, brackets [ ] indicate deletions and 
underlines indicate new language recommended by the S.C.I. 

A. STATUTORY COMMENT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

I. CASINO CONTROL ACT - N.J.S.A. 5:12-1 et seq. 

COMMENT 

The SCI recommends the repeal of all credit provisions of the 
Casino Control Act, for the reason stated in the introduction to 
this report. This introduction also noted that, should this 
repeal request be declined by the Legislature, we have proposed 
alternative lawmaking and regulatory action. 

RECOMMENDATION 

N.J.S.A. 5:12-1 et. seq. 

Repeal all statutory provisions and supplementary regulations 
which authorize the extension of credit at casinos. 

-0-

II. CASINO CONTROL ACT - N.J.S.A. 5:12-24. •Gross revenue" 

COMMENT 

The S. C. I. recommends that the definition of "gross revenue" 
be amended to delete the following languaqe, "pursuant to Section 
101 of this Act." This deletion will eliminate a potential 
problem that credit issued, or handled by a casino licensee in a 
manner inconsistent with Section 101 is not considered "gross 
revenue" and, thus, not subject to New Jersey's gross gaming 
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Theoretically, a casino 
violate N.J.S.A. 5:12-101 and 
of the revenue gained by such 

could negligently 
reduce its tax base 
a violation. 

or 
by 

The S.C.I. also recommends elimination of the statutory 
provision contained in Section 24 that allows a casino licensee to 
deduct from •gross revenue• a percentage of uncollectible gaming 
receivables. That deduction, commonly known as the •write off" 
provision, effectively reduces the revenue available for 
distribution to New Jersey's disabled and senior citizens. The 
s.c.I. believes that the casinos should bear the risk of 
uncollectible gaming receivables, not citizens of the State. The 
S.C.I. also recommends that N.J.I\.C. 19:54-1.6, entitled 
C:01111putation of talK, be amended to conform with this statutory 
change, as detailed in the regulatory section of this document. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The total of all sums, including checks received by a casino 
licensee [pursuant to section 101 of this act], whether collected 
or not, actually received by a casino licensee from gaming 
operations, less only the total of all sums paid out as winnings 
to patrons. [and a deduction for uncollectible gaming receivables 
not to exceed the lesser of a reasonable provision for 
uncollectible patron checks received from gaming operations or 4% 
of the total of all SWl!S including checks, %1'hether collected or 
not, less the aJl!Ount paid out as winnings to patrons.] 

-o-
III. N.J.S.A. 5:12-71 Regulation requiring exclusion of 

certain persons 

COMMENT 

The S.C.I. recommends that section 71 be amended to (1) 
supplement the statutory language concerning categories of 
excludable individuals to include definitions for •career. or 
professional offenders" and inimical to the State of New Jersey or 
of licensed gaming; ( 2) further define the duty of a licensee to 
exclude and/or eject indivinuals who are subject to exclusion; (3) 
authorize a licensee to detain and question any individual to 
determine if that person is within the class of people who should 
be e:,i:clurled or ejected; ( 3) grant immunity to a licensee which 
detains, questions and ejects individuals if the licensee's 
conduct is reasonable; (4) further define the responsibilities of 
the ~iv~sion of Gaming Enforcement (D.G.E.) and the Casino Control 
Co~1ss:1.on (C.C.C.) with respect to individuals who are reasonably 
bel:i.eved tO' be within the class of' individuals who should be 
ejected; and (5) place the burden of proof at an exclusion hearing 
on the D.G.E. 
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The S.C.I. believes the proposed amendments will resolve a 
troublesome area that presently requires a casino licensee to 
exclude or eject from their premises persons who fall within the 
class of individuals set forth in subsection a. However, durinq 
the course of our investigation, and public hearing, the S.C.I. 
learned that compliance with subsection d. with respect to 
individuals not on the c.c.c.•s "exclusion list" was nil. ~ea.sons 
were advanced by the casino industry for such non~compliance, to 
wit: (1) The categories set forth in subsection a were vague; (2) 
Casinos were unable to determine whether or not an individual fell 
within an excludable category without State assistance; and (3) an 
ejection or exclusion of an individual who was not on the 
exclusion list would subject the licensee to civil .and criminal 
liability. 

The S.C. I. is not in complete agreement with the position 
ajvanced by the industry, but believes public policy dictates that 
section 71 of the Act be strengthened to require a casino to 
perform a statutory obligation based on reasonable beliefs free 
from the concern that its actions will result in civil or criminal 
liability. ~s a result of the casinos• non-compliance many 
individuals who ·apparently were within the categories of subsec­
tion a. were allowed to utilize casino facilities, receive credit 
and comps. 

In addition to the proposed statutory amendments to section 71 
of the Act, the S.C.I. also has proposed recommendations regardinq 
the regulations promulgated by the Casino Control Commission with 
respect to the issue of exclusion and ejection, to wit: ~.J.A.C. 
19:42-4.1 et !!,9.·; and 19:48-1.l et !!!1· Those recommendations, 
allow for toe immediate placement°"cif an individual on the exclu­
sion list pending a Casino Control commission final determination 
that the individual in question is properly subject to exclusion, 
are detailed in the regulatory section. The S.C.I. contends that 
immediate exclusion reflects the intent of the State legislature 
in this area as evidenced by sections of the "declaration of 
policy and legislative findings" N.J.S.A. 5:12-71 e., f. and g. 
With these policy declarations in~ the reg..ilations promul­
gated by the Casino Control Commission wit,h res;:,ect to exclusion 
and ejection are substantially inconsistent with the legislative 
intent. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

N.J.S.A. 5:12-71 ~ulation requiring e~clusion of 
certain persons 
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(3) Whose presence in a licensed casino would [in the opinion 
of the collllfflission,J be inimical t:> the interest of th-, Stat<> of 
New Jersey or of licensed gaming therein, or both. "Inimical to 
the interest of the State of New Jersey or of licensed gaming'' 
means adverse to the ublic confidence and trust in the credib1l-
1ty, 1ntegr1ty an sta 1l1ty o casino gaming operations an 1n 
the strict regulatory process created by the casino Control Act. 

In addition to the a!:>ove definitions, [The] the commis­
sion shall promulgate definitions establishing those categories of 
persons who shall be excluded pursuant to this section, including 
cheats and persons whose privileges for licensure or registration 
have been revoked. 

d. Any list compiled by the commission of persons to be excluded 
or ejected shall not be deemed an all inclusive list, and licensej 
casino establishments shall have a right an-! a duty tri [keep] 
immediately eject and thereafter exclude fro~ their premises 
persons known to them to be within the classifications declared in 
paragraph a. of this section and the regulations nro~ulgate~ 
thereunder, even in the absence of action by the Division or the 
commission. Further a casino licensee shall immediately furnish 
the division and the commission the names and whatever other 
identification is available, of all persons excluded or ejected by 
it who are not on the exclusion list, together with the reason(sl 
for its action and any other material inforMat1on relat1n~ 
thereto. Such e"ection or exclusion shall not render sucS 
1censee c1v1 ly or cr1M1nal y 1ab e or a se 1~pr1son~ent, 

false arrest, slander or unlawful detention unless such action is 
unreasonable, capricious and arbitrary un-'ler all the 
circumstances. 

e. For the purpose of determining whether any person on the· 
premises is included on the list of oersons established pursuant 
to paragraph a. of this section, or 1s otherwise w1th1n the 
classifications declared in paraqraph a. of this section an1 the 
regulations promulgated thereunder, an licensed casino, by its 
o 1cers, emp oyees or agents, may eta1n an question sue, 
person. If such a erson is deemed to be on the said list or 
otherwise within the said c ass1f1cat1ons, the licensee, 1ts 
officers, em lo ees or a ents shall e ect such person from the 

rem1ses w1 t t e use o reasona e orce 1 necessary, a ter 
1n orm1ng law en orcement or comm1ss1on aut or1t1es, without 
incurring any civil or criminal i1abil1t for false imprisonment, 
alse arrest, s an er or un aw u etent ion, un ess sue con uct 

1s unreasonable, capricious and arbitrary under all 
c1rcumst1mces. 

f. When the division or the commission in the norMal performance 
of their dt;ldes observe an in2hvidual within the licensed orem1ses 
Ind it is believed that the individual in question is within the 
classifications declared in Para raph a. of this section and the 
regu at1ons promu gate thereun er, t ey 
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casino licensee. The licensee shall, in writing, advise the 
commission and the division within 24 hours of the action taken 
t ereon. 

[f.J h. Within 30 days after service by mail or in person or 60 
days ?rom the time of last publication, as the case may be, the 
person named for exclusion or ejection may demand a hearing before 
the commission. [and Bhow c<Ause why he Bhould have his name 
re1110ved from such list.) A demand for a hearing must be in 
writing. Failure to demand such a hearing within the tim~ 
allotted in this section sh11ll preclude a person from having an 
administrative hearing, but shall in no way affect his riqht to 
judicial review as provided herein. 

-D-

IV. R.J.S.A. 5:12-100. Games and Gaming Equipment 

COMMENT 

The S.C.I. recommends that this section be amended to require 
a licensee to apply chips in the possession of a credit g,u'lbler 
against outstanding counter checks in the "pit area" of the casino 
and to prevent a casino from redeeming chios surrendered by a 
credit gambler if that gambler has unredeemed counter checks. 
The S.C.I. would also amend this section to prevent the 
solicitation or acceptance of a tip by a casino supervisory 
employee from any patron or on behalf of same at af'ly casino in 
Atlantic City, rather than, as the statute currently provides, 
only at the casino where that employee works. 

It must be kept in mind that a counter check is a negotiable 
instrument made payable to the casino and drawn on the credit 
gambler's bank account. In the casino industry, a counter check 
is also known as a "marker•. The credit gambler signs the marker 
at a gaming table and receives chips in an amount equal to the 
monetary value of the marker. Once the gambler has chips in his 
possession, he may decide not to gamble anc'l instead leave the 
gaming area with the chips and cash them out or have a confederate 
cash out for him. Even if the gambler intends to eventually make 
good on the counter check, he is free to make use of the casino's 
money for whatever purpose he desires. His puroose miqht be to 
invest the money, receive interest and then, at sometime in the 
future, red~em the counter check. His purpose miqht also be to 
finance a l&ansharking, narcotics or s6me other criminal venture. 

The above scenarios describe what is commonly 
"walking with chips", a major problem in the in~ustry. 

known as 
The casino 
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industry itself also considers the problem to be widespread 
throughout Atlantic City. The Act and the regulations promulgated 
by the Casino Control Commission do not address this problem. In 
fact, the Act mandates that a casino must, upon a patron's 
request, redeem its gaming chi?s even if the person requesting 
payment has a large outstanding marker balance owed to the 
casino. The S.C.I. probe and public hearing conformed that 
credit gamblers who have a large amount of markers outstanding, 
walk with chips so that they can use the casino money to pay off 
their oldest markers. That practice is known as "rolling markers" 
and also causes the industry much concern. 

Our recommendations would curtail the abuse of walkincr with 
chips by forcing the casinos: (1) to know how many chips a ~redit 
gambler has in his possession when he leaves a ga~ing tabl~, and 
to allow the casino to utilize those chips to reduce the gambler's 
outstanding marker balance, and (2) to prevent a casino fro~ 
redeeming or cashing out chips surrendered by a credit gambler if 
that gambler has unredeemed counter checks. 

This aspect of the recommendations represents a mar~ed 
departure from current procedure by which counter checks are 
redeemed. New Jersey regulation now provides for counter chec~s 
to be issued only at the gaming tables and redeemed only at a 
cashier's cage. The S.C.I. recommendations would allow casi~os t0 
obtain payment on counter checks from gaming patrons in the casino 
pi ts. Such proce<'lures shoul<'l enable casinos to more ef feet i v~ly 
control credit and, thus, reduce the likelihood of individuals 
using the casino money for nefarious purposes. The s.c.r. also 
recommends that N.J.A.C. 19:45 be amended to reflect these 
statutory recommendations. 

N.J.S.A. 5:12-100 GaRes and Gaming Equipaent 

k. It shall be unlawful for any person to exchange or redeem 
chips for ,rnyth ing whatsoever, except currency, ne<JOt i11ble 
personal checks, negotiable counter checks or other chips. A 
casino licensee shall upon the request of l!i"ny person, redee:n that 
licensee's gaming chips surrendered by that person in any amount 
over $25.00 with a check drawn upon the licensee"s account at any 
banking institution in this State and made payable to that 
person [.] if that person has unredeemed negotiable checks in an 
amount of less than $200. 

1. The casino licensee shall [request patrons) be required to 
ootain and the patron shall be required to apply any chips or 
plagues in their possession in reduction of Counter Checks 
exchanged for purposes of gaming prior to exchanging such chips or 
plaques for'cash or prior to departing'from the casino area (.J , 
if that rson has unredeemed ne otiable checks in an amount of-

2 0 or 
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m. Whenever a patron leaves a gaming table with chips in his 
"cissession in an ~~ount of $200 or greater and has unpaid counter 
c eeks 1n an amount o or greater, t e casino s a oe 
required to collect and the eatrons shall be required to applv 
those chi s a a inst the un cud counter checks. This rocedure 
s a ta e )> ace 1n t e pl t area 1n accor ance w1 t at ions 
promulgated y the Commission. 

( 1) This shall apply to all casino patrons except those 
exem12ted fn writin'i! by: 

(a) Vice-President of Casino Operation, or his 
equivalent; or 

ill Director of Casino Credit, or his equivalent: or 

i.£2. Vice-President of Finance, or his equivalent. 

(2) An exemption shall be requested in writing by the patron 
and sna!l include, but not be limited to: 

.i.!l signature of eatron 

ill date of re9uest 

i.£2. amount of request 

ill reason for request 

( 3) The authorization shall include si'i!natures indicating a 
rev'Ie"w of the atron's credit and ambling activity at this 
esta 1s ment. Patrons exempte must ex 1 1t a 1story o 
extensive gambl 1ng at a level commensurate with the established 
credit limit and a ment of amblin debts at the casino and shall 
a so inc u et e reason(s) w 

(4) Whenever a patron is permitted to leave the gaming table 
with""chips, the casino Personnel responsible for the preparation 
of pla¥er rating forms shall record the amounts of chips 1n the 
Ratron s possession on said form. 

n. [o.J ( 1) It shall be unlawful for any casino key employee or 
""TboKman, floorman,J boxperson, floorperson, or any other casino 
employee who shall serve in a supervisory position to solicit or 
accept, and for any other casino employee to solicit, any tip or 
gratuity. [from any player or patrcm at the casino where he is 
eaployecl. J 

-o-
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V. N.J.S.A. 5:12-101. Credit 

COMMENT 

The S.C.!. recommends that subsection c be amended to require 
a licensee to deposit counter checks within 14 days of the count~r 
checks' issuance dates. 

Currently, New Jersey casinos can legally hold a counter 
check of $2,500 or more for 90 banking days, or approximately 120 
calendar days, before depositing it. Credit gamblers are aware of 
this and once one casino is persuaded to hold checks, the other 
casinos follow suit because of the competitive pre.ssures. This 
provision in the Act &nd supplemental regulations cause many of 
the industry's credit problems. 'n1i s prolonged depository time 
period allows credit gamblers to utilize casino money during a 
four month period. Further, compulsive gamblers or proble~ 
gamblers who receive credit have essentiallv four months to 
personally and financially self-destruct. 

The abi 1 i ty for credit gamblers to roll over m'irkers and 
obtain interest free loans would be interrupted by the 14 calendar 
days rule. This would allow sufficient time for a debt to be 
honored and still provide a quick way to determine a patron's 
ability to afford gambling debts. 

The S.C.I. contends 14 calendar days is sufficient time for 
credit gamblers who have incurred gambling debts to return home 
and prepare for count<er checks to be presented for payment at 
their banks. Further, the reduced time period would di scour age 
credit gamblers who cannot afford to lose money since they would 
know their debts could not be strung out over four months. Also, 
regulatory and law enforcement agencies would much earlier be 
alerted to a credit scam as a result of checks either clear inq 
banks or bouncing within two weeks after the date of issuance. 

RECOMMENDATIO~ 

N.J.S.A. 5:12-101 Credit 

c. When a casino licensee or other person licensed under this 
act, or any person acting on behalf of or under any arrangement 
with a casino licensee or other person licensed under this act, 
cashes a check in conformity with the requirements of subsection 
b. of this section, the casino licensee shall cause the deposit of 
such check in a bank for collect ion or payment within [ ( l) seven 
banking dlliys of the date of the traruu1ction for a check in an 
aaount less than $1,000.00; (2) fourteen banking days of the date 
of tbe transaction for a check of at least $1,000.00 butless than 
$ 2, '!HIO. 00; , , or ( l) ninety banking days of the date of the 
transaction for a check of $2, 500.,00 or aore. J fourteen days of 
the date of the transaction. · 
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Notwithstunding the foregoin~, the drawer of the check may redeem 
the check by exchanging cash or chips in an amount equal to the 
amount for which the check is drawn; or he may redeem the check in 
part by exchanging cash or chips and another check which meets the 
requirements of subsection b. of this section for the difference 
between the original check and the cash or chips tendered; or he 
may issue one check which meets the requirements of subsection b. 
of this section in an amount sufficient to redeem two or more 
checks dr~wn to the order of the casino licensee. If there has 
been a partial redemption or a consolidation in conformity with 
the provisions of this subsection, the newly issued check shall be 
delivered to a bank for collection or payment within the period 
herein specified. No casino licensee or any person licensed under 
this act shall accept any check or series of checks in redemption 
or consolidation of another check or checks in accordance with 
this subsection for the purpose of avoiding or delayinq the 
deposit of a check in a bank for collection or payment within the 
time period prescribed by this subsection. 

-o-
VI. N.J.S.A. 5:12-122, Other offenses; general penalty 

5:12-129 Supplemental sanctions 

COMMENT 

The S.C. I. recommends the above two sections be amended to 
increase the criminal and civil penalties. It is our position 
that the proposed increases will more realistically reflect the 
current economic climate within the casino industry. 

N.J.S.A. 5:12-122 Other offenses; general penalty 

RECOMMENDATION 

Any person who violates any provision of this act the penalty 
for which is not specifically fixed in this act is guiltv of 
a [disorderly persons offense.] crime of the fourth degree and 
notwithstanding the provision of N.J .s. 2C:43-3 shall be sub 'ect 
to a fine of not more than $ 25, in t e case o a erson 
ot er tan a natura person, to a 1ne o not more tan 0,000, 
any other appropriate disposition authorized by N.J.S. 2C:43-2b. 

N.J.S.A. 5:12-129 Supplemental sanctions 

RECOMMENDI\TION 

(b) Assess such civil penalties &s may be necessary to punish 
misconduct and to deter future violations, which penalties may not 
exceed [$10,0001 $100,000 in the case of any individual licensee 
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or registrant, ex~ept that in the case of a casino licensee the 
penalty may not exceed [$50,000) $1,000,000 [~l , unless the 
commission determines a greater amount 1s appropriate under the 
circumstances; 

-O-

B. RBGOLA'I'ORY COMMENT AND RBCOffl'IENDATIONS 

I. N.J.A.C. 19:45-1.1 Definitions 

COMMENT 

'!he S.C. I. recommends that patrons be required 'to provide a 
casino with a more reliable form of identification. Specifically, 
credentials would have to contain a photo or physical description 
of the credit applicant and the aoplicant's signature. Presently 
the regulations permit credit gamblers to submit any document 
which contains their signature as a valid form of identification. 
The purpose of the s.c. I. 's reg:.ilation is to more accurately 
establish a gambler's identity. A photo or physical description 
would be a much more accurate and reliable means of inentifying 
an individual. 

RECOMMENDATION 

N.J.A.C. 19:45-1.l Definitions 

"Identification Credentials" means a [credit card,] driver 
license, passport or other form of identification credential which 
bears a photo or a physical description and contains, at a 
minimum, the ;,atron' s signature. A personal reference does not 
constitute an identification credential. 

-II-

II. N.J'.A.C. l!l:415-1.ll Licensees Organization 

COMMENT 

'.ttle s.c.1. recommends that subsection c 1, concerning Casino 
Surveillance Department, and subsection c ~. concerning the Casino 
Security Department, be amended to require both departments to 
notify the Credit Manager or other appropriate supervisors i'1 
writing of any information which may be useful in determining an 
individual's credit worthiness. Such a change would make the 
directors of surveillance and security responsible for developing 
procedures to communicate information on credit gamblers to Crenit 
Managers so they are continually apprised of information which 
could affec.t a credit decision. Many times the surveillance and 
departments'· are in receipt of informa'tion regardinq II gambler• s 
activity inside or outside the casino, obtained throuqh 
documentable sources as well 11s their intelligence sources. '.tt!at 
information should be made available to a casino credit 
department. 
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RE:C0M'1ENDATI0N 

N.J.A.C. 19:45-1.ll(c)l Casino Licensees Organization 

A surveillance department supervised by a 
surveillance who ••• shall be responsible for •.• 

director of 

viii. The communication in writing of any information regarding 
casino atrons to the credit manager and other appropriate 
su erv1sors which ma be use ul in eterm1n1ng a patron s it 
wort 1ness, or 1tness to remain on t e premises. T 1s 
continuing responsibility. 

N.J.A.C. 19:45-l.ll(c)6 
A security department supervised by a director of security who 

shall be responsible for 

ix. The communication in writing of any information reqarding 
~ 

casino patrons to the credit manager and other appropriate 
su erv1sors which ma be useful in determ1n1ng a patron's credit 
worthiness, or 1tness to remain on the premises. This 1s a 
continuing responsibility. 

-o-
III.N.J.A.C. 19:45-1.11 Casino licensee's organization 

COMMENT 

The S.C.I. recommends that subsection (c)S, concerning the 
casino's Credit Department, be amenoed to require that the credit 
manager forward a list of new credit applicants to the directors 
of surveillance and security at a minimum on a daily basis for 
their review. Such a review would not be a prereq:.iisite to 
issuing credit. However, these departments would have timely 
notifications that credit applic11tions were being processed and 
would have an affirmative responsibility to forward relevant 
information to the Credit Department. The surveillance and 
security departments many times have access to information which 
cannot be obtained by the Credit Department when it performs its 
normal credit reference verifications. Derogatory information 
obtained from these departments often can be as important when 
making a credit decision as information obtained from financial 
institutions or other casinos. 

RECOMMENDATION 

N.J.A.C. 19:45-1.ll(c)S Credit Department 
A credit department supervised by a credit manager who .•• shall 

be responsible for •.• 
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iv. The relrrtinf of the names o:' new credit applicants, 
a proved ere 1t 1 mits, to the directors of security 

-o-
IV. W.J.A.C. 19:45-1.25 Procedure for exchange of checks 

submitted by gaming patrons 

COMMENT 

with 
and 

Tile S.C.l.'s position on this regulatory revision is the same 
as our position with respect on N.J.S.A. 5:12-100. As noted, this 
regulatory amendment would place an obligation on casinos t~ 
obtain and the patron to apply chips in his possession for the 
reduction of counter checks prior to exchange the chips for cash. 
This revision would reduce the current problem of patrons walkina 
with chips and then using casino funds for their per-sonal use, 
whether legal or- illegal. 

RECOMMENDATION 

N.J.A.C. 19:45-1.25 Procedure for- exchange of checks 
submitted by gaming patrons 

( l) Tile casino licensee shall [request patrons] be required to 
obtain an::1 the patron shall be required to apply any chips or 
plagues in their possession in reduction of Counter Checks 
exchanged for purposes of gaming prior to exchanging such chips or 
plaques for cash or prior to departing from the casino area [.] , 
unless tha~ __ rerson has unredeemed negotiable checks in an amount 
of 1essi:h-an$200. 

-o-

v. H.J.A.C. 19:45-1.26 Procedure for redemption, consolidation 
or substitution of checks submitted by 
gaming patrons 

COMMENT 

Tile s.c.I. recommends that this regulation be amended to 
require casinos to redeem the most recent outstanding counter 
check of a creel it gambler, rather than the earliest outstanding 
counter check as the regulation currently allows. This amendment 
will force counter checks to be deposited on a more timely basis 
and help to prevent the roll over of counter checks by credit 
gamblers. Under this amendment, the earliest dated checks will be 
deposited in the customer's bank for collection, thus giving quick 
reliable f~dback to the casinos about a gambler's credit 
worthiness. ' 
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RECOMMENDATION 

19: 4 5-l. 26 Procedure for red empt ion, 
or substitution of checks 
gU1ing patrons 

consolidation 
submitted by 

exchanging (:] 
most currently 

drawer of a check may redeem the check by 
the following and such check redeemed shall be the 
aated check. 

-o-
vx. N.J.A.C. 19:45-1.27 Procedure for recording checks 

exchanged, returned or consolidated 

COMMENT 

It should be noted that subsection d, with respect to the 
credit file, is the heart of the credit regulatory structure since 
it applies to the credit application, information contained on the 
application, verification of that information by casinos and the 
ultimate credit decision. The S.C.I. recommends that this 
subsection be completely overhauled because its inadequacies have 
gene'rated an overwhelming majority of credit abuses. 

Although casinos for the most part comply with the current 
regulations, those regulations, in effect, require very little of 
a casino licensee. The S.C.I. confirmed that even w~ere a 
particular casino policy was more strict than the regulatory 
framework, the casino policy was not followed in all cases. In 
fact, internal policy was often ""Ignored to permit a so-cal led 
"business judgement" decision by the casino. The exercise of such 
"business judgements", the S.C.I. found, often resulted in 
extension of excessive credit to problem gamblers, to people who 
could not afford to repay the credit they received and to people 
who utilized the credit received to commit fraud. The regulations 
presently allow casinos unlimited control with respect to the 
credit decisions. 

The S.C.I. 's recommendations would require that in every 
instance casinos verify a qreat majority of the information given 
to them by the credit gambler prior to the extension of credit to 
that individual. Such an amendment would give the casinos 
knowledge of the accuracy of the information before a scam 
occurred, or before that account became a collection problem. 

In addition the casinos would be required to verify a 
potential credit gambler's non-gaming as well as gaming credit 
references prior to the extension of credit, the better to 
evaluate the credit worthiness of the patron. Further, the 
S.C.I. recommendations would require' a casino to accummulate 
information from every other casino where a gambler has or had 
credit prior to the extension of credit to that gambler. This 
provision would require a casino to give the information when 
requested. Thus, the common response of •preferred customer" to 
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abruptly cut off communication and liaison among casillos woulcl be 
eliminated, Implementation of this recommendation, together with 
the other recommendations concerning section d would greatly 
alleviate the "rounder" problem of a credit patron receiving 
credit lines at a number of Atlantic City casinos. 

The S.C.I. particularly urges that a credit applicant's 
fingerprint and photograph be taken by the casino and maintained 
as part of the applicant's credit file. This information woulcl be 
useful in deterring fraudulent credit activity at the outset, 
would enhance debt collection efforts an"l would be an effective 
tool for law enforcement in the identification of suspects who 
may have perpetrated a crime. Credit ga'llblers are ·often closely 
scrutinized by credit executives and law enforcement 
representatives in casinos. If photographs are utilized properly, 
law enforcement effectiveness will be greatly increasea. Furthe~, 
when a gambler approachs a gaming table and requests credit, the 
gambler must be adequately identified by a casino pit clerk ancl 
photographs could be used in that circumstance. The S.C.I. urges 
that all of the following recol11lllendations concerning section d be 
considered as interrelated, since each individual amendment gives 
substance to another. 

RECOMMENDATION 

N.J.A.C. 19:45-l.27(d) Procedure for recording checks 
exchanged, returned or consolidated 

(d) A credit file for each patron shall be prepared manually or 
by computer, orior to issuance of a counter check to a patron bv 
casino clerks and such file shall include, at a minim'-'!Tl, the 
following: 

l. The casino clerk's signature receiving and/or Preparinq 
the creait file including the method of receipt (mail, telephone, 
in person, etc.); 

[l] 2. The name of the patron; 

[2] 3. The [address] residence of the patron; 

4. The patron's residence phone; 

5. The name of the patron's employer; 

i. Tvpe of business 

ii. Position 

i'i i. Number of years 

6. The address of the patron's employer; 

7. The patron's business phone; 

8. Income to be considered; 
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i. Amount 

ii. Source 

9. Outstandinq indebtedness 

L Amount 

ii. Source(s) 

[3] 10. Tile name of the patron's bank: 

[ 41 11. The number of the patron's [bank] personal checkinq 
account(s) which the patron is individually authorized to sign on; 

i. The cat/" cashier shall examine and retain an 
an original specimen c eek from the account ( s) used to redeem 
Counter Checks •. 

12. A hysical description 
incluae"; but not be 1m1ted to, t e 

i. 
accompanieab 

atron which shall 

by the licensee 
cage cashier and the patron 

t e patron app y1ng or ere 1t; 

ii. Date of birth; 

iii. Height; 

iv. Weight; 

v. Hair color: 

vi. Eye color; 

vii. Tw.::..:.:.o:;...;::...;:.:.;..==;.;;;.;::..::;;_;_;c;:c_~:.;,:..::.:.:....;;c.,<-,,..;;.;.,..;c-.;;;..;;;..;:..:;,;.;.c:..;;_=-a;:.:;;.cTcTo~m~p~a~n~1~·e~d=-b,...._y 
1n 1cat1ng the 

[61 13. Tile patron's signature [;] indicating acknowledgement of 
the foITowing statement: 

[ 7] 14. The type of identification credentials examined, 
accompanied by the signature of the cage cashier [and the date] , 
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indicating 
signature 
patron; 

that the signature on the credit file compares to the 
on the identification credentials presented by th~ 

15. The credit limit requested by the patron and the names of 
other legal casinos where the patron has/had established credit; 

16. The verification of information required by subsection 
l.27(irf3 through 7 prior to the approval of a credit limit; 

[5] 17. Credit references, prior to the ap~roval of a credit 
limit and increases thereto, accompanied by t e signature of the 
credit department representative [and the date] in1icating 
verification directly with: [either a recognized credit bureau, 
the patron's bank or another legal casino;] 

i. Recognized credit bureaus that have the capability to 
provide t'fie following: 

ill The patron's casino credit history; 

J2l The patron's other credit history: and 

ii. le. al casinos where has/had 
establis'Fi'"e"n Eac New Jersey casinos a e require to 

include, but not be limited to, the following: 

ill Date account established; 

J2l Amount of highest approved credit limit: 

J2l Amount of current approved credit limited; 

(4) Status of the account 
intransit items, 

at the time of verification, 
information and information 
ance Departments. 

( 5) The name and title of . person supplyinq the 
information.--

account(s). 
any 

iv. •oerogatory• information consists of, but is not 
limited 'to;:die write-off, un aid returned check, settlement, 

v. If casino 
dero ator in ormat1on 

if 
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vi. The information to be verified on the 1atron 's bank 
account(s)°shall include, but not be limited to, the ollowing: 

(l) Type of account (business, personal, savings, 
checking, etc:T: 

i1L Account number: 

~ Date the account was opened: 

balance of account for, at a minimum, the 
last twelve 

J2l Current status of account: 

(6) An indication as to whether the individual 
applying for""'"cre.rht, can sign ind1v1dually on the account: and 

(7) Name and title of the person supplying the 
information.--

obtaineo 

viii. Credit reference verifications required by subsection 
17 above shall be updated at least every six (6) months. 

ix. A reply of 
informatTon obtained," 
reference verification. 

"no 
etc., 

record", "too new to rate", "no 
does not ~c-o_n..c.c.:s_t_i_t~u~t-e-'~a~-c~r-e~d-i-t 

[SJ lB. The credit limit, and any chan5ie.s thereto, approved by 
the signature of the Vice President of cas·ino operations, or his 
equivalent, credit manager, the assistant credit manager, credit 
shift managers, or a credit committee which may approve credit as 
a group but whose members may not aporove credit individually 
unless such person is included in the job positions referenced 
above. The credit limit and chan es thereto shall be commensurate 
with the 1n ormat1on conta1ne n t e ere it 1 e. The casino 
manager, assistant casino manager, or casino shift manager may 
have input to the credit limit decision but shall not have 
approval authority [:] • The approval shall include: 

i. Signature; 

ii. Player rating: 

iii. Outstanding balances at other legal casinos on the 
date of-rfie approval; 
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iv .. of other information considered in .~ 
dete=1n1ng 
information; 

1m1 t, nc u 1n9 the source o t e 

vi. Credit limit incre11ses shall be requested in writinq 
by the pitron and shall include; but not be 1 imi tea to: 

i!l Signature of patron; 

..!.1l Date of request; 

l1l. Amount of request. 

patron has returned 
19. The credit limit reduced 

checks until 
to zero at any casino where the 
such time the returned checks 

Exempted from this 

responsible. 

[9) 20. The credit player rating based on a continuing evaluation 
of hi~amount and frequency of play subsequent to the patron's 
initial receipt of credit. Each licensee shall establish a method 
to inde endently review and monitor the player ratings to 
eterm1ne t e accurac an reasona eness o 1n ormation recor e 

on the documents. The rev 1ew sha 1 be performed ersons with 
no 1ncompat1b e unctions sue as Interna Au 1t or Surve1 ance. 
These procedures must be submitted to the Division of Gaming 
Enforcement and Casino Control Commission for review and 
approval. The information for the credit player's rating shall be 
recorded on a player rating form by casino department supervisors 
and shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

i. Patron's name; 

ii. Game and table number; 

iii. Average bet; 

iv. Approximate length of time played; 

v. atron' s ossession upon 
leaving the 

[v] vi. Rating as determined by supervisor; 

[vi] vii. Rater's signature and license number; and 

[vii] viii. -nate of observations. 

[10] 21. The d11te and amount of each Counter Check initially 
accepteirfrom the patron; 
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(11) 22. The date and amount of each con sol idat ion check accepted 
from t"le patron; 

[12) 23. The date, method and amount of each redemotion 
transaction; 

[ 13] 24. The date and amount of each substitution transaction; 

[ 14 I 25. The date and amount of each check deposited; [and] 

26, The outstanding balance after each transaction; 

[ 15 I 27. The details relating to returned checks [ • J .L and 

28. The details relating to checks determined to be 
uncollectible. 

VII, 

-o-
~.J.A.C. 19:45-1.28 Procedure for depositing checks 

received from gaming patrons 

COMMENT 

With respect to this regulation, please refer to the s.C.I.'s 
position concerning N.J.S.A. 5:12-101. 

RECOMMENDATION 

N.J.A.C. 19:45-1,28 Procedure for depositing checks received 
from gaming patrons 

( a) All checks, unless redeemed or consolidated prior to the 
time requirements herein, received from gaming patrons in 
conformity with section 19:45-1,25 of this regulation shall be 
deposited in the casino licensee's bank account in accordance with 
the casino licensee's normal business practice, and such practice 
must be submitted in writing to both the Commission and Division, 
but in no event later than: · 

l. The bank day after the date of the check for a non-gaminq 
check; 

2. [Seven banidng] Fourteen days after the date of the 
check~ [for a check in an a1110unt less than $1,000.00:] 

[3.) [Fourteen banking days after the date of the check for a 
check in an 1U110unt of at least $1,000.00 but less than $2,500.00; 
or) 

' [<I. J [Ninety banking days illlfter the cllat.e of the cbeclt for a 
check in an W1110unt of $2,500.00 or 11110re.] 
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(b) All checks received for consolidation in conformity with 
section 19:45-1.26 of this regulation shall be deposited in the 
casino licensee's bank account within: 

1. (Seven banking] Fourteen days after 
initial check for a consolid3ting check. (where 
check is in an 11111ount less than $1,000.~0i] 

the date of the 
the consolidating 

[ 2. J [Fourteen banking days after the date of the initial 
check 'lll'here the consolidating check is in an amount .of at least 
$1,000.00 but less than $2,500.00: or) 

(3.J[Ninety banking days after the date of the initial check 
for a consolidating check where the consolidating check is in an 
amount of $2,500.00 or aore.J 

(c) All checks received as part of a reclemption in conformity 
with section 19:45-1.26 of this regulation shall be deposited in 
the casino licensee's bank account within: 

1. [Seven banking] Fourteen days after the date of the 
initial check. [if the initial check is in an WIIOWlt of less than 
$1,000.00;] 

[2.] [Fourteen banking days after the date of the initial 
check if the initial check is in an l!JIIOunt of at least $1,000.00 
but less than $2,500.00; or] 

[3.J [Ninety banking days after the date of the initial check 
if the initial check accepted is in an aaount of $2,500.00 or 
1111ore. J 

(e) Any check deposited into a bank will not be consideren clear 
until a reasonable time has been allowed for such check to clear 
the bank. The licensee must submit to the Commission an:l Division 
the time allotted for checks to clear the bank. 

subsection the 
1s a Saturday, 

per10 runs 

-o-
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VIII. N.J.A.C. 19:45-1.29 Procedure for collecting and recording 
checks returned to the casino after 
deposit 

COMMENT 

The S. C. I. recommends an amen".3ment to eliminate the 
availability of a write off and to require a casino to docum;,nt 
the uncollectibility of a returned check. The S.C.I. believes 
this recommendation would lessen the likelihood that a casino 
credit debt will be considered uncollectible when circlll'!\stances 
where the defaulting gambler actually has the financial ability to 
repay. Such a requirement would ada to the integrity of a casino 
decision concerning an uncollectible debt since required 
documentation would offset criticisms or allegations of 
favoritism, payoffs or misjudgments. 

RECOMMENDATION 

N.J.A.C. 19:45-1.,29 Procedure for collecting and recording checks 
returned to the casino after deposit 

(j) After all reasonable collection efforts, it may be 
determined that returned checks are uncollectible. A returned 
check ma be consi".3ered uncollectible only if sufficient 

ocumentat1on as been o ta1ne ev1 enc1nq t e unco ect1 1 1ty o 
the returned check. Also, a l1st1ng of uncollect1ble returned 
checks [returned checks shall be written-off and listings of such 
checks] shall be approved in writing by, at a minimu~, the Chief 
Executive Officer, or his equivalent, Vice-President of Casino 
Operations, or his equivalent and Controller and such checks ana 
listings shall be maintained and controlled by accounting 
department empl~yees. A continuo~s trial balance of all [written 
off] uncollectible checks shall be maintained by employees of the 
accounting department with no incompatible functions. The 
continuous trial balance shall be adjusted for any subs;,quent 
collections. 

(k) When computin se-:tion 1.27, all 
checks received by remain unpaid 180 
calendar days after the date of issuance, or in the case of 
artial redemptions and consolidations 180 calendar da s after the 
ate o the n1t1al check, shal be unco lect1b e. 

-o-
IX. N.J.A.C. 19:45-1.45 Signatures 

COMMENT 
'' 

The S, C. I. recommends that the date and time accompany a 
signature. This amendment would aid various State agencies which 
monitor casino credit. A signature accompanied by a date and time 
would permit a more accurate and thorough investigation. 
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RECOMMENDATION 

H.J.A.C. 19:45-1.45 Signatures 

(a) Signatures shall: 

6. Include the date and time; 

-o-
x. CIIAP'l'ER 4 2 

Subchapter 4 Provisions applicable only to exclusion of 
persons hearings 

H.J.A.C. 19:42-4.l .!!, seq. and 

CRAFTER 411 
Exclusion of persons 

Subchapter l General provisions 

H.J.A.C. 19:48-1.l et seq. 

COMMEN'!' 

The S.C.I. 's position with respect to N.J.A.C. 19:42-4.1 et 
seq. and 19:48-1.l et~- is identic~l to its position as stateo 
at N.J.S.A. 5:12-1!"': The objective is to require i'l!llllediate 
ejection and exclusion of undesirables consistent with the Casino 
Control Act and due process of law. The interest of the State in 
denying access to the casinos by undesirables is vital. It can 
only be accomplished by a speedy ejection and exclusion procedure. 

RB COMMENDATION 

Subchapter 4 Provisions applicable only to exclusion of 
persons hearings 

H.J.A.C. 19:42-4.l Definitions 

'.nle words and 
the mea~ings set 
unless the context 

terms defined in N.J.A.C. l9:4B-l.l shall have 
forth therein when used in this subchapter, 
clearly indicates otherwise. 

N.J.A.C. l!l:<12-4.2 [Preli1111inary bearing:] [notice:] 
Notice, 111ervice 

(a) Whenever the (Division] commission, pursuant to section 71 
of the act and the regulations of the commission, [petitions to] 
place_! (111 candUllate] the names of ant person on the exclusion 
list, the commission [or Division] sha l' give notice of such fact 
to (the candidate] such person by: 

l. Personal service; or 
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2. Certified mail at the last known address of 
the candidate; or, 

3. Publication 
of general 
Jersey. 

daily for one week in a newspaper 
circulation in Atlantic City, New 

(b) Such notice shall 111dvise [tbe candidate] such ~rson of 
[the pending petition 111nd his right to 111ppear be ore the 
Commission at a preliminary hearing. The notice shall include a 
statement of the time, place and nature of the preliminary 
hearing. The prel irninary hearing shall be scheduled no earlier 
than fifteen (15) days from the date of service.] bis.right to a 
hearing before the Colllllllission and of bis responsibility to request 
auch III hearing. 

[ ( c) J [Unless otherwise agreed by the parties and the Commission, 
a preliminary hearing scheduled in accordance with these 
regulations shall not be postponed at the request of any party.] 

N.J.A.C. 19:42-4.3 [Preliminary bearing; nature of hearing: 
burden of proof; service of order] Right to 
hearing; deeand: ti1111e: waiver 

((a)) IA preliminary hearing shall be a liaited pre-exclusion 
proceeding. '!'he purpose of the preliminary hearing is to 
deten11ine if there is a reasonable possibility that a candidate 
satisfies the criteria for exclusion established by section 71 of 
the Act and the Com11ission's regulations.] 

((b)] [A preliainary bearing shall be decided on the basis of the 
facts alleged by the petition and affidavits of the Division. 'l'tle 
parties' right to participate in the preliainary hearing shall be 
limited to the presentation of oral 111rg111111ent on the sufficiency of 
the Division's petition. Parties may !be represented by counsel.] 

((c)J[The Division shall have the affirmative obligation to 
establish that there is a reasonable possibility that the 
candidate satisfies the criteria for exclusion established by 
section 71 of the Act and the Co111111ission's regulations.] 

((d)][A preli111inary order of the Co111111ission designating a 
candidate an eKcluded person shall be served ~it.bin five (5) days 
of its entry upon the candidate, the Division amJ all casino 
licensees in a 111anner provid~ by N.J.A.C. lt:42-4.2. A 
Co11111111ission order dismissing a Division petition naming a candidate 
1111hall be served upon the candidate and the Division in a 111anner 
provid~ by N.J.A.C. li:42-t.2.J 
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[1!1:42-t.t] [Right to iii fir111l hearing; ti111e; waiver] 

[la)Jl.!m excluded person pliliced on the list by preli1111inary order 
of the Collllllission shall be ilidvised ilit the time of service of the 
preliminary order of his right to demand a final hearing before 
the eo-ission.J 

[(b)J[A de1111and for a finilil heiliring ahall be in writing and aust 
be received by the Colil!lilission within thirty (30) days after 
service in person or by certified nail or within sixty (60) days 
from the ti111e of 1111st publication, 111s the case 1111ay be, of the 
preliminary order placing the excluded person on the list.] 

I (c) !The Co111111i11sion shall, 11pon receipt of a tb1ely and 
sufficient demand for a final bearing, set a time and place for 
such bearing. Unless otherwise 111greed by the o:.-ission and the 
•~eluded person, a final hearing shall be initiated no later than 
tbirty (30) days after the receipt by the Commission of the 
written for a final hearing.] 

[(d)J [.!my •~eluded person placed on the list by preliainary order 
of the Coamission who fails to demand a final hearing within the 
allotted tine period shall be precluded frOIB having a final 
bearing before the Collllll!ission, and shall be subject to the 
issuance of a final order directing that the excluded person shall 
remain on the list until further order of the Colll!lllission; 
provided, however, that such preclusion shall in no way affect the 
right of any excluded perlilOn to judici111l review as provided in the 
Act and regulations of the Colil!lilission.J 

[Final hearing] Rearin9: nature of 
proceeding; burden or proof; final 
decision and order; service of order 

{a) A [finalJ hearing shall be a full evidentiary proceeding 
conducted in accordance with the provisions of section 107 of the 
Act 11md the Commission's regulations. The purpose of !I [final] 
hearing is to determine if an exclu~ed person placed on the list 
by preliminary order satisfies the criteria for exclusion 
established by section 71 of the Act and the Commission's 
regulations. 
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(b) The Division shall have the 111ffirmative obligati:>n to 
demonstrate by III fair preponderance of the evidence that the 
excluded person satisfies the criteria for exclusion established 
by section 71 of the Act and the Commission's regulations. 

(cl The Commission shall render a decision and issue a final 
order as soon as is practicable after the completion of the 
[final] hearing. ~ final order directing that an excluded person 
shall either remain on the list or be removed from the list shall 
be served within five (5) days of its entry upon the excluded 
person, the Division and 11111 casino licensees in a manner provided 
by N.J,A.C. 19:42-4. 2. A final order of the Commission shall be 
subJect to review by the superior Court in accordanc;e with the 
rules of court. 

Subchapter l General Provisions 

N.J.A.c. 19:48-1.l Definitions 

The fol lowing words and terms, 
shall have the following meanings 
indicates otherwise, 

when used in this chapter, 
unless the context clearly 

•.candidate" means any person [whose n&111e is included in a 
petition to place such person on the exclusion list pursuant to 
section 71 of the Act and these regulations.] whom the Commission 
or the Chairman determines should be served with a notice of 
intention to place his name on the list. 

N.J.A.C. 19:48-1.3 Criteria for exclusion 

(a) The exclusion list may include any person: 

l. Who is 'a career or professional offender [and whose 
presence in a licensed casino establisl:ment would, in the opinion 
of the Co11111111iss:l.on, be inimical to the interest of the State of New 
Jersey or of licensed gaming therein;] as defined by Section 71 of 
the Act and by regulation of the commission; or 

[2. Uftlo is an associate of a career or professional offender 
and whose association is such that his presence, in a licensed 
casino establishment would, in the opinion of tbe Co11111ission, be 
inimical to the interest of the St,ate of New Jersey or of licensed 
gaaing therein: or] 

2. [3.J Who has been convicted of a criminal offense under the 
laws of any State, or of the United States, which is punishable by 
more than six months in prison, or who has been convicted of any 
crime or offense involving moral turpitude [, and whose presence 
in a licen111e"' .. easino e111tabU.111!:ment voul~, in the opinion of tbe 
Co11111111ission, be ini~ical to the interest of the State of llew Jersey 
or of licensed gaming therein] 1 or 
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3. [4.] Whose presence in a licensed casino establishment 
woiITd [, in the opinion of the Clolllillli1111sicm,] be inimical to the 
interest of the State of New Jersey or licensed gaming therein, 
including, but not limited to, cheats and persons whose privileges 
for licensure have been revoked. 

N.J.A.C. 19:48-1.S Procedure for entry of n!UH!s 

(a) Upon receipt of a division petition naming a candidate for 
the exclusion list, the Commission shall [schedule a preliminary 
bearing in accordance with the provisions of N.J.A.C. 19:42-4.l et 
111eq.J immediatel review the information contained in tne 
petition. If, upon completion o the [pre 11111nary hearing,! 
review, the Commission determines that there is a· reasonable 
possibility that the candidate satisfies the criteria for 
placement on the exclusion list, the Commission shall immediately 
issue a preliminary order placing the candidate on the exclusion 
list pending further proceedings in accordance with these 
regulations. A preliminary order designating a candidate an 
excluded person shall be effective as to a particular casino 
licensee upon its service upon that casino licensee. The 
Commission shall deny any petition which does not present facts 
establishing a reasonable possibility that a candidate satisfies 
the c;iteria for placement on the exclusion list. 

{b) An excluded person placed on the list by preliminary order 
of the Commission shall be advised of his right to a [final! 
hearing in accordance with the provisions of section 71 of the Act 
and N.J.A.C. 19:42-4.l et seq. 

(c) If, upon completion of a [final] hearing. or in the absence 
of a [final] hearing, upon the expiration of time for requesting 
such a hearing, the Commission determines that an excludej person 
placed upon the list by preliminary order of the Commission 
satisfied the criteria for exclusion established by section 71 of 
the Act and these regulations, the Commission shall issue a final 
order directing that the excluded person shall remain on the list 
until further order of the Commission. A final order directing 
that an excluded person remain on the list shall be effective 
immediately. If, upon completion of a ·[final] hearing, the 
Commission determines that an excluded person placed upon the list 
by preliminary order of the Commission does not satisfy the 
criteria for exclusion est11blished by section 71 of the Act and 
these regulations, the Commission shall issue a final order 
directing that the excluded person be removed from the list. A 
final order directing the removal of an excluded person from the 
list shall be effective as to a particular casino licensee upon 
its service upon that casino licensee. 

(d) The placement of II candidate on the exclusion list pursuant 
to 11ection 71 of the Act and these regulations shall have the 
effect of requiring the exclusion or ejectment of the excluded 
person from any casino hotel facility. 
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of 1 1 duty of 
inilivi«!lllllll 1:1."ll'll!lff 

(c) l!Vly list compiled by the O:.mmission of persons to be 
eiiclud@d or @j111ct111d il!lh11ll ll'IOt bi!! dlll!e1Hd to be 1111 l!lll inclusive 
list, l!lnd [11 e11l!lino lieen1111N1] lie@nl!led e11l!lino ®l!ltl!lblil!lhments l!lh11ll 
h11ve Ill r ht and l!I duty ~ r1tffp frOllil Ite Cl!lllill'IO botel 
f11cility] eet 11nd th11re!llfter it1i:cl ude from the 
remisits pitrl!lons nown to ti11m to II wit n 

t II c l!\Sl!I Section ?la of the Act and these 
regulations, itven in the ab11enee of 11etion by th11 division or the 
commission. further,~11sino'""1Ic~ns1111 l!ln1111 lmmedi11t11ly furnish 
the divisTon lilnd the ei:,miilfHi!on ~~-·11nd 111ddr11sses of all 

111xeludia or '11 11et11, --i,,-'lt who not on the exclusion 
er w t t e r1111111on l!I) ot er 

(d) Mle1111ver an excluded per11on enters, 11ttempt11 to 111nt11r, or is 
in II casino hotel cility 11nd s111id excluded p11rson is recognized 
by th11 c111sino licens11e, its employees or 111g11nts, it l!lhell be the 
duty end responsibility of the c111sino license11, its l!lg11nts and 
employe11l!I to immedi11t11ly notify II Commission insp11ctor and 
Division representetive of such feet. 

[Et] ill It 111hell be th11 ccmtinuing duty of II Cl!IBino licens1111 to 
inform the 0:.IUlil!lsion !!Ind !Oivil!lion is writing ©f the names of 
persons it believes !!Ire 111ppropri!!!te for pl!!!cement on the exclusion 
li11t. 

1i]_ Mben t.b11 diviillion er th{!: c@ffll!li!i!1idon in the normal 
pqirrorm111nc® o:r thl!!ir l!lutiea ©611erve l!lll ini!flvldual within the 
1£c11nsed prefflillles !lllnl! it 'illl bl!!l1<iilvei! · l:her11 il!I !!I re1111on1116Ie 
possibility th111t the !ndivJ~. in question is within the 
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(d) A hearing to determine if an excluded person placed on the 
list by final order of the Co111111ission ahould be remove~ from the 
list ahall be conducted as if it vere a (final) hearing pursuant 
to the provisions of N.J.A.C. l!l:48-l.6(c) 11md N.J.11.c. 
19:42- (~.5] 4.4, Notwithstanding the foregoing, en excluded 
person shall "fiive the affirmative obligation to show cause why he 
ahould be removed from the list. 

:1. e.J.A.C. 19:54-1.i C!>111Putetion of tax 

COMMENT 

, '!he s.c.:r. 'Ill po111:lt:ion with inupect to N.J.A.C. Hl:54-1.6 is 
identical to its position concerning N.J.S.11. S:12-24. 

RECOMMENDATION 

R.J.A.C. 19:54-1.6 C!>111Putetion of t111z 

(111) 'l'tle eight per cent gross revenues tax li111bility for the t~x 
y11;.u 111h11ll be eight per cent of the 111mo1.mt obtained from the 
following c111lcul111tions: 

1. '!he 111wn of tile totals for the tax year vhich appear in 
the casino department accounts for revenues from table games and 
the casino department: 111ccount11 for revenues from coin-operated 
devices, vh:leh &eco1.mt111 are to be 111111int111ined in 111ccorclance with 
generally accepted accounting principles as part: of tile uni form 
chart of accounts for c~sino dep111rt~ents; 

[2. Minus only tbe lesser of tbe following: 

i. Pour ~r ce111t of tbe 11n11111 total derived in pan1frillph 
l ~e, or 

11. '!tie l'IIIIIOW'lt llll:iolrm il'I the Cill!S11'1.0 di!!J?ill'.'~lllt illCCOUnt 
entitled 8 ll'rcn,i111ion for Olllcolleetible Patron ai111ck111,• ~ich 
111~t lllllhell bill -int®inllld in 1u:1cord-- ui th 911111iu1r111lly 111c-pted 
IICCOW'lt!ng prl1u:i!pl1,u1 11111 part of 11caont111 required for eil!l111ino 
depart::Mtau. J 
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